
AGENDA
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is specified below.
Meeting Location: Board Chambers, 2nd Fl., County Courthouse, 278 Main St., Bridgeport, CA 93517

Regular Meeting
October 1, 2024

TRIBAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
In respect to the Indigenous People and Tribal Elders, past, and present, the Bridgeport Indian Colony, Mono

Lake Kutzadika Tribe, and Utu Utu Gwaitu Tribe are the indigenous People who live within this, their
ancestral homeland from time immemorial to the present and have been the caretakers of these lands,

waters, and all natural resources for the benefit of the environment and of all living things. We who live in
Mono County offer this land acknowledgment with a spirit of mutual respect and collaboration. 

 
 

TELECONFERENCE INFORMATION
This meeting will be held in person at the location listed above.  Additionally, a teleconference location will be
available where the public and members of the Board may participate by electronic means.

1. Mammoth Teleconference Location – for meetings held on the first and second Tuesday of each month -
Mono Lake Room of the Mono County Civic Center, First Floor, 1290 Tavern Road, Mammoth Lakes, CA.
93546;
2. Bridgeport Teleconference Location – for meetings held on the third Tuesday of each Month - Mono County
Courthouse, Second Floor Board Chambers, 278 Main Street, Bridgeport, CA. 93517;
3. Zoom Webinar. Absent participation by a member of the Board under AB 2449, the Zoom Webinar is
provided as a courtesy participation method but is not guaranteed.

Members of the public may participate in person at the above listed locations, or, if available, via the Zoom
Webinar, including listening to the meeting and providing public comment, by following the instructions below.

To join the meeting by computer:
Visit https://monocounty.zoom.us/j/86184622677 or visit https://www.zoom.us/, click on "Join A Meeting" and
enter the Zoom Webinar ID 861 8462 2677.
To provide public comment, press the “Raise Hand” button on your screen.

To join the meeting by telephone:
Dial (669) 900-6833, then enter Zoom Webinar 861 8462 2677
To provide public comment, press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to mute/unmute.

Additionally, if available, you may view the live stream of the meeting by visiting:
https://monocounty.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=714fe04d-98f2-4e11-b476-233e3caea796



NOTE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 932-5530 or bos@mono.ca.gov. Notification 48
hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting (See 42 USCS 12132, 28CFR 35.130).
Full agenda packets are available for the public to review in the Office of the Clerk of the Board (Annex I - 74
North School Street, Bridgeport, CA 93517) and online at http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos. Any writing distributed
less than 72 hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection in the Office of the Clerk of the
Board and online. 

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY TIME, ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR EITHER THE MORNING OR
AFTERNOON SESSIONS WILL BE HEARD ACCORDING TO AVAILABLE TIME AND PRESENCE OF
INTERESTED PERSONS. PUBLIC MAY COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS AT THE TIME THE ITEM IS
HEARD.

9:00 AM Call meeting to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

1. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Opportunity for the public to address the Board on items of public interest that
are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Speakers may be limited in
speaking time dependent upon the press of business and number of persons
wishing to address the Board.) Please refer to the Teleconference Information
section to determine how to make public comment for this meeting via Zoom.

2. RECOGNITIONS - NONE

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

CAO Report regarding Board Assignments
Receive brief oral report by County Administrative Officer (CAO) regarding work
activities.

4. DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS

Receive brief oral report on emerging issues and/or activities.

5. CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a
board member requests separate action on a specific item.)

A. Board Minutes
Departments: Clerk of the Board

Approval of Board minutes from the August 8, 2024, special meeting. Approval
of Board minutes from August 6, 2024, regular meeting. Approval of Board
minutes from August 13, 2024, regular meeting. Approval of Board minutes from
August 20, 2024, regular meeting.

Recommended Action: Approve the Board minutes from the August 8, 2024,

mailto:bos@mono.ca.gov


special meeting. Approve of Board minutes from August 6, 2024, regular
meeting. Approve of Board minutes from August 13, 2024, regular
meeting. Approve of Board minutes from August 20, 2024, regular meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: None.
B. Summary Vacation of Portions of Glacier Drive and Beaver Run in

Virginia Lakes, California
Departments: Public Works

Proposed Resolution for summary vacation of portions of Glacier Drive and
Beaver Run in Virginia Lakes, California.

Recommended Action: 1. Adopt proposed resolution. 2. Direct the Clerk of the
Board to record a certified copy of the fully executed Resolution with the County
Recorder. 3. Find that the above action is categorically exempt from the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 14 CCR §§ 15061(b)(3)
& 15305 and direct Public Works to file a Notice of Exemption for the project
consistent with 14 CCR §15062.

Fiscal Impact: None.
C. California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) and

California Connected (CalCONNECT) Data Use and Disclosure
Agreements
Departments: Health and Human Services

Proposed contracts with California Department of Public Health pertaining to
California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) and California
Connected (CalCONNECT) Data Use and Disclosure Agreements.

Recommended Action: Approve, and authorize Kathryn Peterson, Health and
Human Services Director to sign, agreements with California Department of
Public Health for California Reportable Disease Information Exchange
(CalREDIE) and California Connected (CalCONNECT) Data Use and Disclosure
Agreements for the period of three years from latest signature date.  Additionally,
provide authorization for the Health and Human Services Director to approve
minor amendments and/or revisions that may occur during the contract period
provided they are approved by County Counsel and do not materially affect the
County's rights.

Fiscal Impact: None.
D. Grant Funding for Water Refilling Stations

Departments: Public Works Facilities Division

This item is to authorize the Public Works Department to pursue grant funding for
water filling stations to meet the CalRecycle water container recycling goals.



Recommended Action: Authorize Public Works Assistant Director to prepare
and submit grant applications to meet the goals of CalRecycles plan to decrease
plastic water bottle usage and promote the use of water bottle refilling stations
throughout Mono County.

Fiscal Impact: There are no fiscal impacts at this time.  If grant agreements are
issued Public Works will return to the Board to request that the Public Works
Director be authorized to execute the agreements, accept funds, and administer
the grants (in consultation with County Counsel). At that time, we will identify fiscal
impacts for reimbursement. 

E. Authorization for Purchase of Two Sheriff Search and Rescue Trucks
Departments: Public Works Fleet

Replacement of two trucks under the Sheriff's Department Search and Rescue
Division.

Recommended Action: Approve the purchase of two new 2024 Ford F450
vehicles along with all up fitting required on behalf of the Sheriff's department for
the Search and Rescue division in an amount not to exceed $220,000. Authorize
the Public Works Director to sign all required contracts and documents for the
above purchase.

Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $220,000 out of the Motor Pool Fund. Motor Pool
has sufficient funds available to cover the purchase.

F. Contract with North American Mental Health Services for Tele-Psychiatry
Services
Departments: Probation

Proposed contract with North American Mental Health Services pertaining to
Tele-psychiatry services.

Recommended Action: Approve, and authorize County Administrative Officer to
sign, contract with North American Mental Health Services for Tele-psychiatry
services for the period August 1, 2024, through July 31, 2025, and a not-to-
exceed amount of $125,000.

Fiscal Impact: The agreement states that total payments to the contractor by the
County will not exceed $125,000 in any 12-month period. This contract will be
paid through the Community Corrections Partnership Fund and was
recommended by the CCP Executive Committee. This amount is included in the
FY 2024-25 budget.

G. Budget Adjustment for Sheriff's Office to Implement Alcoholic Beverage
Control Grant
Departments: Sheriff



A budget adjustment is needed to increase revenues and expenditures in the
Sheriff's office for the FY 2024-25 budget for the implementation of the Alcoholic
Beverage Control (ABC) Grant.

Recommended Action: Approve budget adjustment for FY 2025-25 as
requested or amended. (4/5 vote required)

Fiscal Impact: Increase revenues and appropriations by $33,603 for alcoholic
beverage control. There is no match required for the grant.  

H. Amended Madera County Sheriff - Coroner - Autopsy Services
Departments: Sheriff

Proposed amendment to the contract with Madera County Sheriff-Coroner
pertaining to Agreement for Autopsy Services.

Recommended Action: Approve and authorize the Chair of the Board of
Supervisors to sign the amended contract with Madera County Sheriff-Coroner.

Fiscal Impact: There is no additional fiscal impact to the Sheriff's budget.
I. Authorization for Purchase of Road Division 10-Wheeler

Departments: Public Works Road

Replacement of one 10-Wheeler which was totaled in accident.

Recommended Action: Approve the purchase of a 2026 Freightliner
sander/plow/dump truck not-to-exceed cost of $410,000. Authorize the Public
Works Director to sign all required documents for the above purchase.

Fiscal Impact: This purchase will be covered by insurance for the replacement
for the 10-wheeler that was totaled on November 1, 2023.  Public Works Fleet
will provide the upfront payment which will then be reimbursed.

J. Ordinance Amending Chapter 7.92 of the Mono County Code to Prohibit
Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing
Departments: Health and Human Services

Proposed ordinance amending Chapter 7.92 of the Mono County Code to
prohibit smoking in Multi-Unit Housing.

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed ordinance.

Fiscal Impact: None.
K. Update to Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) Joint

Powers Agreement (JPA)
Departments: Clerk of the Board



The Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) Joint Powers
Agreement (JPA) has been updated primarily to incorporate Tuolumne County,
Madera County and the City of Fresno as member agencies. The Counties of
Tuolumne and Madera joined YARTS via resolution in 2020 and 2021,
respectively. The City of Fresno’s City Council executed the Restated JPA on
August 15, 2024.

Recommended Action: Approve the Restated YARTS JPA Agreement and
authorize Chair of the Board to sign on behalf of Mono County Board of
Supervisors.  

Fiscal Impact: None.
L. Ratify and Approve Submission of The California Governor’s Office of

Emergency Services (Cal OES) State and Local Cybersecurity Grant
Departments: Information Technology

Ratify and approve submission of The California Governor’s Office of
Emergency Services (Cal OES) State and Local Cybersecurity Grant.

Recommended Action: Board ratify and approve the submission of The
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) State and Local
Cybersecurity Grant and accept the grant funds if awarded.

Fiscal Impact: None immediately. Potential for $250,000 in revenues to fund a
strategic project over a 25 month period with no local matching requirement.

6. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED

Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any item
of correspondence listed on the agenda.

A. Letter of Support for Digital Equity Grant Application for Golden State
Connect Authority Member Counties

Mono County letter of support for Digital Equity Grant Application for Golden
State Connect Authority Member Counties.

7. REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING

A. Community Corrections Partnership Update
Departments: Probation
15 minutes

(Karin Humiston, Chief of Probation) - Presentation by Chief Humiston, an
informational update to the Board on the Community Corrections Partnership.

Recommended Action: None, information only.



Fiscal Impact: None.
B. Election Education Series Part 2

Departments: Elections
30 minutes

(Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar) - In anticipation of the upcoming
November 5, 2024, General Election, the Mono County Registrar will
be presenting a two-part Election Education Series to the Board of Supervisors
and public. Part 2 of the series will review: Voting In Person at a Poll Place vs
Voting by Mail; Election Technology, Security, and Observers; and Results,
Canvass/Certification, Recounts, and Fraud Prevention.

Recommended Action: None, informational only. Provide any desired direction
to staff.

Fiscal Impact: None. 
C. Yosemite National Park Visitor Access Management Plan

Departments: County Administrative Office
15 minutes

(Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - Yosemite National Park has
released a draft Visitor Access Management Plan and Environmental
Assessment for public review. As our economy and visitation are tied to
Yosemite National Park, staff has provided comments on the Plan in a number of
areas. The letter and staff report will be uploaded after publication of the packet
due to the short window for comments on the Plan. 

Recommended Action: Review the letter and provide edits if needed. This
letter was submitted on September 30, but a revised letter can be accepted if
necessary. 

Fiscal Impact: None. 
D. Housing Management Plan for the Bridgeport Apartments

Departments: County Administrative Officer
30 minutes

(Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing Opportunities Manager and Mary Snyder, Special
Projects Mono County Administration) - Presentation by Tyrone Grandstrand and
Mary Snyder regarding the Housing Management Plan for the Bridgeport
Apartments.

Recommended Action: Approve the Bridgeport Apartments Management Plan,
subject to minor and non-substantive modifications, reviewed and approved by
County Counsel and CAO.



Fiscal Impact: None.

E. Mono County Jail Update
Departments: Public Works
5 minutes

(Paul Roten, Public Works Director) - Update regarding the progress in
constructing the Mono County Jail on Twin Lakes Road in Bridgeport.

Recommended Action: None, informational only.

Fiscal Impact: None.
F. 2024 - 25 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook

Update
Departments: County Administrative Office
10 minutes

(Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - On June 11-12, 2024, the
Board conducted a governance workshop to discuss general governance issues
and to review and update the Mono County Governance Handbook. Staff has
updated the Governance Handbook based on the comments received during the
workshop and has provided the Handbook to the Board for adoption
consideration. 

Recommended Action: Staff recommends that the Board review the updated
Governance Handbook and adopt the Handbook as provided or with changes as
needed.

Fiscal Impact: None. 
G. Amendment to Allocation List, Underfilling one Management Analyst with

an Office Manager, Adding one At-Will Staff Services Manager, Deleting
one Supervising Staff Services Analyst and Moving one Senior Services
Supervisor to Range 72, and Adding one Program Manager - MCPE
Departments: Human Resources
10 minutes

(Christine Bouchard, Assistant County Administrative Officer) - Proposed
resolutions approving updates to the allocation list, reclassification of employees,
and creation of new At-Will job classification. 

Recommended Action: Announce Fiscal Impact. Adopt the proposed
resolutions, approving updates to the allocation list, reclassification of employees
and creation of new At-Will job classification. Authorize the Board Chair to
execute contracts on behalf of the County.

Fiscal Impact: The changes have been included in the 2024/2025 Budget. The



total cost for the Office Manager is $123,536, of which $83,888 is salary and
$39,647 is benefits. The cost for the remainder of the year is $92,060, of which
$62,514 is salary and $29,546 is benefits. The position is funded by the General
Fund.  The total cost for the Staff Services Manager is $162,290, of which
$118,039 is salary and $44,251 is benefits. The cost for the remainder of the
year is $120,940, of which $87,963 is salary and $32,977 is benefits. This
position is not funded by the General Fund. The total cost of the Senior Services
Supervisor at range 72, step A is $112,466, of which $74,134 is salary and
$38,332 is benefits. The cost for the remainder of the year is $83,811, of which
$55,245 is salary and $28,566 is benefits. This position is not funded by the
General Fund. The total cost of the Program Manager is $136,029, of which
$94,898 is salary and $41,131 is benefits. The cost for the remainder of the year
is $101,370, of which $70,719 is salary and $30,651 is benefits. 

8. CLOSED SESSION

A. Closed Session: Real Property Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS. Government Code
section 54956.8. Property: 56 Kirkwood, Bridgeport, CA. Agency negotiator:
Sandra Moberly. Negotiating parties: Mono County. Under negotiation: Price,
terms conditions.

B. Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: One.

C. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Sandra Moberly, Oliver Yee,
Christopher Beck, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee
Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy Sheriff's
Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County Public
Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County
Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Correctional Deputy
Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All.

D. Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code
section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer.

9. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

The Board may, if time permits, take Board Reports at any time during the
meeting and not at a specific time.



A. Board Member and Board Ad Hoc Reports

Board Ad Hoc Arts Committee (Chair Peters, Supervisor Salcido)
Board Chambers Ad Hoc Committee (Chair Peters, Supervisor Salcido)
Housing Ad Hoc Committee (Supervisor Gardner, Supervisor Kreitz)
Tax Sharing Ad Hoc Committee (Supervisor Salcido, Supervisor Gardner)

ADJOURN



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Clerk of the Board
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Board Minutes

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Approval of Board minutes from the August 8, 2024, special meeting. Approval of Board minutes from August 6, 2024,
regular meeting. Approval of Board minutes from August 13, 2024, regular meeting. Approval of Board minutes from August

20, 2024, regular meeting.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Board minutes from the August 8, 2024, special meeting. Approve of Board minutes from August 6, 2024,
regular meeting. Approve of Board minutes from August 13, 2024, regular meeting. Approve of Board minutes from August
20, 2024, regular meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Danielle Patrick

PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 August 8, 2024 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

 August 6, 2024 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

 August 13, 2024 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

 August 20, 2024 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

 History

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34176&ItemID=18957

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34231&ItemID=18957

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34239&ItemID=18957

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34240&ItemID=18957


 Time Who Approval
 9/17/2024 2:25 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:38 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 9:31 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 8, 2024 
Page 1 of 3 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 

 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Meeting Location: Board Chambers, 2nd Fl., County Courthouse, 278 Main St., Bridgeport, CA 
93517 

 
Special Meeting 
August 8, 2024 

Backup Recording Zoom 

Minute Orders M24-149 - M24-149 
 

9:05 AM Meeting called to Order by Chair Peters. 
 
Supervisors Present: Duggan, Gardner, Kreitz, Peters, and Salcido. (All members were 
present in-person or participated via teleconference in compliance with rules established by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act). 
 
Supervisors Absent: None.  
 
The Mono County Board of Supervisors stream most of their meetings live on the internet 
and archives them afterward.  To search for a meeting from June 2, 2015, forward, please 
go to the following link: http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings. 
 
 

 Pledge of Allegiance led by Supervisor Kreitz. 
 

1.  OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

  
No one spoke. 

2.  AGENDA ITEMS 

 A. PUBLIC HEARING: FY 2024-25 Recommended Budget 

  Departments: CAO, Finance 

  (Christine Bouchard, Assistant County Administrator; Janet Dutcher, Finance 
Director; Megan Chapman, Budget Officer) - This special meeting is for 
conducting a public hearing regarding the FY 2024-25 Recommended Budget, 

http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18894&MeetingID=1041


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 

prior to bringing the final Budget back for adoption on September 17, 2024. The 
2024-25 Recommended Budget and policy items will be presented for comment 
and direction from the Board.  Members of the public may provide testimony at 
the Bridgeport Courthouse, or at the Mammoth Lakes Civic Center, or via 
zoom.   A link to the Recommended FY 2024-25 Budget is located here:  
https://monocounty.ca.gov/auditor/page/2024-2025-budget. 

  Action: Approved policy item; Approved $1,080,00.00 to Housing Fund instead 
of the General Reserve and Economic Stabilization fund.  
Salcido motion, Duggan second 
5 Yes, 0 No 
M24-149 
 
Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 

• Introduced item 
 
Open Public Hearing: 9:07 AM  
 
Megan Chapman, Budget Officer: 

• Presented item 
 
Break: 10:30 AM 
Reconvened: 10:40 AM 
 
Continued with Public Hearing Policy items. 
 
Closed Public Hearing: 11:54 AM  
 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• Suggested allocating to Housing Fund instead of General Reserve as a policy item. 
 

 

 

 

ADJOURNED at 11:55 AM. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
JOHN PETERS 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SALENA YBARRA 

https://monocounty.ca.gov/auditor/page/2024-2025-budget


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 8, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 
 

ASSISTANT CLERK OF THE BOARD 
 

 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 1 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  

 
Regular Meeting 
August 6, 2024  

TRIBAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT  
Supervisor Gardner:  

• Read the Tribal Land Acknowledgement. 
 
In respect to the Indigenous People and Tribal Elders, past, and present, the Bridgeport Indian Colony, 
Mono Lake Kutzadika Tribe, and Utu Utu Gwaitu Tribe are the indigenous People who live within this, 
their ancestral homeland from time immemorial to the present and have been the caretakers of these 
lands, waters, and all natural resources for the benefit of the environment and of all living things. We who 
live in Mono County offer this land acknowledgment with a spirit of mutual respect and collaboration.  
 

Backup Recording  Zoom  

Minute Orders  M24-141 - M24-148 

Resolutions  R24-075 - R24-077 

Ordinance  ORD24-006 Used 
 

 

9:30 AM Meeting called to Order by Chair Peters. 
 

 Pledge of Allegiance led by Supervisor Duggan. 
 
Supervisors Present: Duggan, Gardner, Kreitz, Peters, and Salcido. (All members were 
present in-person or participated via teleconference in compliance with rules established by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act). 
 
Supervisors Absent: None.  
 
All votes were conducted by roll call. 
 
The Mono County Board of Supervisors stream most of their meetings live on the internet 
and archives them afterward.  To search for a meeting from June 2, 2015, forward, 
please go to the following link: http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings 

 

1.  OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

  
Janet Dutcher , Bridgeport resident : 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 2 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

• Discussed the danger of crossing Highway 395 in Bridgeport for pedestrians in the 
summer. 
 

Matt Nitschke: 
• Discussed his code enforcement concerns related to construction on his neighboring 

property. 
 

Michael Summers: 
• Discussed speed limit concerns in the Twin Lakes residential area. 

 
Chairman Sam, Bridgeport Indian Colony: 

• Expressed gratitude for the support of the Board of Supervisors on the Woody Hills 
stable land project, Dry Lake Plateau and the Coleville Clinic project. 
 

Andrea Lawrence, Interim Director of the Bridgeport  Indian Colony’s BCDC: 
• Provided brief update on the Coleville Clinic project and expressed gratitude to 

Danielle Patrick for her assistance and Chair Peters for sponsoring the letter of 
support. 
 

 

2.  RECOGNITIONS 

 A. Proclamation Designating August as National Breastfeeding Month  

  Departments: Health and Human Services 

  (Stephanie Riley Stai, Mono County WIC Director and Michelle Raust, 
Health and Human Services Deputy Director) - Proposed proclamation to 
designate August as National Breastfeeding Month. 

  Action:  Adopted proclamation by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 
designating August as National Breastfeeding Month. 
Peters moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-141 
 
Stephanie Riley Stai, Program Director/Registered D ietitian: 

• Presented item. 
 

Chair Peters: 
• Read proclamation. 

 
 

 B. Award Recognition for Probation Department  

  Departments: Probation 

  (Karin Humiston, Chief of Probation; Darcie Perkins, Behavioral Health 
Services Coordinator III and Leianna Eissinger, Deputy Probation Officer III) 
- Present and recognize Probation Employee of the Year Award and Medal 
of Valor Awards to two employees. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18889&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18890&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 3 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

  Action:  None. 
 
Jazmin Barkley, Deputy Probation Officer: 

• Presented item. 
 
Chair Peters: 

• Presented awards. 
 

 

3.  COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

  

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer:  
• Discussion on the County BBQ held on 7/31/24. Recognition to CAO staff and HR 

staff for organizing the event. 
• Announced Town of Mammoth began construction on new Town Hall. Mono County 

Civic Center parking will be affected. 
• Updates on the budget hearing will be held on August 8, 2024, and final budget 

adoption September 17, 2024. 
• Board photos are scheduled for August 13, 2024. 
• Update on the Federal Government application for appropriations for evacuation 

route project. 
• California Jobs First Program (Sierra Jobs First Program) expecting a strategic plan 

being released for public view/comment soon. 
 

4.  DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS 

  

Paul Roten, Public Works Director : 
• Update Eastside Lane project. 
• Twin lakes speed limit sign installation and cross walk painting on county roads. 
• Upcoming North Shore triathlon road closure. Will be crack sealing the route. 
• Update on Benton Crossing closure. 
• Civic Center parking effected with Town of Mammoth and Mammoth Hospital 

construction. 
 

Marcella Rose, Outdoor Recreational Coordinator: 
• Discussed (HD35) Hazardous Materials Grant and Refillable Propane Cannister 

initiative. 
 

Janet Dutcher, Finance Director: 
• Report on Tax Collection. Recognition to Tax Collector Staff. 

 
Cathy Young, Health and Human Services, Supervising  Staff Analyst: 

• Red Cross Training Announcement. 
 
Dr. Thomas Boo, Health and Human Services, Public H ealth Officer: 

• Update on COVID-19. 
 
Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director:  

• Announced Caltrans Bridgeport Street and Lee Vining Streets Rehab Projects. 
• Transportation Announcement: Highway 395 Wildlife Crossing Project hard closure 

9/4/24 - 9/19/24. 
• Sage Grouse Conservation update. 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 4 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

• Bistate Action Plan update. 
• Planning Commission approval updates. 

 
Emily Janoff, Health and Human Services, Epidemiolo gist: 

• CDC’s National Wastewater Surveillance System contract award announcement. 
• MCWD approved extension on MOU. 
• Water based epidemiology data available on website. 

 
Robin Roberts, Behavioral Health Director: 

• Provided update on MCBH crisis care. 
• Discussed Prop 43 and Governor Newsom letter.  

  
 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA 

  
(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless 
a board member requests separate action on a specific item.) 

 A. Board  Minutes  

  Departments: Clerk of the Board 

  Approval of Board minutes from the July 2024 regular meetings. 

  Action:  Approved the Board minutes from the July 2, 2024, regular Board 
meeting. Approved the Board minutes from the July 9, 2024, regular Board 
meeting. 
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-142 
 
 

 B. Consolidation of Elections  

  Departments: Elections 

  Resolution consolidating various County, Municipal, and School Elections 
with the General Election to be held on November 5, 2024, and requesting 
the Registrar of Voters conduct the election.  

  Action:  Approved Resolution R24-075, Consolidating various County, 
Municipal, and School Elections with the General Election to be held on 
November 5, 2024, and requesting the Registrar of Voters conduct the 
election.  
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-075 
 
 

 C. Contract for Multi -Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP) 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17834&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17791&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17877&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 5 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

Update  

  Departments: Community Development 

  Consider revised contract award based on an evaluation of Requests for 
Proposals for the County/Town of Mammoth Lakes Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan update. 

  Action:  Approved and authorized the Chair to sign the revised contract with 
IEM International, Inc. (IEM) for the provision of hazard mitigation planning 
services for a not-to-exceed cost of $179,982 for the period from date of full 
execution (August 6, 2024), through September 30, 2025. 
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-143 
 
 

 D. Long Valley Hydrological Advisory Committee (LVHAC)  Hydrologic 
Monitoring Access Agreements  

  Departments: Community Development - LVHAC 

  Assumption of access and legal responsibility for stream gauges for 
hydrologic monitoring. 

  Action:  Authorized Mono County Community Development Director to sign 
the access agreement permission letter from Los Angeles Department of 
Water and Power (LADWP) to access two stream gauges on their property 
leased to Hot Creek Fish Hatchery operated by California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife (CDFW).   
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-144 
 
 

 E. Budget Adjustment for Public Works - Solid Waste Division for Fund 
Transfer  

  Departments: Public Works - Solid Waste 

  A budget adjustment for FY 2023-24 is needed to reduce the cash deficit in 
the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund by increasing the transfer from the Solid 
Waste Parcel Tax Fund. This adjustment will preserve the balance of both 
Fund 616 and Fund 617 to allow for moving forward with the Benton landfill 
in FY 2024-25 and reduce the cash deficit in the Enterprise fund    

  Action:  Approved budget adjustment for FY 2023-24 to increase fund 
transfer amount to $1,200,000 for funds to be transferred from the Solid 
Waste Parcel Tax Fund to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17877&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17876&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17876&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17733&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17733&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 6 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-145 
 
 

 F. Special Event Road Closure Delegation to Public Works Director  

  Departments: Public Works 

  Proposed Resolution of the Mono County Board of Supervisors Delegating 
Authority for Temporary Closure of County Roads for Recurring Special 
Events. 

  Action:  Adopted Resolution R24-076, Delegating Authority for Temporary 
Closure of County Roads for Recurring Special Events. 
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-076 
 
 

 G. Lee Vining Community Center Memorandum of Understanding  

  Departments: Public Works 

  Proposed updated Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to replace the 
existing Lee Vining Community Center MOU between Mono County and the 
Mono Lake Kutzadika Tribe that memorializes use of a portion of the center 
by the Tribe as tribal offices.  

  Action:  Approved and authorized the Chair to sign the updated MOU with 
the Kutzadika Tribe, as amended. 
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-146 
 
Supervisor Duggan: 

• Provided updated of letter (corrected date).  
 
 

 H. Monthly Treasury Transaction Report  

  Departments: Finance 

  Treasury Transaction Report for the month ending 6/30/2024. 

  Action:  Approved the Treasury Transaction Report for the month ending 
6/30/2024. 
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-147 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17871&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17878&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17888&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 7 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 
 

 I. Quarterly Investment Report  

  Departments: Finance 

  Investment Report for the Quarter ending 6/30/2024. 

  Action:  Approved the Investment Report for the Quarter ending 6/30/2024. 
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no  
M24-148 
 
 

6.  CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

  Board acknowledged receipt of the correspondence. 

 A. Bridgeport Indian Colony Request - Grant Support Letter  

  Letter of Support for the Bridgeport Indian Colony request for $2 million 
dollars from United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) Indian Community Development Block Grant Program (ICDBG). 
 
Chair Peters: 

• Presented item 
 
Break: 10:37 AM 
Reconvened: 10:45 AM  
 
Moved to item #7d. 
 

7.  REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING 

 A. Information on Mammoth Lakes Fire Protection Distri ct Ballot Measure  

  Departments: Board of Supervisors, Sponsored by Supervisor Gardner 

  (Ales Tomaier, Fire Chief Mammoth Lakes Fire Protection District) - Provide 
information on Mammoth Lakes Fire Protection District ballot measure per 
request of Supervisor Gardner. 

  Action:  None. 
 
Chief Ales Tomaier, Fire Chief Mammoth Lakes Fire P rotection District: 

• Presented item. 
 
Supervisor Duggan: 

• Asked for clarification on the type of tax being proposed. 
 
 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18888&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17881&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17833&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 8 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 B. Proposal to Increase the Transient Occupancy Tax Rate for 
Unincorporated Mono County  

  Departments: County Counsel and County Administrative Office 

  (Emily Fox, Assistant County Counsel) - Proposed resolution calling a 
special election to submit to the voters of Mono County the question of 
whether an ordinance amending Mono County Code Section 3.28.060 to 
increase the transient occupancy tax rate from twelve percent to fifteen 
percent shall be approved and enacted and ordering that the special election 
be consolidated with the general election to be conducted on November 5, 
2024. 

  Action:  Adopted Resolution R24-077, Calling a special election to submit to 
the voters of Mono County the question of whether an ordinance amending 
Mono County Code Section 3.28.060 to increase the transient occupancy tax 
rate from twelve percent to fifteen percent shall be approved and enacted 
and ordering that the special election be consolidated with the general 
election to be conducted on November 5, 2024, as amended.  
Gardner moved; Kreitz seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no  
R24-077 
 
Emily Fox, Assistant County Counsel: 

• Presented item 
• Clarification that County Officials and Staff may only provide factual answers in 

response to measure questions. 
 

Supervisor Kreitz: 
• In support. 

 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• Requested to have ‘childcare’ added to the measure language. 
• Discussion on implementation timeline if passed regarding transient occupancy tax 

collections. 
• In support. 

 
Supervisor Salcido: 

• Discussion on childcare and strategic plan. 
• Asked for clarification on measure discussions in a personal capacity. 
• In support. 

 
Janet Dutcher, Finance Director: 

• Provided clarification on when new tax revenues will be recognized if measure is 
passed. 

• Explained that rates are applied based on the date of the stay not based on when 
the reservation was made. 

 
Supervisor Duggan: 

• Asking for clarification on how new rates would be applied to preexisting 
reservations if measure is passed. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17889&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17889&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 9 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

• In support. 
 
Chair Peters: 

• Provided clarification on how new rates would be applied to preexisting 
reservations if measure is passed. 

• In support. 
 

 
 
Public Comment: 
Don Morton:  

• Discussed his opinion on the proposed tax increase and the impact it can have on 
June Lake businesses. 

 
Ralph Lockhart: 

• Discussed June Lake Chamber of Commerce’s stance on the proposed tax 
increase. 

• Discussed concerns on the impact the proposed increase can have on June Lake 
businesses and concerns of receiving County support. 
 

 

 C. Special District Review -Phase 1  

  Departments: County Administrative Office 

  (Mary Snyder, Special Projects) - Presentation by Mary Snyder regarding 
review of Special District capacity. 

  Action:  None. 
 
Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 

• Introduced item. 
 
Mary Snyder, Special Projects: 

• Presented item. 
 
Supervisor Salcido: 

• Asked for clarification of how Proposition 13 effected the 1% tax distributed to 
Special Districts.  

 
Supervisor Kreitz: 

• Asked for clarification about ongoing rate adjustments built into different special 
district policies. 

• Requested that rate studies be made a priority. 
 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• Requested this project continue to move forward. 
 
Chair Peters: 

• Agreed with Supervisor Gardner and would like this project to continue to move 
forward. 

 
Public Comment: 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17804&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 10 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

Lorinda Beatty, Hilton Creek Community Services District:  
• Provided brief explanation on the procedure required for utility districts to raise 

rates. 
 

Nick Way, Bridgeport Fire Department Chief: 
• Recognition to Mary, Sandra, Janet and Staff for their role in this project. 
• Echoes Supervisor Gardner’s statements would also like to see this project continue 

as it would benefit the special districts greatly. 
• Requested the Board still consider Bridgeport Fire’s original request to amend the 

County agreement.  
 
Moved to Closed Session. 
 

 D. Mono County Jail Update  

  Departments: Public Works 

  (Paul Roten, Public Works Director; Janet Dutcher, Finance Director) - Mono 
County Jail Update. 

  Action:  None. 
 
Paul Roten, Public Works Director: 

• Presented item. 
 

Janet Dutcher, Finance Director: 
• Provided project budget update. 

 
Moved back to item #7a. 
 

 E. Out-of -State Remote Work Discussion  

  Departments: County Administrative Office 

  (Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - In July of 2023 the Board 
adopted a resolution imposing a moratorium on out-of-state, remote work. 
The resolution directed staff to prepare a policy regarding out-of-state, 
remote work and staff is seeking direction from the Board on what points the 
policy should include.  

  Action:  None. 
 
Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 

• Presented item. 
 
Supervisor Duggan: 

• Requested information on out of state remote work restrictions from other counties 
and from Nevada. 

 
Supervisor Salcido: 

• Requested out of state employment be assessed individually based on the position. 
To be assessed by CAO, County Counsel, Board and department head. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17852&MeetingID=1002
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18900&MeetingID=1002


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 11 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• Agreed with comments made. 
 
Chair Peters: 

• Requested to see information related to cost and HR. 
 
Supervisor Kreitz: 

• Agreed with comments made. 
• Suggests looking to neighboring counties for insights on similar situations. 

 
Moved to Board Reports.  

8. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Closed session 12:27 PM 
Reconvened 1:27 PM 
 
No reportable action out of Closed Session.  
 
Moved to item #7e. 

 A. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations  

  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section 
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Sandra Moberly, Oliver Yee, 
Christopher Beck, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee 
Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy 
Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County 
Public Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), 
Mono County Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County 
Correctional Deputy Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All. 

 B. Closed Session - Existing Litigation  

  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION. 
Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9. 
Name of case: Claim for damages filed by Frontier.  

 C. Closed Session - Existing Litigation  

  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION.  Subdivision (a) of Government Code section 54956.9. Name 
of case: Workers' Compensation Claim of Scott Minder. 

 D. Closed Session - Existing Litigation  

  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION. 
Subdivision (a) of Government Code section 54956.9. County of Mono, et al 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 12 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

v. Liberty Utilities, LLC, et al., Case No: 2:21-cv-00834-DAD-KJN, U.S. 
District Court for the Eastern District of California 

 E. Closed Session - Existing Litigation  

  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION. 
Subdivision (a) of Government Code section 54956.9. Case Name: Southern 
California Edison Company v. California State Board of Equalization, et al. 
Case Number: Orange County Superior Court Case No.: 30-2024-
01403215-CU-MC-CXC 

 F. Closed Session - Existing Litigation  

  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION. 
Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9. 
Name of case: County of Mono v. Jim Ouimet, et al. Case number: 
24LCM78  

 G. Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation  

  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION. 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) 
of Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: One.        

 H. Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation  

  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code 
section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer. 

9.  BOARD MEMBER REPORTS  

  

Supervisor Duggan:  
• 7/10 – I participated in the GBUAPCD Governing Board meeting in Markleeville 

along with Supervisor Salcido. We recognized Chris Lanane upon his retirement 
and 25 years of service. 

• 7/11-16 – I participated in the NACo Annual Conference in Tampa. The various 
committees submitted policy resolutions and the annual change in leadership saw 
Supervisor James Gore of Sonoma County become NACo President for 2024-25. 
This brings renewed focus on California issues supported through NACo and many 
leadership appointments for our county representatives. I received presidential 
appointments to the EELU Land Use Subcommittee as Vice Chair, Membership 
Standing Committee, Veterans and Military Services Committee, and Vice Chair for 
the Rural Action Caucus. 

• 7/24 – I participated in the RCRC, GSFA, and the GSCA meetings in Sacramento. 
Highlights were a session from the CA Director of the USDA and discussions 
around statewide ballot initiatives in November. The CPUC announced a third round 
of broadband grant award recommendations for the Federal Funding Account 
program and Golden State Connect Authority received two award recommendations 
for the broadband deployment. One award is for Mono County totaling $6 million 
and the other for the Town of Mammoth Lakes for $4.1 million. 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 13 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

• 7/29 – I participated in the CSAC AENR Committee discussion on CA Prop 4 on the 
Nov ballot. 

• 7/31 I attended the Annual Mono County Employee BBQ – Thank you for a great 
afternoon! 

• 8/1 – I participated in the CSAC Legislative Update Webinar, a comprehensive 
overview of bills remaining for the current legislative session. 

Supervisor Gardner: 
• On Wednesday July 17 I participated in the monthly meeting of the Mono Basin Fire 

Safe Council.  Topics at that meeting included the status of clearing the fire break 
around Mono City and the recent effort to establish a Fire Wise Community in the 
Mono City area.  The Council is also involved in creating a pipeline from a pond 
north of Mono Lake that could be used for wildfires. 

• On Thursday July 18 I attended a meeting of the Mono Basin partners to discuss 
how the summer is going with the various recreation partner agencies.   

• Also, on the 18th I participated in the monthly meeting of the Wildfire Resilience 
Finance Action Team, which is working to support current and future fuels reduction 
in Mono County.  We heard a presentation on the potential of a biomass project that 
could handle the anticipated wood resulting from fuels reduction efforts. 

• On July 30 I attended the kickoff event for the Access Apts. project in Mammoth.  
Congratulations to Eastern Sierra Community Housing for all their hard work in 
getting this project to the construction phase. 

• Last Wednesday the 31st I attended the Mono County BBQ and picnic at Mono 
County Park.  Thanks to Sandra and her staff for a great job and a wonderful time.    

• Last Thursday Aug. 1 I attended an update with Supervisor Salcido on the Cal Jobs 
First program.  It seems to me that the key to this initiative will be our abilities to 
cooperate with other jurisdictions on similar projects. The Strategic Plan is available 
for comment this week until Friday. 

• Finally, yesterday I participated with Supervisor Salcido in the monthly Eastern 
Sierra Sustainability Recreation Partnership.  We received several updates about 
ongoing recreation-related issues and got updates from each of the partner 
agencies. 

Supervisor Kreitz: 
• Appointments to NACo – Community Economic Workforce Development Steering 

Committee and as a member of the Rural Action Caucus (RAC). 
• In July I attended the National Association of Counties Annual Conference in 

Tampa, FL.  
• July 17th, I participated in a meeting with then multi-unit housing non-smoking 

ordinance Ad Hoc committee.  
• July 18th, I participated in the IMACA Financial Committee meeting. IMACA has 

hired an outside consulting firm to provide financial services upon the retirement of 
their current Controller, Anita Sonke.  

• Later that day, I attended the Eastern Sierra Community Housing (ESCH) Discovery 
Partnerships Committee meeting. The committee is interested in taking back to 
ESCH some policy request. The committee also discussed the USDA Forest 
Service program that allows using administrative sites for affordable housing 
developments as currently under way in Colorado resort counties. The committee is 
inviting a staff member of the Inyo Nation Forest to an upcoming meeting. The 
committee discussed the upcoming TOT ballot measures as well as the Town’s 
Bridge Program and the desire to implement a pilot program in unincorporated 
Mono County. 

• July 25, the CSAC Insurance Working Group. Staff is putting together some policy 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 14 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

recommendations for consideration by the group and then to be taken to the 
executive board of CSAC.  

• July 30th, I attended the Access Apartments groundbreaking ceremony. The project 
General contractor superintendent, ESCH staff, Board and many partners and 
community members attended. The project is optimistically slated for occupancy in 
autumn 2025. 

• August 1, I participated in a Sierra Jobs First meeting. There was discussion 
amongst those in attendance about the upcoming RFP projects.  

• August 5, I participated in an Eastern Sierra focus HCD listening session on the 
Consolidated Plan Update. The Consolidated Plan is a five-year document. This 
update will run from 2025-2029.  

• Later that day I participated in the ESCH Board meeting. The Board received project 
and program updates. Innsbruck is roughly 90% complete. The electrical switch 
gear is expected to arrive this December. Access Apartments is currently in the 
demo phase with the first building set to be completed this week and building two 
next week. Concrete cutting and removal will start next week, as well. 
Programmatically, there are four below market rate units available for purchase in 
Mammoth Lakes. 

Chair Peters:  
• 7/19 Attended the presentation at the Senior Center in Antelope Valley; needs 

assessment for community 
• 7/23 Follow up meeting NACo National Committee for Public Lands. 
• 7/25 Attended the VOAD meeting. 
• 7/25 Attended the IMACA meeting and will be moving away from meetings starting 

the beginning of the year.   
• Attended the CSAC insurance working group. 
• 7/31 Annual Mono County BBQ. 
• 2nd meeting in Mono Village with the owner and Marcella Rose. 
• NACo Annual Conference served as Ambassador.  

Supervisor Salcido: 
• June 26.  ESCOG – Eastern Sierra Council of Governments.  Actions included:  

approval of 2024/25 ESCOG budget, a presentation from Peter Fulks, Cerro Coso 
Community College Public Services Department Chair, regarding the Sustainable 
Outdoor Recreation Leadership Program, and approval of a MOU between the 
Institute for Local Government and ESCOG for the provision of strategic planning 
services.   

• June 28.  Attended the Governance Council for the Sierra Jobs First project at the 
Civic Center.  Representatives from around the Sierra Region participated in fine 
tuning the draft strategies to be included in the Regional Strategic Plan which is due 
very soon. 

• July 1.  ESCCRP.  Regional and partner updates. Among the topics was a review of 
Sierra Jobs first work plan and ongoing efforts to finish the strategic plan and decide 
upon the projects to be submitted to the Statewide decision process.   

• July 10, GBUAQD, Great Basin Unified Air Quality District board meeting.  Attended 
via zoom as partners discussed projects and local work initiatives and status of legal 
actions pending. 

• July 12.  California Wildfire and Forest Resilience Task Force.  Heard a fire season 
update from Wade Crowfoot, CNRA, Jennifer Eberlien, USFS and Joe Tyler, Chief 
of CalFire.  A panel of statewide and regional leaders discussed challenges and 
next steps for aligning and coordinating state, federal, and private funding to better 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 6, 2024 
Page 15 of 15 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

support regional priority needs and increase program sustainability.   
• July 18.  Wildfire Resilience Action Finance Team.  WRAFT.  Met to receive 

information regarding grant awards to Whitebark, since inception, $38M, and the 
realization of what funding levels will be necessary to continue work into the future.  
Estimate of another $38M to continue work into 2030.  The initiative will continue 
with emphasis on funding sources. 

• July 22.  CSAC Health and Human Services Policy Committee.  Discussion on 
Proposition 35.  Title:  Provides Permanent Funding for Medi-Cal Health Care 
Services.  This Managed Care Organization (MCO) tax is a tax on managed care 
organizations to Committee voted to support this ballot measure.  The MCO tax 
revenue will offset General Fund spending on existing Medi-Cal programs and 
support program augmentations. Would make the MCO tax permanent and limit the 
structure of the tax and would establish specific uses for the tax revenue.     

• July 28.  YARTS dinner at the Village prior to our next day meeting. 
• July 29.  YARTS Governing Board.  22 free vouchers have been issued to date for 

transit between Mono County and Yosemite.   
• July 30.  Open house and opening of construction on the Access Apartments in the 

Town.  Will provide 11 workforce housing, up to 120% of AMI, when completed. 
• July 31.  Annual Mono County Employee picnic.  Thank you to everyone in the 

admirative offices who organized this event.  Well attended and great fun. 
• August 1.  CSAC legislative committees update on current pending legislation.   
• August 5.  ESSRP, Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership, for 

announcements and updates.   

 

 

 

ADJOURNED AT 2:36 P .M. 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
____________________________________ 
JOHN PETERS 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SALENA YBARRA 
ASSISTANT CLERK OF THE BOARD  

 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 1 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of 

meeting is specified below. 
Meeting Location: Board Chambers, 2nd Fl., County Courthouse, 278 Main St., 

Bridgeport, CA 93517 
 

Regular Meeting 
August 13, 2024  

TRIBAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT  

In respect to the Indigenous People and Tribal Elders, past, and present, the 
Bridgeport Indian Colony, Mono Lake Kutzadika Tribe, and Utu Utu Gwaitu Tribe are 

the indigenous People who live within this, their ancestral homeland from time 
immemorial to the present and have been the caretakers of these lands, waters, and 

all natural resources for the benefit of the environment and of all living things. We who 
live in Mono County offer this land acknowledgment with a spirit of mutual respect and 

collaboration.  
  

Backup Recording  Zoom  

Minute Orders  M24-150 - M24-153 

Resolutions  R24-078 - R24-081 

Ordinance  ORD24-006 Used 
 

 

9:03 AM Call meeting to Order by Chair Peters. 
 

 Pledge of Allegiance led by Supervisor Salcido. 
 
Supervisors Present: Duggan, Gardner, Kreitz, Peters, and Salcido. (All members were present 
in-person or participated via teleconference in compliance with rules established by the Ralph 
M. Brown Act). 
 
Supervisors Absent: None.  
 
All votes were conducted by roll call. 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 2 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

The Mono County Board of Supervisors stream most of their meetings live on the internet and 
archives them afterward.  To search for a meeting from June 2, 2015, forward, please go to 
the following link: http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings 

 

1.  OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

  
No one spoke.  

2.  RECOGNITIONS - NONE 

3.  COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

  

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer:  
• Announced the upcoming agenda item discussing cancelling the September 17, 2024, 

meeting due to RCRC Conference. 
 
Supervisor Kreitz: 

• Discussion on cancelling due to not having a quorum or due to lack of material. 
 

 

4. 
 

DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS 

  

Luis Molina, Environmental Health Director:  
• Update on the hazardous bloom on Crowley Lake and Bridgeport Reservoir regarding 

the harmful algae testing and advisory. 
 
Supervisor Salcido:  

• Discussion on past findings and when these blooms became a hazard. 
 

Supervisor Peters: 
• Discussion on the sampling of fish and if the fish is safe to consume.  

 
 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA 

  
(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a 
board member requests separate action on a specific item.) 

  

Chair Peters:  
• Discussion on questions from the public as to why Items a and b are on the Consent 

Agenda.  
 

Chris Beck, County Counsel: 
• Clarification on why Item a and b are on the Consent Agenda vs Regular Agenda. 

 

 A. Claim for Damages - Frontier   

  Departments: Risk Management  

  Two claims for damages filed by Frontier for damaged Frontier cables  

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17861&MeetingID=1004


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 3 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

allegedly caused by Mono County digging operations 

  Action:  Denied the two claims submitted by Frontier, and direct the Risk 
Manager, in consultation with County Counsel, to send notices to the claimant 
for said denials. 
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-150 
 
 

 

 B. Resolution Determining that Scott Minder is Industr ially Disabled   

  Departments: Risk Management  

  Proposed resolution determining that Scott Minder is eligible for industrial 
disability retirement.  

 

  Action:  Adopted Resolution R24-078, Determining that Scott Minder is eligible 
for industrial disability retirement. 
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-078 
 
 

 

 C. Maternal, Child, and Adolescent Health (MCAH) Agree ment Funding 
Application FY 2024-2025  

 

  Departments: Health and Human Services  

  Proposed contract with California Department of Public Health, pertaining to 
Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) Division Agreement Funding 
Application (AFA) for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

 

  Action:  Approved, and authorized Chair to sign, contract with California 
Department of Public Health for Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health 
(MCAH) Division Agreement Funding Application (AFA) for the period July 1, 
2024, through June 30, 2025, and a not-to-exceed amount of 
$116,896.23.  Additionally, provide authorization for the Health and Human 
Services Director to approve minor amendments and/or revisions that may 
occur during the contract period provided they are approved by County 
Counsel and do not materially affect the County's rights.  
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-151 
 
 

 

 D. Maternal, Child, and Adolescent Health (MCAH) California Home Visiting  

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17869&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17863&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17863&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17865&MeetingID=1004


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 4 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Program (CHVP) Agreement Funding Application FY 202 4-2025 

  Departments: Health and Human Services  

  Proposed contract with California Department of Public Health, pertaining to 
Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) Division, California Home 
Visiting Program (CHVP) Agreement Funding Application (AFA) for Fiscal 
Year 2024-2025. 

 

  Action:  Approved, and authorized Chair to sign, contract with California 
Department of Public Health for Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health 
(MCAH) Division, California Home Visiting Program (CHVP) Agreement 
Funding Application (AFA) for the period July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, 
and a not-to-exceed amount of $408,086.  Additionally, provide authorization 
for the Health and Human Services Director to approve minor amendments 
and/or revisions that may occur during the contract period provided they are 
approved by County Counsel and do not materially affect the County's rights.  
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-152 
 
 

 

 E. Proposed contract with California Department of Pub lic Health, 
pertaining to HIV Surveillance Grant Agreement Numb er 24-10294 July 1, 
2024 - June 30, 2029  

 

  Departments: Health and Human Services  

  Proposed contract with California Department of Public Health, pertaining to 
HIV Surveillance Grant Agreement Number 24-10294. 

 

  Action:  Approved, and authorized Chair to sign, contract with California 
Department of Public Health for HIV Surveillance Grant Agreement Number 
24-10294 for the period July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2029, and a not-to-
exceed amount of $15,000.  Additionally, provide authorization for the Health 
and Human Services Director to approve minor amendments and/or revisions 
that may occur during the contract period provided they are approved by 
County Counsel and do not materially affect the County's rights.  
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-153 
 
 

 

 F. FY 24/25 Alcoholic Beverage Control Grant   

  Departments: Sheriff  

  Proposed resolution approving the application for the State of California  

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17865&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17886&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17886&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17886&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18897&MeetingID=1004


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 5 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Alcohol Policing Program Grant. 

  Action:  Adopted Resolution R24-079, Approving the application for the State 
of California Alcoholic Beverage Control Alcohol Policing Program Grant. 
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-079 
 
 

 

 G. Sale of Tax -Defaulted Property   

  Departments: Finance  

  Request for approval to sell tax-defaulted property subject to the power of 
sale. 

 

  Action:  Approved Request and Resolution R24-080, Approval to Sell Tax-
Defaulted Property Subject to the Power of Sale. 
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-080 
 
 

 

6.  CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED - NONE 

  
Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any 
item of correspondence listed on the agenda. 

7.  REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING 

 A. California's Fire Insurance Crisis  

  Departments: Emergency Management 

  (Chris Mokracek, Emergency Management Director) - A presentation by Chris 
Mokracek, Director of Emergency Management, on the ongoing loss of fire 
insurance coverage by a growing number of residents in Mono County. 

  Action:  None. 
 
Chris Mokracek, Emergency Management Director: 

• Presented item.  
• Discussion on the upcoming CalFire update for the Board.  

 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• Discussion on “discounts” and “not drops” notifications from insurance companies.  
• Discussion on CalFire doing audits of homes.  
• Discussion on insurance profits.  
• Discussion on volunteers and the compensation they may receive.  

 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18895&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17847&MeetingID=1004


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 6 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Supervisor Kreitz:  
• Discussion on “policy retention” notifications in her condo (Mammoth Lakes). 

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 
• Discussion on her personal experience retaining her policy after doing requested (by 

insurance company) work on her property.  
 

Supervisor Duggan: 
• Discussion on Ready Mono site and resources. 
• Discussion on any upcoming lot maintenance dates.  

 
Supervisor Salcido: 

• Discussion on “considering cancelling” notifications from insurance agencies.  
 
Chair Peters: 

• Discussion on insurance companies deploying new tactics. 
 

Public Comment: 
Bruce, California resident: 

• Two questions: 
1. Is the State of California is considering doing any kind of reinsurance to help? 
2. Is there any way to work with an insurance company to reduce your premium. 

If you take certain steps to make your home fire safe? 
 

Break 10:00 AM 
Reconvened: 10:10 AM 
 

 B. Housing Policy Analysis - Background, Problem, Objectives, and Criteria  

  Departments: County Administrative Office 

  (Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing Opportunities Manager) - Presentation by 
Tyrone Grandstrand regarding Housing Policy Analysis. The complete analysis 
will have five sections Background, Objectives, Criteria, Policy Options, and 
Analysis. This presentation is covering the first two sections, which will guide 
the completion of the next three. Each section is iterative, and the entire 
process can also be iterative as well. The goal of the presentation and the 
policy analysis overall is to build out a housing program that will efficiently 
utilize resources while maximizing the impacts desired by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

  Action:  None. 
 
Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing Opportunities Manager: 

• Presented item.  
• Clarified the objectives. 
• Provided clarity on the analysis process. 

 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• Mentioned along with workforce housing to keep in mind that there is a retired 
population to consider. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17828&MeetingID=1004


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 7 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 
Supervisor Kreitz: 

• Discussion on local economy and updating our needs assessment list (preferred 
language).  

• Discussion on “Define the Problem” page of presentation.  
 

Supervisor Salcido: 
• Discussion on housing issues and how to move forward.  

Supervisor Duggan: 
• Discussion in the ongoing analysist. 

 
Chair Peters:  

• Suggested adding workforce housing verbiage.  
 

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 
• Discussion on the consensus and options offered to the Board on direction to move 

forward.  
 
Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director: 

• Discussion on deed restrictions, ADU’s, and mobile homes.  
 
 
 

 C. Mono County Audit Reports for FY 2022 -23 

  Departments: Finance 

  (Janet Dutcher, Finance Director) - Presentation of the Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (ACFR) and the Single Audit Report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2023. 

  Action:  None.  
 
Janet Dutcher, Finance Director: 

• Presented item.  
 

 D. Terms and Conditions of Employment for Milan Brando n as Deputy 
District Attorney  

  Departments: District Attorney 

  (David Anderson, District Attorney) - Proposed resolution approving a contract 
with Milan Brandon as Deputy District Attorney, and prescribing the 
compensation, appointment and conditions of said employment. 

  Action:  Announced Fiscal Impact. Approved Resolution R24-081, Approving a 
contract with Milan Brandon as Deputy District Attorney, and prescribing the 
compensation, appointment and conditions of said employment. Authorized the 
Board Chair to execute said contract on behalf of the County. 
Fiscal Impact: The fiscal impact for this position for a complete fiscal year is 
$162,900 of which $130,138 is salary and $32,762 is benefits.  This is included 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18899&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18896&MeetingID=1004
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18896&MeetingID=1004


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 8 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

in the Department’s 2024/2025 Requested Budget and the CAO's 
Recommended Budget. 
Gardner moved; Kreitz seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-081 
 
David Anderson, District Attorney: 

• Presented item.  
 

8. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Chris Beck, County Counsel: 

• Withdrew the Closed Session item. 
 
Moved to Board Reports.  

 A. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations   

  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section 
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Sandra Moberly, Oliver Yee, 
Christopher Beck, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee 
Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy 
Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County 
Public Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono 
County Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Correctional 
Deputy Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All. 

 

9. 

 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS  
Supervisor Duggan: 

• 8/7 Meeting with Community Development staff regarding Special Districts. 
• Budget Hearing and thanked staff for their hard work.  
• 8/7 Attended the Special Meeting of the Mono County Local Transportation 

Commission. The Commission will be reviewing, updating and adopting the Regional 
Transportation Plan. We received an update from Caltrans, and the free YARTS 
reservation program funded by LTC. 

• Attended the Community Development outreach meetings discussing RV issues 
 

Supervisor Gardner: 
• Last Wednesday Aug. 6 I attended the monthly meeting of the June Lake Citizens 

Advisory Committee.  Most of the meeting was focused on a presentation from 
Community Development requesting input from the Committee about RVs as 
residences.  It was a lively discussion which will be a part of the ongoing review of this 
issue. 

• On Thursday the 8th I joined the rest of the Board for our FY 2024-25 Budget Hearing.  
I thought the meeting went quite well and want to thank Megan and her team for doing 
a great job on this year’s budget. 
 

Supervisor Kreitz: 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17883&MeetingID=1004


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 13, 2024 
Page 9 of 9 
 

Note: 

These mee�ng minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

• Friday, August 9th ILG Sustainable and Resilient Communities Advisory Council 
Meeting #1 

• Monday, August 12, 2024 – Special Meeting of the Mono County Local Transportation 
Commission. The Commission will be reviewing, updating and adopting the Regional 
Transportation Plan. We received an update from Caltrans, and the free YARTS 
reservation program funded by LTC. 

• Later Monday, I participated in the regular meeting of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of 
Care.  
 

Chair Peters: 
• Attended the Budget Hearing. 
• Attended the LTC meeting 
• Attended the CSA 5 meeting – project updates, working with Public Works. 
 

Supervisor Salcido: 
• 8/12 Attended Behavioral Health Advisory Board meeting. 

 

 

 

ADJOURNED AT 11:47 AM 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
____________________________________ 
JOHN PETERS 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
DANIELLE PATRICK 
SENIOR DEPUTY CLERK OF THE BOARD  

 

 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 1 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is 

specified below. 
Meeting Location: Mono Lake Room, 1st Fl., County Civic Center, 1290 Tavern Rd., Mammoth 

Lakes, CA 93546 
 

Regular Meeting 
August 20, 2024 

TRIBAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
In respect to the Indigenous People and Tribal Elders, past, and present, the Bridgeport Indian 

Colony, Mono Lake Kutzadika Tribe, and Utu Utu Gwaitu Tribe are the indigenous People who live 
within this, their ancestral homeland from time immemorial to the present and have been the 

caretakers of these lands, waters, and all natural resources for the benefit of the environment and 
of all living things. We who live in Mono County offer this land acknowledgment with a spirit of 

mutual respect and collaboration.  
  

Backup Recording Zoom 

Minute Orders M24-154 - M24-156 

Resolutions R24-082 - R24-085 

Ordinance ORD24-006 Used 
 

 

9:07 AM Call meeting to Order by Chair Pro-Tem Kreitz. 
 
Chris Beck, County Counsel: 

• Announced that Supervisor Salcido will be attending via zoom under AB2449. 
 

 

 Pledge of Allegiance led by Supervisor Duggan. 
 
Supervisors Present: Duggan, Gardner, Kreitz, Peters, and Salcido. (All members were 
present in-person or participated via teleconference in compliance with rules established by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act). 
 
Supervisors Absent: None.  



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

 
The Mono County Board of Supervisors stream most of their meetings live on the internet 
and archives them afterward.  To search for a meeting from June 2, 2015, forward, please 
go to the following link: http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings 
 
All votes were conducted by roll call. 
 

 

1.  OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

  

Matt Paruolo, SCE: 
• Update on power outage in Bridgeport.  

 
Supervisor Peters: 

• Thanked Matt for his communication and efforts during the outage. 
• Discussion on the SCE system failure at the corporate level.  

 

2.  RECOGNITIONS - NONE 

3.  COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

  

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 
• Update on the upcoming Highway 395 closure and announced preparation meetings. 
• Discussion on Board Ad Hoc activities and having this as a recurring item on upcoming 

Board meetings.  
• Discussion on academic week, last week.  
• Prepared Readiness update and thanked Chris Mokracek. 

 
Chair Pro-Tem Kreitz: 

• Discussed the notice of Caltrans virtual meetings from Liz Grans. 
 
 

4.  DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS 

  

Bri Chappell-McGovern, HHS Emergency Preparedness Manager: 
• Update on program update on Neighbor Fest. 

 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA 

  
(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a 
board member requests separate action on a specific item.) 

 A. Reappointments to the Mono County Assessment Appeals Board 

  Departments: Clerk of the Board 

  Reappointment of two regular members and one alternate member to the Mono 
County Assessment Appeals Board.  

  Action: Reappointed Jarrett Patrick and Paul Oster as regular members, and 

http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17884&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 3 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

Jeff Mills as alternate member, of the Assessment Appeals Board for three-year 
terms effective September 2, 2024, through September 1, 2027. 
Gardner moved; Duggan seconded 
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-154 

 B. Road Closure for Bridgeport Volunteer Fire Department Bags and Beans 
Chili Cookoff Fundraiser 

  Departments: Public Works Roads Division 

  The County routinely hosts special events each summer and sometimes the 
events require road closures. This resolution would grant the Public Works 
Director the authority to close affected County roads as necessary for the 
Bridgeport Volunteer Fire Department Bags and Beans Chili Cookoff 
Fundraiser.  Road closures would occur after event applications are evaluated 
and approved by other departments in accordance with their policies.  This 
closure will take place on Sunday, September 1, 2024, on Sinclair Street, 
between U.S. Highway 395 and Kinsley Street, between the hours of 10:00 am 
and 8:00 pm.  

  Action: Adopted Resolution R24-082, Granting the Public Works Director the 
authority to close affected County roads as necessary for the Bridgeport 
Volunteer Fire Department Bags and Beans Chili Cookoff Fundraiser.  Road 
closures would occur after event applications are evaluated and approved by 
other departments in accordance with their policies.  
Gardner moved; Duggan seconded 
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-082 
 
 

 C. Crisis Care Mobile Units Grant Stipend 

  Departments: Human Resources 

  Proposed resolution adopting a side letter to the Memorandum of Understanding 
between the County and the International Union of Operating Engineers, AFL-
CIO, Local 39 on behalf of the Mono County Public Employee's Bargaining Unit 
to implement the Crisis Care Mobile Units Grant Stipend. 

  Action: Adopted Resolution R24-083, Adopting a side letter to the Memorandum 
of Understanding between the County and the International Union of Operating 
Engineers, AFL-CIO, Local 39 on behalf of the Mono County Public Employee's 
Bargaining Unit to implement the Crisis Care Mobile Units Grant Stipend and 
approved Board Chair to execute side letter. 
Gardner moved; Duggan seconded 
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-083 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18913&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18913&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18910&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 4 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

 
 

6.  CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

  
Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any 
item of correspondence listed on the agenda. 

 A. Support Letter - Advocate for Strong USDA Rural Development Funding in 
FY 2025 Appropriations  

  Mono County letter of support for USDA Rural Development (USDA-RD) 
programs in the final Fiscal Year 2025 appropriations package. 

7.  REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING 
 A 

. 
Resolution Proposing to Name a Segment of U.S. 395 after Captain Vidar 
Anderson  

  Departments: County Administrative Office 
  (Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - Proposed resolution 

supporting a community proposal to name a segment of U.S. Highway 395 after 
Captain Vidar Anderson, who was a first responder to the Convict Lake tragedy 
on February 19, 1990. 

  Action: Adopted Resolution R24-084, Supporting a community proposal to 
name a segment of U.S. Highway 395 after Captain Vidar Anderson, who was a 
first responder to the Convict Lake tragedy on February 19, 1990. 
Duggan moved; Gardner seconded  
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-084 
 
Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 

• Presented item. 
 

Public Comment: 
Fred Stump, Long Valley Fire District: 

• Introduced former Supervisor Hap Hazard who was with the Mono County Sheriff’s at 
the time of the accident and former volunteer Ray Turner; they were two of the three 
Long Valley volunteers that went into the water that day.  

• Acknowledged Gerry Le Francois. 
 

Ray Turner: 
• Discussion on the rescue efforts and events that caused him to fall into the ice.  

 
Person #2: 

• Discussion on the events that took place (boat and ice rescue efforts) and facts of 
events that led up to the kids falling through the ice.  

• Discussion on the lack of training and the heroic efforts made by volunteers.  
 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18928&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18928&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18916&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18916&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 5 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

 B. Wildlife Crossing Project Presentation and Prospective Grant Application 

  Departments: Community Development 
  (Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director and Katie Rodriguez, 

Caltrans) - Presentation on the status of the US 395 Wildlife Crossings project, 
next steps, and request for Mono County Community Development to serve as 
the lead applicant on a grant for the project. 

  Action: Authorized the Mono County Community Development Department to 
be the applicant for the Wildlife Crossings Pilot Program grant in cooperation 
with Caltrans and other partners. 
Gardner moved; Salcido seconded 
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-155 
 
Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director: 

• Introduced item. 
 
Katie Rodriguez, Caltrans: 

• Presented item.  
 
Break: 10:10 AM 
Reconvened: 10:20 AM 
 

 C. Written Argument in Favor of Measure K - Raising the Transient 
Occupancy Tax Rate in Unincorporated Mono County 

  Departments: County Counsel 
  (Emily Fox, Assistant County Counsel) - A resolution to submit a written 

argument in favor of Measure K, which would raise the transient occupancy tax 
rate in unincorporated Mono County, pursuant to Elections Code Section 9162. 
This is the Board's sole opportunity for official advocacy on the ballot measure. 

  Action: Approve Resolution R24-085, To submit a written argument in favor of 
Measure K, which would raise the transient occupancy tax rate in 
unincorporated Mono County, pursuant to Elections Code Section 9162. This is 
the Board's sole opportunity for official advocacy on the ballot measure, as 
amended.  
Gardner moved; Salcido seconded 
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
R24-085 
 
Emily Fox, Assistant County Counsel: 

• Presented item. 
• Typo in paragraph 3, 2nd sentence will be corrected. 

 
Chair Peters and Supervisor Gardner: 

• Discussion on “wordsmithing”. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18907&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18918&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18918&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 6 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

 
Supervisor Salcido: 

• In support as is. 
 

Supervisor Duggan: 
• In support as is. 

 
 
Supervisor Kreitz: 

• Second sentence of second paragraph to change “and” instead of “but”. 
 

Chris Beck, County Counsel: 
• Clarified the two options that the Board has: 

1. Appear as Supervisor and provide information only. 
2. Appear as in individual and provide advocacy.  

 

 D. Election Education Series Part 1: Voter Registration and General Election 
Voting 

  Departments: Elections 
  (Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar) - In anticipation of the upcoming 

November 5, 2024, General Election, the Mono County Registrar will 
be presenting a two-part Election Education Series to the Board of Supervisors 
and public. Part 1 of the series will review Voter Registration and General 
Election Voting. 

  Action: None. 
 
Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar: 

• Presented item. 
 

 E. Ad Hoc Committee Report out on Proposed Smoke-free Multi-Unit Housing 
Ordinance 

  Departments: Health and Human Services 
  (Michelle Raust, Health and Human Services Deputy Director; Lauren 

Kemmeter, Community Health Program Coordinator II) - On November 21, 
2023, the Mono County Board of Supervisors appointed Supervisor Kreitz and 
Supervisor Salcido to the Board of Supervisors Ad Hoc Smoke-free Multi Unit 
Housing Committee to help shape a proposed ordinance to be brought back to 
the full Board for consideration. The Board will hear a report out from the Ad 
Hoc Committee and Health and Human Services staff on progress to date 
towards drafting a proposed ordinance, including the outcome of survey 
outreach conducted in the unincorporated areas of Mono County. 

  Action: None. 
 
Michelle Raust, Health and Human Services Deputy Director: 

• Presented item. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17741&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17741&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18906&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18906&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 7 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

 
Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director: 

• Discussion on code enforcement process. 
 
Chris Beck, County Counsel: 

• Clarified the Mono County Code Chapter 7. 
 

Supervisor Duggan: 
• Discussion on clarifying the Mono County Code and process.  

 
Chair Peters: 

• Discussion on property rights for owners. 
 

 
Supervisor Kreitz: 

• Discussion on the Ad Hoc preparing to achieve Smoke-free Multi-Unit Housing policy. 
• In support.  
• Directed staff to bring back an ordinance (with consideration of the discussion/concerns 

discussed today).  
 
Supervisor Salcido: 

• Discussion on funding on tobacco control. 
• In support. 

 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• In support.  
 
Moved to item #7h. 

 F. Wildfire Mitigation Coordinator Update  

  Departments: Emergency Management 
  (Wendilyn Grasseschi, Wildfire Mitigation Coordinator) - A presentation about 

mitigation activities, prevention events, and Fire Wise recognized communities. 
  Action: Item tabled until 9/10 meeting.  

 
 G. Discussion on the Cancellation of September 17, 2024, Regular Meeting of 

the Board of Supervisors 

  Departments: County Administrative Office 
  (Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - Discussion to consider 

cancelling the September 17, 2024, Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors due to the Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) 
Conference in Sonoma County. 

  Action: Provided staff direction to cancellation of the September 17, 2024, 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer: 

• Presented item. 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18903&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18922&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18922&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 8 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

• Confirmed that there isn’t any time sensitive. 
 

Board Consensus: 
All Board Members in favor of cancelling and directed staff to cancel meeting.  
 
Moved to Board Reports. 

 H. Pilot County Bridge Program 

  Departments: CAO 
  (Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing Opportunities Manager) - Discuss a pilot project 

to create a County Bridge Program modeled after the Town of Mammoth Lakes 
(TOML) Bridge Program. This initiative would purchase available single-family 
homes or condominiums within the unincorporated county, place qualified 
families in these homes, and sell them at a discounted price that they can 
afford. In exchange, a 55-year deed restriction would be placed on the property, 
keeping it affordable at the same Area Median Income (AMI) level if sold before 
the deed restriction expires. 

  Action:  Approved a Pilot Mono County Bridge Program and Authorized the 
County Administrative Officer to execute and enter agreements up to $500,000 
for a home purchase for the Bridge Program.  
Duggan moved; Gardner seconded 
Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
M24-156 
 
Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing Opportunities Manager: 

• Presented item. 
 
Public Comment: 
Paul McFarland: 

• In support of program. 
 

Elin Ljung: 
• In support of program. 

 
 

8. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Closed Session: 12:45 PM 
Reconvened: 2:03 PM 
 
Supervisor Gardner left meeting: 2:03 PM 
Supervisor Salcido left meeting: 1:27 PM 
 
No Report out of Closed Session.  Moved to item #7f. 
 

 A. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18935&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17882&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 9 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section 
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Sandra Moberly, Oliver Yee, 
Christopher Beck, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee 
Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy 
Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County Public 
Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County 
Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Correctional Deputy 
Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All. 

 B. Closed Session - Initiation of Litigation 

  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION. 
Initiation of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Government 
Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: two. 

 C. Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation 

  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code 
section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer. 

9.  BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

  

Supervisor Duggan: 
• 8/14 - I traveled to Mojave to participate in Leaders Intent Meeting with GBUAPC staff 

and Governing Board Member Matt Kingsley, along with staff of LADWP and 
Commissioner George McGraw. It was a productive meeting establishing a renewed 
desire for both sides to work together to set goals that could limit litigation, increase 
tribal engagement, and protect communities from emissions and preserve the 
environment. The staff of each agency are now tasked with creating a framework for this 
proposed process that we can take to our respective boards for adoption.  

• 8/15 - I participated in RCRC's Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority (aka 
ESJPA) meeting via zoom. With the CA legislature finishing up their August session, 
many bills were being voted on that affect county funding and operations of solid waste 
environmental services. During that meeting we were notified that Mono was included in 
the 19 counties granted a10- yr. exemption for compliance to SB 1383 Organic Waste 
regulations, and then eligible for a 5yr extension after that. There are also micro grants 
available to small/rural county funds from the carpet and mattress industries. 10-15K for 
collections sites to cover the recycled materials prior to transfer. 

 
Supervisor Gardner: 

• Last Thursday Aug. 15 I met with Aaron Wilcher and Keith Taylor from the University of 
California Cooperative Extension Program to discuss opportunities for expanded 
involvement with them in the Eastern Sierra.  While we talked about several ideas, one 
of the most promising to me was a proposal to develop a civic education and leadership 
program for citizens in our communities.   

• On Friday and Saturday, the 16th and 17th, I attended a Board Retreat for the Yosemite 
Gateway Partnership.  We discussed the future for the organization and the role it could 
play in supporting Yosemite National Park and its Gateway Communities.   
 

Supervisor Kreitz: 

https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=18920&MeetingID=1006
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17584&MeetingID=1006


DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
August 20, 2024 
Page 10 of 10 
 

Note: 
These meeting minutes have not yet been approved by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors 
 

• No report. 
 

Chair Peters:  
• No report. 

 
Supervisor Salcido: 

• No report. 
 

 

 

ADJOURNED AT 2:08 PM. 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
____________________________________ 
JENNIFER KREITZ 
CHAIR PRO-TEM OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
QUEENIE BARNARD 
CLERK OF THE BOARD 

 

 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Public Works
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Summary Vacation of Portions of
Glacier Drive and Beaver Run in
Virginia Lakes, California

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed Resolution for summary vacation of portions of Glacier Drive and Beaver Run in Virginia Lakes, California.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. Adopt proposed resolution. 2. Direct the Clerk of the Board to record a certified copy of the fully executed Resolution with
the County Recorder. 3. Find that the above action is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to 14 CCR §§ 15061(b)(3) & 15305 and direct Public Works to file a Notice of Exemption for the project
consistent with 14 CCR §15062.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Sean Robison

PHONE/EMAIL: (760)932-5445 / srobison@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 
na

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 RV24-001 Resolution

 Exhibit A

 History

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34174&ItemID=18923

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34171&ItemID=18923

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34173&ItemID=18923


 Time Who Approval

 9/18/2024 1:45 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:38 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 8:03 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 MONO COUNTY 
 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

  POST OFFICE BOX 457 � 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET � BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517  

760.932.5440 � FAX 760.932.5441 � monopw@mono.ca.gov � www.monocounty.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 
 

Road Operations • Parks • Community Centers • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Fleet Maintenance • Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries 

Date: October 1, 2024 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 

From: Sean Robison, Engineering Technician 
 

Re: Resolution R24-Xx of The Mono County Board Of Supervisors for Summary Vacation 
Of Portions Of Glacier Drive And Beaver Run In Virginia Lakes, Ca. 

 
Background:  

In 1960, the Virginia Lakes Subdivision No. 2, MB2PG32, created Right-of-Way for Glacier 
Drive and Beaver Run. The portions of the Right-of-Way to be vacated are located in an 
avalanche zone debris field and were never developed.  
 
The owner of the lots 35, 39, 40, 46 & 47 adjacent to the proposed Right-of-Way to be 
vacated has petitioned Mono County Public Works to vacate said Right-of-Way.    
 
Discussion:  

Staff determined that the excess right-of-way is unnecessary for present and prospective 
public use because it will never be developed due to it being located in an avalanche zone. 
Staff proposes that the excess right-of-way be vacated via a Summary Vacation proceeding 
under the provisions of Part 3, Chapter 4 of the Streets and Highways Code, Section 8334(a) 
“Excess right-of-way”.  See a draft resolution attached with Exhibit A showing portions of 
Glacier Drive and Beaver Run to be vacated. 
 
The proposed vacation is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Title 14, section 15305 of the California Code of Regulations (the CEQA 
Guidelines), “Minor Alterations in Land Use Limitations.”.   
 
Please contact Sean Robison at 932-5445, if you have any questions regarding this matter. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sean Robison 
Engineering Technician 
 

Attachments: Draft Resolution 
 Exhibit A – Road Vacation Map 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 1 - 

 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY, 
AND WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO 
 
Mono County Department of Public Works 
Post Office Box 457 
Bridgeport, Ca. 93517 
 
 
 
No recording fee pursuant to Government Code 6103                                   Space Above for Recorder’s Use Only   
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION R24-XX OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR SUMMARY VACATION OF PORTIONS OF 

GLACIER DRIVE AND BEAVER RUN IN VIRGINIA LAKES, CA. 
 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 2 - 

 
 

R24-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR SUMMARY VACATION OF PORTIONS OF 

GLACIER DRIVE AND BEAVER RUN IN VIRGINIA LAKES, CA. 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the recommendation of the Public Works Department, this 
Board, in accordance with the summary procedures for vacating a street, highway, or service 
easement set forth in §§ 8330 et seq. of the Streets and Highways Code, considered whether to 
adopt a resolution vacating  the forty (40) foot wide portions of Glacier Drive and Beaver Run 
abutting Lots 35, 39, 40, 46 & 47 in the Virginia Lakes Subdivision No. 2 in Virginia Lakes, 
CA.; and,  
 

WHEREAS, on March 10, 1960, the Mono County Board of Supervisors approved the 
Virginia Lakes Subdivision No. 2 in Virginia Lakes, CA which was duly recorded in Map Book 
2, Page 32 in the office of the Mono County Recorder; and,  
 

WHEREAS, it is the Mono County Public Works’s determination that the Right-of-Way 
is located in an avalanche zone and was never developed; and, 
 

WHEREAS, The Glacier Drive and Beaver Run dedications have not been  accepted by 
the Board and the County has not performed any work, maintained, or otherwise expended 
public monies on Glacier Drive and Beaver Run; and, 
 

WHEREAS, those portions of Glacier Drive and Beaver Run as shown on Exhibit A 
have not been passable for vehicular travel for a period of at least five years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the current owner of the lots adjacent said Right-of-Way has petitioned 

Mono County to vacate said Right-of-Way; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

MONO RESOLVES that: 
 
SECTION ONE:  The Board of Supervisors hereby finds that the portions of Glacier 

Drive and Beaver Run, shown in Exhibit A:  
• were never constructed, maintained or included on the County’s official 

“Maintained Mileage”; 
• have not been passable for vehicular travel for at least five years (Streets & 

Highways Code § 8331);  
• are an excess right-of-way of a street or highway not required for street or 

highway purposes (Streets & Highways Code § 8334); 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 3 - 

• are portions of a street or highway that lies within property under one ownership 
and do not continue through such ownership or end touching the property of 
another (Streets & Highways Code § 8334); 
 

• no public money was expended for maintenance (Streets & Highways Code § 
8331); and 

 for these reasons, it is prudent and reasonable for the County to vacate the portions of Glacier 
Drive and Beaver Run.   

 
SECTION TWO:  For these reasons and pursuant to Streets and Highways Code § 8330 

et seq. Mono County hereby vacates the Frontage as shown on Exhibit A, Mono County, 
California, and from and after the date this resolution is recorded, the vacated portions of Glacier 
Drive and Beaver Run no longer constitute a street 

 
SECTION THREE:  The Clerk of the Board is directed to record a certified copy of this 

resolution as provided in Streets and Highways Code § 8336. 
 
SECTION FOUR:  This Board finds that the summary vacation of the portions of 

Glacier Drive and Beaver Run is exempt from CEQA review because it  can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that this action may have a significant effect on the 
environment (14 CCR § 15061); consequently, this Board finds that its adoption of this 
resolution is categorically exempt from further review under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to the Class 1 exemption for “Minor Alterations in Land Use 
Limitations” (14 CCR §§ 15305), and directs the Public Works Department to post a notice of 
this finding in accordance with CEQA. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this Xth day of XXXXXX 2024, by the 

following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
 

 
       ______________________________ 
       John Peters, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 









 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Health and Human Services
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT California Reportable Disease
Information Exchange (CalREDIE)
and California Connected
(CalCONNECT) Data Use and
Disclosure Agreements

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed contracts with California Department of Public Health pertaining to California Reportable Disease Information
Exchange (CalREDIE) and California Connected (CalCONNECT) Data Use and Disclosure Agreements.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve, and authorize Kathryn Peterson, Health and Human Services Director to sign, agreements with California
Department of Public Health for California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) and California Connected
(CalCONNECT) Data Use and Disclosure Agreements for the period of three years from latest signature date.  Additionally,
provide authorization for the Health and Human Services Director to approve minor amendments and/or revisions that may
occur during the contract period provided they are approved by County Counsel and do not materially affect the County's
rights.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Emily Janoff

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1830 / ejanoff@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 
Kathy Peterson, Michelle Raust, Emily Janoff, Stephanie
Butters

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34244&ItemID=18983


 CalREDIE Data Use and Disclosure Agreement

 CalCONNECT Data Use and Disclosure Agreement

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:42 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:49 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:38 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 


                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34226&ItemID=18983

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34227&ItemID=18983


 
 

 
MONO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES         
Public Health Division 
                                                     P.O. BOX 476, BRIDGEPORT, CA 93517  PHONE (760) 932-5580 • FAX (760) 924-1831 
                                       P.O. BOX 3329, MAMMOTH LAKES, CA 93546  PHONE (760) 924-1830 • FAX (760) 924-1831 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  October 1, 2024 
 

TO:  Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 

FROM:  Kathryn Peterson, Director of Health and Human Services 
 

SUBJECT: California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) and California 
Connected (CalCONNECT) Data Use and Disclosure Agreements  
 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The California Department of Public Health (CDPH) requires the County to enter into System Data Use 
and Disclosure Agreements in order to utilize the California CalREDIE and CalCONNECT systems.  The 
agreements set forth information privacy and security requirements that both Mono County Health and 
Human Services and the California Department of Public Health are obligated to follow with respect to 
data collected or created within the CalREDIE and CalConnect systems. 

The California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) System is a system of applications 
that encompasses the core surveillance and reporting application, electronic laboratory reporting (ELR) 
application, ELR message handling application, provider reporting application, alerting and notification 
application, Data Warehouse (DW), and Data Distribution Portal (DDP) that the CDPH has implemented 
for web-based disease reporting and surveillance. The purpose of this application is to improve the 
efficiency of surveillance activities and the early detection of public health events through the collection 
of more complete and timely surveillance information on a statewide basis. CalREDIE is a secure, web-
based electronic solution for health care providers to report cases of conditions of public health interest; 
and for laboratories to report laboratory reports for notifiable conditions to LHDs and the CDPH, and for 
LHDs to report conditions to CDPH. CalREDIE is an integral part of the overall California public health 
emergency preparedness and response strategy where completion and implementation of CalREDIE 
allows for 24/7/365 reporting and receipt of notifiable conditions. LHDs and CDPH have access to 
disease and laboratory reports in near real-time for disease surveillance, public health investigation, and 
case management activities. CalREDIE is the system of record for communicable disease surveillance 
data within California.  

The California Connected (CalCONNECT) System is an online database that maintains information, 
originally collected by local health department or CDPH staff or their agents, related to Contagious, 
Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions. It was initially established in response 



 

 

to the 2020 worldwide outbreak of COVID-19; and has since been expanded for use to collect 
information on any Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions that 
CDPH wishes to take measures as necessary on to ascertain the nature of the disease and prevent its 
spread. The purpose of this database is to improve the efficiency of disease surveillance and response 
activities and the early detection of public health events through the collection of more complete and 
timely surveillance information on a state-wide basis. CalCONNECT is a secure, web-based electronic 
solution for state departments and local health departments to maintain information to allow them to 
interview Cases and Contacts, identify the individuals they have interacted with collect their conditions 
and symptoms and notify those contacts to evaluate whether they need to isolate or quarantine or whether 
any additional measures are necessary or appropriate. CalCONNECT is an integral part of the overall 
California public health response strategy to Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable 
Diseases and Conditions as a database resource to adequately implement statewide contact tracing 
through both state departments and local health departments. 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 1 of 15 
 

CalREDIE System Data Use And Disclosure Agreement 
 
 
This California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) System Data Use And Disclosure 
Agreement (“Agreement”) sets forth the information privacy and security requirements that the 
____________________ Department of Public Health (“Participant”), and the California Department of 
Public Health (“CDPH”) are obligated to follow with respect to all CalREDIE Data (as defined herein) collected 
or created within the CalREDIE System. By entering into this Agreement, CDPH and Participant agree to 
protect the privacy and provide for the security of all CalREDIE Data in compliance with all state and federal 
laws applicable to the CalREDIE Data. Permission to receive, use and disclose CalREDIE Data requires 
execution of this Agreement that describes the terms, conditions, and limitations of Participant’s collection, use, 
and disclosure of the CalREDIE Data. 
 

I. Supersession: This Agreement supersedes any prior CalREDIE Agreement between CDPH and 
Participant. 
 

II. Definitions: For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply: 
 

A. Breach: “Breach” means: 
  

1. the acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of CalREDIE Data in violation of any state 
or federal law or in a manner not permitted under this Agreement that compromises 
the privacy, security or integrity of the information. For purposes of this definition, 
“compromises the privacy, security or integrity of the information” means poses a 
significant risk of f inancial, reputational, or other harm to an individual or individuals; 
or 
 

2. the same as the definition of "breach of the security of the system" set forth in 
California Civil Code section 1798.29, subdivision (f). The “system” referenced in 
Civil Code section 1798.29 shall be interpreted for purposes of this Agreement to 
reference the California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) 
System, only. 
 

B. California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) System Data:  “California 
Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) System Data” means data in the 
state-wide reportable disease database supported and maintained by CDPH including 
demographic, epidemiologic (including clinical information, risk factor information, and 
laboratory test result information), and administrative information on reportable diseases 
collected for the purposes of case investigation, disease prevention, and surveillance.   

 

1. CalREDIE Data specifically includes information contained in or derived from the 
following: 

 

a. Confidential Morbidity Report (CMR) required by Title 17 of the 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) sections 2500, 2593, 2641.5-
2643.20, and 2800-2812 Reportable Diseases and Conditions. 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 2 of 15 
 

 
b. Laboratory Test and Result information required by Title 17 of the 

CCR sections 2505 and 2641.5 - 2643.20. 
 

c. Communicable Disease Control Report Forms (required for specific 
diseases and conditions that are mandated by state laws and 
regulations to be reported by healthcare providers and laborator ies 
to local health officers). 

 
2. CalREDIE Data specifically excludes the following information: 
 

a.  [Reserved.] 
 

C. Disclosure: “Disclosure” means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in 
any other manner of information.   

 
 

D. Security Incident: “Security Incident” means: 
 

1. an attempted breach;  
 

2. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of CalREDIE Data in the 
California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) System, in 
violation of any state or federal law or in a manner not permitted under this 
Agreement; or 

 
3. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of, or interference with, 

system operations in the California Reportable Disease Information Exchange 
(CalREDIE) System that negatively impacts the confidentiality, availability or integrity 
of CalREDIE Data, or hinders or makes impossible the receipt, collection, creation, 
storage, transmission or use of CalREDIE Data in the CalREDIE System. 

 
E. Use: “Use” means the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or analysis 

of information. 
 

F. Workforce Member: “Workforce Member” means an employee, volunteer, trainee, or other 
person whose conduct, in the performance of work for Participant, is under the direct control 
of Participant, whether or not they are paid by the Participant. 
 

G. [Reserved.]   
 

III. Background and Purpose:  The California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) 
System is a system of applications that encompasses the core surveillance and reporting 
application, electronic laboratory reporting (ELR) application, ELR message handling application, 
provider reporting application, alerting and notif ication application, Data Warehouse (DW), and Data 
Distribution Portal (DDP) that the CDPH has implemented for web-based disease reporting and 
surveillance. The purpose of this application is to improve the efficiency of surveillance activities 
and the early detection of public health events through the collection of more complete and timely 
surveillance information on a statewide basis. CalREDIE is a secure, web-based electronic solution 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 3 of 15 
 

for health care providers to report cases of conditions of public health interest; and for laborator ies 
to report laboratory reports for notifiable conditions to LHDs and the CDPH, and for LHDs to report 
conditions to CDPH. CalREDIE is an integral part of the overall California public health emergency 
preparedness and response strategy where completion and implementation of CalREDIE allows for 
24/7/365 reporting and receipt of notif iable conditions. LHDs and CDPH have access to disease 
and laboratory reports in near real-time for disease surveillance, public health investigation, and 
case management activities. CalREDIE is the system of record for communicable disease 
surveillance data within California.  

 
IV. Legal Authority for Collection, Use and Disclosure of CalREDIE Data:  The legal authority for CDPH 

and Participant to collect, use and disclose CalREDIE Data is set forth in Attachment A, which is 
made part of this Agreement by this reference. 

 
V. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) Authority: 

 
A. CDPH and CalREDIE HIPAA Status: CDPH is a “hybrid entity” for purposes of applicability 

of the federal regulations entitled "Standards for Privacy of Individually Identif iable Health 
Information" ("Privacy Rule") (45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162, and 164) promulgated pursuant to 
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) (42 U.S.C. §§ 
1320d - 1320d-8) (as amended by Subtitle D Privacy, of the Health Information Technology 
for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act (Pub. L. 111–5, 123 Stat. 265–66)). The 
CalREDIE System has not been designated by the CDPH as, and is not, one of the HIPAA-
covered “health care components” of CDPH. (45 C.F.R. §164.103.) The legal basis f or this 
determination is as follows: 
 

1. The CalREDIE System is not a component of CDPH that would meet the definition of 
a covered entity or business associate if it were a separate legal entity. (45 C.F.R. 
§§164.105(a)(2)(iii)(D); 160.103 (definition of “covered entity”).) And 
 

2. The HIPAA Privacy Rule creates a special rule for a subset of public health activities 
whereby HIPAA cannot preempt state law if, “[t]he provision of state law, including 
state procedures established under such law, as applicable, provides for the 
reporting of disease or injury, child abuse, birth, or death, or for the conduct of public 
health surveillance, investigation, or intervention.”  (45 C.F.R. § 160.203(c) [HITECH 
Act, § 13421, sub. (a)].) [NOTE: See state laws and regulations listed in Attachment 
A.] 

 
B. Parties Are “Public Health Authorities”: CDPH and Participant are each a “public health 

authority” as that term is defined in the Privacy Rule.  (45 C.F.R. §§ 164.501; 
164.512(b)(1)(i).)   

 
C. CalREDIE Data Use and Disclosure Permitted by HIPAA: To the extent a disclosure or use 

of CalREDIE Data may also be considered a disclosure or use of “Protected Health 
Information” (PHI) of an individual, as that term is defined in Section 160.103 of Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations, the following Privacy Rule provisions apply to permit such 
CalREDIE Data disclosure and/or use by CDPH and Participant, without the consent or 
authorization of the individual who is the subject of the PHI: 

 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 4 of 15 
 

1. HIPAA cannot preempt state law if, “[t]he provision of state law, including state 
procedures established under such law, as applicable, provides for the reporting of 
disease or injury, child abuse, birth, or death, or for the conduct of public health 
surveillance, investigation, or intervention.” (45 C.F.R. § 160.203(c) [HITECH Act, § 
13421, sub. (a)].) [NOTE: See state laws and regulations listed in Attachment A]; 
 

2. A covered entity may disclose PHI to a “public health authority” carrying out public 
health activities authorized by law; (45 C.F.R. § 164.512(b).);  
 

3. A covered entity may use or disclose protected health information to the extent that 
such use or disclosure is required by law and the use or disclosure complies with 
and is limited to the relevant requirements of such law.”  (45 C.F.R. §§ 
164.502 (a)(1), 164.512(a)(1).); and 

 
4. Other, non-public health-specific provisions of HIPAA may also provide the legal 

basis for all or specific CalREDIE Data uses and disclosures.  
 

D. No HIPAA Business Associate Agreement or Relationship Between CDPH and Participant: 
This Agreement and the relationship it memorializes between CDPH and Participant do not 
constitute a business associate agreement or business associate relationship pursuant to 45 
C.F.R. § 160.103 (definition of “business associate”). The basis for this determination is 45 
C.F.R. § 160.203(c) (see, also, [HITECH Act, § 13421, sub. (a)].) [NOTE: See state laws 
and regulations listed in Attachment A]. Accordingly, this Agreement is not intended to nor at 
any time shall result in or be interpreted or construed as to create a business associate 
relationship between CDPH and Participant. By the execution of this Agreement, CDPH and 
Participant expressly disclaim the existence of any business associate relationship. 

 
VI. Permitted Disclosures: The Participant and its workforce members and agents, shall safeguard the 

CalREDIE Data to which they have access to from unauthorized disclosure. The Participant, and its 
workforce members and agents, shall not disclose any CalREDIE Data for any purpose other than 
carrying out the Participant's obligations under the statutes and regulations set forth in Attachment 
A, or as otherwise allowed or required by state or federal law.  
 

VII. Permitted Use: The Participant, and its workforce members and agents, shall safeguard the 
CalREDIE Data to which they have access to from unauthorized use. The Participant, and its 
workforce members and agents, shall not use any CalREDIE Data for any purpose other than 
carrying out the Participant's obligations under the statutes and regulations set forth in Attachment 
A or as otherwise allowed or required by state or federal law. 

 
VIII. Restricted Disclosures and Uses:  

 

A. [Reserved.] 
 

IX. Safeguards: Participant shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the privacy, confidentiality, security, integrity, and availability 
of CalREDIE Data. The Participant shall develop and maintain a written information privacy and 
security program that includes administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate to the 
size and complexity of the Participant’s operations and the nature and scope of its activities in 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 5 of 15 
 

performing its legal obligations and duties (including performance of its duties and obligations under 
this Agreement), and which incorporates the requirements of Section X, Security, below. Participant 
shall provide CDPH with Participant’s current and updated policies. 
 

X. Security: The Participant shall take all steps necessary to ensure the continuous security of all 
computerized data systems containing CalREDIE Data. These steps shall include, at a minimum: 

 
A. Providing a level and scope of security that is at least comparable to the level and scope of  

security established by the Office of Management and Budget in OMB Circular No. A-130, 
Appendix III- Security of Federal Automated Information Systems, and/or NIST 800-53 
(version 4 or subsequent approved versions) which sets forth guidelines for automated 
information systems in Federal agencies; and 
 

B. in case of a conflict between any of the security standards contained in any of the 
aforementioned sources of security standards, the most stringent shall apply. The most 
stringent means that safeguard which provides the highest level of protection to CalREDIE 
Data from breaches and security incidents.  

  
XI. Security Officer: The Participant shall designate a Security Officer to oversee its compliance with 

this Agreement and for communicating with CDPH on matters concerning this Agreement. Such 
designation is set forth in Attachment B, which is made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 
 

XII. Training: The Participant shall provide training on its obligations under this Agreement, at its own 
expense, to all of its workforce members who assist in the performance of Participant’s obligations 
under this Agreement, or otherwise use or disclose CalREDIE Data. 

 
A. The Participant shall require each workforce member who receives training to receive and 

sign a certif ication, indicating the workforce member’s name and the date on which the 
training was completed. 
 

B. The Participant shall retain each workforce member’s written certif ications for CDPH 
inspection for a period of three years following contract termination. 

 
XIII. Workforce member Discipline: Participant shall discipline such workforce members who 

intentionally violate any provisions of this Agreement, including, if warranted, by termination of 
employment. 
 

XIV. Participant Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities: 
 

A. Notification to CDPH of Breach or Security Incident:  The Participant shall notify CDPH 
immediately by telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of a breach (as 
defined in this Agreement), or within twenty-four (24) hours by email or fax of the 
discovery of any security incident (as defined in this Agreement).  Notif ication shall be 
provided to the CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief 
Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XIV(G), below. If  
the breach or security incident occurs after business hours or on a weekend or holiday and 
involves CalREDIE Data in electronic or computerized form, notif ication to CDPH shall be 
provided by calling the CDPH IT Service Desk at the telephone numbers listed in Section 
XIV(G) below. For purposes of this Section, breaches and security incidents shall be treated 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 6 of 15 
 

as discovered by Participant as of the first day on which such breach or security incident is 
known to the Participant, or, by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known to 
the Participant. Participant shall be deemed to have knowledge of a breach or security 
incident if such breach or security incident is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence 
would have been known, to any person, other than the person committing the breach or 
security incident, who is a workforce member or agent of the Participant. 
 
Participant shall take: 
 

1. prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the breach or 
security incident and to protect the CalREDIE System operating environment; and 
 

2. any action pertaining to a breach required by applicable federal or state laws, 
including, specifically, California Civil Code section 1798.29. 

 
B. Investigation of Breach:  The Participant shall immediately investigate such breach or 

security incident, and within seventy-two (72) hours of the discovery, shall inform the CDPH 
Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information Security 
Officer of: 
 

1. what data elements were involved and the extent of the data involved in the breach, 
including, specifically, the number of individuals whose personal information was 
breached; and 
 

2. a description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably believed to have 
improperly used the CalREDIE Data and/or a description of the unauthorized 
persons known or reasonably believed to have improperly accessed or acquired the 
CalREDIE Data, or to whom it is known (or reasonably believed) to have had the 
CalREDIE Data improperly disclosed to them; and 
 

3. a description of where the CalREDIE Data is known or believed to have been 
improperly used or disclosed; and 
 

4. a description of the known or probable causes of the breach or security incident; and 
 

5. whether Civil Code section 1798.29 or any other federal or state laws requiring 
individual notif ications of breaches have been triggered. 

 
C. Written Report:  The Participant shall provide a written report of the investigation to the 

CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information 
Security Officer within five (5) working days of the discovery of the breach or security 
incident.  The report shall include, but not be limited to, the information specified above, as 
well as a full, detailed corrective action plan, including information on measures that were 
taken to halt and/or contain the breach or security incident, and measures to be taken to 
prevent the recurrence of such breach or security incident. 
 

D. Notification to Individuals: If notif ication to individuals whose information was breached is 
required under state or federal law, and regardless of whether Participant is considered only 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 7 of 15 
 

a custodian and/or non-owner of the CalREDIE Data, Participant shall, at its sole expense, 
and at the sole election of CDPH, either: 

 
1. make notif ication to the individuals affected by the breach (including substitute 

notif ication), pursuant to the content and timeliness provisions of such applicable 
state or federal breach notice laws.  The CDPH Privacy Officer shall approve, in 
writing, the time, manner and content of any such notif ications, prior to the 
transmission of such notif ications to the individual(s); or 
 

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its notif ication (including substitute notification) to 
the individuals affected by the breach. 

 
E. Submission of Sample Notif ication to California Attorney General:  If notif ication to more 

than 500 individuals is required pursuant to California Civil Code section 1798.29, 
Participant shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election of CDPH, either: 

 
1. electronically submit a single sample copy of the security breach notif ication, 

excluding any personally identif iable information, to the California Attorney General 
pursuant to the format., content and timeliness provisions of Section 1798.29, 
subdivision (e).  Participant shall inform the CDPH Privacy Officer of the time, 
manner and content of any such submissions, prior to the transmission of such 
submissions to the Attorney General; or 

 
2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its submission of a sample copy of the 

notif ication to the California Attorney General. 
 

F. Public Statements:  Participant shall cooperate with CDPH in developing content for any 
public statements regarding Breaches or Security Incidents related to Participant and shall 
not provide any public statements without the express written permission of CDPH. 
Requests for public statement(s) by any non-party about a breach or security incidents shall 
be directed to the CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief  
Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XIV(G), below.  

 
G. CDPH Contact Information: To direct communications to the above referenced CDPH staf f , 

the Participant shall initiate contact as indicated below.  CDPH reserves the right to make 
changes to the contact information by giving written notice to the Participant.  Said changes 
shall not require an amendment to this Agreement.  

 

 
 
 

[This space intentionally left blank – Continued on next page.] 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 8 of 15 
 

 
 

CDPH Program Manager CDPH Privacy Officer 
CDPH Chief Information Security 

Officer (and CDPH IT Service 
Desk) 

CalREDIE Help Desk 
California Department of  
Public Health 
Division of Communicable  
Disease Control 
Communicable Disease  
Emergency Response Program 
CalREDIE Help Desk 
P.O. Box 997377, MS 7325 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 
California Department of  
Public Health 
 
Email:  
CalREDIEHelp@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone:  (866) 866-1428 
 

Privacy Officer 
Privacy Office, 
c/o Office of Legal Services 
California Department of  
Public Health 
1415 L Street, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Email: privacy@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone:  (877) 421-9634 
 

Chief Information  
Security Officer 
Information Security Office 
California Department of  
Public Health 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6300 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
 
 
Email:   
cdph.infosecurityoffice@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: IT Service Desk 
 (916) 440-7000 or 
 (800) 579-0874 
 

 

mailto:CalREDIEHelp@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:privacy@cdph.ca.gov


 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 9 of 15 
 

 
XV. CDPH Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities: CDPH shall notify Participant immediately by 

telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of a breach (as defined in this Agreement), or 
within twenty-four (24) hours by email or fax of the discovery of any security incident (as defined in 
this Agreement) that involves CalREDIE Data that was created or collected by Participant in the 
CalREDIE System. Notif ication shall be provided by CDPH to the Participant Representative, using 
the contact information listed in Attachment B, which is made a part of this Agreement by this 
reference. For purposes of this Section, breaches and security incidents shall be treated as 
discovered by CDPH as of the first day on which such breach or security incident is known to 
CDPH, or, by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known to CDPH. CDPH shall be 
deemed to have knowledge of a breach or security incident if such breach or security incident is 
known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person, other than 
the person committing the breach or security incident, who is a workforce member or agent of 
CDPH. 

 
A. Participant Contact Information: To direct communications to the Participant’s 

breach/security incident response staff, CDPH shall initiate contact as indicated by 
Participant in Attachment B. Participant’s contact information must be provided to CDPH 
prior to execution of this Agreement. Participant reserves the right to make changes to 
the contact information in Attachment B. Said changes shall not require an amendment 
to this Agreement. 
 

XVI. Compliance with California Health and safety Code Section 121022(h): CDPH and Participant shall 
comply, when required, with California Health and safety Code Section 121022, subdivision (h), 
which provides as follows: “Any potential or actual breach of confidentiality of HIV-related public 
health records shall be investigated by the local health officer, in coordination with the department, 
when appropriate. The local health officer shall immediately report any evidence of an actual breach 
of confidentiality of HIV-related public health records at a city or county level to the department and 
the appropriate law enforcement agency. The department shall investigate any potential or actual 
breach of confidentiality of HIV-related public health records at the state level, and shall report any 
evidence of such a breach of confidentiality to an appropriate law enforcement agency.” 

 
XVII. Indemnification: Each party hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the other party 

from and against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs and other expenses 
(including attorneys’ fees) that result from or arise directly or indirectly out of or in connection with 
any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of Participant or CDPH, its officers, workforce 
members or agents relative to the CalREDIE Data, including, without limitation, any violations of 
Participant’s or CDPH’s responsibilities under this Agreement.  
 

XVIII. Term of Agreement:  Unless otherwise terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions set forth 
herein, this Agreement shall remain in effect for three (3) years after the latest signature date in the 
signature block below. After three (3) years, this Agreement will expire without further action. If  the 
parties wish to extend this Agreement, they may do so by reviewing, updating, and reauthorizing 
this Agreement. If one or both of the parties wish to terminate this Agreement prematurely, they 
may do so upon 30 days advanced notice.  CDPH may also terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
Section XIX, below. 
 
 
 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 10 of 15 
 

XIX. Termination for Cause: 
 

A. Termination Upon Breach: A breach by either party of any provision of this Agreement, as 
determined by CDPH or Participant, shall constitute a material breach of the Agreement and 
grounds for immediate termination of the Agreement by CDPH or Participant. At its sole 
discretion, CDPH or Participant may give the breaching party 30 days to cure the breach. 
 

B. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings: CDPH and Participant shall notify the other party if it 
is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding related to a violation of this Agreement. 
CDPH or Participant may terminate the Agreement if the other party is found guilty of a 
criminal violation related to a violation of this Agreement. CDPH or Participant may terminate 
the Agreement if a finding or stipulation that the other party has violated any security or 
privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which the other party is a 
party or has been joined. 

 
XX. Amendment: The parties acknowledge that Federal and State laws relating to information security 

and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this Agreement may be required to provide 
for procedures to ensure compliance with such laws. The parties specifically agree to take such 
action as is necessary to implement new standards and requirements imposed by regulations and 
other applicable laws relating to the security or privacy of CalREDIE Data. Upon CDPH’s request, 
Participant agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with CDPH concerning an amendment to this 
Agreement embodying written assurances consistent with new standards and requirements 
imposed by regulations and other applicable laws. CDPH may terminate this Agreement upon thirty 
(30) days written notice in the event: 
 

A. Participant does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this Agreement when 
requested by CDPH pursuant to this Section, or 

 
B. Participant does not enter into an amendment providing assurances regarding the 

safeguarding of CalREDIE Data that CDPH in its sole discretion deems sufficient to 
satisfy the standards and requirements of applicable laws and regulations relating to the 
security or privacy of CalREDIE Data. 
 

XXI. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings: Each party shall make itself and any 
workforce members or agents assisting in the performance of obligations under this Agreement 
available to the other party at no cost to testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of lit igation 
or administrative proceedings being commenced based upon claimed violation of laws relating to 
security and privacy, which involve inactions or actions by CDPH or Participant, except where 
CDPH and Participant or their workforce members or agents are a named adverse party. 

 
XXII. Disclaimer: CDPH makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Participant with this 

Agreement will be adequate or satisfactory for Participant’s own purposes or that any information in 
Participant’s possession or control, or transmitted or received by Participant, is or will be secure 
from unauthorized use or disclosure. Participant is solely responsible for all decisions made by 
Participant regarding the safeguarding of CalREDIE Data. 
 

XXIII. Transfer of Rights: Participant has no right and shall not delegate, assign, or otherwise transf er or 
delegate any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to any other person or entity. Any 
such transfer of rights shall be null and void. 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 11 of 15 
 

 
XXIV. No Third-Party Beneficiaries: Nothing express or implied in the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than 
CDPH or Participant, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever. 
 

XXV. Interpretation:  The terms and conditions in this Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly as 
necessary to implement and comply with regulations and applicable State and Federal laws. The 
parties agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be resolved in 
favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with Federal and State laws. 
 

XXVI. Survival:  The respective rights and obligations of Participant under Sections VII, IX, XIV, and XVII 
of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 

XXVII. Attachments: The parties mutually agree that the following specified Attachments are part of this 
Agreement: 
 

A. Attachment A: State Law Authority for: (1) Use and Disclosure of CalREDIE Data; and, 
(2) Application of HIPAA preemption exception for public health (45 C.F.R. § 
160.203(c)). 
 

B. Attachment B: Participant Contact Information. 
 

XXVIII. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement, including all attachments, constitutes the entire agreement 
between CDPH and Participant. Any and all modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and 
signed by all parties. Any oral representations or agreements between the parties shall be of no 
force or effect.   
 

XXIX. Severability:  The invalidity in whole or in part of any provisions of this Agreement shall not void or 
affect the validity of any other provisions of this Agreement. 
 

XXX. Choice of Law and Venue: The laws of the state of California will govern any dispute from or 
relating to this Agreement. The parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state of Calif ornia 
and federal courts for or in Sacramento and agree that any legal action or proceeding relating to the 
Agreement may only be brought in those courts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 12 of 15 
 

 
XXXI. Signatures: 

 
IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as follows: 

 
On behalf of the Participant, the undersigned individual hereby attests that he or she is authorized 
to enter into this Agreement and agrees to all the terms specified herein. 
 
 
 

___________________________    __________________________ 
Name (Print)       Name (Sign) 
 
 
___________________________    __________________________ 
Title [Health Officer (or other authorized official)]  Date 
 
 
___________________________Department of Public Health 
County/City Name (Print) 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Department of Public Health, the undersigned individual(s) hereby attests that he 
or she is authorized to enter into this Agreement and agrees to all the terms specified herein. 
 
  
 

___________________________    __________________________ 
James Watt, M.D., M.P.H.     Date 
Chief, Division of Communicable Disease Control  
California Department of Public Health 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 13 of 15 
 

Attachment A 
State Law Authority for: 

(1) Use and Disclosure of CalREDIE Data; and,  

(2) Application of HIPAA preemption exception for public health (45 C.F.R. § 160.203(c). 

 
General Authority: 

1) Information Practices Act 
a.  CA Civil Code section 1798.24(e) An agency shall not disclose any personal information in a 

manner that would link the information disclosed to the individual to whom it pertains unless the 
information is disclosed, as follows: (e) To a person, or to another agency where the transfer is 
necessary for the transferee agency to perform its constitutional or statutory duties, and the use 
is compatible with a purpose for which the information was collected and the use or transfer is 
accounted for in accordance with Section 1798.25. With respect to information transferred from 
a law enforcement or regulatory agency, or information transferred to another law enforcement 
or regulatory agency, a use is compatible if the use of the information requested is needed in an 
investigation of unlawful activity under the jurisdiction of the requesting agency or for licensing, 
certif ication, or regulatory purposes by that agency. 

 

Specific Authority: 

1) Functions and Duties of the Department of Public Health, Reportable Diseases and Conditions from 
Providers and Labs 

a. California Health and Safety Code section 120130 
i. Subdivision (a): The department shall establish a list of reportable diseases and 

conditions. For each reportable disease and condition, the department shall specify the 
timeliness requirements related to the reporting of each disease and condition, and the 
mechanisms required for, and the content to be included in, reports made pursuant to 
this section…Those diseases listed as reportable shall be properly reported as required 
to the department by the health officer. 

ii. Subdivision (g): Commencing July 1, 2009, or within one year of the establishment of a 
state electronic laboratory reporting system, whichever is later, a report generated 
pursuant to this section, or Section 121022, by a laboratory shall be submitted 
electronically in a manner specified by the department. The department shall allow 
laboratories that receive incomplete patient information to report the name of the 
provider who submitted the request to the local health officer. 

b. California Code of Regulations. Title 17. Public Health Division 1. State Department of Health 
Services Chapter 4. Preventive Medical Service 

i. Article 1 Reporting:  
1. Section 2500: Provider Reporting of Diseases and Conditions to the Local Health 

Officer and Confidentiality of Reports 
2. Section 2501: Investigation of a Reported Case, Unusual Disease, or Outbreak 

of Disease  
3. Section 2502: Reports by Local Health Officer to State Department of Public 

Health. 
4. Section 2505: Notif ication of Diseases and Conditions by Laboratories  



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 14 of 15 
 

 

2) HIV Specific Laws related to Reporting, Surveillance Sharing and Confidentiality, Penalties for 
Disclosure: 

a. Health and Safety Code section 121022, HIV Reporting by Providers and Labs 
b. Health and Safety Code section 121023, Lab Reporting of CD4+ T-Cell test results 
c. Health and Safety Code section 121025 (b) disclosure of HIV records between state and local 

public health agencies for when the confidential information is necessary to carry out the duties 
of the agency in the investigation, control, or surveillance of disease, as determined by the state 
or local public health agency. 

d. California Code of Regulations. Title 17. Public Health Division 1. State Department of Health 
Services Chapter 4. Preventive Medical Service 

i.  Article 3.5, Reporting of HIV, Subarticle 1 and Subarticle 4, Sections: 2641.5-2643.20 
e. California HIV/AIDS-Specific Statutes Pertaining to Confidential Public Health Records and 

Penalties for Disclosures (this list is not comprehensive):  
i. All HIV/AIDS case reports and any HIV/AIDS related information collected or maintained 

by CDPH (or its agents or contractors) or a local health department or agency (or its 
agent or contractors), that may directly or indirectly identify an individual are considered 
confidential public health record(s) under California Health and Safety Code (HSC) 
section 121035(c) and must be handled with the utmost confidentiality.   

ii. HSC section 121025(a) prohibits the disclosure of HIV/AIDS-related public health 
records that contain any personally identifying information to any third-party, unless 
authorized by law for public health purposes, or by the written consent of the individual 
identif ied in the record or his/her guardian/conservator.  Except as permitted by law, any 
person who negligently discloses information contained in a confidential public health 
record to a third party is subject to a civil penalty of up to $5,000 plus court costs, as 
provided in HSC section 121025(e)(1).  Any person who willfully or maliciously discloses 
the content of a public health record, except as authorized by law, is subject to a civil 
penalty of $5,000-$25,000 plus court costs as provided by HSC 121025(e)(2).  Any 
willfully, malicious, or negligent disclosure of information contained in a public health 
record in violation of state law that results in economic, bodily, psychological harm to a 
person named in the record is a misdemeanor, punishable by imprisonment for a period 
of up to one year and/or a fine of up to $25,000 plus court costs [HSC section 
121025(e)(3)].  Any person who is guilty of a confidentiality infringement of the foregoing 
type may be sued by the injured party and shall be personally liable for all actual 
damages incurred for economic, bodily, or psychological harm as a result of the breach 
[HSC section 121025(e)(4)].  Each disclosure in violation of California law is a separate, 
actionable offense [HSC section 121025(e)(5)].  

 

 



 

CDPH CalREDIE DUDA (03-2021)   Page 15 of 15 
 

Attachment B 

Participant Contact Information 

The following contact information must be provided prior to execution of this Agreement. 

Participant Program Manager Participant Privacy Officer 
Participant Chief Information 

Security Officer (and IT Service 
Desk Telephone) 

Name: 
Address:  
 
 
 
Email:  
Telephone: 
 

Name: 
Address:  
 
 
 
Email:  
Telephone: 

Name: 
Address:  
 
 
 
Email:  
Telephone: 
IT Service Desk Telephone: 
     
 

 

 

Emily Janoff
kpeterson@mono.ca.gov

Emily Janoff
1290 Tavern Rd
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

Emily Janoff
Kathy Peterson

Emily Janoff
760-924-1780

Emily Janoff
cyoung@mono.ca.gov

Emily Janoff
Cathy Young

Emily Janoff
760-924-1770 

Emily Janoff
1290 Tavern Rd
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

Emily Janoff
1290 Tavern Rd
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

Emily Janoff
(760) 932-5500

Emily Janoff
(760) 924-1819

Emily Janoff
mmartinez@mono.ca.gov

Emily Janoff
Mike Martinez



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

CalCONNECT System for California Connected 
Data Use and Disclosure Agreement 

This CalCONNECT System (“CalCONNECT”) Data Use and Disclosure Agreement (“Agreement”) 
for the California Connected Program sets forth the information privacy and security 
requirements that                                                                             (“Participant”), and the California 
Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) are obligated to follow with respect to all CalCONNECT Data 
(as defined herein) collected or created within the CalCONNECT System. Participant will have 
access to the CalCONNECT System managed by CDPH and will use it for surveillance and control 
of Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions (as defined herein) 
in                                                        . By entering into this Agreement, CDPH and 
Participant agree to protect the privacy and provide for the security of all CalCONNECT Data 
in compliance with all state and federal laws applicable to the CalCONNECT Data. Permission 
to receive, use and disclose CalCONNECT Data requires execution of this Agreement that 
describes the terms, conditions, and limitations of Participant’s collection, use, and 
disclosure of the CalCONNECT Data. 

I. Supersession: This Agreement supersedes any prior CalCONNECT Agreement between
CDPH and Participant.

II. Definitions: For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply:

A. Breach: “Breach” means:

1. the acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of CalCONNECT Data in violation of
any state or federal law or in a manner not permitted under this Agreement that
compromises the privacy, security or integrity of the information. For purposes of
this definition, “compromises the privacy, security or integrity of the information”
means poses a significant risk of financial, reputational, or other harm to an
individual or individuals; or

2. the same as the definition of "breach of the security of the system" set forth in
California Civil Code section 1798.29, subdivision (f). The “system” referenced in
Civil Code section 1798.29 shall be interpreted for purposes of this Agreement to
reference the CalCONNECT System only.

B. CalCONNECT System Data: “CalCONNECT System Data” means data in the
CalCONNECT System including demographic, epidemiologic (including clinical
information, risk factor information, exposure information, information on Cases and
Contacts, inclusive of long term conditions which they may be experiencing and
laboratory test result information), as well as administrative information on Contagious,
Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions collected for contact
tracing, case investigation, and for examining the causes of the communicable diseases
and conditions, to ascertain the nature of the disease or condition and to prevent its
spread.

Page 1 of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

1. CalCONNECT Data specifically includes information contained in or
derived from the following:

a. California Reportable Disease Information Exchange 
(CalREDIE)  System, which includes: 

i. Confidential Morbidity Report (CMR) required by Title 17 of
the California Code of Regulations CCR sections 2500, 2593,
2641.5-2643.20, and 2800-2812 Reportable Diseases and
Conditions.

ii. Laboratory Test and Result information required by Title 17
of the CCR sections 2505 and 2641.5 - 2643.20.

iii. Communicable Disease Control Report Forms (required for
specific diseases and conditions that are mandated by state
laws and regulations to be reported by healthcare providers
and laboratories to local health officers), including cases of
the Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable
Diseases and Conditions.

b. California Connected Activities, may include:

i. Demographic data of Cases and Contacts;

ii. Information obtained through interviews with Cases and
Contacts, including but not limited to, self-reported health
information, long term  symptoms, demographic information,
location and location history information, risk factor
information, laboratory test results, and other personal
information as defined by Civil Code section 1798.3;  and

iii. Records of communications with Cases and Contacts which
contain personal information as defined by Civil Code section
1798.3, including but not limited to, phone call recordings,
SMS (text) messages, call logs, and tracking sheets.

2. CalCONNECT Data specifically excludes the following information:

a. Mental Health Information unrelated to the Contagious, Infectious,
Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions being
monitored;

b. California Supplemental Pay Sick Leave (“CSPSL”) aka
(“Backpay”);

c. Sincerely held religious beliefs, practices, or observances which
include moral or ethical beliefs, and

Page Ϯ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

d. Political, sociological, or philosophical views affiliated with any
individual.

C. California Connected: “California Connected” means the State of California program
launched in May 2020 for Contact Tracing, Communicable or Reportable Disease
surveillance and response, which was expanded to include Contagious, Infectious,
Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions and public awareness related to
Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions.

D. “Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions” means:

1. the same definition as set forth in Title 17 of the CCR section 2500 subsection (8),
“… an illness due to a specific microbiological or parasitic agent or its toxic
products which arises through transmission of that agent or its products from an
infected person, animal, or inanimate reservoir to a susceptible host, either
directly or indirectly through an intermediate plant or animal host, vector, or the
inanimate environment;”

2. the diseases listed in Title 17 of the CCR section 2502 subsection (b);

3. the reportable conditions listed in Title 17 of the CCR section 2505 which requires
labs to report laboratory testing results, including molecular and pathologic
results, suggestive of diseases of public health importance; and

4. Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable diseases and conditions
indicated by a local health officer to CDPH, for which CDPH has determined will
qualify under this category, permitting CDPH to take measures as necessary to
ascertain the nature of the disease or condition and prevent its spread under HSC
section 120140.

E. Contact Tracing: “Contact Tracing” means the process of tracking Contagious,
Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions as it spreads from
person to person with the goal of halting transmission.

F. Cases: “Cases” means persons with a suspected or confirmed  case, or a person who
has been exposed to an animal with a suspected or confirmed case of a
Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions under
investigation in California.

G. Contacts: “Contacts” means persons in California who may have been in contact with,
interacted with or were otherwise exposed to a  Case.

H. Disclosure: “Disclosure” means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging
in any other manner of information obtained from the CalCONNECT system, related to
any individual containing Personal Identifying Information (“PII”) or Protected
Health Information (“PHI”).

I. Security Incident: “Security Incident” means:

Page ϯ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

1. an attempted breach;

2. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of CalCONNECT Data in
the CalCONNECT System, in violation of any state or federal law or in a manner
not permitted under this Agreement; or

3. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of, or interference
with, system operations in the CalCONNECT System that negatively impacts the
confidentiality, availability or integrity of CalCONNECT Data, or hinders or makes
impossible the receipt, collection, creation, storage, transmission or use of
CalCONNECT Data in the CalCONNECT System.

J. Use: “Use” means the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or
analysis of information for any purposes including publication. Please note this list is not
exhaustive.

K. Workforce Member: “Workforce Member” means an employee, volunteer, trainee, or
other person whose conduct, in the performance of work for Participant, is under the
direct control of Participant, whether or not they are paid by the Participant.

L. [Reserved.]
III. Background and Purpose: The CalCONNECT System is an online database that maintains

information, originally collected by local health department or CDPH staff or their agents, related
to Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or Reportable Diseases and Conditions. It was initially
established in response to the 2020 worldwide outbreak of COVID-19; and has since been
expanded for use to collect information on any Contagious, Infectious, Communicable or
Reportable Diseases and Conditions that CDPH wishes to take measures as necessary on to
ascertain the nature of the disease and prevent its spread. The purpose of this database is to
improve the efficiency of disease surveillance and response activities and the early detection of
public health events through the collection of more complete and timely surveillance information
on a state-wide basis. CalCONNECT is a secure, web-based electronic solution for state
departments and local health departments to maintain information to allow them to interview
Cases and Contacts, identify the individuals they have interacted with collect their conditions
and symptoms and notify those contacts to evaluate whether they need to isolate or quarantine or
whether any additional measures are necessary or appropriate. CalCONNECT is an integral part
of the overall California public health response strategy to Contagious, Infectious, Communicable
or Reportable Diseases and Conditions as a database resource to adequately implement statewide
contact tracing through both state departments and local health departments.

I9. Legal Authority for Collection, Use and Disclosure of CalCONNECT Data: The legal authority for
CDPH and Participant to collect, use and disclose CalCONNECT Data is set forth in Attachment A,
which is made part of this Agreement by this reference.

9. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) Authority:

$. CDPH and CalCONNECT HIPAA Status: CDPH is a “hybrid entity” for purposes of

Page ϰ�of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

applicability of the federal regulations entitled "Standards for Privacy of Individually 
Identifiable Health Information" ("Privacy Rule") (45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162, and 164) 
promulgated pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA) (42 U.S.C. §§ 1320d - 1320d-8) (as amended by Subtitle D Privacy, of the Health 
Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act (Pub. L. 111–5, 
123 Stat. 265–66)). The CalCONNECT System has not been designated by the CDPH 
as, and is not, one of the HIPAA-covered “health care components” of CDPH. (45 C.F.R. 
§ 164.105 (a)(2)(i)(B).) The legal basis for this determination is as follows:

1. The CalCONNECT System is not a component of CDPH that would meet the
definition of a covered entity or business associate if it were a separate legal
entity. (45 C.F.R. §§ 160.105(a)(2)(iii)(D); 160.103 (definition of “covered entity”));
and

2. The HIPAA Privacy Rule creates a special rule for a subset of public health
activities whereby HIPAA cannot preempt state law if, “[t]he provision of state law,
including state procedures established under such law, as applicable, provides
for the reporting of disease or injury, child abuse, birth, or death, or for the conduct
of public health surveillance, investigation, or intervention.” (45 C.F.R. §
160.203(c) [HITECH Act, § 13421, sub. (a)].) [NOTE: See State laws and
regulations listed in Attachment A];

%. Parties Are “Public Health Authorities”: CDPH and Participant are each a “public health
authority” as that term is defined in the Privacy Rule. (45 C.F.R. §§ 164.501;
164.512(b)(1)(i).)

C. CalCONNECT Data Use and Disclosure Permitted by HIPAA: To the extent a disclosure
or use of CalCONNECT Data may also be considered a disclosure or use         of �3rotected
Health Information” (PHI) of an individual, as that term is defined in Section 160.103 of
Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations, the following Privacy Rule provisions apply to
permit such CalCONNECT Data disclosure and/or use by CDPH and Participant,
without the consent or authorization of the individual who is the  subject of the PHI:

1. HIPAA cannot preempt state law if, “[t]he provision of state law, including state
procedures established under such law, as applicable, provides for the reporting
of disease or injury, child abuse, birth, or death, or for the conduct of public health
surveillance, investigation, or intervention.” (45 C.F.R. § 160.203(c) [HITECH Act,
§ 13421, sub. (a)].) [NOTE: See state laws and regulations listed in Attachment
A];

2. A covered entity may disclose PHI to a “public health authority” carrying out public
health activities authorized by law; (45 C.F.R. § 164.512(b).);

3. A covered entity may use or disclose protected health information to the extent
that such use or disclosure is required by law and the use or disclosure  complies
with and is limited to the relevant requirements of such law.” (Title 45 C.F.R. §§
164.502 (a)(1)(vii), 164.512(a) (1).) and,

Page 5�of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

4. Other, non-public health-specific provisions of HIPAA may also provide the legal
basis for all or specific CalCONNECT Data uses and disclosures.

D. No HIPAA Business Associate Agreement or Relationship Between CDPH and
Participant: This Agreement and the relationship it memorializes between CDPH and
Participant do not constitute a business associate agreement or business associate
relationship pursuant to Title 45, CFR, Part 160.103 (definition of “business associate”).
The basis for this determination is Section 160.203(c) of Title 45 of the Code of Federal
Regulations (see, also, [HITECH Act, § 13421, subdivision. (a)].) [NOTE: See state laws
and regulations listed in Attachment A]. Accordingly, this Agreement is not intended to
nor at any time shall result in or be interpreted or construed as to create a business
associate relationship between CDPH and Participant. By the execution of this
Agreement, CDPH and Participant expressly disclaim the existence of any business
associate relationship.

VI. Permitted Disclosures: The Participant acknowledges that once data is entered into the
CalCONNECT System, the Participant and its workforce members and agents shall safeguard the
CalCONNECT Data to which they have access from unauthorized disclosure. The Participant, and
its workforce members and agents, shall not access or disclose any CalCONNECT Data for any
purpose other than carrying out the Participant's obligations under this Agreement or the statutes
and regulations set forth in Attachment A, or as otherwise allowed or required by state or federal
law. When Cases and Contacts cross into another county’s jurisdiction, the Participant shall be
permitted to disclose CalCONNECT Data with the local health department of that county’s
jurisdiction. Any such disclosure of CalCONNECT Data shall be limited to the minimum necessary,
to the extent practicable, in carrying out the Participant’s obligations under this Agreement or as
otherwise allowed or required by state or federal law. Requests for release of data through
generated reports created by CDPH will be disclosed to Participant when permissible. Otherwise,
the Participant acknowledges the necessity of safeguarding the CalCONNECT Data in accordance
with state and federal laws.

Should any additional disclosures not already addressed in this section, be requested by the
Participant or its workforce members and agents, these requests must be presented to the
California Connected Program and will require the approval of the Office of Legal Services at CDPH
prior to any disclosure.

VII. Permitted Use: The Participant, and its workforce members and agents, shall safeguard the
CalCONNECT Data to which they have access to from unauthorized use. The Participant, and its
workforce members and agents, shall not use any CalCONNECT Data for any purpose other than
carrying out the Participant's obligations under this Agreement or the statutes and regulations set
forth in Attachment A, or as otherwise allowed or required by state or federal law. Any other use is
strictly prohibited. Any such use of CalCONNECT Data shall be limited to the minimum necessary,
to the extent practicable, in carrying out the Participant’s obligations under this Agreement or as
otherwise allowed or required by state or federal law. Participant shall collect no more than the
minimum necessary amount of information necessary to perform its obligations as set forth in this
Agreement. Further, should the Participant collect any CalCONNECT Data that may be protected
by 42 CFR Part 2, a federal regulation that requires substance abuse disorder treatment providers
to observe additional privacy and confidentiality restrictions with respect to patient records in the

Page ϲ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

CalCONNECT system, they must adhere to those stringent privacy protections which are more 
restrictive than HIPAA. Any and all violations may be grounds for removal from use of 
CalCONNECT at the election of CDPH. 

VIII. Restricted Disclosures and Uses:

A. [Reserved.]

IX. Safeguards: Participant shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that
reasonably and appropriately protect the privacy, confidentiality, security, integrity, and availability
of CalCONNECT Data. The Participant shall develop and maintain a written information privacy
and security program that includes administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate
to the size and complexity of the Participant’s operations and the nature and scope of its activities
in performing its legal obligations and duties (including performance of its duties and obligations
under this Agreement), and which incorporates the requirements of Section X, Security, below.
Participant shall provide CDPH with Participant’s current and updated policies.

X. Security: The Participant shall take all steps necessary to ensure the continuous security of all
computerized data systems containing CalCONNECT Data. These steps shall include, at a
minimum:

A. Providing a level and scope of security that is at least comparable to the level and scope
of security established by the Office of Management and Budget in OMB Circular No. A-
130, Appendix III- Security of Federal Automated Information Systems, and/or NIST 800-
53 (version 4 or subsequent approved versions) which sets forth guidelines for
automated information systems in Federal agencies; and

B. In case of a conflict between any of the security standards contained in any of the
aforementioned sources of security standards, the most stringent shall apply. The most
stringent means that safeguard which provides the highest level of protection to
CalCONNECT Data from breaches and security incidents.

XI. Security Officer: The Participant shall designate a Security Officer to oversee its compliance with
this Agreement and for communicating with CDPH on matters concerning this Agreement. Such
designation is set forth in Attachment B, which is made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

XII. Training: The Participant shall provide training on its obligations under this Agreement, at
its own expense, to all of its workforce members who assist in the performance of Participant’s
obligations under this Agreement, or otherwise use or disclose CalCONNECT Data.

A. The Participant shall require each workforce member who receives training to receive
and sign a certification, indicating the workforce member’s name, the date on which
the training was completed, and an agreement to comply with all applicable   federal and
state laws.

B. The Participant shall retain each workforce member’s written certifications for CDPH
inspection for a period of three years following contract termination.

Page ϳ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

;III. Workforce Member Discipline: Participant shall impose discipline that it deems appropriate
(in its sole discretion) on such employees and other Participant workforce members under
Participant’s direct control who intentionally or negligently violate any provisions of this Agreement.

;I9. Participant Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities:

$. Notification to CDPH of Breach or Security Incident: The Participant shall notify CDPH
immediately by telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of a breach (as
defined in this Agreement), or within twenty-four (24) hours by email RU�ID[ of the
discovery of any security incident (as defined in this Agreement). Notification shall be
provided to the CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief
Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XIV(G),
below. If the breach or security incident occurs after business hours or on a weekend or
holiday and involves CalCONNECT Data in electronic or computerized form, notification
to CDPH shall be provided by calling the CDPH IT Service Desk at the
telephone numbers listed in Section XIV(G)� below. For purposes of this Section,
breaches and security incidents shall be treated as discovered by Participant as of the
first day on which such breach or security incident is known to the Participant, or, by
exercising reasonable diligence would have been known to the Participant. Participant
shall be deemed to have knowledge of a breach or security incident if such breach or
security incident is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been
known, to any person, other than the person committing the breach or security
incident, who is a workforce member or agent of the Participant.
Participant shall take:

1. prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the breach
or security incident and to protect the CalCONNECT System operating
environment; and,

2. any action pertaining to a breach required by applicable federal or state laws,
including, specifically, California Civil Code section 1798.29.

%. Investigation of Breach:   The Participant shall immediately investigate such breach or
security incident, and within seventy-two (72) hours of the discovery, shall inform the
CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief
Information Security Officer of:

1. what data elements were involved and the extent of the data involved in the
breach, including, specifically, the number of individuals whose personal
information was breached; and

2. a description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably believed to have
improperly used the CalCONNECT Data and/or a description of the unauthorized
persons known or reasonably believed to have improperly accessed or acquired
the CalCONNECT Data, or to whom it is known (or reasonably believed) to have
had the CalCONNECT Data improperly disclosed to them; and

Page ϴ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

3. a description of where the CalCONNECT Data is known or believed to have been
improperly used or disclosed; and

4. a description of the known or probable causes of the breach or security incident;
and

5. whether Civil Code section 1798.29 or any other federal or state laws requiring
individual notifications of breaches have been triggered.

C. Written Report: The Participant shall provide a written report of the investigation to the
CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information
Security Officer within five (5) working days of the discovery of the breach or security
incident. The report shall include, but not be limited to, the information specified above,
as well as a full, detailed corrective action plan, including information on measures that
were taken to halt and/or contain the breach or security incident, and measures to be
taken to prevent the recurrence of such breach or security incident.

D. Notification to Individuals: If notification to individuals whose information was breached
is required under state or federal law, and regardless of whether Participant is
considered only a custodian and/or non-owner of the CalCONNECT Data, Participant
shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election of CDPH, either:

1. make notification to the individuals affected by the breach (including substitute
notification), pursuant to the content and timeliness provisions of such applicable
state or federal breach notice laws. The CDPH Privacy Officer shall approve, in
writing, the time, manner and content of any such notifications, prior to the
transmission of such notifications to the individual(s); or

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its notification (including substitute
notification) to the individuals affected by the breach.

E. Submission of Sample Notification to California Attorney General: If notification to more
than 500 individuals is required pursuant to California Civil Code section 1798.29,
Participant shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election of CDPH, either:

1. electronically submit a single sample copy of the security breach notification,
excluding any personally identifiable information, to the California Attorney
General pursuant to the format., content and timeliness provisions of Section
1798.29, subdivision (e). Participant shall inform the CDPH Privacy Officer of the
time, manner and content of any such submissions, prior to the transmission of
such submissions to the Attorney General; or

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its submission of a sample copy of the
notification to the California Attorney General.

F. Public Statements: Participant shall cooperate with CDPH in developing content for any
public statements regarding Breaches or Security Incidents related to Participant and

Page ϵ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

shall not provide any public statements without the express written permission of CDPH. 
Requests for public statement(s) by any non-party about a breach or security incidents 
shall be directed to the CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the 
CDPH Chief Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section 
XIV(G), below. 

G. CDPH Contact Information: To direct communications to the above referenced CDPH
staff, the Participant shall initiate contact as indicated below. CDPH reserves the right to
make changes to the contact information by giving written notice to the Participant. Said
changes shall not require an amendment to this Agreement.

CDPH Program Manager CDPH Privacy Officer CDPH Chief Information Security 
Officer (and CDPH IT Service Desk) 

Ryan Murphy, PHD, MPH 
Epidemiology Unit Chief 

Email: 
ryan.murphy@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: (510) 620-6718 

Privacy Officer 
Privacy Office, 
c/o Office of Legal Services 
California Department of 
Public Health 
1415 L Street, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Email: privacy@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: (877) 421-9634 

Chief Information 
Security Officer 
Information Security Office 
California Department of 
Public Health 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6302 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Email: 
CDPH.InfoSecurityOffice@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: IT Service Desk 

(800) 579-0874
;9. CDPH Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities: CDPH shall notify Participant

immediately by telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of a breach (as defined in this
Agreement), or within twenty-four (24) hours by email or fax of the discovery of any security incident
(as defined in this Agreement) that involves CalCONNECT Data that was created or collected by
Participant in the CalCONNECT System. Notification shall be provided by CDPH to the Participant
Representative, using the contact information listed in Attachment B, which is made a part of this
Agreement by this reference. For purposes of this Section, breaches and security incidents shall
be treated as discovered by CDPH as of the first day on which such breach or security incident is
known to CDPH, or, by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known to CDPH. CDPH
shall be deemed to have knowledge of a breach or security incident if such breach or security
incident is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person,
other than the person committing the breach or security incident, who is a workforce member or
agent of CDPH.

$. Participant Contact Information: To direct communications to the Participant’s
breach/security incident response staff, CDPH shall initiate contact as indicated by
Participant in Attachment B. Participant’s contact information must be provided to CDPH
prior to execution of this Agreement. Participant reserves the right to make changes
to the contact information in Attachment B. Said changes shall not require an
amendment to this Agreement.

Page 1Ϭ of 15 

mailto:privacy@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:CDPH.InfoSecurityOffice@cdph.ca.gov


CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

;9I. Compliance with California Health and Safety Code Section 121022(h): CDPH and
Participant shall comply, when required, with California Health and safety Code Section 121022,
subdivision (h), which provides as follows: “Any potential or actual breach of confidentiality of HIV-
related public health records shall be investigated by the local health officer, in coordination with
the department, when appropriate. The local health officer shall immediately report any evidence
of an actual breach of confidentiality of HIV-related public health records at a city or county level to
the department and the appropriate law enforcement agency. The department shall investigate any
potential or actual breach of confidentiality of HIV-related public health records at the state level,
and shall report any evidence of such a breach of confidentiality to an appropriate law
enforcement agency.”

;9II. Term of Agreement: Unless otherwise terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions
set forth herein, this Agreement shall remain in effect for a period of three (3) years as agreed upon
by the Parties, after the latest signature date in the signature block below. After three (3) years,
this Agreement will expire, without further action. If the parties wish to extend this Agreement, they
may do so by reviewing, updating, and reauthorizing this Agreement. If one or both of the parties
wish to terminate this Agreement prematurely, they may do so upon 30 days advanced written
notice. CDPH may also terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section XVIII, below.

;9III. Termination for Cause:

$. Termination Upon Breach: A breach by either party of any provision of this Agreement,
as determined by CDPH or Participant, shall constitute a material breach of the
Agreement and grounds for immediate termination of the Agreement by CDPH or
Participant by providing written notice of such termination. At its sole discretion, CDPH
or Participant may give the breaching party 30 days to cure the breach.

%. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings: CDPH and Participant shall notify the other party
in writing if it is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding related to a violation of
this Agreement. CDPH or Participant may terminate the Agreement by providing written
notice to the other party if the other party is found guilty of a criminal violation
related to a violation of this Agreement. CDPH or Participant may terminate the
Agreement by providing written notice to the other party if a finding or stipulation that the
other party has violated any security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil
proceeding in which the other party is a party or has been joined.

;I;. Amendment: The parties acknowledge that Federal and State laws relating to information
security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this Agreement may be required
to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such laws. The parties specifically agree
to take such action as is necessary to implement new standards and requirements imposed
by regulations and other applicable laws relating to the security or privacy of CalCONNECT
Data. Upon CDPH’s request, Participant agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with
CDPH concerning an amendment to this Agreement embodying written assurances consistent
with new standards and requirements imposed by regulations and other applicable laws.
CDPH may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event:

Page 1ϭ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

A. Participant does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this Agreement when
requested by CDPH pursuant to this Section, or

B. Participant does not enter into an amendment providing assurances regarding the
safeguarding of CalCONNECT Data that CDPH in its sole discretion deems sufficient to
satisfy the standards and requirements of applicable laws and regulations relating to the
security or privacy of CalCONNECT Data.

;;. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings: Each party shall make itself and any
workforce members or agents assisting in the performance of obligations under this Agreement
available to the other party at no cost to testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of litigation
or administrative proceedings being commenced based upon claimed violation of laws relating to
security and privacy, which involve inactions or actions by CDPH or Participant, except where
CDPH and Participant or their workforce members or agents are a named adverse party.

;;I. Disclaimer: CDPH makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Participant with
this Agreement will be adequate or satisfactory for Participant’s own purposes or that any
information in Participant’s possession or control, or transmitted or received by Participant, is or
will be secure from unauthorized use or disclosure. Participant is solely responsible for all decisions
made by Participant regarding the safeguarding of CalCONNECT Data.

;;II. Transfer of Rights: Participant has no right and shall not delegate, assign, or otherwise
transfer or delegate any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to any other person or
entity. Any such transfer of rights shall be null and void.

;;III. No Third-Party Beneficiaries: Nothing express or implied in the terms and conditions of this
Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than
CDPH or Participant, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever.

;;I9. Interpretation: The terms and conditions in this Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly
as necessary to implement and comply with regulations and applicable State and Federal laws.
The parties agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be
resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with Federal and State laws.

;;9. Survival: The respective rights and obligations of Participant under Sections IX, X, and XIV
of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

;;9I. Attachments: The parties mutually agree that the following specified Attachments are part
of this Agreement:

$. Attachment A: State Law Authority for: (1) Use and Disclosure of CalCONNECTData;
and (2) Application of HIPAA preemption exception for public health (45

&.F.R. § 160.203(c)).

%. Attachment B: Participant Breach and Security Incident Contact Information.

;;9II. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, including all attachments, constitutes the entire
agreement between CDPH and Participant. Any and all modifications of this Agreement must be

Page 1Ϯ of 15 



CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (ϵ-2023) 

in writing and signed by all parties. Any oral representations or agreements between the parties 
shall be of no force or effect. 

XXVIII. Severability: The invalidity in whole or in part of any provisions of this Agreement shall not
void or affect the validity of any other provisions of this Agreement.

XXIX. Choice of Law and Venue: The laws of the state of California will govern any dispute from
or relating to this Agreement. The parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state of
California and federal courts for or in Sacramento and agree that any legal action or proceeding
relating to the Agreement may only be brought in those courts.

XXX. Signatures:

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as follows:

On behalf of  (“Participant”), the undersigned individual hereby 
attests that he or she is authorized to enter into this Agreement and agrees to abide by and enforce 
all the terms specified herein. 

ApproYed as to )orm �2ptional��
 %y�

Page 1ϯ of 15 

On behalf of CDPH, the undersigned individual hereby attests that he or she is authorized to enter 
into this Agreement and agrees to all the terms specified herein. 

Ryan Murphy, PhD MPH 
Product Owner / Data Systems Manager 
California Department of Public Health 
850 Marina Bay Parkway, Building P  
Richmond,  CA 94804 

BBBBBBBBBBB
5eturn ([ecuted Agreement to�
CalCONNECT@cdph.ca.gov



Page 1ϰ of 15 CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (9-2023) 

Attachment A 

State Law Authority for Use and Disclosure of CDPH CalCONNECT Data; and Application of HIPAA 
preemption exception for public health (45 C.F.R. § 160.203(c)). 

A. Legal Authority:

1. California Information Practices Act:

a. California Civil Code section 1798.24, subdivision (i), provides in part as follows: “An agency shall
not disclose any personal information in a manner that would link the information disclosed to the
individual to whom it pertains unless the information is disclosed, as follows: Pursuant to a
determination by the agency that maintains information that compelling circumstances exist that
affect the health or safety of an individual….” 

2. California Health and Safety Code section 101085

3. California Health and Safety Code section 120125

4. California Health and Safety Code section 120130

5. California Health and Safety Code section 120140

6. California Health and Safety Code sections 120175 & 120175.5

7. California Health and Safety Code sections 121022-121035

8. Title 17. Public Health, Division 1. State Department of Health Services, Chapter 4. Preventative
Medical Service, Article 1, Reporting, Sections: 2500, 2502, and 2505

9. Title 17. Public Health, Division 1. State Department of Health Services, Chapter 4. Preventative
Medical Service, Article 3.5, Reporting of HIV, Sub Article 4, Sections: 2641.5-2643.20



Page 15 of 15 CDPH CalCONNECT DUDA (9-2023) 

Attachment B 

Participant Contact Information 

The following contact information must be provided prior to execution of this Agreement. 

Participant Program Manager Participant Privacy Officer Participant Chief Information 
Security Officer 

Name:

Title:

Address 1:

Name:Name:

Title:Title:

Address 1: Address 1:

Address �: Address �: Address �:

&it\: &it\: &it\:

6tate� =iS &Rde: 6tate� =iS &Rde: 6tate� =iS &Rde:

TeleSKRQe: TeleSKRQe: TeleSKRQe:

)a[: )a[: )a[:

(�mail: (�mail: (�mail:



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Public Works Facilities Division
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Grant Funding for Water Refilling
Stations

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

This item is to authorize the Public Works Department to pursue grant funding for water filling stations to meet the
CalRecycle water container recycling goals.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize Public Works Assistant Director to prepare and submit grant applications to meet the goals of CalRecycles plan to
decrease plastic water bottle usage and promote the use of water bottle refilling stations throughout Mono County.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There are no fiscal impacts at this time.  If grant agreements are issued Public Works will return to the Board to request that
the Public Works Director be authorized to execute the agreements, accept funds, and administer the grants (in consultation
with County Counsel). At that time, we will identify fiscal impacts for reimbursement. 

CONTACT NAME: Karyn Spears

PHONE/EMAIL: 760 616 4651 / kspears@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 
kspears@mono.ca.gov 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Water Refilling Station Grant Application Request

 Grant Details

 Funding

 History

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34222&ItemID=18985

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34297&ItemID=18985

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34298&ItemID=18985


 Time Who Approval
 9/24/2024 4:28 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 1:46 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 7:58 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

MONO COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
POST OFFICE BOX 457 • 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET • BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517 

760.932.5440 • Fax 760.932.5441 • monopw@mono.ca.gov • www.monocounty.ca.gov 

   
 

Engineering • Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Sustainable Outdoors • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

 

Date:  10-01-2024  

To:  Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors  

From: Karyn Spears, Assistant Director of Public Works    

Re:  Apply for Grant Funding for County Water Refiling Stations 
  
Background: 

The Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery offers the Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program 
pursuant to Section 14581(a)(4) of the Public Resources Code. The purpose of this grant is to issue up to 
$1,500,000 annually in the form of grants for beverage container recycling and litter reduction programs to 
promote increased recycling of beverage containers throughout California and reduce beverage container litter in 
the waste stream.   

 
Discussion:  

The County of Mono would benefit from adding water bottle filling stations at all county parks to allow 
residents and visitors more opportunities for refilling water bottles.  This will also decrease plastic water bottle 
waste.   

Approval of the recommended action will allow Public Works to prepare and apply for this grant application to 
the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery for Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program that 
will provide water bottle filling stations throughout Mono County, supporting our goals of reducing plastic 
waste.   

If the grant is approved, we will be reimbursed for the purchase of water bottle filling stations, match funding is 
not required.  

 
Please contact me at (760) 616-4651 or kspears@mono.ca.gov if you have any questions regarding this item.  
  
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Karyn Spears   
Superintendent of Public Works, Parks and Facilities  



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 1 

 
July 2024 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 

Beverage Container Recycling Grant 
Program Application Guidelines and 

Instructions 

1st Cycle (RBC36) Fiscal Year 2024–25 
2nd Cycle (RBC37) Fiscal Year 2025–26 

  



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 2 

Table of Contents 

Table of Contents .......................................................................................................... 2 
Grant Cycle Overview ................................................................................................... 3 

Timeline ........................................................................................................................ 3 
Eligible Applicants ........................................................................................................ 4 
Individual Application .................................................................................................... 5 
Cooperative Application ................................................................................................ 5 
Regional Application (Local Governments Only) .......................................................... 5 
Joint Powers Authority Application Requirements ........................................................ 5 
Eligible Projects/Products ............................................................................................. 5 
Available Funds ............................................................................................................ 6 
Grant Term ................................................................................................................... 6 
Eligible and Ineligible Costs .......................................................................................... 7 
Environmentally Preferable Purchases and Practices Policy Requirement .................. 7 
Questions and Answers Process .................................................................................. 7 
Public Records Requests ............................................................................................. 8 
Confidentiality ............................................................................................................... 8 
Application Access ..................................................................................................... 10 
GMS Tabs - Application Contents and Instructions .................................................... 10 

Summary Tab .......................................................................................................... 10 
Applicant/Participant Tab ......................................................................................... 11 
Detail Tab ................................................................................................................ 11 
Contacts Tab ........................................................................................................... 12 
Budget Tab .............................................................................................................. 12 
Site(s) Tab ............................................................................................................... 13 
Documents Tab ....................................................................................................... 13 

Application Submittal and Deadline ............................................................................ 13 
Application Documents............................................................................................... 14 

CalRecycle Documents .............................................................................................. 14 
Application Certification ........................................................................................... 14 

Applicant’s Required Authorization Documents .......................................................... 15 
Individual Application Authorization Documents ...................................................... 15 
Cooperative Application Authorizing Documents ..................................................... 16 
Regional Application Authorization Documents ....................................................... 18 
Joint Powers Authority Agreement .......................................................................... 20 
Letter of Designation ............................................................................................... 20 

Grant Review and Award Process ............................................................................. 21 
Grant Application Review Process ............................................................................. 21 
Grant Award Process.................................................................................................. 21 
Grant Award Conditions.............................................................................................. 21 

Grant Program Administration ................................................................................... 22 
Grant Agreement ........................................................................................................ 22 
Reporting Process ...................................................................................................... 22 
Payment Request Process ......................................................................................... 22 

 
 
 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 3 

Grant Cycle Overview 

The Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) offers the 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program pursuant to Section 14581(a)(4) of the 
Public Resources Code.  The purpose of the grant is to issue up to $1,500,000 annually 
in the form of grants for beverage container recycling and litter reduction programs to 
promote increased recycling of beverage containers throughout California and reduce 
beverage container litter in the waste stream. 
 
This resource document provides applicants with instructions to access and complete 
the application online and information about grant administration.  The web-based 
application is in CalRecycle’s Grants Management System (GMS)  
(https://secure.calrecycle.ca.gov/Grants/SignIn.aspx?ReturnUrl=%2fGrants).  The 
applicant will need to sign in to GMS to complete and submit an application. 
 
Note: The following terms used in this document are defined below, unless the context 
clearly indicates otherwise: 

• “Applicant” refers to either the legal name of the entity that is legally responsible 
for grant administration and any entity that will receive and control grant funded 
equipment, if awarded, or to a person who is completing an application on behalf 
of the Applicant (this is usually the primary contact listed on the application, but 
could also be the secondary contact, signature authority, or consultant). 

• “You” refers to a person who is completing the application on behalf of the 
Applicant. 

• “Grantee” refers to an applicant after approval of grant award. 
 

Timeline 
August 13, 2024: Questions and Answers Period Due Date 

• Applicants or interested parties may submit questions from the application 
release date to this date. 

• Applicants or interested parties must submit questions by email. 
 
August 20, 2024 (tentative): Questions and Answers Posted 

• CalRecycle will post all answers to questions on the CalRecycle website that 
were submitted during Question and Answer Period. 

 
September 24, 2024: Application Due Date 

• Applicants must submit applications in GMS by 11:59 p.m. on this date. 

• Customer service will be available until 4:00 p.m. on this date. 
 
October 23, 2024: Secondary Due Date 

• Approved Resolution or Letter of Commitment and any other Applicant’s 
Required Authorization Documents must be uploaded in GMS by this date if it 
was not submitted with the application. 

• Applicant must have an Environmentally Preferable Purchasing and Practices 
Policy by this date. 

 

https://secure.calrecycle.ca.gov/Grants/SignIn.aspx?ReturnUrl=%2fGrants


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 4 

March 2025 (FY 2024–25) and April 2025 (FY 2025–26) (tentative): Grants Awarded 

• CalRecycle considers funding recommendations, and if approved, conditionally 
awards grants during this month. 

 
Notice to Proceed–April 1, 2027: FY 2024–25 Grant Term 
Notice to Proceed–April 4, 2028: FY 2025–26 Grant Term  
 
For milestones that take place during the grant term, refer to the Procedures and 
Requirements document. 
 

Eligible Applicants 
California Labor Code section 1782 prohibits a charter city from receiving state funding 
or financial assistance for construction projects if that charter city does not comply with 
Labor Code sections 1770–1782.  If any applicants or participating entities are charter 
cities or Joint Powers Authorities that include charter cities, the lead participating entity 
must certify on the Detail tab of the application that Labor Code section 1782 does not 
prohibit any included charter city from receiving state funds for the project described in 
this application.  If it is determined after award that an applicant or participating entity is 
a charter city prohibited from receiving state funds for this grant project, the grant will be 
terminated and any disbursed grant funds shall be returned to CalRecycle. 
 
Private, nonprofit entities, in addition to being registered with the California Secretary of 
State, must also be registered with the California Department of Justice, and appear on 
their Registry of Charitable Trusts.  If a nonprofit entity is excluded from registering with 
the Department of Justice, proof must be provided with the application. 
 
The grants are available to:  

• California cities, counties, state agencies, and other local governmental entities. 

• Special districts (e.g., recreational park districts). 

• Public colleges and universities, and public K–12 school districts. 

• Non-profit organizations (except private schools K–12) registered with the federal 
government under 501(c)3, (c)6, or (c)10 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

• Qualifying Tribal Entities.   
o A Qualifying Tribal Entity is defined as a tribe, band, nation or other 

organized group or community, residing within the borders of California, 
which: 
1. Is recognized for special programs and services provided by the United 

States because of the status of its members as Native Americans; or 
2. Can establish that it is a government entity, and which meets the 

criteria of the grant program. 

• Joint Powers Authorities (JPA) as an eligible entity (where all the participating 
entities are otherwise eligible). 

 
Note: Applicants that were awarded in the last two fiscal years (FY 2023–24 and FY 
2022–23) from the eligible applicant pool will be excluded for eligibility. 
 

• To find a listing of previous grant awards please use the Grants by Grant Cycle 
report (https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/Funding/Grants/ByCycle). 

https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/Funding/Grants/ByCycle
https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/Funding/Grants/ByCycle


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 5 

 

Individual Application 
An Individual Application is one in which a single eligible entity will be responsible for 
grant implementation.  The applicant in an Individual Application will be responsible for 
the performance of the grant and all related documentation.  In addition, the applicant 
will be the only entity receiving any real or personal property that is purchased with 
grant funds. 
 

Cooperative Application 
Entities may join together in a Cooperative Application in which two or more eligible 
entities join together for the purpose of grant implementation.  A Lead Participant must 
be designated to act on behalf of all Non-Lead Participants.  The Lead Participant is the 
entity who will be responsible for the performance of the grant and all required 
documentation.  All Non-Lead Participants are considered applicants and will be 
grantees should the application be awarded.  CalRecycle will direct all official 
correspondence and grant payments to the Lead Participant.  The Lead Participant is 
responsible for reimbursing Non-Lead Participants’ costs prior to submitting a payment 
request to CalRecycle.  All entities involved with a cooperative application will be 
required to execute a grant agreement. 
 

Regional Application (Local Governments Only) 
Local governments may join together in a Regional Application in which two or more 
eligible jurisdictions join together for the purpose of grant implementation.  A Regional 
Lead Participant must be designated to act on behalf of all Non-Lead Participants.  The 
Lead Participant is the applicant, and if awarded, will be the grantee responsible for the 
performance of the grant and all required documentation.  CalRecycle will direct all 
official correspondence and grant payments to the Lead Participant.  If a jurisdiction is a 
Non-Lead Participant in a Regional Application, it may not apply individually. 
 

Joint Powers Authority Application Requirements 
Joint Powers Authorities (JPA) may submit a grant application as an individual applicant 
and must identify all JPA members as Non-Lead Participants in the application’s 
Applicant/Participant Tab.  A member of the JPA may not submit an individual 
application if that entity is also a member of an applicant JPA.  In addition to the 
requirements for an Individual Application, a JPA must upload a copy of its JPA 
Agreement. 
 
The JPA Agreement must: 

1. Give authority over solid waste management. 
2. List all member entities. 
3. Contain the signature of all members. 

 

Eligible Projects/Products 
CalRecycle is seeking projects that implement new programs or enhance existing 
programs to provide convenient beverage container recycling opportunities in various 
locations statewide.  Eligible projects include:  

• Multi-family residential dwellings (five units or more). 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 6 

• Public colleges/universities, non-profit colleges/universities, and public K–12 
school districts. 

• Curbside Residential Program locations (excluding single stream). 

• Community events including, but not limited to, those sponsored by local 
jurisdictions. 

• Parks/recreational areas. 

• Purchase of water refill stations, including installation, replacement of current 
infrastructure, plumbing, maintenance, additional attachments or modifications, 
or related educational and outreach activities/materials promoting water refill 
stations. 

• Litter reduction and cleanup activities along the United States-Mexico border 
where the waste stream includes beverage containers that will be recycled. 

o Out of State beverage containers collected as part of the litter abatement 
and cleanup projects cannot be funded under this grant program. 

 
Ongoing collection programs may include the following activities as a component of the 
grant project: 

• Temporary Community events (i.e., recycling or collection events sponsored by 
local jurisdictions, Earth Day events). 

• Drop-off, Collection Program, or Community Service Program. 

• Education and Outreach related to beverage container recycling. 
 
Note: Educational activities or materials (signage, flyers, curriculum, etc.) related to the 
beverage container recycling project are capped at 25 percent of the total grant award.  
Funding must be directly related to the collection or recycling of California Redemption 
Value (CRV) beverage containers and the overall program.  If non-CRV materials are 
included in the grant, they are subject to proportional cost.  For example: a request to 
purchase a three-bin system for composting, paper and CRV recycling, can only be 
funded at one third of the cost.  A mixed recycling bin will be funded proportionately 
based on the CRV content of materials collected. 
 

Available Funds 
• $ 1,500,000 is available for each grant cycle, fiscal years 2024–25 and 2025–26, 

subject to funding availability. 

• $ 75,000 is the minimum available for individual grant awards. 

• $ 275,000 is the maximum available for individual grant awards. 

• For Regional/ Cooperative applications: $275,000 is the maximum available for 
the joint grant award, subject to funding availability. 

 

Grant Term 
The Grant Term begins on the date that CalRecycle sends the Notice to Proceed email.  
The Grant Term ends on April 1, 2027 (RBC36 FY 2024–25) or April 1, 2028 (RBC37 
FY 2025–26). 
 
For detailed information about requirements within the grant term, refer to the 
Procedures and Requirements document. 
 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 7 

Eligible and Ineligible Costs 
Grantees may incur eligible costs only during the Grant Term.  For detailed information 
about eligible and ineligible costs, refer to the Procedures and Requirements document. 
 

Environmentally Preferable Purchases and Practices Policy 
Requirement 
Consistent with CalRecycle’s core values, CalRecycle requires all applicants to have or 
develop, adopt, and implement an Environmentally Preferable Purchasing and Practices 
(EPPP) Policy for their organizations. 

Applicants must have an EPPP Policy in place prior to submitting their application and 
certify to this fact on the Detail tab in the application.  If applicants do not have an EPPP 
Policy in place prior to submitting their application, they must certify to the fact that a 
Policy will be adopted by the secondary due date on the Detail tab in the application. 

Some additional practices that CalRecycle encourages organizations to include in their 
EPPP Policies are: 

• Buildings and Grounds 
o All building and renovations follow the green building practices for design, 

construction and operation, where appropriate, as described in the 
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design Green Building Rating 
System (https://www.usgbc.org/resources/leed-v4-building-design-and-
construction-current-version). 

• Continual Improvement 
o Training is provided to new and existing employees. 
o Organization regularly evaluates and/or improves implementation of EPPP 

policy. 
 
Additional EPPP Policy resources may be found on the CalRecycle Environmentally 
Preferable Purchasing (EPP) webpage (https://calrecycle.ca.gov/EPP/). 
 
Note: In Regional /Cooperative Applications, the Lead and Non-Lead Participants will 
each need an EPPP Policy.  If a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) applies, only the JPA 
needs an EPPP Policy. 
 

AB 712 Land Use Restriction – Supermarket Site 
Public Resources Code section 14583 prohibits CalRecycle from making any payments, 
grants, or loans to a city, county, or city and county, if the city, county, or city and county 
has adopted or is enforcing a land use restriction that prevents the siting or operation of 
a certified recycling center at a supermarket site.  Assembly Bill 712 (Chapter 576, 
Statues of 2011) was enacted on October 8, 2011, and added Public Resources Code 
section 14583, notwithstanding section 14581, to the California Beverage Container 
Recycling and Litter Reduction Act. 
 

Questions and Answers Process 
Questions regarding the application and its requirements must be emailed to 
BevContainerGrants@CalRecycle.ca.gov.  CalRecycle must receive the questions by 
August 13, 2024, or the questions will not be accepted. 

https://www.usgbc.org/resources/leed-v4-building-design-and-construction-current-version
https://www.usgbc.org/resources/leed-v4-building-design-and-construction-current-version
https://calrecycle.ca.gov/EPP/
https://calrecycle.ca.gov/EPP/
mailto:BevContainerGrants@CalRecycle.ca.gov


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 8 

 
Applicants or interested parties may access the Questions and Answers web page from 
the Notice of Funds Available web page or from the application.  CalRecycle may group 
together similar or related questions and respond to them as one question, reword 
questions for clarity, or remove identifying information.  CalRecycle may update the 
Questions and Answers web page intermittently during the Questions and Answers 
period and post all Questions and Answers approximately two weeks after the deadline.  
The posted Questions and Answers are subject to updates, and it is the applicant’s 
responsibility to check the Questions and Answers web page for the latest information. 

 

Public Records Requests 
CalRecycle’s policy is to make records requested by the public promptly available in 
accordance with the laws governing disclosure of records and information to the public.  
In general, all records in the possession of a state agency are public records subject to 
disclosure, unless a law provides that a particular kind of record or information is not a 
public record or is exempt or prohibited from disclosure. 
 
Upon request, the entire contents of the submitted application are subject to public 
records requests.  This may include contact information, project summary, uploaded 
documents, and scoring information.  Public records may be requested from CalRecycle 
through the California Public Records Act Requests web page 
(https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/Forms/ContactUs/PublicRecordsRequest/).   
 

Confidentiality  
The following describes the treatment of certain confidential or proprietary information 
under the California Public Records Act (Government Code 7920.000 et seq.) and 
related regulations.  It also describes how questions are resolved on whether 
information is truly confidential, the legal protections for confidential information, and 
internal and program procedures to maintain confidentiality. 
 
Confidential or Proprietary Information 
Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations (14 CCR), sections 17041–17046 
(https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Laws/Regulations/Title14/), states that confidential or 
proprietary information shall include, but is not limited to: 

• Personal or business-related financial data, customer client lists, supplier lists 
and other information of a proprietary or confidential business nature provided by 
persons in applications, reports, returns, certifications or other documents 
submitted to [CalRecycle] which if released would result in harmful effects on the 
person’s competitive position. 

• Tax information prohibited from disclosure, pursuant to the Revenue and 
Taxation Code. 

 
Accordingly, appropriate documents submitted with an application that are clearly 
marked, on each page, “confidential or proprietary information” will be treated by 
CalRecycle pursuant to the procedures set forth in 14 CCR sections 17041–17046.  
However, the law does not treat documents marked as “confidential or proprietary 
information” (such as sales brochures, promotional literature and other general non-

https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/Forms/ContactUs/PublicRecordsRequest/
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/calawquery?codesection=gov&codebody=&hits=20
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Laws/Regulations/Title14/


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 9 

financial documents) as confidential if they do not fall within the categories of protected 
financial documents listed above. 
 
What if there is a question about what is confidential? 
If CalRecycle receives a request to disclose data claimed by the applicant to be 
confidential, CalRecycle would notify the applicant of the request and state that the 
documents were under review to determine whether information was correctly identified 
as “confidential.”  If there was any question as to whether specific information was 
confidential, CalRecycle would contact the person(s) identified in the application to 
provide a justification and statement why the information is confidential.  The process 
for evaluating confidentiality claims is set forth in section 14 CCR 17046. 
 
What procedures does CalRecycle have in place to ensure that confidential 
information is kept confidential? 
Confidential or proprietary information will be evaluated and analyzed only by 
CalRecycle staff, kept confidential, and will be maintained with restricted access.  
Grantee businesses agree to provide key financial information for three years to 
develop benchmarks to evaluate the program.  Records no longer needed to provide 
the services offered under the grant program are periodically destroyed, when allowed 
by audit policies and state law. 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 10 

Application Instructions 
 

Application Access 
The application is available in CalRecycle’s web-based Grants Management System 
(GMS).  Access to GMS is secure; therefore, you must have a CalRecycle WebPass to 
log in to the system.  Those who have not previously obtained a CalRecycle WebPass 
can create an account at the CalRecycle WebPass page 
(https://secure.calrecycle.ca.gov/WebPass/). 
 
To start an application: 

1. Log in to GMS (https://secure.calrecycle.ca.gov/Grants). 
2. Select Apply for a Grant on the left. 

• All open grant cycles are displayed in a table. 
3. Find Beverage Container Recycling Grant RBC36 and RBC37: Fiscal Year 

2024–25 and Fiscal Year 2025–26 and select Start Application. 

• A pop-up window will appear asking for contact information.  If you have 
an existing GMS Account, the information may be auto populated. 

• GMS will automatically add you as the Primary Contact for the new grant 
application; however, you may update this later. 

4. Click Save. 
 

GMS Tabs - Application Contents and Instructions 
The components of the application are divided into tabs.  To fill out an application, click 
on each tab and complete the sections in each tab as required.  General directions are 
on the top of each tab, and detailed information about the requirements for each tab is 
listed below. 
 
The applicant is responsible for a complete application.  This includes signing 
documents, uploading required documents, and submitting the application by the due 
date(s).  Failure to do so will result in disqualification from the Beverage Container 
Recycling Grant Program. 

Examples of disqualifications may include: 

• Applicant does not meet the eligibility requirements. 

• Project is not eligible. 

• Applicant fails to use required CalRecycle documents or forms. 

• Applicant uploads incomplete or blank documents to the Documents tab. 

• Signature Authority fails to sign Application Certification or any document that 
requires a signature. 

• The online application is incomplete or missing information. 

• Applicant fails to adopt an EPPP Policy by the secondary due date. 
 
Summary Tab 
This tab provides a summary of the application, due dates, resource documents and 
links, application documents, and the Application Submission section.  It is the 
applicant’s responsibility to submit all required documents, based on the particular grant 
application/project, by the appropriate due date. 
 

https://secure.calrecycle.ca.gov/WebPass/
https://secure.calrecycle.ca.gov/Grants


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 11 

Applicant/Participant Tab 
The applicant name is the legal name of the entity that is legally responsible for grant 
administration, if awarded. 

1. Select the Add Applicant/Participant button and type in the Applicant Name 
and County.  Do not enter your personal name. 

2. Search the table for the correct applicant name and select Add 
Applicant/Participant. 

3. Choose the Lead Participant radio button and click Save. 

• Every application must have a Lead Participant even if it is an individual 
application with no Non-Lead Participants. 

 
If the Participant Search List does not contain your Applicant/Participant name: 

1. Click on Add New Applicant/Participant. 
2. Enter the Applicant/Participant Name as it appears on the Resolution or Letter 

of Commitment.  Do not include the department or unit name.  Do not enter your 
personal name. 

• List county names with the name first followed by the word “County,” e.g., 
“Sacramento County.” 

• List city names as “City of” followed by the city’s name, e.g., “City of 
Sacramento.” 

3. Complete all required fields then click Save. 
 
For Regional, or Cooperative applications, add the name of each eligible Non-Lead 
Participant and select the Participating Jurisdiction radio button. 
 
For Joint Powers Authority Applications (JPA) applications add the name of each JPA 
member and select the Participating Jurisdiction radio button. 
 
For a list of eligible applicants, please see the Grant Cycle Overview section titled 
“Eligible Applicants.” 
 
Detail Tab 
Complete this tab as follows: 

1. Enter a dollar amount in the Grant Funds Requested field.  Do not exceed the 
maximum grant award amount of $275,000.  Please round all amounts to the 
nearest whole dollar. 

2. Enter the Assembly Districts and Senate Districts.  To select more than one 
district hold the “Ctrl” key while selecting the numbers. 

3. Enter the applicant’s Department Name, e.g., “General Services.”  If the 
applicant does not have a department, enter the applicant’s name. 

4. Enter the grant payment mailing address. 
5. Project Summary/Statement of Use: Provide a brief description of 4–5 

sentences of the proposed project. 
6. Select the appropriate option for the Resolution or Letter of Commitment 

Requirement and optional Letter of Designation. 
7. Select the appropriate option for the Environmentally Preferable Purchasing and 

Practices Policy. 
8. Select the appropriate answer for Program Questions. 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 12 

 
Contacts Tab 
CalRecycle requires the application to have only one Primary Contact and at least one 
Signature Authority.  Each application contact may be granted access by checking the 
box on the top of the contact’s detail screen.  The contact will be able to log in to GMS 
using their own CalRecycle WebPass and access the application. 

Note: CalRecycle requires a valid email address for the Signature Authority in order to 
route the Grant Agreement, if awarded. 

• Primary Contact.  One person who the Signature Authority or their designee has 
authorized to manage and oversee the grant.  This person will be the first contact 
with whom the Grant Manager will communicate. 

• Signature Authority.  The person(s) authorized to sign CalRecycle documents, 
such as grant applications, grant agreements, etc., as authorized by a 
board/council-adopted Resolution, Letter of Designation, or Letter of 
Commitment (if applicable). 

• Secondary Contact.  A person authorized (by the Primary Contact or Signature 
Authority or their designee) as the alternate person with whom the Grant 
Manager will communicate.  (Not required.) 

• Consultant.  A professional who provides advice in an area of expertise.  If 
CalRecycle awards a grant to the applicant, the consultants may manage the 
grant or only conduct specific activities, based on a written agreement between 
the applicant and the consultant outlining work to be performed.  (Not required.) 

• Participant Signature Authority.  (Applicable to Cooperative applications only) 
The person(s) authorized to sign documents on behalf of their organization, as 
authorized by a Letter of Commitment, Resolution, or Letter of Designation. 

 
Budget Tab 
Complete the budget document provided in GMS and follow the steps below. 
 

1. Transfer the total of each budget category from the budget document into the 
Budget tab of GMS. 

a. Budget amounts in the budget document must match those entered in the 
Budget tab. 

b. The total amounts entered in the Budget tab of GMS must equal the Grant 
Funds Requested amount shown in the Detail tab. 

i. Administrative Costs (Operating Expenses) 
ii. Equipment 
iii. Education not to exceed 25 percent of the total grant award 

▪ Public Education and Outreach: (e.g., workshops, public 
meetings, town halls, public events, etc.) 

▪ School Education: (e.g., assemblies, curriculum/guides, school 
events) 

▪ Media: (e.g., T.V., website, radio, scripts, instructional videos) 
▪ Materials: (e.g., booklets, brochures/flyers, etc.) 

c. Personnel is capped at 25 percent of the total grant award 
2. Upload the budget document in Excel format to the Documents tab of GMS. 

 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 13 

Utilizing a document form other than the official CalRecycle versions, tampering with the 
CalRecycle version, or otherwise circumventing imposed character limits, may subject 
the applicant to disqualification. 
 
Site(s) Tab 
Add an entry for each grant project/site.  Applicants who have multiple project sites are 
required to enter an entry for each project site(s) under the Site tab.  The following 
information must be entered in each filed under the Site tab. 
 

• Site Name 

• Site Type: Multi-family, College/University, K–12 school districts, Community 
Events, or Parks/Recreational Areas. 

• Budget Amount: Enter the amount for each individual project.  If you have 
multiple project sites, the total for all projects should equal the total requested 
amount. 

• Summary: Provide a brief summary of each project site funded by grant funds.  
Identify the type of infrastructure or equipment and specify the number of 
required equipment for the project.  These may include items such as 10 water 
refill stations, 150 beverage container recycling bins, two balers, etc.   

 
Documents Tab 
See the Application Documents Section in the Summary tab for documents that must be 
uploaded in the Documents tab. 
 
When uploading a document, enter a document title, select the appropriate document 
type from the drop-down list, and enter the date that it was executed/signed, if 
applicable, or select “today’s date.”   
 
Utilizing a document form other than the official CalRecycle versions, tampering with the 
CalRecycle version, or otherwise circumventing imposed character limits may subject 
the applicant to disqualification. 
 

Application Submittal and Deadline 
The Submit Application button located in the Summary tab will be enabled after all 
required documents have been uploaded. 
 
Click the Submit Application button and the application status will change to 
Submitted.  You can only submit the application once; however, you may upload the 
following documents until the secondary due date: Resolution, Letter of Commitment, 
Letter of Designation, Letters of Authorization, JPA Agreements. 
 
You must submit your application no later than 11:59 p.m. on September 24, 2024.  
Customer service will be available until 4:00 p.m. on the application due date either by 
emailing grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov or calling (916)-323-4286, however, there 
is no guarantee CalRecycle will be able to provide support if there is an influx of 
inquiries. 
 
Note: Applications that are not submitted by the due date will be deleted from GMS. 

mailto:grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 14 

 

Application Documents 

Below is a list of all documents required for a complete application.  Instructions on how 
to obtain all documents are described below. 

1. Application Certification 
2. Budget 
3. Narrative Proposal 
4. Resolution/Letter of Commitment 
5. Work Plan 

 

CalRecycle Documents  
CalRecycle documents are accessible through the Summary tab in the Application 
Documents section.  To access a document, click on the link, open it up, fill it out, save 
it to your computer, and upload it to the Documents tab.  If you are having trouble with a 
document, email grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov or call (916)-323-4286. 
 
Altered or reproduced CalRecycle documents or templates may result in automatic 
disqualification of your application.  Unless a document specifies that it may be 
reproduced as necessary, do not alter CalRecycle documents. 
 
Note: Do not include special characters in file names.  Doing so may result in automatic 
disqualification of your application. 
 
Application Certification 
The Application Certification is a required application document that must be generated 
from GMS. 
 
After you have completed each tab of the application and uploaded the required 
documents, generate the Application Certification. 
 

1. Click “Print Application Certification” under the Application Submission section of 
the Summary tab. 

a. Note: You will not be able to click “Print Application Certification” until 
each tab of the application is completed and all required application 
documents have been uploaded. 

2. Signature Authority signs Application Certification. 
3. Upload the signed Application Certification to the Documents tab. 

 
Budget 
Complete the Budget Document.  Utilizing a document form other than this official 
CalRecycle version will subject the application to disqualification.  Include total 
anticipated project costs broken down by: 

• Administrative Costs (Operating Expenses) 

• Equipment 

• Education capped at 25 percent of the total grant award 
o Public Education and Outreach: (e.g., workshops, public meetings, town 

halls, public events, etc.) 

mailto:grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 15 

o School Education: (e.g., assemblies, curriculum/guides, school events) 
o Media: (e.g., T.V., Website, radio, scripts, instructional videos) 
o Materials: (e.g., booklets, brochures/flyers, etc.) 

• Personnel capped at 25 percent of the total grant award 
 
The totals for each budget category must match the amounts previously entered in the 
Budget tab of the application.  Do not enter any SWAG (Stuff We All Get) items. 
 
Narrative Proposal 
Complete the Narrative Proposal document.  Utilizing a document form other than this 
official CalRecycle version, tampering with this CalRecycle version, or otherwise 
circumventing imposed character limits, will subject the applicant to disqualification.  
Each section of the document must have a response, if applicable.  Ensure your 
narrative responses are succinct, detailed, and most importantly, address each item in 
the Scoring Criteria for the Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, FYs 2024–25 
and 2025–26. 
 
Work Plan 
Complete the Work Plan document.  Utilizing a document form other than this official 
CalRecycle version will subject the applicant to disqualification.  List the major activities, 
steps or tasks necessary to implement your project, including start and completion 
dates.  Provide a logical timeframe for activities, taking into consideration the potential 
for delays.  Include 12 months of California Redemption Value volume reporting after 
the date the program is in place. 
 

Applicant’s Required Authorization Documents 
Below is a list of required authorizing documents by application type that the applicant is 
responsible for preparing and uploading to their application. 
 
Authorizing documents are documents which are written by the applicant.  The 
documents give the applicant permission to apply for a grant, accept grant awards, 
and/or name the person authorized to sign grant documents on the applicant’s behalf.  
Below are the requirements for each type of authorizing document.  Read each one 
carefully to determine which document(s) fits your application and applicant type. 
 
Note: For Resolution, Letter of Commitment, Letter of Authorization, Letter of 
Designation, and Letter of Support templates, refer to the Resolution and Letter 
Examples (https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Funding/SampleDocs) web page.  CalRecycle 
staff are available to answer questions about the Resolution and Letter of Commitment 
or to review your draft Resolution to ensure it meets the requirements of the grant 
program.  You may email your draft Resolution or draft Letter of Commitment to 
grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov. 
 
Individual Application Authorization Documents 
If subject to a governing body and board approval is required to legally bind the 
applicant, the applicant must submit a Resolution no later than the secondary due date 
or CalRecycle will deem the application incomplete and disqualify the applicant. 
 
The Resolution must: 

https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Funding/SampleDocs
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Funding/SampleDocs
mailto:grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 16 

1. Authorize submittal of an application for one or more specifically named 
CalRecycle Grant(s) or for all CalRecycle Grants. 

2. Identify the job titles of the Signature Authorities authorized to sign all grant-
related documents necessary to secure funds and implement the approved 
project(s).  The Resolution may also include language authorizing the Signature 
Authorities to delegate authority to additional job titles. 

a. Applicants can only submit a Letter of Designation if the corresponding 
Resolution includes designee language. 

3. Identify the time period during which the authorizations are valid.  The minimum 
duration is the grant term, and the maximum duration is five years from the date 
of adoption.  If the Resolution expires during the application period or the grant 
term, CalRecycle will require a new valid Resolution. 

4. Be certified by the governing body. 

Note: The Signature Authority must sign a Letter of Designation prior to the designee’s 
exercise of their authority. 
 
If not subject to a governing body, applicants must submit a Letter of Commitment 
(LOC).  Publicly held businesses or private for-profit companies may submit an LOC 
even if they are subject to a governing body under the condition that the signatory is an 
individual authorized to contractually bind the applicant for the conditions of the grant 
award.  The LOC is due by the secondary due date or CalRecycle will deem the 
application as incomplete and disqualify the applicant. 
 
The LOC must: 

1. Be on Applicant’s letterhead. 

2. Authorize submittal of the application for the specific Grant Program and Cycle 
Number. 

3. Identify the job titles of the Signature Authorities authorized to sign all grant-
related documents necessary to secure funds and implement the approved 
project(s).  The Letter may also include language authorizing the Signature 
Authorities to delegate authority to additional job titles. 

a. Applicants can only submit a Letter of Designation if the corresponding 
Letter of Commitment includes designee language. 

4. Be valid for the duration of the specified Grant Cycle. 

5. Be signed and dated by an individual authorized to contractually bind the 
applicant. 

 
Cooperative Application Authorizing Documents 
Cooperative Lead Participant 
If subject to a governing body and board approval is required to legally bind the 
applicant, applicants must submit a Resolution no later than the secondary due date or 
CalRecycle will deem the application incomplete and disqualify the applicant. 
 
 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 17 

The Resolution must: 

1. Authorize submittal of a Cooperative application on behalf of itself as Lead 
Participant and all Non-Lead Participants for a specifically named CalRecycle 
Grant Program and cycle number. 

2. In the body of the Resolution, list the name of each Non-Lead Participant. 

3. Identify the job titles of the Signature Authorities authorized to sign all grant-
related documents necessary to secure funds and implement the approved 
project(s).  The Resolution may also include language authorizing the Signature 
Authorities to delegate authority to additional job titles. 

a. Applicants can only submit a Letter of Designation if the corresponding 
Resolution includes designee language. 

4. Identify the time period during which the authorizations are valid.  The minimum 
duration is the grant term, and the maximum duration is five years from the date 
of adoption.  If the Resolution expires during the application period or the grant 
term, CalRecycle will require a new valid resolution. 

5. Be certified by the governing body. 
 
Note: The Signature Authority must sign a Letter of Designation prior to the designee’s 
exercise of their authority. 
 
If not subject to a governing body applicants must submit a Letter of Commitment 
(LOC).  Publicly held businesses or private for-profit companies may submit an LOC 
even if they are subject to a governing body under the condition that the signatory is an 
individual authorized to contractually bind the applicant for the conditions of the grant 
award.  The LOC is due by the secondary due date or CalRecycle will deem the 
application as incomplete and will disqualify the applicant. 
 
The LOC must: 

1. Be on the Lead Participant’s letterhead. 

2. Authorize the Lead Participant to submit a Cooperative application as Lead 
Participant with the names of all Non-Lead Participants listed as Non-Lead 
Participants. 

3. Specify the Grant Program Name and Cycle Number. 

4. Identify the job titles of the Signature Authorities authorized to sign all grant-
related documents necessary to secure funds and implement the approved 
project(s).  The Letter may also include language authorizing the Signature 
Authorities to delegate authority to additional job titles. 

a. Applicants can only submit a Letter of Designation if the corresponding 
Letter of Commitment includes designee language. 

5. Be valid for the duration of the specified Grant Cycle. 

6. Be signed and dated by the Signature Authority authorized to contractually bind 
the applicant. 

 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 18 

Cooperative Non-Lead Participant 
If subject to a governing body and board approval is required to legally bind the 
applicant, applicants must submit a Resolution. 
 
The Resolution must: 

1. Authorize the Lead Participant to submit a Cooperative application as Lead 
Participant on behalf of the Non-Lead Participant. 

2. Specify the Grant Program Name and Cycle Number. 

3. Authorize the Lead Participant to execute all documents necessary to secure 
funds and implement the approved project(s). 

4. Identify the Non-Lead Participant’s Signature Authority by listing the job title of 
the person(s) authorized to sign all grant-related documents necessary to secure 
funds and implement the approved project(s). 

a. The Resolution may also authorize the Signature Authority to delegate this 
authority. 

5. Be valid for the duration of the specified Grant Cycle. 
6. Be certified by the governing body. 

If not subject to a governing body, applicants must submit a Letter of Commitment 
(LOC).  Publicly held businesses or private for-profit companies may submit an LOC 
even if they are subject to a governing body under the condition that the signatory is an 
individual authorized to contractually bind the applicant for the conditions of the grant 
award.  The LOC is due by the secondary due date or CalRecycle will deem the 
application as incomplete and disqualify the applicant. 
 
The LOC must: 

1. Be on Non-Lead Participant’s letterhead. 

2. Authorize the Lead Participant to submit a Cooperative Application as Lead 
Participant with itself as a Non-Lead Participant. 

3. Specify Grant Program Name and Cycle Number. 

4. Identify the job titles of the Non-Lead Participant’s Signature Authorities 
authorized to sign all grant-related documents necessary to secure funds and 
implement the approved project(s).  The Letter may also include language 
authorizing the Signature Authorities to delegate authority to additional job titles. 

a. Applicants can only submit a Letter of Designation if the corresponding Letter 
of Commitment includes designee language. 

5. Be valid for the duration of the specified Grant Cycle. 

6. Be signed and dated by the Signature Authority authorized to contractually bind 
the applicant. 

 
Regional Application Authorization Documents 
Regional Lead Participant 
Applicant must submit a Resolution no later than the secondary due date or CalRecycle 
will deem the application incomplete and disqualify the applicant. 
 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 19 

The Resolution must: 

1. Authorize submittal of a Regional application on behalf of itself as Lead 
Participant and all Non-Lead Participants for all CalRecycle Grant Programs or 
for a specifically named CalRecycle Grant Program. 

2. Include a provision allowing a Signature Authority to determine and submit a list 
of Non-Lead Participants in accordance with CalRecycle requirements. 

3. Identify the job titles of the Signature Authorities authorized to sign all grant-
related documents necessary to secure funds and implement the approved 
project(s).  The Resolution may also include language authorizing the Signature 
Authorities to delegate authority to additional job titles. 

a. Applicants can only submit a Letter of Designation if the corresponding 
Resolution includes designee language. 

4. Identify the time period during which the authorizations are valid.  The minimum 
duration is the grant term, and the maximum duration is five years from the date 
of adoption.  If the Resolution expires during the application period or the grant 
term, CalRecycle will require a new valid resolution. 

5. Be certified by the governing body. 
 
Regional Non-Lead Participant 
Applicant must submit a Letter of Authorization or Resolution no later than the 
secondary due date or CalRecycle will remove the Non-Lead Participant(s) from the 
application. 
 
The Letter of Authorization must: 

1. Be on the Non-Lead Participant’s letterhead. 

2. Authorize the Lead Participant to submit a Regional Application and act as Lead 
Participant on behalf of the Non-Lead Participant. 

3. Authorize the Lead Participant to execute all documents necessary to implement 
the grant. 

4. Specify the Grant Program Name and Cycle Number. 

5. Be valid for the duration of the specified Grant Cycle. 

6. Be signed and dated by an individual authorized to contractually bind the Non-
Lead Participant. 

 
The Resolution must: 

1. Authorize the Lead Participant to submit a Regional application as Lead 
Participant on behalf of the Non-Lead Participant. 

2. Specify the Grant Program Name and Cycle Number. 

3. Authorize the Lead Participant to execute all documents necessary to secure 
funds and implement the approved project(s). 

4. Be valid for the duration of the specified Grant Cycle. 

5. Be certified by the governing body. 



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 20 

 
Joint Powers Authority Agreement 
Joint Powers Authorities (JPA) must upload a copy of their JPA Agreements giving them 
authority to conduct the project, listing all member entities, and containing the signature 
of all members.  CalRecycle does not require Letters of Authorization for JPA 
applicants.  A JPA applicant must still upload a Resolution as a part of their application 
and list all JPA members as Non-Lead Participants on the Applicant/Participant tab. 
 
Letter of Designation 
CalRecycle requires a Letter of Designation (LOD) only when the Signature Authority 
identified in the approved Resolution chooses to delegate their signature authority to 
another person.  The applicant must upload the LOD prior to the designee’s exercise of 
their authority.  If the designee signs an application document in place of the Signature 
Authority, the applicant must upload the LOD with their application. 
 
The LOD must: 

1. Be on Applicant’s letterhead. 

2. Reference the Authorizing Resolution by number. 

3. Include the job title of the designee and the scope of the designee’s authority. 

4. Include the time period during which the designee may exercise the authority. 

5. Be signed and dated by the Signature Authority. 
 
The designee’s authority may not extend beyond the effective date of the approved 
Resolution or Letter of Commitment.  For example, if the Resolution is effective until 
December 31, 2025, then the Letter of Designation may not be effective beyond 
December 31, 2025. 
 

Electronic and Original Signatures 

CalRecycle requires certified e-Signature or original wet signature on documents or 
forms that certify legally binding information. 
 
Note: E-signatures must include the first and last name of the Signature Authority, be in 
the Adobe Digital ID format (or through another certified digital signature program) and 
cannot be completed using the “Fill and Sign” function within Adobe.  Any document 
using the “Fill and Sign” function is considered incomplete and may be sent back to the 
applicant. 
 
Once the document(s) have been signed by the Signature Authority, upload the digitally 
signed document, or scan the wet signature and save it to GMS.  Retain the original 
document for potential CalRecycle audits.  See Audit Considerations Section of the 
Procedures and Requirements document for more information. 
 
If you have questions, email grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov. 
 

mailto:grantassistance@calrecycle.ca.gov


 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 21 

Grant Review and Award Process 

Grant Application Review Process 
After the close of the application period, CalRecycle staff will review the applications for 
completeness and eligibility.  Only complete applications will be considered for award.  
Applicants must receive a minimum score of 39 points to be considered for funding.  
Applicants will be evaluated and scored by a CalRecycle review panel based on the 
approved Scoring Criteria for the Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, FYs 
2024–25 and 2025–26.  You can find the document on the Summary tab, in the 
Resources Document section of GMS. 
 
Priority funding will be given to Tribal Entities and applicants with litter abatement 
projects along the United States-Mexico border.  Applicants who meet the criteria will be 
given priority and will be considered for funding first. 
 
Note: Out of State beverage containers collected as part of the litter abatement and 
cleanup projects cannot be funded under this grant program. 
 
The evaluation committee may suggest modifications to the Budget and/or Work Plan. 
 

Grant Award Process 
For qualifying applications, CalRecycle staff will develop funding recommendations for 
the consideration and approval of CalRecycle’s Director, or their designee; CalRecycle 
tentatively schedules this for March 2025.  CalRecycle reserves the right to partially 
fund or fund individual phases of selected proposals, and CalRecycle may fund an 
amount less than requested. 
 
CalRecycle reserves the right to not award any grant funds under one or more cycles. 
 

Grant Award Conditions 
When awarded, this grant will be subject to two conditions: 

1. The recommended grantee must pay all outstanding debts due to CalRecycle, or 
bring current outstanding payments owed to CalRecycle, within 60 days of the 
award email date. 

2. The recommended grantee’s Signature Authority (or their delegated signature 
authority) must sign and return the Grant Agreement to CalRecycle.  CalRecycle 
must receive the signed Grant Agreement within 60 days of the date of the award 
email. 

 
Failure to comply with either condition will void the grant award. 
  



 

Applications Guidelines and Instructions 
Beverage Container Recycling Grant Program, RBC36 (FY 2024–25) and RBC37 (FY 
2025–26) 22 

Grant Program Administration 

Grant Agreement 
The Grant Agreement binds the Grantee to CalRecycle’s requirements as outlined in 
the Grant Agreement documents.  CalRecycle will send the Grant Agreement Cover 
Sheet electronically to allow for a certified e-signature using Adobe Sign. 
 
These documents shall guide the grantee’s administration of the grant project. 
 
Following CalRecycle’s conditional approval of the grant awards, we will email grantees 
the information below. 
 

• Award email 
• Grant Agreement Cover Sheet (CalRecycle 110) 

o To be signed by the grantee (this is the Lead Participant in 
cooperative/regional applications). 

•  (If applicable) Participant Grant Agreement Cover Sheet (CalRecycle 110-
A) 

o To be signed by Non-Lead Participants (if application was a cooperative 
application). 

• Exhibit A: Terms and Conditions 
o Contain CalRecycle’s standard legal requirements for grants. 

• Exhibit B: Procedures and Requirements 
o Contain specific requirements for administering this grant, including but 

not limited to project, reporting, and audit requirements. 
• Exhibit C: Grantee’s approved application with revisions, if any, and any 

amendments 
• e-Signature Instructions for Awardees 

o Contains instruction on how to sign the Grant Agreement Cover Sheet 
and the Participant Grant Agreement Cover Sheet (if applicable) using 
Adobe Sign. 

 

Reporting Process 
CalRecycle requires grantees to report on the progress of their grant on a quarterly 
basis.  The Procedures and Requirements document contains detailed reporting 
information and deadlines. 
 

Payment Request Process 
CalRecycle will retain 10 percent of each approved Payment Request amount until the 
Grant Manager approves the Final Report, the final Payment Request, and all required 
supporting documentation.  The Procedures and Requirements document contains 
detailed payment information. 
 
 



 

 

 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Public Works Fleet
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Authorization for Purchase of Two
Sheriff Search and Rescue Trucks

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Replacement of two trucks under the Sheriff's Department Search and Rescue Division.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the purchase of two new 2024 Ford F450 vehicles along with all up fitting required on behalf of the Sheriff's
department for the Search and Rescue division in an amount not to exceed $220,000. Authorize the Public Works Director
to sign all required contracts and documents for the above purchase.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Not to exceed $220,000 out of the Motor Pool Fund. Motor Pool has sufficient funds available to cover the purchase.

CONTACT NAME: Karyn Spears

PHONE/EMAIL: 760 616 4651 / kspears@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

kspears@mono.ca.gov 

mhanson@monosheriff.org

mhernandez@monosheriff.org

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report SAR

 SAR Truck Quote

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34245&ItemID=18988

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34299&ItemID=18988


 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/24/2024 9:36 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 1:50 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 9:15 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



Airports • Campgrounds • Cemeteries• Community Centers• Engineering • Facilities • Fleet Maintenance 
Parks • Roads & Bridges • Solid Waste • Surveying and Records • Sustainable Outdoors and Recreation 

MONO COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
POST OFFICE Box 457 • 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET• BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 

760.932.5440 • monopw@mono.ca.govwww.monocounty.ca.gov 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

October 1, 2024 

Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 

Karyn Spears, Assistant Director of Public Works 

Authorization for 2 Sheriff SAR Truck Purchases 

Background: 
The Sheriff's Department SAR team has two trucks that have exceeded their useful 
operating age.  

Discussion:

The Sheriff is requesting to replace these vehicles with 2 new 2024 Ford F450 SAR trucks. 

The purchases would include a "turnkey" installation of light bars, protective cages, radios, 
strobe lights, and other necessary equipment. This ensures a quality installation and 
reduces the potential for future installation related problems. 

The first truck proposed for replacement is included as Exhibit A, the second truck quote is still 

pending. 

Please contact me at 760.616.4651 or by email at kspears@mono.ca.gov if you have any 

questions regarding this project. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Karyn Spears - Assistant Public Works Director 



Airports • Campgrounds • Cemeteries • Community Centers• Engineering • Facilities • Fleet Maintenance 
Parks • Roads & Bridges • Solid Waste • Surveying and Records • Sustainable Outdoors and Recreation 

 

!  1 

Mono County Board of Supervisors 
Authorization for 2 Sheriff SAR Truck Purchases 

October 12, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 

 
525 N16TH STREET, SACRAMENTO, CA 95811 

PHONE: 916-299-3529 

ASW-041824-1045 
 
 

QUOTE 
 

  
 

Qty Description Unit Price TOTAL 
1 2024 FORD F450 REG CAB CHASSIS 4X2 DIESEL $57,549.00 $57,549.00 

 STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACT: 1-22-23-20F   
 CLIN: 50   

 
OPTIONS 

EXTERIOR COLOR: WHITE 
 

PRICING BELOW SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

  

 W4G - CREW CAB 203" WB I 84" CA $3.475.00 $3,475.00 
 W4H - CHANGE TO 4X4 $4.876.00 $4,876.00 
 X4N - LIMITED SLIP REAR AXLE $395.00 $395.00 
 86M - DUAL BATTERY - STD SO.OD $0.00 
 CKE· EXTRA KEY WI KEY FOB $399.00 $399.00 
 HARBOR QUOTE# SQ85743 - 12' SERIVCE BODY S23,190.00 $23,190.00 
 DROPSHIP TO HARBOR: 88WR49 S0.00 $0.00 

 
DOC FEE $85.00 $85.00 

 
 

SALES TAX CALCULATED AT: 
BASED ON REGISTRATION ADDRESS 

7.250% 
 

 
SubTotal $89,969.00 

DELIVERY $0.00 
SALE$ TAX $6,522 75 

CA Tire Tax $12.75 
TOTAL $96_.5_04_._5□ 

Office Use Only 
 
 

 
$500 DISCOUNT WITH PAYMENT IN 20 DAYS 

 
 

SIGNATURE DATE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Customer 
Name MARK HANSON • MONO COUNTY SHERIFF 
Address 
City 
Phone 

49 BRYANT ST 
BRIDGEPORT 

760-932-7549 
State CA Zip 93517 

(DATE 4/18/2024 
SALES REP AARON 
PHONE 929-  
FOB SACRAMENTO 

 
Pavement 
Details 

 
0 Credit Card 

Name 
 

 



Name DATE 4/18/2024

Address SALES REP AARON
City BRIDGEPORT State CA Zip 93517 PHONE 916-929-0577
Phone FOB SACRAMENTO

Qty Unit Price TOTAL
1 $57,549.00 $57,549.00

CLIN:

OPTIONS

1 $3,475.00 $3,475.00
1 $4,876.00 $4,876.00
1 $395.00 $395.00
1 $0.00 $0.00
1 $399.00 $399.00
1 $23,190.00 $23,190.00
1 $0.00 $0.00

1 DOC FEE $85.00 $85.00

SubTotal  $89,969.00
  DELIVERY $0.00

  Cash SALES TAX $6,522.75

  Check CA Tire Tax $12.75
  Credit Card TOTAL  $96,504.50

Name
CC #

Expires

MARK HANSON - MONO COUNTY SHERIFF

49 BRYANT ST

760-932-7549

Description

50

W4H - CHANGE TO 4X4

STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACT: 1-22-23-20F

PRICING BELOW SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

BASED ON REGISTRATION ADDRESS

X4N - LIMITED SLIP REAR AXLE

WHITE

SALES TAX CALCULATED AT:

HARBOR QUOTE # SQ85743 - 12' SERIVCE BODY

86M - DUAL BATTERY - STD

7.250%

EXTERIOR COLOR:

CKE - EXTRA KEY W/ KEY FOB

SIGNATURE________________________________DATE_________

DROPSHIP TO HARBOR: 88WR49

ASW-041824-1045

2024 FORD F450 REG CAB CHASSIS 4X2 DIESEL

$500 DISCOUNT WITH PAYMENT IN 20 DAYS 

Office Use Only

W4G - CREW CAB 203" WB / 84" CA

525 N16TH STREET, SACRAMENTO, CA 95811   
PHONE: 916-299-3529

QUOTE

Payment Details

Customer



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Probation
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Contract with North American Mental
Health Services for Tele-Psychiatry
Services

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed contract with North American Mental Health Services pertaining to Tele-psychiatry services.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve, and authorize County Administrative Officer to sign, contract with North American Mental Health Services for Tele-
psychiatry services for the period August 1, 2024, through July 31, 2025, and a not-to-exceed amount of $125,000.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The agreement states that total payments to the contractor by the County will not exceed $125,000 in any 12-month period.
This contract will be paid through the Community Corrections Partnership Fund and was recommended by the CCP
Executive Committee. This amount is included in the FY 2024-25 budget.

CONTACT NAME: Jeff Mills

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325573 / jlmills@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Contract

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:43 PM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34272&ItemID=18990

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34258&ItemID=18990


 9/24/2024 1:29 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:40 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
 

MAILING: P.O. BOX 596, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 
                                                                     BRIDGEPORT OFFICE (760) 932-5570•FAX (760) 

932-5571 
                                                                        MAMMOTH OFFICE (760) 924-1730•FAX (760) 

924-1731 
   

probation@mono.ca.gov 
Mark Magit 
Presiding Judge 
Superior Court 
 

  

 
Dr. Karin Humiston  
Chief Probation Officer 
  

                                                     
                                                     

 

 
 
 
Date:  October 1, 2024 
 
To:  Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Karin Humiston, Chief of Probation 
 
Subject:  Contract with North American Mental Health Services 
 
 
Recommended Action: 
 
Approve contract with North American Mental Health Services to provide services one 
additional year and authorize County Administrative Officer to execute said contract on 
behalf of the County. 
 
 
Discussion: 
 
Probation Department is seeking a contract with North American Mental Health 
Services for Tele-Psychiatry services. This agreement will provide services for fiscal 
year 2024-2025. The contract addresses the need for psychological evaluations, 
psychiatric evaluations, and mental health assessments. The contract will cover those 
requests made by probation officers, that were approved and ordered by the court.  
 
This would assist the Reentry team with assessing the needs of participants and falls 
within the scope of identified objectives in the Community Corrections Partnership 
Realignment Plan. 
 



 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The agreement states that total payments to the contractor by the County will not 
exceed $125,000.00 in any 12-month period. This contract will be paid through the 
Community Corrections Partnership Fund and was recommended by the CCP 
Executive Committee. This amount is in the FY 2024-25 budget. 
 
No fiscal impact to the General Fund. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 
 































 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Sheriff
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Budget Adjustment for Sheriff's Office
to Implement Alcoholic Beverage
Control Grant

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

A budget adjustment is needed to increase revenues and expenditures in the Sheriff's office for the FY 2024-25 budget for
the implementation of the Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) Grant.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve budget adjustment for FY 2025-25 as requested or amended. (4/5 vote required)

FISCAL IMPACT:
Increase revenues and appropriations by $33,603 for alcoholic beverage control. There is no match required for the grant.  

CONTACT NAME: Ingrid Braun

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-7549 / ibraun@monosheriff.org

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 ABC Grant Signed

 Mono SD STD 213

 R24-079

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:36 PM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34234&ItemID=18991

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34256&ItemID=18991

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34270&ItemID=18991

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34260&ItemID=18991


 9/24/2024 1:51 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:36 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



Clint Dohmen 
Undersheriff  

 MONO COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

 

P.O. BOX 616 • 49 BRYANT STREET • BRIDGEPORT, CA 93517 • (760) 932-7549 • WWW.MONOSHERIFF.ORG 

Ingrid Braun 
Sheriff -Coroner  

DATE: October 1, 2024 
 
TO: The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 

FROM: Ingrid Braun, Sheriff-Coroner 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendment - Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Alcoholic Beverage Control Grant 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Appropriation Transfer Request for an increase in allocations in the State ABC Grant budget 
unit in the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On August 13, 2024, the Board of Supervisors approved Resolution 24-079, authorizing the Mono 
County Sheriff Office to apply for and administer the Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) Alcohol Policing 
Partnership (APP) Grant for Fiscal Year 2024-25. The ABC Grant for $33,603.00 was officially awarded 
on August 29, 2024. The grant award was issued after the budget development was finalized. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Increase allocations to $33,603.00. There is no match required for the grant. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Ingrid Braun 
Sheriff-Coroner 
 

 











2. The term of this Agreement is:

 







 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Sheriff
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Amended Madera County Sheriff -
Coroner - Autopsy Services

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed amendment to the contract with Madera County Sheriff-Coroner pertaining to Agreement for Autopsy Services.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve and authorize the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to sign the amended contract with Madera County Sheriff-
Coroner.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no additional fiscal impact to the Sheriff's budget.

CONTACT NAME: Sarah Roberts

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609201253 / snrdds76@aim.com

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Madera Amendment 2024

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/25/2024 9:56 AM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 1:37 PM Finance Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34302&ItemID=18992

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34238&ItemID=18992


 9/25/2024 10:44 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



Clint Dohmen 
Undersheriff  

 MONO COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

 

P.O. BOX 616 • 49 BRYANT STREET • BRIDGEPORT, CA 93517 • (760) 932-7549 • WWW.MONOSHERIFF.ORG 

Ingrid Braun 
Sheriff -Coroner  

DATE: October 1, 2024 
 
TO: The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 

FROM: Ingrid Braun, Sheriff-Coroner 
 
SUBJECT: Amended Madera County Sheriff - Coroner - Autopsy Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Request the Board of Supervisors authorize and sign the amended contract with the Madera County 
Sheriff-Coroner.  Authorize Chair of the Board of Supervisors to sign the amended contract with the 
Madera County Sheriff-Coroner.  
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The Sheriff-Coroner is required by law to conduct investigations into all unattended deaths occurring 
within Mono County to determine the manner and cause of said deaths.  On occasion, death 
investigations are conducted that are complicated in nature and require a higher level of forensic 
scrutiny than can be provided locally. The Madera County Sheriff-Coroner has provided such services 
for the Mono County Sheriff’s Office.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The amended contract is in term only. Therefore, there is no financial impact.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Ingrid Braun 
Sheriff-Coroner 
 



MADERA COUNTY CONTRACT NO. _____ _ 
(Madera County Sheriff-Coroner: Amendment to Agreement for Autopsy Services) 

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into this day of 

______ , 2024, by and between the COUNTY OF MADERA, a political 

subdivision of the State of California ("MADERA COUNTY"), and the COUNTY OF 

MONO, a political subdivision of the State of California ("MONO COUNTY"). MADERA 

COUNTY and MONO COUNTY are at times each referred to herein as "Party" or 

collectively as "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. The Parties entered into Madera County Contract No. 12517-23 (the

"Agreement") on June 20, 2023, and now desire to amend it as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

AMENDMENT 

1. Paragraph 1 of the Agreement is amended to read as follows:

"1. TERM. To begin October 1, 2022, and end upon the date set forth 

in the notice of termination, as provided in paragraph 2." 

2. Except as otherwise amended herein, the Agreement shall continue in full

force and effect. 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 



* * * * * * * * * * * 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the foregoing Amendment is executed on the date and 

year first above-written. 

ATTEST: 

Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Approved as to Legal Form: 
COUNTY COUNSEL 

Dale E. 

By: Bacigalupi

Digitally signed by: Dale E. Bacigalupi 

ON: CN = Dale E. Bacigalupi email= 

dbacigalupi@lozanosmith.com C = 

USO.:: Lozano Smith 

Date: 2024.06.12 18:38:33 -07'00' 

ACCOUNT NUMBER(S) 

ND-1246-34-AGT-4865-7614-8423.PDF 

COUNTY OF MADERA 

Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

COUNTY OF MONO 

By:------------
(Signature) 

(Print Name) 

Title: 
--------------

Approved as to Legal Form: 
MONO CO TY COUNSEL 

RISK MANAGER: 

By: 
--------------

Page 2 

Approval on file from 
Jay Sloane. 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Public Works Road
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Authorization for Purchase of Road
Division 10-Wheeler

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Replacement of one 10-Wheeler which was totaled in accident.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the purchase of a 2026 Freightliner sander/plow/dump truck not-to-exceed cost of $410,000. Authorize the Public
Works Director to sign all required documents for the above purchase.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This purchase will be covered by insurance for the replacement for the 10-wheeler that was totaled on November 1, 2023. 
Public Works Fleet will provide the upfront payment which will then be reimbursed.

CONTACT NAME: Steve Reeves

PHONE/EMAIL: 760 932 5449 / sreeves@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

sreeves@mono.ca.gov

kspears@mono.ca.gov

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report 10 Wheeler

 Sales Order

 Email Approval

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34246&ItemID=18986

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34225&ItemID=18986

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34224&ItemID=18986


 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:39 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 1:14 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 2:09 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

MONO COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
POST OFFICE BOX 457 • 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET • BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517 

760.932.5440 • Fax 760.932.5441 • monopw@mono.ca.gov • www.monocounty.ca.gov 

 
 

  

 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

Date:        October 1, 2024 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 

From: Steve Reeves Road Superintendent 

Subject:    Insurance 10-Wheeler Replacement 
 
 

Background: 

On November 1, 2023, one of Mono County’s 10-whelers was involved in an accident which 
resulted in the 10-wheeler being totaled.  

 

Discussion: 

The insurance company has approved a full replacement in the amount of $410,000. The 
truck delivery will take 12 months after the order has been placed. 

The replacement will include a new Henderson slide in sander and a new Henderson 
snowplow attachment. 

If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact Steve Reeves at 932-5449. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Steve Reeves 

 
Steve Reeves 
Mono County Road Superintendent 



















































From: Jay Sloane 
Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2024 2:18 PM 
To: Steve Reeves; Penny Jones 
Cc: Kevin Roberts 
Subject: Dump Truck Purchase Approved as attached 
Attachments: 2026 Mono County 6X6 EXPRESSWAY.docx 
 
Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Flagged 
 
Hi Steve,  
I just spoke with Penny on the phone.  Please move forward with the 
purchase (as attached).  Also,  
remove any parts off the totaled truck that the cou nty wants.  Once you 
are ready to get rid of the  
totaled truck, let Penny and I know and we will pre pare for its removal 
and PW’s will receive a small  
amount of money for it as well.  
 
Jay Sloane, Mono County Risk Manager 
County Counsel’s Office 
PO Box 2415, Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546 
(760) 932-5405 
 
From: Steve Reeves <sreeves@mono.ca.gov>   
Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2024 6:50 AM  
To: Jay Sloane <jsloane@mono.ca.gov>; Penny Jones < PJones@trindel.org>  
Cc: Kevin Roberts <kroberts@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002.060981.00.V 
 
Jay, this is the revised quote from Velocity Truck Centers. This quote 
includes the correct  
snowplow. This quote also includes F.E.T. (Federal Excise Tax) Which Mono 
County should be  
exempt from. ($44,848.00) 
Pleas advise when approved so we can move forward w ith P.O. 
 
REGARDS, 
STEVE REEVES 
MONO COUNTY ROAD SUPERINTENDENT 
760 932 5449 
 
From: Steve Reeves   
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2024 3:38 PM  
To: Jay Sloane <jsloane@mono.ca.gov>; Penny Jones < PJones@trindel.org>  
Cc: Kevin Roberts <kroberts@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002.060981.00.V 
 



Jay, here is the Quote from Velocity Truck Center i n Reno. I also reached 
out to Valew Truck Bodies  
in Adelanto, which is where we recently purchased o ur water truck and 
service truck. They  
responded with “They do not do snow removal equipme nt.” I have also 
reached out several times  
to Silver State International in Reno, which is whe re we had purchased 
all our 10-wheelers in the  
past. They have yet to respond. Silver State did te ll me last year that 
they could not supply us with a  
CARB compliant vehicle. 
 
REGARDS, 
STEVE REEVES 
MONO COUNTY ROAD SUPERINTENDENT 
760 932 5449 
 
From: Jay Sloane <jsloane@mono.ca.gov>   
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2024 10:23 AM  
To: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>  
Cc: Steve Reeves <sreeves@mono.ca.gov>; Kevin Rober ts 
<kroberts@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002.060981.00.V 
 
Hi Steve and Kevin,  
Did you all buy the dump truck replacement yet?  Wh at is the timeline on 
the purchase? 
 
Jay Sloane, Mono County Risk Manager 
County Counsel’s Office 
PO Box 2415, Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546 
(760) 932-5405 
 
From: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>   
Sent: Friday, August 23, 2024 10:37 AM  
To: Jay Sloane <jsloane@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: FW: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002.060981.00.V 
 
[EXTERNAL EMAIL] 
 
Hi Jay,  
 
Has the dump truck been purchased?  If so, would yo u please forward the 
final invoice.   
 
Thank you,  
 
Penny Jones  



Trindel Insurance Fund 
Claims Adjuster? Property and Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ? 530.319-0045 cell ?530.623.50 19 fax 
pjones@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 960 93 
  
 
 
 
From: Johanna Pace <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>   
Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2024 2:34 PM  
To: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>  
Cc: Andrew Fischer <afischer@trindel.org>; Robert F rey 
<rfrey@alliant.com>; Jay Sloane  
<jsloane@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002.060981.00.V 
 
Penny,  
 
On this loss we are pending the following: 
 
- Salvage amount 
- Invoice for replacement truck 
 
Please provide when able.  
 
Best regards, 
 
Johanna Pace | McLarens 
Individual CA License # 2K37815 | McLarens CA Licen se #2607078 
National General Adjuster 
johanna.pace@mclarens.com 
 
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1260 
San Francisco, CA 94104 USA  
+1 415.228.6423 | office 
+1 415.350.4048 | mobile 
www.mclarens.com 
 
  
CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVILEGE NOTICE: The informati on contained in this 
message and any  
attachments may be privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure 
under applicable  
law. Any views expressed in this message and any at tachments are those of 
the individual  
sender, except where the message states otherwise, and in no way binds 
Insurers and/or their  
representatives.  If you are not the intended recip ient, you are hereby 
notified that any use,  
dissemination, distribution or reproduction of any information contained 
herein or attached is  



strictly prohibited. If you have received this emai l in error, please 
immediately notify the sender  
and destroy the original transmission and its attac hments, without 
reading them. 
 
 
 
From: Johanna Pace   
Sent: Tuesday, July 30, 2024 11:18 PM  
To: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>; Jay Sloane <j sloane@mono.ca.gov>  
Cc: Andrew Fischer <afischer@trindel.org>; Robert F rey 
<rfrey@alliant.com>; Chris Stafford  
<chris.stafford@mclarens.com>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002.060981.00.V 
 
Hi Penny and Jay, 
 
Alright to proceed with the purchase of the replace ment $389,729 and 
provide us the invoice.  
 
Best regards, 
 
Johanna Pace | McLarens 
Individual CA License # 2K37815 | McLarens CA Licen se #2607078 
National General Adjuster 
johanna.pace@mclarens.com 
 
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1260 
San Francisco, CA 94104 USA  
+1 415.228.6423 | office 
+1 415.350.4048 | mobile 
www.mclarens.com 
 
  
CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVILEGE NOTICE: The informati on contained in this 
message and any  
attachments may be privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure 
under applicable  
law. Any views expressed in this message and any at tachments are those of 
the individual  
sender, except where the message states otherwise, and in no way binds 
Insurers and/or their  
representatives.  If you are not the intended recip ient, you are hereby 
notified that any use,  
dissemination, distribution or reproduction of any information contained 
herein or attached is  
strictly prohibited. If you have received this emai l in error, please 
immediately notify the sender  
and destroy the original transmission and its attac hments, without 
reading them. 
 



 
 
From: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>   
Sent: Monday, July 1, 2024 10:03 AM  
To: Johanna Pace <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>; Rober t Frey 
<rfrey@alliant.com>; Chris Stafford  
<Chris.Stafford@mclarens.com>  
Cc: Andrew Fischer <afischer@trindel.org>  
Subject: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM _ C ounty of Mono _ Tower 
7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Warning: This email originated from an external sen der. 
  
Hi Johanna,  
 
Would you please provide an update on the pending r eview on this file?  
 
Best regards,  
 
Penny Jones  
Trindel Insurance Fund 
Claims Adjuster? Property and Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ? 530.319-0045 cell ?530.623.50 19 fax 
pjones@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 960 93 
  
 
 
From: Penny Jones   
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 1:17 PM  
To: 'Johanna Pace' <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>; Sea n Houghtby 
<SHoughtby@trindel.org>; Chris  
Stafford <Chris.Stafford@mclarens.com>; Robert Frey  <rfrey@alliant.com>  
Cc: Jay Sloane <jsloane@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Good afternoon,  
 
Would you please provide an update on the pending s ettlement authority?  
 
Best regards,  
 
Penny Jones  
Trindel Insurance Fund 
Claims Adjuster? Property and Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ? 530.319-0045 cell ?530.623.50 19 fax 
pjones@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 960 93 
  
 
 



 
From: Johanna Pace <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>   
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 10:10 AM  
To: Sean Houghtby <SHoughtby@trindel.org>; Chris St afford 
<Chris.Stafford@mclarens.com>; Robert  
Frey <rfrey@alliant.com>  
Cc: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>; Jay Sloane <j sloane@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Hi Sean,  
 
This is a reporting file and we have reported loss to insurers. 
 
Will follow up with request for settlement authorit y. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Johanna Pace | McLarens 
Individual CA License # 2K37815 | McLarens CA Licen se #2607078 
Regional General Adjuster 
johanna.pace@mclarens.com 
 
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1260 
San Francisco, CA 94104 USA  
+1 415.228.6423 | office 
+1 415.350.4048 | mobile 
www.mclarens.com 
 
  
CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVILEGE NOTICE: The informati on contained in this 
message and any  
attachments may be privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure 
under applicable law. Any  
views expressed in this message and any attachments  are those of the 
individual sender, except where  
the message states otherwise, and in no way binds I nsurers and/or their 
representatives.  If you are not  
the intended recipient, you are hereby notified tha t any use, 
dissemination, distribution or reproduction  
of any information contained herein or attached is strictly prohibited. 
If you have received this email in  
error, please immediately notify the sender and des troy the original 
transmission and its attachments,  
without reading them. 
 
 
 
From: Sean Houghtby <SHoughtby@trindel.org>   
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 9:33 AM  
To: Chris Stafford <Chris.Stafford@mclarens.com>; R obert Frey 
<rfrey@alliant.com>  



Cc: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>; Johanna Pace 
<Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>; Jay Sloane  
<jsloane@mono.ca.gov>  
Subject: RE: Claim # MON24-0007 HSID 328081 / PRISM  _ County of Mono _ 
Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _  
Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Truck _ MON24-0007 _ McLare ns File 
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Chris & Bob, 
 
Please see the email string below and the attachmen ts.  To our knowledge 
we submitted all required  
documents back in March and have not heard back on approval of the quote.  
Can you please provide  
status?  Any assistance in moving this along would be greatly 
appreciated.   
 
Thanks,  
 
Sean Houghtby | Trindel Insurance Fund 
Director of Property & Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ?530.739.9942 cell ?530.623.501 9 fax 
shoughtby@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 96093 
 
 
From: Penny Jones   
Sent: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 3:22 PM  
To: 'Johanna Pace' <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>  
Cc: Sean Houghtby <SHoughtby@trindel.org>  
Subject: RE: Offer from Heavysalvage on Claim # MON 24-0007 HSID 328081 / 
PRISM _ County of Mono  
_ Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _ Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Tr uck _ MON24-0007 _ 
McLarens File  
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Hi Johanna,  
 
I am following up to see if can provide an update o r if there is anything 
you need from us on our end?   
 
Best regards,  
 
 
Penny Jones  
Trindel Insurance Fund 
Claims Adjuster? Property and Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ? 530.319-0045 cell ?530.623.50 19 fax 
pjones@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 960 93 
  
 
 
 
From: Penny Jones   
Sent: Tuesday, April 23, 2024 2:01 PM  



To: 'Johanna Pace' <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>  
Subject: RE: Offer from Heavysalvage on Claim # MON 24-0007 HSID 328081 / 
PRISM _ County of Mono  
_ Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _ Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Tr uck _ MON24-0007 _ 
McLarens File  
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Hi Johanna, 
 
I am checking in with you to see if you have any qu estions or need 
additional information from me.  
 
Best regards,  
 
 
Penny Jones  
Trindel Insurance Fund 
Claims Adjuster? Property and Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ? 530.319-0045 cell ?530.623.50 19 fax 
pjones@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 960 93 
  
 
 
 
From: Penny Jones   
Sent: Monday, April 1, 2024 3:27 PM  
To: 'Johanna Pace' <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>  
Subject: RE: Offer from Heavysalvage on Claim # MON 24-0007 HSID 328081 / 
PRISM _ County of Mono  
_ Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _ Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Tr uck _ MON24-0007 _ 
McLarens File  
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Hi Johanna,  
 
I am following up to see if you have any questions or require additional 
information?   The County is  
anxious for approval to proceed.   
 
Thank you,  
 
 
Penny Jones  
Trindel Insurance Fund 
Claims Adjuster? Property and Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ? 530.319-0045 cell ?530.623.50 19 fax 
pjones@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 960 93 
  
 
 
 
 
From: Penny Jones   
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 8:40 AM  



To: 'Johanna Pace' <Johanna.Pace@mclarens.com>; 'rf rey@alliant.com' 
<rfrey@alliant.com>; 'Akbar  
Sharif' <akbar.sharif@alliant.com>; 'Sandra Doig' 
<sandra.doig@mclarens.com>  
Cc: Sean Houghtby <SHoughtby@trindel.org>  
Subject: RE: Offer from Heavysalvage on Claim # MON 24-0007 HSID 328081 / 
PRISM _ County of Mono  
_ Tower 7 _ 11_01_2023 _ Damaged 2010 Int'l Dump Tr uck _ MON24-0007 _ 
McLarens File  
002_060981_00_V.msg 
 
Good morning Johanna,  
 
I have received a bid on the 2010 International Dum p Truck (see below).  
It was hard to find a salvage  
bid on this equipment.  I am hopeful we can move fo rward and let the 
County know they can proceed  
with purchase.  
 
Please let me know if you need anything further.   
 
Have a great day,  
 
Penny Jones  
Trindel Insurance Fund 
Claims Adjuster? Property and Liability Claims 
530.623.2322 office ? 530.319-0045 cell ?530.623.50 19 fax 
pjones@trindel.org ?PO Box 2069 Weaverville, CA 960 93 
  
 
From: Scott Fisher <scott@sierraappraisal.com>   
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 5:34 AM  
To: Penny Jones <PJones@trindel.org>  
Subject: Fwd: Offer from Heavysalvage on Claim # MO N24-0007 HSID 328081 
 
Penny  
This is the salvage bid from Heavy Salvage on Mono County.  
   
They have award or reject in the e-mail. You will h ave to decide how to 
handle.  
   
Call with any questions  
   
Scott Fisher  
775-345-3750  
---------- Original Message ----------  
From: Heavy Salvage <noreply@heavysalvage.com>  
To: admin@sierraappraisal.com, scott@sierraappraisa l.com  
Date: 03/11/2024 10:17 PM EDT  
Subject: Offer from Heavysalvage on Claim # MON24-0 007 HSID 328081  
   
   
  



Thank you for using HeavySalvage.com for your salva ge disposal needs. 
This  
salvage has closed and our offer information is lis ted below. 
Note: Our offers are good for 25 days. If our offer s are accepted, we 
will  
require a lien free negotiable title within 90 days . After 90 days, offer  
adjustments may be made. These offers are based on the description and  
photos that you provided. If you need to remove any  of the items or  
equipment shown or listed, please let us know and w e can discuss any  
adjustments needed. 
Our High Bid: $3,000.00 
No Special Conditions  
Other bids: 
HSI 
D 
Bidd 
er 
Bid  
Am 
oun 
t 
Bid  
Tim 
e 
Click Here to Award or Reject our Offer 
This will take you to a page where you can award or  reject the bid above. 
Awarding salvage means the claim is settled and you  are ready to sell. 
You can also reply below to this email (info@heavys alvage.com) with any  
questions or comments. 
I.A. Claim #: 23110555 
HSID: 328081  
Ins. Co. Claim #: MON24-0007  
I.A. Claim #: 23110555  
Policy Holder:   
Year / Make / Salvage Description: 2010 Internation al Workstar 7500 SFA  
VIN #: 1HTWWAZT2AJ206138 
REK, Inc/ HeavySalvage  
(DO NOT SEND TITLES BY US POST OFFICE)  
109 Innovation Court  
Easley, SC 29640  
Office Phone: 864-878-7444 
  
PRIVACY STATEMENT: We are required to capture and p rocess personal 
information  
supplied to us in the fulfilment of our services. O ur obligations vary 
depending on the  
jurisdiction involved. For further details as to ho w this information is 
used, kept secure and  
your rights, please see the relevant Privacy Statem ent on our website – 
 https://www.mclarens.com/privacy-policy/ 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Health and Human Services
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Ordinance Amending Chapter 7.92 of
the Mono County Code to Prohibit
Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed ordinance amending Chapter 7.92 of the Mono County Code to prohibit smoking in Multi-Unit Housing.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt proposed ordinance.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Michelle Raust (Deputy Director)

PHONE/EMAIL: (760) 924-1758 / mraust@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 
Michelle Raust, Deputy Director

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Ordinance

 Exhibit to Ordinance

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:42 PM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34252&ItemID=19000

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34254&ItemID=19000

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34253&ItemID=19000


 9/24/2024 12:40 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 7:50 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

 
 
 
Health and Human Services Department 
Public Health Division, PO Box 3329, Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 | PO Box 476, Bridgeport, CA 93517 
Social Services Division, PO Box 2969, Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 

 
 

 

MEMO 

TO: Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 

FROM: Michelle Raust, Health and Human Services Deputy Director 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance Amending Chapter 7.92 of the Mono County Code to Prohibit 
Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing- Second Reading 
 

DATE: 
 

October 1, 2024 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DISCUSSION: The health risks of tobacco use and exposure to secondhand smoke are well 
documented. Approximately 40,000 Californians die each year from smoking-related disease, making 
tobacco use the number one cause of preventable death. The U.S. Surgeon General has concluded that 
there is no safe level of exposure to secondhand smoke and the California Air Resources Board has 
classified secondhand smoke as a toxic air contaminant. Secondhand smoke in multi-unit housing can 
and does drift through doorways, cracks in walls, electrical lines, ventilation systems and plumbing. The 
Surgeon General has stated that eliminating smoking in indoor spaces is the only way to fully protect 
nonsmokers from secondhand smoke exposure, and that separating smokers from nonsmokers, cleaning 
the air, and ventilating buildings cannot completely prevent secondhand smoke exposure.  
 
ORDINANCE SUMMARY: The proposed ordinance seeks to reduce exposure to harmful secondhand 
smoke in multi-unit residences within the unincorporated communities of Mono County. The ordinance 
would require multi-unit residences to be smoke-free in the following areas:  

• Indoor and outdoor common areas of a multi-unit residence accessible to and usable by more 
than one residence, including but not limited to halls, lobbies, laundry rooms, outdoor eating 
areas, play areas, swimming pools and recreation areas 

• Individual residential units, including private balconies, porches, decks and patios 
• A buffer zone of 20 feet around any doorway, window, opening or vent into a multi-unit 

residence.  

For purposes of the proposed ordinance, a “multi-unit residence” means a property containing two or 
more units, including, but not limited to, apartment buildings, common interest developments, mixed-
use residential developments, senior and assisted living facilities, residential treatment facilities and 
long-term health care facilities, duplexes, triplexes, quadruplexes, townhomes, condominium 



 

2 

 

complexes, and single-family residences with an attached accessory or junior accessory dwelling unit. 
The following types of housing are not considered a multi-unit residence: A single-family residence with 
a detached accessory dwelling unit; and a single, contiguous unit in which rent is shared by the 
residents. The proposed ordinance prohibits smoking of cigarettes, cigars, cigarillos, pipes, hookah, 
electronic smoking devices, and cannabis/marijuana.  
 
HEALTH EQUITY RATIONALE: The proposed ordinance is designed to reduce exposure to 
secondhand smoke in multi-unit residences, which house many of the county’s most vulnerable 
residents. Secondhand smoke exposure in multi-unit housing contributes to commercial tobacco-related 
health disparities. For example, in California, when compared with adults who live in single-family 
homes, adults who live in multi-unit housing are more likely to be people of color; lower income or 
below the poverty line; lacking a high school diploma; and uninsured. Additionally, secondhand smoke 
in multi-unit housing is a significant threat to the health and safety of California children. About a 
quarter of those who live in multi-unit housing (25.2%) in California are under the age of 18 and the 
home is the primary source of secondhand smoke for children. 
  
IMPLEMENTATION AND ENFORCEMENT:  If approved, the new ordinance would take effect on 
October 31, 2024. At that time, smoking will be prohibited in common areas, inside units, and within 20 
feet of multi-unit residences. During the implementation phase-in period, the Public Health division of 
HHS will provide outreach and education to tenants, owners, and managers of multi-unit residences. The 
outreach will include a mass mailing, public notices, and media campaigns. Paper and electronic forms 
will be available in English and Spanish to confidentially document a secondhand smoke complaint.  
 
Landlords and those who are responsible for setting rules in a multi-unit residence (e.g., property 
managers, homeowners’ associations, condominium boards, etc.) will be responsible for posting “No 
Smoking” signs in multi-unit housing common areas of four or more units. Additionally, Mono County 
Public Health will provide landlords with suggested language to be included in leases regarding the 
ordinance’s “no smoking” requirements.   
 
Mono County Public Health will provide education in response to complaints about smoking in violation 
of the ordinance. Upon determination that a first violation of the ordinance has occurred, a written 
warning may be issued, together with information about smoking cessation.  A fine of up to $50 may be 
imposed for a second violation, followed by a fine of up to $100 for a third violation and a fine of up to 
$150 for any subsequent violations. However, Public Health will have discretion to waive these fines for 
any person who participates in approved smoking cessation programs. A referral may be made to Mono 
County Code Compliance when outreach and educational efforts fail to remedy a violation.  
    
ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PLAN: The goals of this ordinance align with the strategic focus 
area of “Safe and Healthy Communities” from the Mono County Strategic Plan Update 2022-2024 
document. 



 

1 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ORD24-___ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7.92 OF THE MONO COUNTY CODE  

TO PROHIBIT SMOKING IN MULTI-UNIT HOUSING 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 7.92 of the Mono County Code contains regulations and prohibitions 

pertaining to second-hand smoke and tobacco; and 

 

WHEREAS, commercial tobacco and cannabis smoke are included in the California 

Environmental Protection Agency’s Proposition 65 list of chemicals known to the state of 

California to cause cancer, birth defects, and other reproductive harm; and  

 

WHEREAS, exposure to secondhand smoke imposes death and disease on people who do not 

smoke and secondhand exposure to e-cigarette vapor may similarly raise health risks; and 

 

WHEREAS, the health hazards posed by smoking are caused not just by secondhand smoke but 

also by thirdhand smoke as well, toxic residues that can linger on walls, furniture, and carpet; and 

 

WHEREAS, smoking is a leading cause of fire-related injury and death; and 

 

WHEREAS, secondhand smoke in multiunit housing is a significant threat to the health and safety 

of California children; and 

 

WHEREAS, The American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers 

(ASHRAE) finds that acceptable indoor air quality in multiunit housing requires the absence of 

secondhand smoke, cannabis smoke, and aerosol from electronic smoking devices; and  

 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Surgeon General has concluded that eliminating smoking in indoor spaces is 

the only way to fully protect nonsmokers from secondhand smoke exposure; and that separating 

smokers from nonsmokers, cleaning the air, and ventilating buildings cannot completely prevent 

secondhand smoke exposure; and 

 

WHEREAS, California law declares that anything which is injurious to health or obstructs the free 

use of property, so as to interfere with the comfortable enjoyment of life or property, is a nuisance; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, more than 153 California cities and counties have adopted smoke-free multiunit 

housing ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, an estimated 28% of Californians (or 7.3 million people) live in multiunit housing; 

and 

 



 

2 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

WHEREAS, several studies have confirmed that smoke-free multiunit housing policies are an 

effective method to reduce secondhand smoke exposure in multiunit housing; and 

 

WHEREAS, secondhand smoke exposure occurs more often in multiunit housing compared to 

separate, single-unit housing, thereby contributing to tobacco-related health inequities; and 

 

WHEREAS, research consistently demonstrates that a majority of multiunit housing residents, 

including a large portion of people who smoke, supports smoke-free policies in multiunit 

residences, with support even greater among residents with children; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors now wishes to update Chapter 7.92 of the 

Mono County Code to reflect these and other findings; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF MONO 

ORDAINS as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE:  Chapter 7.92 of the Mono County Code is hereby amended in its entirety to  

read as set forth in Attachment “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

SECTION TWO: This ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of its adoption  

and final passage, which appears immediately below. The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors  

shall post this ordinance and also publish the ordinance in the manner prescribed by Government 

Code section 25124 no later than 15 days after the date of its adoption and final passage.  If the 

Clerk fails to so publish this ordinance within said 15-day period, then the ordinance shall not take 

effect until 30 days after the date of publication. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _____ day of ____________, 2024, by  

the following vote, to wit: 

  

 AYES:   

 

 NOES:  

  

 ABSTAIN:  

 

 ABSENT: 

       ____________________________ 

       John Peters, Chair 

       Mono County Board of Supervisors 

        

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________  ___________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 



Title 7 - HEALTH AND WELFARE 
Chapter 7.92 SMOKING POLICIES AND RESTRICTIONS 

 
 

 
Mono County, California, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 1 of 8 

Chapter 7.92 SMOKING POLICIES AND RESTRICTIONS1 

7.92.010 Definitions. 

A.  “Common interest development” means: 

1.  A community apartment project as defined in California Civil Code section 4105, or any successor 
legislation; 

2.  A condominium project as defined in California Civil Code section 4125, or any successor legislation; 

3.  A planned development as defined in California Civil Code section 4175, or any successor legislation; 
and 

4.  A stock cooperative as defined in California Civil Code section 4190, or any successor legislation. 

B. "County" shall mean the County of Mono.  

C. "County building" shall mean any county-owned building including, but not limited to, the Bridgeport 
courthouse, Bridgeport annexes I and II, the Bridgeport sheriff and probation department buildings, the 
county road shops and all community and senior centers.  

D. "Business" means any sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, association, or any other 
entity formed for profit-making purposes or that has an employee, as defined in this section.  

E. "Characterizing flavor" means a distinguishable taste or aroma, other than the taste or aroma of tobacco, 
imparted by tobacco, either prior to or during use of the tobacco product or any byproduct produced by the 
tobacco product, including, but not limited to, tastes or aromas relating to menthol, mint, wintergreen, any 
fruit, chocolate, vanilla, honey, candy, cocoa, dessert, alcoholic beverage, herb, nut or spice provided, 
however, that a tobacco product shall not be determined to have a characterizing flavor solely because of 
the use of additives or flavorings or the provision of ingredient information.  

F. "Dining area" means any area available to or customarily used by the general public, that is designed, 
established, or regularly used for consuming food or drink.  

G. "Electronic smoking device" means an electronic device that can be used to deliver an inhaled dose of 
nicotine or tobacco or any other substances, including any component, part or accessory of such a device, 
whether or not sold separately.  

H. "Employee" means any person who is employed; retained as an independent contractor by any employer, as 
defined in this section; or any person who volunteers his or her services for an employer, association, 
nonprofit, or volunteer entity.  

I. "Employer" means any person, partnership, corporation, association, nonprofit or other entity which 
employs or retains the service of one or more persons or supervises volunteers.  

J. "Enclosed area" means:  

 

1Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), adopted April 17, 2018, amended Chapter 7.92 in its entirety to read 
as herein set out. Former Chapter 7.92, §§ 7.92.010—7.92.030, pertained to tobacco, and derived from Ord. 
No. 02-06, 2002.  



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 2 of 8 

1. An area in which outside air cannot circulate freely to all parts of the area, and includes an area that 
has:  

a. Any type of overhead cover whether or not that cover includes vents or other openings and at 
least three walls or other vertical constraints to airflow including, but not limited to, vegetation 
of any height, whether or not those boundaries include vents or other openings; or  

b. Four walls or other vertical constraints to airflow including, but not limited to, vegetation that 
exceeds six feet in height, whether or not those boundaries include vents or other openings.  

K. “Enclosed common area” means every enclosed area, as defined, of a multi-unit residence that is accessible 
for common use to residents, staff, and employees, including but not limited to, halls, lobbies, offices, 
storage facilities, janitorial facilities, utility facilities, elevators, stairs, community rooms, gym facilities, 
swimming pools, parking garages, restrooms, laundry rooms, cooking areas, and eating areas. 

L. "Flavored tobacco product" means any tobacco product or smoking product that imparts a characterizing 
flavor.  

M. "Labeling" means written, printed, or graphic matter upon any tobacco product or any of its packaging, or 
accompanying such tobacco product.  

N. “Landlord” means any person or agent of a person who owns, manages, or is otherwise legally responsible 
for a unit in a multi-unit residence that is leased to a residential tenant. For purposes of this ordinance, a 
tenant who sublets their unit (e.g., a sublessor) is not a landlord. 

O. "Manufacturer" means any person, including any repacker or relabeler, who manufactures, fabricates, 
assembles, processes, or labels a tobacco product; or imports a finished tobacco product for sale or 
distribution into the United States.  

P. “Mixed-use residential development” means a development project that may provide more than one use 
within a shared building or development area. Mixed-use project may include any combination of housing, 
office, retail, medical, recreational, commercial or industrial components. 

Q. "Multi-unit residence" means property containing two or more units, including, but not limited to, apartment 
buildings, common interest developments, mixed-use residential development, senior and assisted living 
facilities, residential treatment facilities and long-term health care facilities. A multi-unit residence includes, 
without limitation, a single-family residence with an attached accessory or junior accessory dwelling unit, a 
common interest development, or an apartment building, but does not include the following:  

1. A single-family residence with a detached accessory dwelling unit; and 

2. A single, contiguous unit in which rent is shared by the residents.  

R. "Multi-unit residence common area" means any indoor or outdoor common area of a multi-unit residence 
accessible to and usable by more than one residence, including but not limited to halls, lobbies, laundry 
rooms, outdoor eating areas, play areas, swimming pools and recreation areas.  A multi-unit residence 
common area does not include any outdoor area that satisfies the reasonable smoking distance 
requirements of Section 7.92.030, unless such outdoor area is an outdoor eating area, play area, swimming 
pool, or recreation area.  

S. "Non-smoking area” means any area in which smoking is prohibited by: 

1.  This chapter or other law; 

2.  Binding agreement relating to the ownership, occupancy, or use of real property; or 

3.  A person with legal control over the area. 



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 3 of 8 

T. "Nonprofit entity" means any entity that meets the requirements of California Corporations Code Section 
5003 as well as any corporation, unincorporated association or other entity created for charitable, religious, 
philanthropic, educational, political, social or similar purposes, the net proceeds of which are committed to 
the promotion of the objectives or purposes of the entity and not to private gain. A public agency is not a 
nonprofit entity within the meaning of this section.  

U. “Outdoor area” means any area of the property that is not an enclosed area or enclosed common area. 

V. "Packaging" means a pack, box, carton, or container of any kind or, if no other container, any wrapping 
(including cellophane) in which a tobacco product is sold or offered for sale to a consumer.  

W. "Place of employment" means any area under the legal or de facto control of an employer, business or 
nonprofit entity that an employee or the general public may have cause to enter in the normal course of 
operations, but regardless of the hours of operation, including, for example, indoor and outdoor work areas, 
construction sites, vehicles used in employment or for business purposes, taxis, employee lounges, 
conference and banquet rooms, bingo and gaming facilities, long-term health facilities, warehouses, and 
private residences that are used as childcare or health care facilities subject to licensing requirements.  

X. "Person" means any natural person, partnership, cooperative association, corporation, personal 
representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal entity.  

Y. "Playground" means any park or recreational area designated in part to be used by children that has play or 
sports equipment installed or has been designated or landscaped for play or sports activities, or any similar 
facility located on public or private school grounds, or on county property.  

Z. "Public place" means any place, public or private, open to the general public regardless of any fee or age 
requirement, including, for example, bars, restaurants, clubs, stores, stadiums, parks, Playgrounds, taxis and 
buses.  

AA "Reasonable distance" means a distance of at least twenty feet to ensure that occupants of a building and 
those entering or existing the building are not exposed to secondhand smoke created by smokers outside of 
the building.  

BB.  “Resident” means a unit owner or a residential tenant of a multi-unit residence. 

CC. “Residential tenant” means a person who is occupying a dwelling unit designed for residential use under a 
lease or contract, whether oral or written, that requires the payment of money or exchange of services, and 
all other regular occupants of that dwelling unit. 

DD. “Residential treatment facility” means any private residence that serves as a substance abuse recovery or 
treatment center, as defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 11834.23, both during and outside 
its hours of operation, regardless of licensure status. 

EE. "Recreational area" means any area, public or private, open to the public for recreational purposes 
regardless of any fee requirement, including, for example, parks, gardens, sporting facilities, stadiums, and 
playgrounds, but excluding those areas where the county lacks jurisdictional authority to regulate.  

FF. "Service area" means any area designed to be or regularly used by one or more persons to receive or wait to 
receive a service, enter a public place, or make a transaction whether or not such service includes the 
exchange of money, including, for example, ATMs, bank teller windows, telephones, ticket lines, bus stops, 
and cab stands.  

GG. "Smoke" or "smoking" means to inhale, exhale, burn, or carry any lighted or heated device or pipe, or any 
other lighted or heated tobacco product or cannabis (as defined in Chapter 5.60 of the Mono County Code) 
intended for inhalation, whether natural or synthetic, in any manner or in any form including but not limited 
to a cigar, cigarette, cigarillo, vaporizer, joint, pipe, hookah or electronic smoking device. "Smoke" includes 



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 4 of 8 

the use of an electronic smoking device that creates an aerosol or vapor, in any manner or in any form, or 
the use of any oral smoking device for the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking in a place.  

HH. "Smoking product" means any substance or product containing nicotine or tobacco that is meant to be used 
in conjunction with an e-cigarette or any other type of smoking or vaporizing contraption including but not 
limited to joints, cigarettes, cigars, bongs or pipes. "Smoking product" also means, Indian cigarettes called 
"bidis", and cartridges and liquid solutions for e-cigarettes, which may be utilized for smoking, chewing, 
inhaling or other manner of ingestion.  

II. "Tobacco paraphernalia" means any item designed or marketed for the consumption, use, or preparation of 
tobacco products.  

JJ. "Tobacco" or "tobacco product" means:  

1. Any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco leaf or nicotine that is intended for human 
consumption, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, snorted, sniffed, or 
ingested by any other means, including, but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, little cigars, chewing 
tobacco, pipe tobacco, snuff.  

2. Any electronic device that delivers nicotine or other similar substances to the person inhaling from the 
device, including, but not limited to any type of vaping device, an electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, 
electronic pipe, or electronic hookah.  

3. Any component, part, cartridge or accessory intended or reasonably expected to be used with a 
tobacco product, whether or not sold separately.  

4. "Tobacco product" does not include any product that has been approved by the United States Food 
and Drug Administration for sale as a tobacco cessation product (e.g., Nicorette gum, patch, etc.) or for 
other therapeutic purposes where such product is marketed and sold solely for such an approved 
purpose.  

KK. "Tobacco retailer" means any person who sells, offers for sale, or does or offers to exchange for any form of 
consideration, tobacco, tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia. "Tobacco retailing" shall mean the doing 
of any of these things. This definition is without regard to the quantity of tobacco products or tobacco 
paraphernalia sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange.  

LL. "Unit" means one or more rooms designed for residential use, even where lacking cooking facilities or 
private plumbing facilities, and includes any associated exclusive-use enclosed area or exclusive-use outdoor 
area, such as for example, a private balcony, porch, deck or patio. "Unit" includes, without limitation, an 
apartment; a condominium; a townhouse; a room in a motel or hotel; a dormitory room.  

MM. “Violation of the multi-unit prohibitions” means any smoking prohibited pursuant to Section 7.92.020.A.8.  

(Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), 4-17-2018; Ord. No. 18-12, § 1(Att. A), 7-17-2018) 

7.92.020 Prohibitions—Locations where smoking is prohibited. 

A. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, smoking is prohibited in the following enclosed and unenclosed 
locations in the county:  

1. All areas where smoking is prohibited by state or federal law, including, but not limited to, indoor 
workplaces, bars and restaurants (California Labor Code Section 6404.5); state, County, and city 
buildings (California Government Code Sections 7596 through 7598); tot lots and Playgrounds 
(California Health and Safety Code Section 104495); and pursuant to (California Health and Safety Code 
Section 11362.3).  

2. County vehicles.  



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 5 of 8 

3. Public parks.  

4. Recreational areas.  

5. Service areas.  

6. Dining areas.  

7. Public places, when being used for a public event, including a sporting event, farmer's market, parade, 
craft fair, or any event which may be open to or attended by the general public, provided that smoking 
is permitted on streets and sidewalks being used in a traditional capacity as pedestrian or vehicular 
thoroughfares, unless otherwise prohibited by this chapter or other law.  

8. Multi-unit residences, including all multi-unit residence common areas.  

B. Nothing in this chapter prohibits any person or employer with legal control over any property from 
prohibiting smoking on any part of such property.  

(Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), 4-17-2018; Ord. No. 18-12, § 1(Att. A), 7-17-2018) 

7.92.030 Reasonable smoking distance required—Twenty feet. 

Smoking shall occur at a reasonable distance of at least twenty feet outside any enclosed area and from 
entrances, operable windows, and ventilation systems of enclosed areas where smoking is prohibited, to ensure 
that secondhand smoke does not enter the area through entrances, windows, ventilation systems or any other 
means so that those indoors and those entering or leaving the building are not involuntarily exposed to 
secondhand smoke, including any secondhand smoke from an electronic smoking device or vapor.  

(Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), 4-17-2018; Ord. No. 18-12, § 1(Att. A), 7-17-2018) 

7.92.040 Private Right of Action. 

 Any person aggrieved by a violation of the multi-unit prohibitions may bring a civil action against the 
person committing the violation to prevent future violations and to recover actual damages, civil penalties in 
amounts set forth in Section 7.92.080.F, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

7.92.050 Posting of signs. 

A.  Posting of signs shall be the responsibility of the owner, operator, manager or other person having control 
of the place where smoking is prohibited by this chapter in cooperation with the Mono County Public 
Health Department. Except in facilities owned or leased by County, state, or federal governmental 
entities, "No Smoking" signs with letters of not less than one-half inch in height or the international "No 
Smoking" symbol (consisting of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette enclosed in a red circle 
with a red bar across it) shall be clearly posted where smoking is prohibited in accordance with this 
chapter. Where applicable, all signs shall clearly state that smoking is prohibited within twenty feet of any 
enclosed area as defined in Section 7.92.010(J) and within twenty feet of entrances, operable windows 
and ventilation systems. Any owner, manager, operator, employer or employee or other person having 
control of a place where smoking is prohibited by this chapter shall not be deemed to be in violation of 
this chapter if signs have been posted in a manner consistent with the requirements of this section. For 
purposes of this chapter, the Mono County Public Health Department shall be responsible for the posting 
of signs in regulated facilities owned or leased in whole or in part by the county.  

B. In the case of non-smoking areas designated pursuant to Section 7.92.020.A.8, signage shall be required 
only in multi-unit residence common areas, and not in units, and only for properties with four or more 
units.  Compliance shall be voluntary until January 1, 2026, but prior to that date the Mono County Public 



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 6 of 8 

Health Director or his/her designee shall provide information about this chapter, and may make signage 
available upon request, to owners, operators, managers, or other persons having control over multi-unit 
residence common areas, including homeowner associations and property managers.  

(Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), 4-17-2018; Ord. No. 18-12, § 1(Att. A), 7-17-2018) 

7.92.060 Duty of person, employer, business or nonprofit entity. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, any owner, landlord, employer, business, nonprofit 
entity, or any other person who controls any property, establishment, or place of employment regulated by this 
chapter may declare any part of such area in which smoking would otherwise be permitted to be a non-smoking 
area.  

(Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), 4-17-2018; Ord. No. 18-12, § 1(Att. A), 7-17-2018) 

7.92.070 Sale of flavored tobacco products prohibited. 

A. Except as provided in subsections D and E, it shall be a violation of this chapter for any tobacco retailer or 
any of the tobacco retailer's agents or employees to sell or offer for sale, or to possess with intent to sell or 
offer for sale, any flavored tobacco product.  

B. There shall be a rebuttable presumption that a tobacco retailer in possession of flavored tobacco products, 
including but not limited to individual flavored tobacco products, packages of flavored tobacco products, or 
any combination thereof, possesses such flavored tobacco products with the intent to sell or offer them for 
sale.  

C. There shall be a rebuttable presumption that a tobacco product is a flavored tobacco product if a tobacco 
retailer, manufacturer, or any employee or agent of a tobacco retailer or manufacturer has:  

1. Made a public statement or claim that the tobacco product imparts a characterizing flavor;  

2. Used text and/or images on the tobacco product's labeling or packaging to explicitly or implicitly 
indicate that the tobacco product imparts a characterizing flavor; or  

3. Taken action directed to consumers that would be reasonably expected to cause consumers to believe 
the tobacco product imparts a characterizing flavor.  

D. Any Tobacco retailer whose inventory includes flavored tobacco products at the time this chapter becomes 
effective may continue to sell the flavored tobacco product(s) until the supply is exhausted but shall not 
thereafter order new supplies.  

E. This section shall not apply to menthol cigarettes; cigars, little cigars or cigarillos with a characterizing flavor 
(e.g., products of the type sold by swisher sweets, black and mild, backwoods, etc.); or chewing tobacco or 
snuff with a characterizing flavor (e.g., products of the type sold by copenhagen, skoal, grizzly, etc.). This 
subsection E shall automatically sunset October 31, 2019.  

(Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), 4-17-2018; Ord. No. 18-12, § 1(Att. A), 7-17-2018) 

7.92.080 Penalties and enforcement. 
A. Unless the applicable section of this chapter provides that violation is a misdemeanor, and except as 

provided in paragraph F of this section, any person or business violating any provision of this chapter, upon 
conviction thereof, shall be guilty of an infraction and subject to a fine (not including court-imposed 
mandatory penalties) of one hundred dollars for the first violation, two hundred dollars for the second 
violation, and five hundred dollars for any subsequent violation. For purposes of this chapter, each day of 
noncompliance shall be considered a separate violation.  



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 7 of 8 

B. The provisions of this chapter may be enforced through civil and/or criminal proceedings including, but not 
limited to, action for nuisance abatement pursuant to Mono County Code Chapter 7.20, administrative 
citation pursuant to Mono County Code Chapter 1.12, following the procedures set forth in subsection D, 
and/or injunctive relief. In any enforcement action, the county may seek reimbursement for the costs of 
investigation, inspection or monitoring leading to the establishment of the violation, and for the reasonable 
costs of preparing and bringing the enforcement action. The remedies provided by this Section 7.92.080 are 
nonexclusive, cumulative and in addition to any other remedy the County may have at law or in equity.  

C. The Mono County Public Health Director or his/her designee ("director") is authorized to enforce, on behalf 
of the county, the provisions of this chapter, and to refer such enforcement to the Mono County Code 
Compliance Division as provided in subsection D below. Any Person may request that the director investigate 
a violation of this chapter by filing a written complaint with the public health department.  

D. The following procedures may be followed by the director upon receipt of a written complaint and shall be 
followed prior to referring enforcement to Mono County Code Compliance:  

1. The director shall contact the owner, operator or manager of the establishment, (the "establishment") 
or person that is the subject of the complaint to investigate the nature and extent of the violation and 
may conduct such additional investigation as may be necessary, to determine whether the violation 
occurred.  

2. If the director concludes that a violation occurred, he or she shall provide to the owner, operator or 
manager of the establishment or person committing the violation a copy of the provisions of this 
chapter and such advisory assistance to avoid future violations as may be necessary to achieve 
compliance.  

3. Upon receipt of a second written complaint involving the same person or establishment, the director 
shall attempt to meet with the owner, operator or manager or person alleged to have violated this 
chapter to further investigate the matter and shall conduct such additional investigation as may be 
necessary. If it is determined that a subsequent violation has occurred, the director shall mail, certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, a written directive to the owner, operator, manager or 
other person, explaining in detail the steps required in order to achieve future compliance and advising 
that the county may initiate enforcement proceedings pursuant to Chapters 1.12 or 7.20, or pursue 
such other enforcement as is authorized by law, in the event of a subsequent violation.  

4. Upon receipt of a third written complaint regarding the same person or establishment, the director 
may refer the matter to Mono County Code Compliance for further investigation and enforcement 
pursuant to Chapters 1.12 and/or 7.20, provided that the code compliance division confirms that it has 
sufficient resources available to process the complaint.  

5. Any violation determined by the code compliance division to have occurred following issuance of a 
notice of violation in accordance with Chapter 1.12, shall constitute cause for issuance of an 
administrative citation under that chapter, except that the amount of the penalty imposed for each 
violation shall be as set forth in subsection 7.92.080(A) and the hearing officer for any administrative 
appeal shall be a member of the board of supervisors or its designee.  

E. The director, and code compliance specialist if applicable, shall maintain clear and thorough records and logs 
of all investigations and communications made in relation to every written complaint filed with the public 
health department pursuant to this section.  

F. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, any violation of the multi-unit prohibitions (hereafter in 
this paragraph F, “violation”) is hereby declared to be a public nuisance but not an offense.  Notwithstanding 
any other provision of this code:  (1) upon determination that a first violation has occurred, the director may 
deliver the smoker a written warning, together with information about smoking cessation; (2) for a second 
violation, the director may impose an administrative fine of up to $50; (3) for a third violation, the director 



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-24 17:09:09 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 74) 

 
Page 8 of 8 

may impose an administrative fine of up to $100; and (4) for any subsequent violation, the director may 
impose an administrative fine of up to $150 per violation.  Administrative citations shall be served as set 
forth in Section 1.12.040 and may be appealed as set forth in Section 1.12.050.  The director may, in his or 
her discretion, waive administrative fines for any person who participates in smoking cessation programs 
approved by the director.   

G. If the director receives a credible complaint of a violation of the multi-unit prohibitions but lacks adequate 
evidence to sustain that a violation has occurred, the director may deliver to the person complained of a 
written warning, together with information about smoking cessation.  Such information may be mailed, 
personally delivered, or posted on the door of the unit where the director believes the person complained of 
resides.  

 

(Ord. No. 18-03, § 1(Att. A), 4-17-2018; Ord. No. 18-12, § 1(Att. A), 7-17-2018) 

 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Clerk of the Board
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Update to Yosemite Area Regional
Transportation System (YARTS) Joint
Powers Agreement (JPA)

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

The Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) has been updated primarily to
incorporate Tuolumne County, Madera County and the City of Fresno as member agencies. The Counties of Tuolumne and

Madera joined YARTS via resolution in 2020 and 2021, respectively. The City of Fresno’s City Council executed the
Restated JPA on August 15, 2024.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Restated YARTS JPA Agreement and authorize Chair of the Board to sign on behalf of Mono County Board of
Supervisors.  

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Danielle Patrick

PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Restated JPA Memo

 Restated YARTS JPA Agreement _July 2024

 REDLINE - Restated YARTS JPA Agreement July

 History

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34262&ItemID=19003

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34263&ItemID=19003

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34264&ItemID=19003


 Time Who Approval

 9/23/2024 11:45 AM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:43 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 9:14 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 
  

 
DATE: 

 
September 16, 2024 
 

TO: YARTS Members Agencies  
 

FROM: Stacie Guzman, Executive Director 
 

RE: Request to Execute Restated Joint Powers Agreement for the Yosemite Area Regional 
Transportation System (YARTS) 
 

  
SUMMARY  
 
The YARTS JPA has been updated primarily to incorporate Tuolumne County, Madera County and the 
City of Fresno as member agencies.   The Counties of Tuolumne and Madera joined YARTS via 
resolution in 2020 and 2021, respectively. The City of Fresno’s City Council executed the Restated JPA 
on August 15, 2024.  
 
REQUESTED ACTION  
 
The execution of the Restated YARTS JPA requires action by each member agency.   
 
JPA HISTORY 
 

2024 City of Fresno executed restated JPA to join YARTS 
2021 County of Madera joined YARTS by resolution 
2021 County of Tuolumne joined YARTS by resolution  
2017 Amended and Restated JPA was executed by the Counties of Merced, Mono and Mariposa 
1999 YARTS JPA was established by the Counties of Merced, Mono and Mariposa 

 
DISCUSSION  
 
Attached is a redline version based on the Amended and Restated JPA from 2017, as well as a clean 
copy of the Restated JPA in need of execution. The changes to the JPA are not substantive and are 
primarily related to the incorporation of new members.  
 

• Opening Paragraph and Recitals 
Changes were made throughout the first page of the document to include the new members 
and to implement several minor grammatical and numerical edits.  

 
• Article 4 section 2 – Designation of Representatives 

This section was modified to include language specific to how the City of Fresno will appoint 
Directors to the Board. This language was proposed by the City of Fresno and is consistent with 
the strong-Mayor form of government in which the Mayor makes all appointments.  

 
• Article 5 Section 2 – Statutory Limitation on Exercise of Powers 

Language in this section was changed to refer to the state law that governs joint powers 
authority. 



 

 
• Article 7 Section 4 – Adoption of Budget 

This change moves the deadline for an adopted budget from April 15th to June 30th of each 
fiscal year.  
 

• Article 7 Section 5 – Notice and Holding of Public Budget Hearing 
This section has been updated to require the budget be posted on the agency website 10 days 
prior to the hearing and deletes language referring to providing copies at public libraries.  

 
• Article 7 Section 6 – Budget Transmitted to Members 

The deadline for the transmission of the budget to the Member Agencies was changed from 
May 1st to July 1st of each year.  

 
• Signatories 

The signatories have been expanded from the Counties of Merced, Mariposa and Mono to 
include Tuolumne and Madera Counties and the City of Fresno.   

 
NEXT STEPS 
 
The current JPA will continue to be the current JPA until two (2) Members execute the Restated JPA. 
Once all Members have executed the document, a final fully executed copy will be shared with all 
signatories.  
 
STAFF CONTACT 
 
Stacie Guzman, Executive Director (209)617-7759 stacie.guzman@mcagov.org   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Redline Restated YARTS JPA  
2. Restated YARTS JPA Agreement  

 
 

mailto:stacie.guzman@mcagov.org


 
 

1 

RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT FOR 
YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM AUTHORITY 

 

This Restated Joint Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of 

____________________, 2024, by and among the Counties of Merced, Mariposa, 

Mono, Tuolumne, and Madera, and the City of Fresno, political subdivisions of the State 

of California (“Parties” or “Members,” depending on the context), and supersedes the 

original Agreement dated September 21, 1999 and the previously amended Agreement 

dated May 9, 2017. 

RECITALS 

1. The California Joint Exercise of Powers Act (“Act”) (California Government Code 

Section 6500 et seq.) authorizes two (2) or more public agencies to jointly exercise any 

power common to them;  

2. The Parties to this Agreement possess in common the powers to plan, operate, 

manage, and evaluate transportation improvements within and among their respective 

jurisdictions in the greater Yosemite National Park region;  

3. The Parties to this JPA possess in common the authority to acquire and expend 

funds towards transportation needs, including regional transit service, and to plan for, 

establish, manage, and evaluate transportation improvements, including regional transit 

service;  

4. The continued growth in visitation to Yosemite National Park necessitates the 

investment in regional transportation alternatives in the incorporated and unincorporated 

areas of the Counties of Merced, Mariposa, Mono, Tuolumne and Madera, and the City 

of Fresno;  

5. For over 20 years, the costs of operating the Authority transit operation have 

been defrayed by utilizing federal, state, local and other grant funds and farebox 

revenue and associated operation revenue;  

6. The Parties to this Agreement shall continue to work together in a cooperative 

and mutually beneficial manner with the National Park Service (“NPS”), the California 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   2 
 

Department of Transportation (“Caltrans”), USDA Forest Service, and all other agencies 

with responsibilities for transportation in and around Yosemite National Park.  

WHEREFORE, the Parties continue the Authority known as the Yosemite Area 

Regional Transportation System Authority for the purpose of owning, financing, 

administering and operating transit equipment and facilities and for administering rates 

for transit programs and do agree as follows:  

ARTICLE 1.  DEFINITIONS 

 Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized terms used in this Agreement 

will have the meanings specified in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by this reference.  

ARTICLE 2.  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

 The Parties have joined together to establish the Authority for the following 

reasons:  

 2.1 Yosemite National Park’s management plans, policies and implementation 

programs affect the local economies of the gateway communities to Yosemite National 

Park, which depend on tourism as an important source of economic vitality, and affect 

the Authority’s plans, policies and implementation programs, making establishing and 

increasing coordination and communication between the NPS and the Parties hereto an 

important purpose of this Authority;  

 2.2 To accommodate the increasing demand for visitation to Yosemite 

National Park through an increasing number of transportation options for visitors and 

employees;  

 2.3 To develop transportation alternatives in ways that do not degrade the 

visitor experience or the natural resources in the region; 

 2.4 To undertake coordinated political and administrative efforts necessary to 

resolve issues, obtain funding from outside sources, and to keep projects and programs 

on schedule; and 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   3 
 

 2.5 To provide and operate Transit Services to and through Yosemite National 

Park.  

ARTICLE 3.  ESTABLISHMENT OF THE AUTHORITY  

 3.1 Separate Entity.  Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System Authority 

was established as a public entity, separate and distinct from its Members, as the public 

agency to exercise the common powers provided for in this Agreement and to continue 

to administer or otherwise execute the stated functions and purposes of this Agreement, 

including, but not limited to, the planning, establishment and management of the 

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System.  

 3.2 Regional Function.  The Authority shall function as the regional 

representative within the Service Area for transit and alternative transportation, as well 

as for the supplemental and related matters to carry over the stated functions and 

purposes of this Agreement. In this role, the Authority may offer comments, 

recommendations and advice with regard to Yosemite National Park’s management 

plans, policies and implementation programs, which affect transportation.  

 3.3 Cooperative Agreement with NPS.  In order to ensure that the Authority 

and the NPS establish the desired close working relationship, which all parties and 

agencies agree is necessary if the Authority is to fulfill its purposes, and recognizing that 

statutory provisions restrict federal agencies’ ability to participate as signatories to this 

Joint Powers Agreement, upon its establishment the Authority entered into a written 

agreement with the NPS delineating the various responsibilities of the NPS and the 

Authority and detailing the NPS’s commitment to, and funding obligations for, the 

operations of the Authority and of the transit system to be planned, established, 

managed, and evaluated by the Authority and the NPS.  

 3.4 Participation of Federal and State Agencies.  The Members agree to work 

in cooperation with the other agencies as Ex-Officio, non-voting members of the 

Authority and/or pursuant to any memorandum of understanding or cooperative 

agreement between any agency and the Authority. The USDA Forest Service, Federal 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   4 
 

Highway Administration, Federal Transit Administration, Caltrans and the California 

Travel and Tourism Commission may participate as non-voting members of the Board.  

 3.5 Addition of Voting Members.  Members may be added to the Authority 

based on majority vote of the Board and such Member’s agreement to abide by the 

requirements of this Agreement, including participation in funding the administrative 

costs of the Authority and any other conditions that may be required by the Board.  

 3.6 Addition of Non-Voting Members.  Non-voting Ex-Officio members may be 

added to the Authority based on a majority vote of the Board of the Authority.  

ARTICLE 4.  BOARD 

 4.1 Board.  The Authority shall be governed by the Board of Directors, which 

shall be comprised of two voting Directors from each of the Members of the Authority.  

 4.2 Designation of Representatives.  Each County Member Agency shall 

designate two Directors and one alternate Director from among the elected officials of 

any public elected political office within its geographic limits. Each City Member Agency 

with a Mayor-Council form of government shall have its Mayor serve as a Director, and 

the Mayor shall appoint a second Director and alternate Director from among the 

Member’s elected legislative body. Designees of Ex-Officio and/or other non-voting 

members of the Board need not be elected officials.  

 4.3 Term of Office.  Each Director and alternate shall serve at the pleasure of 

the Member designating that Director or alternate. However, in no case shall the term of 

office of any Director or alternate appointed by virtue of holding elected office exceed 

the term of his or her elected office.  

 4.4 Quorum and Voting Requirements.  A quorum for conducting all matters of 

business shall be a majority of the voting Director Members of the Board. The 

affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors of the Board shall be required for the 

approval of any matter of official business.  

 4.5 Time and Place of Meetings; Brown Act Compliance.  The Board shall 

adopt rules of procedure and may set times and places for each regular Board meeting. 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   5 
 

All Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, 

California Government Code Section 54950, et seq. 

 4.6 Committees.  The Board may establish committees and subcommittees 

from time to time as needed.  

 4.7 Bylaws.  The Bylaws of the Authority shall be those duly adopted and 

amended from time to time by the Board.  

ARTICLE 5. POWERS AND FUNCTIONS 

 5.1 Powers and Functions of Authority.  The Authority shall have the non-

exclusive common power of the Members to plan, establish, manage, and evaluate 

passenger bus service and other regional transit and transportation improvements and 

services within and among their respective jurisdictions and Yosemite National Park, as 

well as the power to carry out all other activities necessary or supplemental to the 

provision of passenger bus service and other regional transit and transportation 

improvements and services for the benefit of the general public. In the exercise of that 

power, the Authority is authorized in its own name to:  

  a. Contract for administrative services, including and Executive 

Director, Treasurer, Controller and Auditor;  

  b. Employ an Executive Director as the chief administrative officer of 

the Authority;  

  c. Employ agents and employees and contract for professional 

services;  

  d. Make and enter into contracts including cooperative agreements; 

  e. Acquire, hold and convey real and personal property;  

  f.  Incur debts, obligations and liabilities; 

  g. Accept contributions, grants or loans from any public or private 

agency or individual, or the United States, the State of California, or any department, 

instrumentality, or agency thereof, for the purpose of financing its activities;  



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   6 
 

  h. Invest money that is not needed for immediate necessities as the 

Board deems advisable, in the same manner and upon the same conditions as other 

local entities in accordance with section 53601 of the California Government Code;  

  i.  Have appointed members and Ex-Officio members of the Board 

serve without compensation from the Authority, except that members of the Board may 

be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses and costs related to attendance of Board 

meetings or other authorized Authority business;  

  j. Do all other acts reasonable and necessary to carry out the 

purposes of the Members of the Authority;  

  k. Sue and be sued, in its name only, but not in the name or stead of 

any Party; and 

  l. To exercise any and all powers as may be provided for in the Act.  

 5.2 Statutory Limitation on Exercise of Powers.  The powers to be exercised 

by the Authority are subject to such restrictions upon the manner of exercising such 

powers as are imposed by the California Government Code Section 6500 et seq.  

ARTICLE 6.  ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY 

6.1 Administrator.  The Board shall select and contract with an Administering 

Agency which shall be responsible for operations and management of the Authority’s 

business.  

6.2 Executive Director.  Subject to approval and oversight of the Board, the 

Administrative Agency may designate an Executive Director whose powers and duties 

shall include the following:      

a. Appoint a Secretary to the Board; 

b. Keep accurate and sufficient records of all proceedings of the 

Authority; 

c. Receive and transmit all Authority correspondence; 

d. Keep a record and ascertain the qualifications of each duly 

authorized representative and alternate;  



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   7 
 

e. Maintain files for all reports; 

f. Direct and coordinate the work of the Authority; 

g. Prepare and administer the Authority’s annual proposed budget and 

work program, including overseeing the preparations of applications and workplans for 

federal, state or other financial assistance, and work with the NPS to accomplish these 

tasks; 

h. Maintain a record of all Authority financial transactions; 

i. Make an annual report covering the business of the Authority during 

the preceding year;  

j. Transmit to the Executive Director’s successor all books and 

records of the Authority in the Executive Director’s possession; 

k. Approve, upon budget approval or specific affirmative vote of the 

Board, demands for payment to the Controller of the Authority; and   

l. Other powers and duties as assigned or delegated by the Board, as 

well as other powers and duties as are incidental to the office of Executive Director. 

ARTICLE 7.  FINANCING 

 7.1 Fiscal Year.  Authority’s fiscal year will be July 1 through June 30.  

 7.2 Proposed Budget.  The Authority Executive Director shall annually 

proposed a budget as provided in this Article for the administration and operations of the 

Authority.  

 7.3 Contents of Budget.  All budgets of the Authority, adopted and/or 

proposed, shall show, among other things, all required expenditures, itemizing and 

segregating operation and administration and capital outlay for the coming fiscal year. 

The budget shall also show all anticipated revenues, including the source thereof in 

reasonable detail, for the coming fiscal year, and all administrative costs. All budgets of 

the Authority, adopted and/or proposed, shall also show any deficiency in proposed 

expenditures over anticipated income and any deficiency shall be shown clearly as a 

separate and distinct item. If any deficiency is shown on the budget, any reasons for the 

deficiency and recommended solutions to eliminate the deficiency shall also be shown.  



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   8 
 

 7.4 Adoption of Budget. The Board shall adopt a budget for each upcoming 

fiscal year not later than the 30th day of June of each current year.  Prior to adopting its 

budget, the Board shall hold at least one public hearing on the proposed budget, which 

may be at the same meeting during which the budget is considered by the Board.  

 7.5 Notice and Holding of Public Budget Hearing.  The budget hearing shall 

be noticed and held pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown California Open Meeting Act 

(California Government Code Section 54950, et seq., as amended). Prior to the budget 

hearing, a copy of the proposed budget shall be made available on the Authority’s 

website ten (10) days prior to the public hearing. 

 7.6 Budget Transmitted to Members.  The Authority, not later than the 1st day 

of July, shall transmit copies of its adopted budget to each Member. 

 7.7 Advances by Members.  Any of the Members or Ex-Officio members may 

advance funds and/or at-cost in-kind support to the Authority for any proper purpose of 

the Authority, subject to Paragraph 7.9 Prior to the making of an advance, the Authority 

shall enter into a written agreement with the Party making the advance and shall identify 

certain specific revenue or revenues which shall be applied toward the repayment of the 

advance. Such an agreement may provide that the advance shall be payable only out of 

specific revenue of the Authority, or out of specific revenue of the Authority together with 

other revenues of the Authority.  

 7.8 Contributions by Parties.  Any of the Members or Ex-Officio members may 

make a contribution of funds and/or at-cost in-kind support (pursuant to Section 7.11) to 

the Authority to be used for any proper purpose of the Authority. The making of such a 

contribution shall not alter, in any way, the relationship established by this JPA between 

the Authority and the Members or between the respective Member Parties. Such a 

contribution may be made pursuant to an agreement between the Authority and the 

Member making the contribution, in which the use of the contributed funds is specified 

or restricted.  

 7.9 Limitations on Debts.  The Authority shall incur no indebtedness, including, 

but not limited to, advances pursuant to Paragraph 7.7, for any item or purpose which is 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   9 
 

not budgeted for, and for which funds have not been budgeted for repayment during the 

fiscal year that repayment is to be made, without approval of the Board.  

 7.10 Quarterly Financial Report.  The Executive Director shall present to the 

Board, and the Board shall transmit to each of the Members, a financial report at each 

Board meeting. The financial report shall set forth in reasonable detail all expenditures 

by the Authority during the preceding quarter, all revenues received by the Authority 

during the preceding quarter, all obligations remaining payable as of the last day of the 

preceding quarter, and all balances on hand as of the last day of the preceding quarter.  

 7.11 Support from Members.  A Member, in the exercise of reasonable 

discretion of its governing board, and with the consent of the YARTS Board of Directors, 

may provide support for the Authority, its staff, and its professional consultants, including 

providing quarters, janitorial services and maintenance, supplies, printing and 

duplication, postage, telephone services, transportation services, and professional and 

technical assistance as may be necessary to enable the Authority to perform its 

responsibilities. All assistance shall be provided on an at-cost basis.  

 7.12 Other Support and Fees.  The Authority shall apply for available state, 

federal, regional, and local support funds, including funds from public and private 

foundations, and shall make new and additional applications from time to time as 

deemed appropriate by the Board. If deemed necessary, the Authority may also 

establish and collect filing and processing fees in connection with matters to be 

considered by it.  

 7.13 Budget Amendments.  Amendments to the budget shall require the 

affirmative vote of the Board.  

ARTICLE 8.  TREASURER 

 8.1 Appointment of Treasurer.  The Treasurer of the Authority shall be 

designated by the Executive Director.  

 8.2 Duties.  The Treasurer shall:  



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   10 
 

  a. Receive and receipt all money of the Authority and place it in the 

treasury of the Authority to the credit of the Authority; 

  b. Be responsible for the safekeeping and disbursement of all 

Authority money held by the Treasurer; 

  c. Pay any sums due from the Authority, from the Authority’s funds 

held by the Treasurer, or any portion thereof, upon warrants of the Controller designated 

herein; and  

  d. Transmit to the Executive Director quarterly financial reports.  

 8.3 Reimbursement.  The Authority shall reimburse the Administering Agency 

for the cost of services provided by the Treasurer to the Authority on an at-cost basis.  

ARTICLE 9.  CONTROLLER 

 9.1 Appointment.  The Controller of the Authority shall be designated by the 

Executive Director.  

 9.2 Duties.  The Controller shall:  

  a.  Draw warrants to pay demands against the Authority in accordance 

with the Administering Agency’s policies. The Controller shall be responsible on the 

Controller’s official bond for the Controller’s approval of disbursements of the Authority 

money;  

  b. Keep and maintain records and books of account on the basis of 

generally accepted accounting practices. The books of account shall include records of 

assets, liabilities and contributions made by each member to the Authority; and 

  c. Make available all the financial records of the Authority to a certified 

public accountant or public accountant contracted by the Authority to make an annual 

audit of the accounts and records of the Authority. The minimum requirements of the 

audit shall be those prescribed by the State Controller for special districts under section 

26909 of the California Government Code and shall conform to generally accepted 

auditing standards.  



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   11 
 

 9.3 Reimbursement.  The Authority shall reimburse the Administering Agency 

for the cost of services provided by the Controller to the Authority on an at-cost basis.  

ARTICLE 10.  BOND/INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 The Administering Agency, on behalf of the Executive Director, Treasurer, and 

Controller, and such other persons contracting with the Authority as may be designated 

by the Board shall file with the Authority an official fidelity bond or insurance policy, at 

the Authority’s expense, in a sum determined by the Board as security for the 

safekeeping of the Authority’s property entrusted to them.  

ARTICLE 11.  PARTIES’ LIABILITY 

 The debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority shall not be the debts, 

liabilities and obligations of the Members either singly or collectively.  

ARTICLE 12.  WITHDRAWAL OF PARTY 

 12.1 Withdrawal.  Provided that there has been a resolution with the Authority 

of any current or previously outstanding obligation (financial or otherwise) of the 

Member in question, a Member may withdraw from the Authority following 180 days’ 

written notice to the Authority and all other Members of the Authority, by resolution of 

intent to withdraw adopted by the governing board of the withdrawing Member. Unless 

the withdrawing Member and the Authority specifically agree to the contrary, a 

withdrawing Party shall have no right to, or interest in, any of the assets of the Authority.  

 12.2 Resumption of Membership.  Provided that there has been a resolution 

with the Authority of any current or previously outstanding obligation (financial or 

otherwise) of the Member in question, any Member which has withdrawn from the 

Authority in accordance with the provisions of this Section 12 may resume its Member 

status upon a majority vote of the voting Members of the Board, and upon the 

agreement of the resuming party to abide by any other conditions that may be required 

by the Board pursuant to this Agreement.  

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   12 
 

ARTICLE 13.  DISSOLUTION 

 13.1 No Specific Term.  The Authority shall continue in force without specific 

term, except as otherwise provided.  

 13.2 Dissolution.  If, at any time, there cease to be two (2) or more Members, 

the Authority shall be deemed disestablished, and this Agreement shall cease to be 

operative except for the purpose of winding up and payment of any obligations.  

 13.3 Distribution of Assets.  Subject to Section 12.1, if the Authority is 

dissolved, all real and personal property, including surplus funds, possessed by the 

Authority shall be distributed to the federal, state or local funding agency or Member of 

the JPA that supplied such property, or whose funding provided for the acquisition of 

such property, unless other distribution is provided by law, or unless such property has 

been properly liquidated, to pay the obligations of the Authority. Should the origin of any 

real or personal property be undeterminable, that property shall be equitably divided 

among the Members of the Authority, as they agree or in proportion to the level of transit 

service hours provided to each jurisdiction in the most recent transit service plan 

approved by the Authority.  

 13.4 Allocation of Costs of Dissolution.  In the event of dissolution, if there are 

not sufficient unencumbered funds which are assets of the Authority available to pay for 

the costs of dissolution, such costs shall be borne by the Members in proportion to the 

level of transit service hours provided to each jurisdiction as delineated in the most 

recent transit service plan approved by the Authority.  

 13.5 Continues in Effect until Distribution.  This Agreement shall not terminate 

until all property has been distributed in accordance with this section.  

ARTICLE 14.  SUCCESSORS 

 This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of any 

successors of the Members.  

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   13 
 

ARTICLE 15.  RECORDS 

 The Treasurer and the Controller shall have charge of, handle and have access 

to all accounts, funds and money of the Authority and all records of the Authority relating 

thereto; and the Secretary shall have charge of, handle and have access to all other 

records of the Authority.  

ARTICLE 16.   SEVERABILITY 

 Should any part, term, or provision of this Agreement be decided to be in conflict 

with any law of the United States or the State of California, or otherwise be 

unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, portions, or 

provisions shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, provided such 

remaining provisions can be construed in substance to constitute this agreement which 

the Member Parties intended to enter into in the first instance.  

ARTICLE 17.  COUNTERPARTS 

 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, 

when executed, will be deemed to be an original and all of which, taken together, will be 

deemed to be one and the same instrument.  

ARTICLE 18.  EFFECTIVE DATE AND AMENDMENT 

 18.1 Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification by 

resolution of any two (2) or more parties hereto.  

 18.2 Amendment.  After this JPA becomes effective, it may be amended upon 

ratification by resolution of two-thirds of the Member Parties then signatories to this JPA.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective officers: 

 

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   14 
 

COUNTY OF MERCED   Date: _______________________ 

  

____________________________ 

Chair, Board of Supervisors  
 

    

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to legal form: 

 

____________________________ 

County Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   15 
 

COUNTY OF MARIPOSA    Date: _______________________ 

  

____________________________ 

Chair, Board of Supervisors  
 

    

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to legal form: 

 

____________________________ 

County Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   16 
 

COUNTY OF MONO    Date: _______________________ 

  

____________________________ 

Chair, Board of Supervisors  
 

    

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to legal form: 

 

____________________________ 

County Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   17 
 

COUNTY OF TUOLUMNE   Date: _______________________ 

  

____________________________ 

Chair, Board of Supervisors  
 

    

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to legal form: 

 

____________________________ 

County Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   18 
 

COUNTY OF MADERA   Date: _______________________ 

  

____________________________ 

Chair, Board of Supervisors  
 

    

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to legal form: 

 

____________________________ 

County Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

YARTS Restated JPA Agreement   19 
 

CITY OF FRESNO    Date: _______________________ 

  

____________________________ 

Mayor 
 

    

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to legal form: 

 

____________________________ 

City Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









































 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Information Technology
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Ratify and Approve Submission of
The California Governor’s Office of
Emergency Services (Cal OES) State
and Local Cybersecurity Grant

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Ratify and approve submission of The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) State and Local
Cybersecurity Grant.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Board ratify and approve the submission of The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) State and
Local Cybersecurity Grant and accept the grant funds if awarded.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None immediately. Potential for $250,000 in revenues to fund a strategic project over a 25 month period with no local
matching requirement.

CONTACT NAME: Mike Martinez

PHONE/EMAIL: 1819 / mmartinez@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Grant Description

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34278&ItemID=19007

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34275&ItemID=19007


 9/23/2024 11:46 AM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:48 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 9:11 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COUNTY OF MONO 

PO BOX 7657 | 1290 TAVERN ROAD | MAMMOTH LAKES, CA    93546 

(760) 924-1819 • mmartinez@mono.ca.gov 

 

Mike Martinez 

Information Technology Director   

 

 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 
From: Mike Martinez, IT Director 
Date: October 1, 2024 
Re: 
 
Strategic Plan Focus Area(s) Met 

☐A Thriving Economy ☒ Safe and Healthy Communities  Mandated Function 
 Sustainable Public Lands  Workforce & Operational Excellence 

 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board ratify and approve the submission of The California Governor’s 
Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) State and Local Cybersecurity Grant and accept the 
grant funds if awarded. 
 
Background/Summary 

The State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program (SLCGP) is for local and tribal governments 
in California. The program, managed by the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services 
(Cal OES), provides up to $250,000 in competitive funding for cybersecurity projects aimed at 
addressing risks, improving infrastructure security, and enhancing the resilience of services. The 
grant supports activities such as governance, workforce development, and cybersecurity 
planning. Funded projects must align with both national and state cybersecurity priorities and 
complete annual assessments. 

The grant will support a joint project with the Town of Mammoth Lakes to improve the County’s 
and Town’s overall network and cybersecurity posture.  

The four main components of the project are to replace aged network equipment, create network 
access control for devices attaching to our network, Network Micro Segmentation to better 
control and monitor communication across the network, and perform penetration testing at the 
beginning of the project to identify vulnerabilities and again at the end of the project to measure 
improvement.  

The grant amount is up to $250,000 with no match requirement. 

 

PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  

A FEMA Annual Performance Progress Reports (PPR) must be submitted Cal OES annually 
until all grant activities are completed and the Grant Subaward is formally closed out. The PPR 
must include progress made on approved activities and any other project-specific information 



 

required by Cal OES. 

The PPR will be submitted to Cal OES for review for approval before final submission. There are 
two annual PPR required for the Program. 

 

 

Report Report Period Due Date

1st Report December 1, 2024 – November 30, 2025 December 31, 2025

Final report December 1, 2025 – December 31, 2026 January 31, 2027



GAVIN NEWSOM 
GOVERNOR  

NANCY WARD 
DIRECTOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-25   
STATE & LOCAL CYBERSECURITY GRANT – LOCAL & TRIBAL (SL)  

COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
Release Date: July 31, 2024 

The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES), Homeland 
Security & Emergency Management (HSEM) Branch, has a Competitive Funding 
Opportunity (CFO) for the (SL) Program. 

This CFO provides programmatic information and the requirements necessary to 
prepare and submit a proposal for Cal OES grant funds. The provisions of this 
CFO supersede previous RFPs. If any language in this CFO conflicts with the 
terms and conditions of the applicable grant program guidance (e.g., federal 
Notice of Funding Opportunity, California State Supplement, etc.), the grant 
program guidance document(s) prevail. Applicants are strongly encouraged to 
review the applicable Notices of Funding Opportunity and California State 
Supplement, which outline the requirements that apply to Cal OES HSEM Branch 
Grant Subawards.  

PUBLIC RECORDS ACT NOTICE 

Proposals are subject to the Public Records Act, Government Code Section 
7920.000, et seq. Do not put any personally identifiable information or private 
information on this proposal. If you believe that any of the information you are 
putting on this proposal is exempt from the Public Records Act, please indicate 
what portions of the proposal and the basis for the exemption. Your statement 
that the information is not subject to the Public Records Act will not guarantee 
that the information will not be disclosed. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Questions concerning this CFO or the proposal process must be submitted by 
email to: 

State & Local Projects Unit 
StateLocalProjects@caloes.ca.gov 

Cal OES staff cannot assist the Applicant with the actual preparation of their 
proposal. Cal OES can only respond to technical questions about the CFO 
during the period between the publication date and completion of the CFO 
process. 

mailto:StateLocalProjects@caloes.ca.gov


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 2 OF 18  

 
 

A. ELIGIBILITY 

1. Eligibility to Compete for Funding 

For a proposal to be eligible to compete for funding (i.e., read and 
rated) all the following conditions must be met:  

• Applicants must meet the federal definition of Local Government 
in 6 U.S.C. §101(13) or Tribal Government in 6 U.S.C. §665(g)(a)(7) 
and be located in California. 

• The proposal must be emailed to 
StateLocalProjects@caloes.ca.gov and received no later than 
11:59 PM (PDT) on Friday, September 27, 2024. Proposals must be 
attached as PDF documents and contain the form(s) outlined  
E. Proposal Requirements. The proposal PDF file name should 
include “FY2024 SL Program CFO” and the Applicant entity name. 
Cal OES cannot access proposals through cloud-based storage 
services (e.g., Google Drive, Dropbox, etc.). Emails should identify 
the name of the CFO in the Subject line. If you have not received 
a confirmation that your proposal was received within two 
business days of the date it was submitted, please send an email 
to StateLocalProjects@caloes.ca.gov . 

Please Note: proposals that do not meet the above requirements will 
be disqualified (i.e., ineligible) and not read and rated. 

2. Eligibility for Funding Consideration 

Only one proposal per Applicant will be eligible to receive funding. If 
an Applicant submits more than one proposal, only the highest scoring 
proposal, meeting the criteria above, will be considered for funding. 

3. Prerequisites to Receive Funding 

If selected, all the following must be completed within 60 days of 
receiving the Intent to Fund notification to be eligible to receive 
funding, Applicants must:  

• Have a Unique Entity Identifier (Unique Entity ID) registered in the 
federal System for Award Management (SAM). Applicants who do 
not currently have a Unique Entity ID will need to register at 

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title6/chapter1&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid%3AUSC-prelim-title6-chapter1-subchapter18-partA&saved=%7CKHRpdGxlOjYgc2VjdGlvbjo2NjVkIGVkaXRpb246cHJlbGltKQ%3D%3D%7C%7C%7C0%7Cfalse%7Cprelim&edition=prelim
mailto:StateLocalProjects@caloes.ca.gov
mailto:StateLocalProjects@caloes.ca.gov


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 3 OF 18  

 
 

SAM.gov to obtain one. Applicants should start this process 
immediately to ensure they are able to comply with the 
requirement to have this completed within the 60-days. 

• Not have an exclusion record in the SAM by the beginning of the 
Grant Subaward performance period. An exclusion record in the 
SAM indicates that a contractor (agency) is listed in the (federal) 
government-wide system for debarment and suspension. An 
agency that is debarred or suspended is excluded from activities 
involving federal financial and nonfinancial assistance and 
benefits. Check SAM status. 

B. FUNDING INFORMATION 
 
There is $19,085,028 available for the Program for the Grant Subaward 
performance period of December 1, 2024 – December 31, 2026. 

1. Funding Amount 
 
Applicants may apply for up to $250,000 for the 25-month Grant 
Subaward performance period. 
 
Please see the chart below for a sample breakdown of the fund 
sources (by Cal OES fund source code) and match based on the 
maximum request amount. 

2022  
SLCG 

 2022 SLCG 
MATCH 

(WAIVED) 

2023 
SLCG 

2023 
SLCG 

MATCH 
(WAIVED) 

TOTAL PROJECT 
COST 

$82,500 $0 $167,500 $0 $250,000 

2. Funding Source(s) 

Guidance on policies and procedures for managing HSEM Branch 
Grant Subawards funded through federal fund sources can be found 
in the FEMA Preparedness Grants Manual. Applicants are strongly 
encouraged to review and retain a copy of this document to 
familiarize themselves with program-specific information as well as 
overall guidance on the rules and regulations for all fund sources that 
support this Program. 

https://uscontractorregistration.com/search-sam-cage-duns/
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_fy-2022-preparedness-grants-manual.pdf


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 4 OF 18  

 
 

 
The Program is supported through the following fund: 
 
State & Local Cybersecurity Grant Program (SLCG) 

• Provides state/territorial, local, and tribal (SLT) governments with 
resources to address cybersecurity risks and threats to 
information systems, improve the security of critical infrastructure 
and resilience of the services provided by those entities. 

• Supports efforts to implement cyber governance and planning, 
assess and evaluate systems and capabilities, mitigate prioritized 
issues, and build a cybersecurity workforce. 

• Requires the State Administrative Agency (SAA), as the Recipient 
of the federal grant, to pass through at least 25% of the amount 
of the total federal award to rural areas. Per the Homeland 
Security Act of 2002, a rural area is defined in  
49 U.S.C. §5302(17) as an area encompassing a population of 
less than 50,000 people. 

• Requires Recipients and Subrecipients to participate in the 
federal Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA) 
Cyber Hygiene Service – Vulnerability Scanning and participate 
in the Nationwide Cybersecurity Review (NCSR) as described in 
the federal Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO). 

• For FY 2022 and FY 2023 SLCGP funding, the match requirement 
has been waived for all Subrecipients. Applicants are referred to 
Title 2, Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.), Part 200, § 200.306 
for additional information. 

• Cal OES’s fund source code for this federal fund is SLCG. 

FEMA has identified the allowable categories of cost under the SLCGP 
Program as follows: 

• Planning – Planning costs are allowable under this Program. 
SLCGP funds may be used for a range of planning activities, 
such as those associated with the development, review, and 
revision of holistic, entity-wide cybersecurity plans and other 

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?hl=false&edition=prelim&req=granuleid%3AUSC-1994-title49-section5302&num=0
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200#200.306


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 5 OF 18  

 
 

planning activities that support the Program goals and 
objectives. 

• Organization – Organizational costs are allowable under this 
Program. SLCGP funds may be used for cybersecurity program 
management, development of whole community partnerships 
that support cybersecurity program governance, structures and 
mechanisms for information sharing between the public and 
private sector, and operational support, including ensuring 
continuity of operations for essential functions. 
 
Personnel hiring, overtime, and backfill expenses are permitted 
under this Program to perform allowable SLCGP planning, 
organization, training, exercise, and equipment activities. 
Personnel expenses may include, but are not limited to, training 
and exercise coordinators, program managers and planners, 
and cybersecurity navigators. The Subrecipient must 
demonstrate that the personnel will be sustainable. 

• Equipment – Equipment costs are allowable under this Program. 
Unless otherwise stated, equipment must meet all applicable 
statutory, regulatory, and/or DHS-adopted standards to be 
eligible for purchase using SLCGP funds. Subrecipients will be 
responsible for obtaining and maintaining all necessary 
certifications and licenses for the requested equipment. 
 
Investments in emergency communications systems and 
equipment must meet applicable SAFECOM Guidance 
recommendations; such investments must be coordinated with 
the Statewide Interoperability Coordinator and the State 
Interoperability Governing Body to ensure interoperability and 
long-term capability. 
 
SLCGP funds may be used to purchase maintenance contracts 
or agreements, warranty coverage, licenses, and user fees in 
support of a system or equipment. Applicants should reference 
the FY 2022 and FY 2023 SLCGP NOFO, Section D, 12 – Funding 
Restrictions and Allowable Costs, e. Other Direct Costs, III. 
Equipment, for additional requirements and restrictions on 
allowable equipment costs, when building their Budget Detail 
table for their NOI. 



FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 6 OF 18  

 
 

• Training – Training costs are allowable under this Program. 
Allowable training-related costs under SLCGP include the 
establishment, support, conduct, and attendance of training 
and/or in conjunction with training by other federal agencies. 
Training conducted using SLCGP funds should align with the 
California SLCGP Cybersecurity Plan and address a performance 
gap identified through cybersecurity assessments and contribute 
to building a capability that will be evaluated through a formal 
exercise. 
 
Subrecipients are encouraged to use existing training, such as 
FEMA’s National Preparedness Course Catalog, rather than 
developing new courses. 
 
All training courses must receive a Training Feedback Number 
from Cal OES Training & Exercise prior to the start of the course. 
To request a Training Feedback Number, please download and 
complete the Training Feedback Form and forward the 
completed request via email to training@caloes.ca.gov . 

• Exercise – Exercise costs are allowable under this Program. 
Exercises conducted with SLCGP funding should be managed 
and conducted consistent with Homeland Security Exercise and 
Evaluation Program (HSEEP) guidance documents. 
 
Subrecipients are required to submit an After Action 
Report/Improvement Plan (AAR/IP) to the SLCGP Grants Analyst 
and FEMA at hseep@fema.dhs.gov no later than 90 days after 
completion of any exercise(s) conducted using SLCGP funds. 

• Management and Administration (M&A) – M&A costs are 
allowable under this Program. M&A activities are defined as 
directly relating to the management and administration of 
SLCGP subaward funds, such as financial management, 
reporting, and program and financial monitoring. See the FEMA 
Preparedness Grants Manual for examples of some M&A costs. 
 
Subrecipients are allowed a maximum of five (5) percent of the 
Grant Subaward amount for the FY 2024 SLCGP. 

https://www.firstrespondertraining.gov/frts/npcc
https://csti.app.box.com/s/mm0ogcyuvlmhjmcgm6i89k3s7q4yf0mm
mailto:training@caloes.ca.gov
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/national-preparedness/exercises/hseep
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/national-preparedness/exercises/hseep
mailto:hseep@fema.dhs.gov


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 7 OF 18  

 
 

• Indirect Costs – Indirect costs are allowable under SLCGP; see 
the Indirect Costs section of the FY 2024 SLCGP State 
Supplement for additional guidance on including indirect costs 
in the budget for SLCGP-funded projects. 

Applicants should complete the appropriate budget categories for the 
costs included in their project proposal on the Notice of Interest form; 
see E. Programmatic Narrative, below. 

In addition, the following costs are unallowable under the SLCGP: 

• Supplantation of state or local funds. 
 
This shall not be construed to prohibit the use of funds under this 
Program for otherwise permissible uses on the basis that the 
Subrecipient has previously used state, local, and/or tribal 
government funds to support the same or similar uses. 

• Any Subrecipient cost-sharing contribution, when required. 

• To pay a ransom from cyberattacks. 

• Spyware. 

• Recreational or social purposes, or for any purpose that does not 
address cybersecurity risks or cybersecurity threats on 
information systems owned or operated by, or on behalf of, the 
Subrecipient entity. 

• Suing the federal government or any other government entity. 

• Lobbying or intervention in federal regulatory or adjudicatory 
proceedings. 

• Acquiring land or constructing, remodeling, or altering buildings 
or other physical facilities. 

• Cybersecurity insurance premiums. 

Please refer to Title 2, C.F.R., Part 200, Subpart E – Cost Provisions, for 
additional guidance on allowable and unallowable costs. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200#subpart-E


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 8 OF 18  

 
 

C. PROGRAMMATIC INFORMATION  

1. Program Overview & Objectives 

The purpose of the FY 2024 SLCGP Local & Tribal Program is to assist 
local units of government, as defined in 6 U.S.C. §101(13), and federally 
recognized tribes address cybersecurity risks and threats to information 
systems, improve security of critical infrastructure and resilience of the 
services these entities provide to their communities. 

Through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) of 2021, 
Congress established the State and Local Cybersecurity Improvement 
Act, which created the State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program 
and appropriated funds to be awarded to eligible state and territorial 
administrative agencies over a period of four federal fiscal years. 

Each year, beginning with federal fiscal year 2022 through federal 
fiscal year 2025, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS)/Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) announces a 
NOFO for the SLCGP. The funds provided by this Program assist SLT 
governments to manage and reduce systemic cyber risks, including 
through the establishment of a strong foundation to build a sustainable 
cybersecurity program. Grant funds are intended to supplement 
existing fiscal resources and are not guaranteed long-term 
sustainability solutions. Projects funded under this Program are 
expected to be reasonably sustained after the end of the 
performance period without the expectation to receive future grant 
funds. 

As the SAA for this Program, Cal OES established a subcommittee of 
the California Cybersecurity Task Force, called the Cybersecurity 
Investment Planning Subcommittee (CCTF-CIPS), in order to meet 
specified requirements under the IIJA and SLCGP NOFO, including the 
development and submission of a statewide cybersecurity plan, which 
was submitted by Cal OES and approved by CISA on September 29, 
2023. The CCTF-CIPS serves as California’s cybersecurity planning 
committee for the purposes of the SLCGP and participates in Program 
activities such as updating the cybersecurity plan and developing 
strategies for allocating funds available through the SLCGP to projects 
that align with the approved cybersecurity plan. 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/3684/text


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 9 OF 18  

 
 

SLCGP provides funding to implement projects that address one or 
more of the following objectives established by CISA to accomplish the 
overarching goal of the Program: 

Objective 1 – Governance and Planning – Develop and establish 
appropriate governance structures, as well as plans, to improve 
capabilities to respond to cybersecurity incidents and ensure continuity 
of operations. 

Objective 2 – Assessment and Evaluation – Identify areas for 
improvement in SLT cybersecurity posture based on continuous testing, 
evaluation, and structured assessments. 

Objective 3 – Mitigation – Implement security protections 
commensurate with risk (outcomes of Objectives 1 and 2), using the 
best practices as described in element 5 of the required 16 elements of 
the cybersecurity plans listed in the IIJA and those further listed on 
page 14 of the NOFO. 

Objective 4 – Workforce Development – Ensure organization personnel 
are appropriately trained in cybersecurity, commensurate with their 
responsibilities as suggested in the National Initiative for Cybersecurity 
Education. 

2. Program Priorities & Requirements 

All proposed projects must support activities that effectively contribute 
to the local or tribal government’s capability to prevent, prepare for, 
mitigate against, respond to, and recover from cyber threats against 
information systems owned and/or operated by the unit of 
government, align with the objectives, priorities, and cybersecurity plan 
elements described in the California SLCGP Cybersecurity Plan, and 
meet the criteria listed in the FY 2022 and FY 2023 SLCGP NOFOs. 

a. SLCGP National Priorities 

In developing projects for the FY 2024 SLCGP Local & Tribal 
Program, Applicants should describe projects that address areas 
for improvement identified by the local or tribal government using 
the whole community approach as they relate to cybersecurity 
capabilities and especially projects that address implementation 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/Homeland-Security/Documents/California_Cybersecurity_Plan_FINAL_v1.5.5_20230921.pdf


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 10 OF 18  

 
 

of one or more of the key Cybersecurity Best Practices, as 
appropriate to their organization: 

• Implement multi-factor authentication. 

• Implement enhanced logging. 

• Data encryption for data at rest and in transit. 

• End use of unsupported/end of life software and hardware 
that are accessible from the internet. 

• Prohibit use of known/fixed/default passwords and 
credentials. 

• Ensure ability to reconstitute systems (backups). 

• Actively engage in bidirectional sharing between CISA and 
SLT entities in cyber relevant time frames to drive down cyber 
risk. 

• Migration to the .gov internet domain. 

Educational institution Subrecipients (e.g., school districts) using 
the .edu Internet domain are exempted from transitioning to the 
.gov Internet domain. All other Subrecipients of SLCGP funding are 
highly encouraged to transition to a .gov Internet domain over 
time. Additional information on migrating to the .gov Internet 
domain can be found on the DotGov Program website. 

DHS/FEMA does not prescribe a minimum funding amount for 
these priorities. However, all SLCGP Applicants are encouraged to 
consider how FY 2024 SLCGP Local & Tribal Program funding can 
be used to support these priority areas as they apply to the local 
or tribal government’s specific needs and the needs of the whole 
community. Subrecipients of funding through SLCGP are strongly 
encouraged to eventually adopt and use all eight of the 
Cybersecurity Best Practices listed above. 

Additional information about these cybersecurity best practices 
can be found in the FY 2022 and FY 2023 SLCGP NOFOs, Section A, 
10, c. 

https://get.gov/


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 11 OF 18  

 
 

b. SLCGP Statewide Priorities 

The CCTF-CIPS, in its SLCGP Cybersecurity Plan, described an 
intention to focus on the following initiatives, with the 
corresponding cybersecurity plan element from the IIJA noted in 
parentheses, to strengthen cybersecurity across California using 
the FY 2022-23 SLCGP funds: 

• Enhance the preparation, response, and resiliency of 
information systems, applications, and user accounts 
(Element 3); 

• Implement a process of continuous cybersecurity risk factors 
and threat mitigation practices prioritized by degree of risk 
(Element 4); 

• Develop and coordinate strategies to address cybersecurity 
risks and threats (Element 14); 

• Identify and mitigate any gaps in the cybersecurity 
workforce, enhance recruitment and retention efforts, and 
bolster the knowledge, skills, and abilities of personnel with 
reference to the National Initiative for Cybersecurity 
Education – Workforce Framework for Cybersecurity (Element 
8); 

• Assess and mitigate Critical Infrastructure and Key Resources 
risks and threats impacting local jurisdictions (Element 10); 

• Ensure continuity of operations including by conducting 
exercises (Element 7); and 

• Ensure rural communities have adequate access to, and 
participation in, plan activities (Element 15). 

SLCGP Applicants are strongly encouraged to incorporate one or 
more of these statewide priorities in their project description for the 
project(s) proposed using Program funds. Additional information 
about the cybersecurity plan elements is available in the FY 2022 
SLCGP NOFO, Appendix C: Cybersecurity Plan, Required Elements. 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/Homeland-Security/Documents/California_Cybersecurity_Plan_FINAL_v1.5.5_20230921.pdf


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 12 OF 18  

 
 

c. Participation in Required Cybersecurity Services 

Subrecipients are required to participate in free Cyber Hygiene 
Services – Vulnerability Scanning, provided by CISA. For these 
required services, please note that participation is not required to 
submit a proposal under this CFO but is a post-award requirement 
for all projects selected to receive SLCGP funding. 

Additional information on this and other, optional but encouraged 
cybersecurity services, memberships, and resources can be found 
on the CISA - SLCGP website (scroll down to the Tools and 
Resources section). 

d. Nationwide Cybersecurity Review (NCSR) 

The NCSR is a free, anonymous, annual self-assessment designed 
to measure gaps and capabilities of a SLT’s cybersecurity 
programs. It is based on the National Institute of Standards and 
Technology Cybersecurity Framework and is sponsored by DHS 
and the Multi-State Information Sharing and Analysis Center. 

SLCGP Subrecipients are required to complete the NCSR during 
the first year of the Grant Subaward performance period and 
annually thereafter until closeout. The open assessment period is 
usually October through February; Subrecipients may contact 
their assigned SLCGP Grants Analyst for additional information and 
technical support. 

D. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  

Performance and implementation reports serve as a record for the 
implementation of the Grant Subaward. Statistics for performance and 
implementation reports should be collected on a quarterly basis, even 
when reporting occurs less frequently. The following reports are required: 

a. FEMA Reports 

There is one FEMA report Subrecipients will need to complete: 

Annual Performance Progress Reports (PPR) 

https://www.cisa.gov/cyber-hygiene-services
https://www.cisa.gov/cyber-hygiene-services
https://www.cisa.gov/state-and-local-cybersecurity-grant-program


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 13 OF 18  

 
 

Subrecipients must submit PPR to Cal OES annually until all grant 
activities are completed and the Grant Subaward is formally closed 
out. PPR are due within 30 days after the end of the reporting period. 
Annual PPR must include progress made on approved activities and 
any other project-specific information required by Cal OES. PPR are 
cumulative and each annual report will include information provided 
by the Subrecipient in previous reporting periods. 

In order to ensure that mandated performance metrics and other data 
required by the Grant Subaward are reported accurately, SLCGP PPR 
must first be submitted via email to the Cal OES SLCGP Grants Analyst 
for review. Electronic reports should be submitted to Cal OES for review 
at least seven (7) calendar days before the due date. Submission of 
the final, signed electronic report should only occur after the 
Subrecipient is instructed by the Grants Analyst to do so. 

There are two annual PPR required for the Program. Failure to submit a 
PPR could result in Grant Subaward reduction, suspension, or 
termination. See the chart below for report periods and due dates. 

Report Report Period Due Date 
1st Report December 1, 2024 – November 30, 2025 December 31, 2025 
Final 
Report December 1, 2025 – December 31, 2026 January 31, 2027 

*Exact dates will be provided by your Grants Analyst at the end of 
each quarter. 

E. PROGRAMMATIC NARRATIVE  

Applicants must use the forms provided on the Cal OES website. Applicants 
may not alter the formatting of any forms, including the Notice of Interest 
(NOI).  If a space or character limitation is specified under each NOI 
question, strict adherence to the space limitation is required. Information 
included beyond the space limitation and/or unrequested attachments will 
not be considered in the rating process.  

Applicants must respond to each question in the NOI form. The Applicant’s 
response to each question will be evaluated as part of the rating process. 
Applicants should develop a thorough project proposal that takes into 
consideration planning and implementation of the entire process for the 



FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 14 OF 18  

 
 

proposed project from conception to completion of all activities using the 
requested funding. 

Proposals must be aligned to one or more of the SLCGP Objectives and at 
least one of the 16 Cybersecurity Plan Elements. This alignment is based on 
how many and to what degree the associated elements are adopted, 
especially the eight best practices listed above (see California 
Cybersecurity Plan, Appendix B: Project Summary Worksheet, Related 
Required Element # column).  

Applicants should also consider the Program priorities and requirements 
referenced above in C, Programmatic Information, as well as the SLCGP FY 
2022 NOFO, FY 2023 NOFO and the SLCGP California State Supplement, 
when developing their project proposals. 

In addition to their responses on the NOI form, Applicants must complete an 
online Cybersecurity Maturity Survey (not scored). Upon completion of the 
survey, Applicants must download a copy of their survey responses and 
attach as a PDF file to submit with their proposal; proposals submitted 
without completing the survey may not be considered for funding. 

F. SELECTION OF PROPOSAL FOR FUNDING 

1. Proposal Rating 

Eligible proposals submitted via email as specified in A. Eligibility, 
above, by the due date are generally evaluated by a three-member 
team. Each question is assigned a point value and the Applicant’s 
response to each question is evaluated on the following criteria: 

ABSENT: The response does not address the specific question, or a 
response was not provided. 

UNSATISFACTORY: The response does not completely address the 
question. The information presented does not provide a good 
understanding of Applicant’s intent, does not give the detailed 
information requested by the CFO, and/or does not adequately 
support the proposal or the intent of the Program. 

SATISFACTORY: The response addresses the question and provides a 
good understanding of the Applicant’s intent. The response 
adequately supports the proposal and the intent of the Program. 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/Homeland-Security/Documents/California_Cybersecurity_Plan_FINAL_v1.5.5_20230921.pdf
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/Homeland-Security/Documents/California_Cybersecurity_Plan_FINAL_v1.5.5_20230921.pdf
https://www.grants.gov/search-results-detail/343579
https://www.grants.gov/search-results-detail/343579
https://www.grants.gov/search-results-detail/349776
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/operations/homeland-security/california-cybersecurity-integration-center/cybersecurity-surveys/
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/Grants/Documents/2024-SLCGP-State-Supplement-FINAL-7.25.24.pdf


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 15 OF 18  

 
 

ABOVE AVERAGE: The response is above average and provides a clear 
and detailed understanding of the Applicant’s intent. The response 
presents a persuasive argument that supports the proposal and the 
intent of the Program. 

EXCELLENT: The response is outstanding, with clear, detailed, and 
relevant information. The response presents a compelling argument 
that supports the proposal and the intent of the Program. 

In addition to evaluating and assigning a point value to the 
Applicant’s responses to the Programmatic Narrative Questions, the 
budget table and milestones submitted on the NOI form will be 
evaluated and assigned a point value.  

The rater scores are averaged and ranked numerically. Proposals are 
only evaluated numerically; no notes are taken during the evaluation. 
Applicants that meet the definition of a rural area as defined in  
49 U.S.C. § 5302 will be scored and ranked against proposals from 
other Applicants in this category until the 25% federally-mandated rural 
pass-through threshold is met; at which time, remaining Applicants in 
this category will be scored and ranked against all other proposals. 

Project proposals that do not clearly and directly address the required 
program objectives/investment justifications or cannot be completed 
within the performance period will be disqualified.  

2. Funding Decision 

Final funding decisions are made by the Director of Cal OES. Funding 
decisions are based on the following: 

• The ranked score of the proposal. 

• Consideration of priorities or geographical distribution specific to 
this CFO; e.g., whether the Applicant meets the definition of a 
rural area as defined in 49 U.S.C. §5302. 

• Prior negative administrative and programmatic performance, if 
applicable. 

Applicants previously funded by Cal OES will be reviewed for poor past 
compliance, including fiscal management, progress and annual 



FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 16 OF 18  

 
 

reports, audit reports, and other relevant documentation or 
information. This review may result in one or more of the following 
actions: 

• The Applicant may not be selected for funding. 
• The amount of funding may be reduced. 
• Grant Subaward Conditions may be added to the Grant 

Subaward. 

3. Notification Process 

All Applicants will be notified in writing, via electronic communication, 
the results of the rating process. The notification will be sent to the 
Authorized Agent and the Primary Point of Contact identified on the 
NOI submitted with the proposal.   

Applicants will receive one of the following notifications: 

• Intent to Fund if selected for funding. 

• Denial if not selected for funding, including the Applicant’s scores 
and information regarding the appeal process.  

• Ineligibility: 

o If the proposal did not meet Eligibility to Compete for Funding  
including information regarding the appeal process; or 

o If the proposal scored less than the required 50% of points 
possible, including the Applicant’s scores and information 
regarding the appeal process. 

Cal OES can only respond to technical questions about the CFO 
during the period between the publication date and completion 
of the CFO process. Requests for records must be made through a 
Public Records Act request. 

G. FINALIZING THE GRANT SUBAWARD 

1. Grant Subaward Application 

Once selected for funding, Subrecipients must complete and submit 
their Grant Subaward Application through the online Cal OES Grants 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/policy-administration/legal-affairs/public-records-request/
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/policy-administration/finance-administration/grants-management/grants-central-system/


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 17 OF 18  

 
 

Central System (GCS). Cal OES may require revisions and/or additional 
documentation to finalize the submission of the Grant Subaward 
Application in the GCS. The Grants Analyst identified in the 
Subrecipient’s Intent to Fund notification can provide technical 
assistance in completing these components. 
 
For more information on the GCS, please see the FY 2024 SLCGP 
California State Supplement to the NOFO. 

2. Grant Subaward Approval 

The Grant Subaward will be available in the Cal OES GCS. The 
Subrecipient is not authorized to incur costs against the Grant 
Subaward until the application is approved. Once the Grant 
Subaward is approved, a request for payment may be submitted.  

a. Grant Subaward Conditions 

Cal OES may add conditions to execute the Grant Subaward. If 
conditions are added, these will be discussed with the 
Subrecipient and will become part of the Grant Subaward. 

Grant Subaward Conditions may include holds on funding 
amounts included in the budget for items of cost that require prior 
approval from Cal OES and/or DHS/FEMA, including but not limited 
to, training, and meals/beverages for training and exercise 
events. 

b. Grant Subaward Amounts 

When the amount of funds available is limited, Cal OES may 
reduce the amount of the Grant Subaward from the amount 
requested by the Subrecipient. In addition, Cal OES reserves the 
right to negotiate budgetary changes with the Subrecipient prior 
to executing the Grant Subaward. If either of these actions is 
required, Cal OES will notify the Subrecipient prior to executing the 
Grant Subaward. 

3. Standard Grant Subaward Funding Authority 

Allocation of funds is contingent on the enactment of the State Budget. 
Cal OES does not have the authority to disburse funds until the State 

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/office-of-the-director/policy-administration/finance-administration/grants-management/grants-central-system/


FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
SL COMPETITIVE FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
PAGE 18 OF 18  

 
 

Budget is passed, and the Grant Subaward is fully executed. 
Expenditures incurred prior to authorization are made at the 
Subrecipient’s own risk and may be disallowed. Cal OES employees 
are not able to authorize a Subrecipient to incur expenses or financial 
obligations prior to the execution of a Grant Subaward. However, once 
the Grant Subaward is finalized the Subrecipient may claim 
reimbursement for expenses incurred on, or after, the start of the Grant 
Subaward performance period. 

If, during the Grant Subaward performance period, the state and/or 
federal funds appropriated for the purposes of the Grant Subaward 
are reduced or eliminated by the California Legislature or the United 
States Government, or in the event revenues are not collected at the 
level appropriated, Cal OES may immediately terminate or reduce the 
Grant Subaward by written notice to the Subrecipient. 

Cal OES Grant Subawards are subject to applicable restrictions, 
limitations, or conditions enacted by the California Legislature and/or 
the United States Government, after, the execution of the Grant 
Subaward.  



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Letter of Support for Digital Equity
Grant Application for Golden State
Connect Authority Member Counties

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Mono County letter of support for Digital Equity Grant Application for Golden State Connect Authority Member Counties.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Letter

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:46 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:40 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:42 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34259&ItemID=19001


 

Jennifer Kreitz District One       Rhonda Duggan District Two       Bob Gardner District Three
John Peters  District Four       Lynda Salcido  District Five 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF MONO 
 

P.O. BOX 715, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 
(760) 932-5530 

BOS@mono.ca.gov  
  

 
Queenie Barnard, Clerk of the Board 

 
 
 

 
 
Honorable Gina M. Raimondo, Secretary 
U.S. Department of Commerce  
1401 Constitution Ave NW  
Washington, DC 20230 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Probation
TIME REQUIRED 15 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Karin Humiston, Chief of Probation

SUBJECT Community Corrections Partnership
Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Presentation by Chief Humiston, an informational update to the Board on the Community Corrections Partnership.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
None, information only.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Karin Humiston

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325572 / khumiston@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Realignment Implementation Plan Update

 Presentation

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/24/2024 9:42 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/4/2024 2:23 PM Finance Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34300&ItemID=18951

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34159&ItemID=18951

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34331&ItemID=18951


 9/25/2024 7:55 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
 

MAILING: P.O. BOX 596, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 
                                                                     BRIDGEPORT OFFICE (760) 932-5570•FAX (760) 932-5571 
                                                                        MAMMOTH OFFICE (760) 924-1730•FAX (760) 924-1731 

   
probation@mono.ca.gov 

Mark Magit 
Presiding Judge 
Superior Court 
 

  

 
Dr. Karin Humiston  
Chief Probation Officer 
  

                                                     
                                                     

 

 
 
 
Date:  October 1, 2024 
 
To:  Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Karin Humiston, Chief of Probation 
 
SUBJECT: Mono County Community Corrections Partnership Update. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None, information only. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Chief Humiston and members of the Probation staff will provide an update to the Board 
on the Community Corrections Partnership. Presentation to include information on 
programs, statistical data, transition house and budget. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 





























Community Corrections 
Partnership

FY 23-24



Data
Progress update on 

Objectives
Review of FY 22-23



Key Components
Data

Progress update on Objectives
Review of FY 23-24



2011 Public Safety Realignment
Assembly Bill 109

Key Components

Revised definition of a felony allowing non-violent, non-serious, and non-sex 
offenders to service their sentences in local county jails

Certain offenders released from State prison are no longer released on State 
parole but instead are released on “Post Release Community Supervision” 

(PRCS).  These offenders are supervised by the Probation Department. 

The law states that counties should focus on using alternative sanctions and 
evidence-based practices to reduce recidivism (PC 17.5) more effectively. 



2011 Public Safety Realignment
Assembly Bill 109

Key Components

Mandatory Supervision established that a person serving a period of 
incarceration could split their jail sentence with some time in custody and the 

balance of their sentence out of custody supervised by probation.

AB 109 also created the Executive Committee of the previously established 
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP).  This committee is responsible 

for creating and presenting a plan to the County Board of Supervisors 
regarding allocation of funds and implementation of policies and procedures 

related to Realignment. 



Data





















Pretrial -  Pretrial supervision allows individuals charged with crimes to 
remain in the community under specific conditions rather than being 
detained in jail.  (SB 129: FY21-22)

Key Components:
• Regular Check-Ins
• Electronic Monitoring
• Substance Abuse Testing
• Support Services

2019 – 10
2020 – 18
2021 – 23
2022 – 33
2023 - 50



Goals and Objectives



Reentry Services
Submit referrals to BH, check attendance to SUD 
classes or assessments
• ASAM – 36
• SUD – 8
• Parent Project – 3
• Manzanita Housing – 3 
• Psychiatry – 4
• Anger Management – 2
• CBT – 3
• Life skills – 1
• Clubhouse Live – 1
• Moral Reconation Therapy – 1 
• Relapse Prevention – 2

Submit referrals to Social Services, for review for 
services (financial services, housing, Medi-cal, 
workforce team, food, general assistance, Calfresh, 
etc.
• Workforce Team – 4
• Medi-Cal – 5

Submit and track referrals to contracted behavior and 
mental health
• Therapy – 19
• Mental Health Evaluations – 13
• Psychological/Psychiatric Evaluations – 7
• Interpreter Services – 10

Residential Treatment Applications and Assistance – 15
Referral to private Local Therapists - 11

TOTAL INDIVIDUALS ASSISTED - 73



Transition House



GL Account Number GL Account Description Recommended Budget

680-23-520- Probation CCP 2011 Realignment

14010 Growth Revenues $13,024.00 
15453 St: 2011 Realignment-CCP SB1020 Base Revenues $1,068,076.00 

Total Revenues $1,081,100.00 

21100 Salary And Wages:
Sheriff's Office / PSO Position $119,539.00 

Probation Positions $203,156.00 
$322,695.00 

22100 Employee Benefits:
Sheriff's Office / PSO Position $36,481.00 

Probation Positions $19,604.00 
$56,085.00 

22110
Employee Benefits - Health (Medical-Dental-
Vision):

Sheriff's Office / PSO Position $36,260.00 
Probation Positions $34,306.00 

$70,566.00 

22120 Employee Benefits - PERS (ER Portion):
Sheriff's Office / PSO Position $19,847.00 

Probation Positions $75,960.00 
$95,807.00 

31530 Inmate Medical/Dental & Lab Supplies $40,000.00 

32500 Professional & Specialized Services:
Jail Re-entry Coordinator $43,200.00 

Mental Health Program - NAMHS $125,000.00 
Substance Use Disorder Program $100,000.00 

Electronic Monitoring $15,000.00 
Translation Services $10,000.00 

$293,200.00 

33120 Special Department Expense - MLPD MDC Request $91,750.85 

60100 Operating Transfers Out
Behavioral Health $25,000.00 

Jail Debt Service $100,000.00 
$125,000.00 

Total Expenditures $1,095,103.85 
Total Estimated Carryover ($14,003.85)



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Elections
TIME REQUIRED 30 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-
RegistrarSUBJECT Election Education Series Part 2

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

In anticipation of the upcoming November 5, 2024, General Election, the Mono County Registrar will be presenting a two-
part Election Education Series to the Board of Supervisors and public. Part 2 of the series will review: Voting In Person at a
Poll Place vs Voting by Mail; Election Technology, Security, and Observers; and Results, Canvass/Certification, Recounts,

and Fraud Prevention.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
None, informational only. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None. 

CONTACT NAME: Queenie Barnard

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325534 / qbarnard@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Presentation

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:47 PM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34267&ItemID=17742

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34268&ItemID=17742


 9/24/2024 12:36 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:41 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

CLERK – RECORDER – REGISTRAR 
CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF MONO 
P.O. BOX 237, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517  •  (760) 932-5530 
ClerkRecorder@mono.ca.gov  •  Elections@mono.ca.gov  •  BOS@mono.ca.gov 

 
 
October 1, 2024 
 
To:  Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar 
 
Re:  Election Education Series Part 2 
  
Discussion: 
In anticipation of the upcoming November 5, 2024 General Election, the Elections Office will be presenting a two-
part Election Education Series to the Board of Supervisors and public in August and October 2024. 
 

Election Education Series Part 1 August 20, 2024 • Voter Registration and Primary Election Voting 

Election Education Series Part 2 October 1, 2024 

• Election Technology, Security, and Observers 
• Voting In Person at a Poll Place vs Voting by Mail 
• Results, Canvass/Certification, Recounts, and 

Fraud Prevention 
 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you. 
 

 
Queenie Barnard 
Clerk-Recorder-Registrar  
760-932-5534 
qbarnard@mono.ca.gov 

mailto:ClerkRecorder@mono.ca.gov
mailto:Elections@mono.ca.gov
mailto:BOS@mono.ca.gov
mailto:qbarnard@mono.ca.gov


Voting In Person at a Poll Place vs 

Voting by Mail

Election Technology, Security, and Observers

Results, Canvass/Certification, Recounts, and 

Fraud Prevention

October 1, 2024

Election Education Series 
Part 2



Election Education Series

Election Education 

Series Part 1
August 20, 2024 • Voter Registration and General Election Voting

Election Education 

Series Part 2
October 1, 2024

• Voting In Person at a Poll Place vs Voting by Mail

• Election Technology, Security, and Observers

• Results, Canvass/Certification, Recounts, and 

Fraud Prevention

https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/election-education-series 

https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/election-education-series


November 5, 2024, General Election

October 7, 2024: Ballots are mailed to every registered voter

October 8, 2024: Ballot drop boxes are opened throughout the 

State of California

November 5, 2024: Election Day (Polls Open 7 AM - 8 PM)

November 22, 2024: Registrar of Voters to certify election results



November 5, 2024, General Election



Voter Turnout in Mono County

62%

84%

56%

74%

60%

87%

42%

60%

46%

2016 Primary
Election

2016 General
Election

2018 Primary
Election

2018 General
Election

2020 Primary
Election

2020 General
Election

2022 Primary
Election

2022 General
Election

2024 Primary
Election

2024 General
Election



Vote-by-Mail Ballot Return Options

Vote-by-Mail Ballot Return Options:
1. By mail using your yellow Postage Prepaid Return 

Envelope.

2. In person at the Mono County Elections office.

3. Drop off in one of six ballot drop boxes located 
throughout the County, or any drop box in the 
State of California.

4. Drop off at any polling place or vote center within 
the State of California.

Vote Early! Ballots must be postmarked by 
Election Day and received by our office no 
later than 7 days after Election Day.



How Often are Ballots Picked Up from Drop Boxes?

Ballots are retrieved from six secure drop boxes located throughout 
Mono County in teams of two. 

On Election Day, Poll workers collect ballots from drop boxes at 8:00 
PM and lock the slot door.

Current Schedule (subject to change):
◦ Friday, October 11, 2024

◦ Thursday, October 17, 2024

◦ Wednesday, October 23, 2024

◦ Monday, October 28, 2024

◦ Wednesday, October 30, 2024

◦ Friday, November 1, 2024

◦ Monday, November 4, 2024

◦ Tuesday, November 5, 2024



Vote-by-Mail Ballot Reminders

Before You Return Your Vote-by-Mail Ballot:
1. Your ballot must be in the yellow return envelope 

provided with your ballot.

2. Sign your return envelope and print your residential 
address. A signature is required in order for your 
ballot to be counted.

Any Voter may request a Remote Accessible 
Vote by Mail Ballot (RAVBM). 
The RAVBM Ballot is emailed to the voter to download, 
print, fill out by pen, and mail back to the Mono County 
Elections office to be counted. 

Sign up to track your Vote-by-Mail Ballot on 
“Where’s My Ballot”: WheresMyBallot.sos.ca.gov

WheresMyBallot.sos.ca.gov


What Happens When a Vote-by-Mail Ballot is Received?

Ballots 
received

Ballot check-in / 
Signature 
verification

Ballot Sorting / 
Storage



What Happens When a Vote-by-Mail Ballot is Received?

Ballots 
received

Ballot check-in / 
Signature 
verification

Ballot Sorting / 
Storage



What Happens When a Vote-by-Mail Ballot is Received?

Ballots 
received

Ballot check-in / 
Signature 
verification

Ballot Sorting / 
Storage



Vote-by-Mail Ballot Processing on Election Day 

Central Count Ballot Scanner / Tabulator
◦ Ballots, scanned in batches, are processed based on jurisdictional requirements 

and preferences.

◦ Once scanned, ballots meeting certain conditions (e.g. write-in candidate, over 
vote, etc.) are automatically sent to the Adjudication application for digital ballot 
review.



Voting in Person at a Poll Place

Voting in Person at a Poll Place:

1. Confirm your polling location: 

https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/mono-county-voting-

precincts-polling-places

2. Vote at your polling location between 7AM-8PM on Election Day.

https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/mono-county-voting-precincts-polling-places
https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/mono-county-voting-precincts-polling-places


What Happens to a Ballot Cast at a Polling Place?

After Polls have closed at 8:00 PM 

on Election Day:
◦ County IT / Elections Staff shut down voting 

machines.

◦ Ballots and CompactFlash memory cards are 

collected from each voting machine.

◦ Ballot Transport Teams of two transport Ballots 

and CompactFlash memory cards from each 

polling location to the Election Office in 

Bridgeport.



Results & Tally Reporting

◦ Initial results will be available after 8:00 PM on 

Election Day and posted on the Election Results 

page. 

◦ These semi-official results will include early 

Vote-by-Mail ballots received. 

◦ Results will be updated as polling place ballots 

are delivered to our office throughout the 

evening. 

◦ When all precincts are 100% reporting, then all 

polling places have returned to our office with 

their ballots. This does not mean all ballots 

have been counted.

◦ Results will continue to be updated daily as 

Vote-by-Mail ballots are received and processed.



Results & Tally Reporting

11/5



Results & Tally Reporting

11/5

◦ By law we must count ballots received after Election 

Day if they are postmarked on or before Election Day 

and arrive by mail no later than 7 days after the 

election. The number of ballots that arrive by mail after 

Election Day is unpredictable and varies each election.

◦ Ballots postmarked on or before Election Day can 

be received and counted until November 12, 2024.

◦ Ballots received by other counties must be forwarded 

to Mono County no later than eight days after receipt 

and will be counted provided they were received by the 

other county on or before Election Day. 



Results & Tally Reporting

3/5

◦ Vote-by-Mail ballots received at the last minute are 

counted after Election Day. These include:

◦ Vote-by-Mail ballots retrieved from drop boxes on November 4, 

2024 and Election Day.

◦ Vote-by-Mail ballots dropped off at polling locations on Election 

Day.



Results & Tally Reporting

3/5

◦ Provisional ballots are processed after Election Day 

and will be counted after elections officials have 

confirmed the person's eligibility.

◦ Provisional ballots are cast by voters who arrived at a 

polling place, but their name was not on the voter list, 

or their information is incorrect. 



Results & Tally Reporting

3/5

◦ Ballots that are torn, damaged, or marked in a way that 

make tallying by machine impossible will require 

additional processing. This can include duplication 

and/or adjudication. 

◦ UOCAVA (Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee 

Voting Act) and RAVBM (Remote Accessible Vote-By-

Mail) ballots also require duplication. 



Results & Tally Reporting

3/5

◦ A vote-by-mail ballot must be signed by the voter to whom it 

was printed for and then signature verified by human eyes 

before they are counted. 

◦ If a ballot envelope is returned with no signature, it will 

immediately be challenged. 

◦ If a ballot envelope is returned with a signature that does not 

match the voter’s registration record, it will be challenged. 

◦ Voters will be alerted via email (if an email is on file) within 

24 hours of their ballot being challenged. Election staff will 

also mail out letters with instructions on how to “cure” (fix) 

the ballot.

◦ Signature Verification Statements must be received by the 

Mono County Elections office no later than 5 p.m. two (2) 

days prior to certification of the election, November 20, 2024.



Results & Tally Reporting

◦ Adjudication is the process of reviewing a ballot that has 
been flagged during scanning. 

◦ There are many reasons why a ballot is flagged and must go 
into adjudication. 

◦ A voter may have written in a candidate (the machine cannot read 
handwriting).

◦ Too many candidates/choices were selected.

◦ There are ambiguous marks on the ballot that the scanner cannot 
read.

◦ This process must be done in teams of two. Using what they 
can see on the ballot, the team will confirm the voter’s 
intention before submitting the ballot for tabulation. 

◦ Adjudication is time consuming, requires multiple staff 
members and can slow down the speed of tabulation if there 
are large quantities of ballots in need of review.



Results & Tally Reporting

◦ This voter wrote in two candidates not printed on the 

ballot. Only certified write in candidates (those who 

have filed paperwork with the elections office to 

become a write in candidate) will be counted. 

◦ Fictional characters, random names and non-certified 

candidates for a contest will not be counted. 

◦ In this case, Mickey Mouse must be rejected as a vote 

because he is not a real candidate. If Robbie B. is a 

certified write in candidate, that vote will be counted.



Results & Tally Reporting

◦ This voter made a mistake, fixed it themselves and then 

made notes for the Election Office. A team can clearly see 

the voter’s intention and will reject James M. as a selection.



Results & Tally Reporting

◦ This voter overvoted in one contest, wrote a random 

note at the corner and scribbled something unreadable 

at the center of the ballot. 

◦ The overvoted contest cannot be counted and the team 

reviewing the ballot will do nothing because it is 

impossible to confirm the voter’s intention. 

◦ The ambiguous scribble is clearly not a vote and the 

“Buy milk later” has nothing to do with the ballot. Those 

marks will be ignored and do not affect the contests. 

◦ The vote for Abe L. will be counted.



Results & Tally Reporting

◦ Duplication is the process of remaking a ballot that has 

been damaged and cannot be read by a scanner.

◦ A ballot is considered damaged if:

◦ It is torn, cut or ripped

◦ It is covered by a substance that makes it impossible to scan (gum, 

stickers, coffee, etc.)

◦ It is marked by a red pen (or other colors besides black and blue)

◦ UOCAVA (Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee 

Voting Act) ballots printed by the voter and submitted by 

fax or mail must be duplicated. 

◦ RAVBM (Remote Accessible Vote-By-Mail) ballots 

printed by the voter and submitted by mail must be 

duplicated.



Canvass

◦ The canvass is a culmination of all the data generated 

during an election cycle. 

◦ More importantly, it is a process that allows election 

officials to confirm the accuracy of election data and 

identify areas for improvement. 

◦ By law, California county elections officials have 30 

days, also known as the canvass period, to count every 

valid ballot and conduct a required post-election audit. 



Canvass

◦ During the official canvass of every election in which a 

voting system is used, the official conducting the 

election shall conduct a public 1% manual tally of the 

ballots tabulated by those devices, including vote by 

mail ballots.

◦ If 1% of the precincts is less than one whole precinct, 

the tally shall be conducted in one precinct chosen at 

random by the elections official.

◦ In addition to the 1% count, election officials shall, for 

each race not included in the initial group of precincts, 

count one additional precinct. The manual tally in that 

additional precinct shall apply only to the race not 

previously counted. 



Certification

◦ Election certification refers to the process of election 

officials attesting that the tabulation and canvassing of 

the election are complete and accurate and that the 

election results are a true and accurate accounting of all 

votes cast in a particular election. 

◦ County elections officials must finalize their official 

results to the Secretary of State by 30 days after the 

election. The Secretary of State will then certify the 

results 38 days after the election.

◦ The Registrar of Voters will certify election results on 

November 22, 2024. Results are not final until 

certified.



Recounts

◦ In local contests, it is common for a handful of votes to 

determine the outcome of the election.

◦ A recount is the actual retabulation of voted ballots to 

confirm the certified election results.

◦ Any registered California voter can request a recount.

◦ The request for a recount must be filed within five 

calendar days after the completion of the official 

canvass. 

◦ The Registrar starts the recount no later than seven 

calendar days following the receipt of the request.

◦ The party requesting the recount pays the actual costs 

to conduct the recount. 



Fraud Prevention

◦ Ballot reconciliation is a routine part of the official vote 
counting canvass that happens after the election.

◦ Every signature on a vote-by-mail ballot envelope is 
compared against the signature on the voter’s 
registration form. If it does not match the ballot, it is not 
counted.

◦ “First in wins.” If a voter was issued more than one 
ballot, whichever ballot is received by our office first is 
the one that is counted. 

◦ All voting systems are tested and certified by the 
Secretary of State. Counties are required to perform 
logic and accuracy testing on voting systems prior to 
each election.

◦ Report any suspected illegal voting to the Secretary of 
State’s Election Fraud Investigation Unit at (916) 657-
2166 and to Mono County Elections immediately.



Election Security

It is a felony for any person to possess a firearm at a voting 

location or in the immediate vicinity of a voting location. Similarly, 

it is illegal for any uniformed peace officer, private guard, or 

security personnel or any person who is wearing a uniform of a 

peace officer, guard, or security personnel from being stationed 

at or in the immediate vicinity of a voting location. (Elec. Code, § 

18544.)

We contact our local law enforcement agencies to inform them of 

polling and drop box locations in the event there is a situation 

where law enforcement is needed.



Election Security

Mono County IT and Elections take cybersecurity very seriously.

We follow industry best practices for securing election systems.

◦ Software and patch management

◦ Log management

◦ Network segmentation

◦ Credential management

◦ Organization-wide IT guidance and policies

◦ Security Incident Response Plan



Election Observers

Elections are a public process, and transparency is an important part of 

ensuring voters have confidence in the accuracy and integrity of the 

election results.

Below are some of the aspects of elections activities that are open for the 

public to observe. Please note some dates are subject to change.

◦ Touch Screen Ballot Marking Device Preparation and 

Testing (Oct 7-11)

◦ Central Count Ballot Scanner/Tabulator Preparation and 

Testing (Oct 7-11)

◦ Returned Vote by Mail Ballot Processing (Oct 7-Nov 20)

◦ Polling Place Locations (Election Day)

◦ Election Night Ballot Receipt and Counting (Election Day)

◦ Official Canvass (Nov 6-22)

https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/election-observers

https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/election-observers


California Trusted Information

Mono County and the Secretary of State’s Office is committed to 

ensuring that elections are free, fair, safe, secure, accurate, and 

accessible. Misinformation and disinformation continues to confuse 

voters and sow distrust in the electoral process. The Secretary of 

State’s Rumor Control page is designed to provide clear and accurate 

information in response to some of the most widespread rumors about 

elections.

www.sos.ca.gov/elections/election-cybersecurity/trusted-information

https://www.sos.ca.gov/elections/election-cybersecurity/trusted-information


California Trusted Information



California Trusted Information



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

Visit https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/frequently-asked-questions-faqs

https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections/page/frequently-asked-questions-faqs


Misinformation / Disinformation Resources

• Cornell University Library - Misinformation, 

Disinformation, and Propaganda: 
https://guides.library.cornell.edu/evaluate_news 

• Understanding Bias: 
https://newslit.org/tips-tools/understanding-bias/

• How to speak up without starting a showdown: 
https://newslit.org/tips-tools/how-to-speak-up-without-starting-a-showdown/

• Reliable Fact-Checking Sites: 
FactCheck.org

PolitiFact

Snopes.com

Washington Post Fact Checker

https://guides.library.cornell.edu/evaluate_news
https://newslit.org/tips-tools/understanding-bias/
https://newslit.org/tips-tools/how-to-speak-up-without-starting-a-showdown/
https://www.factcheck.org/
https://www.politifact.com/
https://www.snopes.com/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/fact-checker/?utm_term=.3f248c5b0037


Keep Up to Date on Elections!

Visit monocounty.ca.gov/elections 

for more information.

◦ Frequently Asked Questions

◦ Candidates

◦ Measures

◦ Where to Vote

◦ Ways to Vote

◦ Election Results

◦ Subscribe to Election Updates

monocounty.ca.gov/elections


Questions?

Phone: (760) 932-5537

Email: elections@mono.ca.gov

Website: https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections

Office: 74 N. School Street, Bridgeport, CA 93517

Mailing Address: PO Box 237, Bridgeport, CA 93517

mailto:elections@mono.ca.gov
https://monocounty.ca.gov/elections


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: County Administrative Office
TIME REQUIRED 15 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Sandra Moberly, County
Administrative OfficerSUBJECT Yosemite National Park Visitor

Access Management Plan

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Yosemite National Park has released a draft Visitor Access Management Plan and Environmental Assessment for public
review. As our economy and visitation are tied to Yosemite National Park, staff has provided comments on the Plan in a
number of areas. The letter and staff report will be uploaded after publication of the packet due to the short window for

comments on the Plan. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Review the letter and provide edits if needed. This letter was submitted on September 30, but a revised letter can be
accepted if necessary. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
None. 

CONTACT NAME: Sandra Moberly

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5415 / smoberly@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/24/2024 9:46 PM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 9/24/2024 1:37 PM Finance Yes

 9/25/2024 9:15 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: County Administrative Officer
TIME REQUIRED 30 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing
Opportunities Manager and Mary
Snyder, Special Projects Mono County
Administration

SUBJECT Housing Management Plan for the
Bridgeport Apartments

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Presentation by Tyrone Grandstrand and Mary Snyder regarding the Housing Management Plan for the Bridgeport
Apartments.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Bridgeport Apartments Management Plan, subject to minor and non-substantive modifications, reviewed and
approved by County Counsel and CAO.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Mary Snyder

PHONE/EMAIL:  / msnyder@Mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Bridgeport Management Plan

 Staff Report

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/24/2024 9:51 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/25/2024 3:57 PM Finance Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34324&ItemID=18998

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34326&ItemID=18998


 9/26/2024 2:21 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 
 
 

MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
 
 

This Management Plan is made this ____day of _________, 2024 
 
 

LEGAL NAME OF PROPERTY: _Bridgeport Junction Apartments   
CITY/STATE: _Bridgeport, California  
NUMBER OF BUILDINGS: _3, NUMBER OF UNITS: _5_ 
RESTRICTIONS: _2 units for County Employees, 3 units for General Public 
LEGAL NAME OF PROPERTY MANAGER: _Mono County or Designee  
 

DEFINITIONS 

As used in the management plan: 
a. The “Owner" legal entity in control of the property, named herein, reserves the right to 

formulate all systems, policies, procedures, and regulations which are to be imposed. 

b. “Owner Agent” key contact person with complete and absolute authority of Owner.  

c. "Manager” property management entity named herein. Responsible for the day-to- day 
operation of the property and implementation of the Owner’s policies, procedures and 
regulations. Including but not limited to supervision of the employees, property manager, 
caretaker, and any additional employees that the property may require.  

d. “Management Agent” key contact person with complete and absolute authority of 
Manager and staff responsible for operation of property named herein.  

 

RESTRICTIONS 
Two (2) units are reserved for County staff, with the remaining three (3) units being available first to the 
General Public.  Should no one from the General Public be interested in renting a unit when vacant, that 
unit will be offered to County staff.  When there are more than two units occupied by County staff, any 
unit that becomes vacant shall be made available first to the General Public. 

 

Rent for County employees shall not exceed 30% of their base salary or 95% of Fair Market Rent for 
Mono County, minus the payment standard utility rates for any utilities paid by the employee, whichever 
is less. 

 

Income limits for the general public will be 120% AMI for the household size, rent shall not exceed 
30% of the 120% AMI income for a 3-person household or 95% of the Fair Market Rent for Mono 
County, minus the payment standard utility rates for any utilities paid by the renter, whichever is less. 

 

OWNER AND MANAGER RESPONSIBILITES 

1. The Manager will report to the Owner on a periodic basis concerning all aspects of the operation.  

2. The Manager must consult the Owner before deviating from set policies which are to be imposed, or 
for any expenditures which are beyond the normal budget for proper operation of the property.  

3. The Owner and Manager will work together to implement existing government requirements to 
ensure Equal Opportunity regarding the hiring of all employees. Residents will be given the 
opportunity to be employed in such capacities as they are judged capable. 



4. Staffing needs to ensure adequate property management including communication with renters, rent 
collection, as well as general maintenance and upkeep. 

 
5. The property manager will be responsible for the performance of their employees. The Manager will 

decide if their work is satisfactory or if they are not capable of proper performance and should be 
replaced in order to meet the needs of the property owner. 

 

MARKETING, OCCUPANCY, AND MEETING AFFIRMATIVE FAIR HOUSING 
MARKETING PLAN REQUIREMENTS: 

1. Manager’s advertising program is consistent with the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan. All 
the advertising includes the Equal Housing Opportunity statement or logo, the international 
accessibility logo, and the TDD phone number. The agencies listed on the Affirmative Fair Housing 
Marketing Plan that address the low-income or minority persons who traditionally would not be 
expected to apply for such housing without special outreach efforts are contacted by correspondence 
regarding the property and its amenities. The Affirmative Fair Housing Market Plan will be posted 
on the property’s on-site bulletin board. 

2. Periodic advertising is done to establish and maintain a waiting list for the project in order to achieve 
and maintain the highest level of occupancy obtainable. Advertising shall be done continually on the 
County Social Media and internet platforms, and at least once every 3 months, or when a vacancy 
occurs, in local newspapers.  In addition, if the vacancy occurs and there is less than 2 units filled by 
County staff, a minimum of three emails shall be sent to all County staff. 

3. When a notice is received of an apartment being vacated and there is no one presently on the waiting 
list that is interested in that vacant apartment, advertisements are placed in the local newspaper, 
social media and at local social service agencies.  

4. County employees will be given preference for two (2) units, with the other three (3) units being 
available to the general public.  A recruitment specific to County employees will be conducted using 
the County email system, when such vacancy occurs.  County employees will have 10 calendar days 
to respond, then a lottery will be conducted to select the resident.   

5. As vacancies occur, a lottery will be used to select the next occupant after advertising the opening for 
at least 10 days. Advertisements shall be placed in the Sheet; the Mammoth Times; on social media 
sites managed by the County and Manager as well as other sites targeted to the Bridgeport 
Community; Bridgeport business email list (including schools, state and federal agency offices, and 
Bridgeport Chamber) and local bulletin boards (post office, grocery stores, county offices, library, 
etc). 

6. Selection by Lottery: If there are currently at least two units occupied by County employees, then the 
lottery should only include non-County employees.  If the first three non-County applicants decline 
the unit, then the County employees will be included in the lottery.  These County employees will be 
soliciting in accordance with #5 above. The waiting list will be updated periodically to determine 
continued interest in occupancy. 

7. Interpreters will be contacted to assist with any resident who needs assistance in communication due 
to hearing or sight impairments. The Manager will entertain suggestions from applicants, residents, 
and members of the public on how to meet their special needs in this regard. The property will use 
telecommunication device for the deaf (TDD) or an equally effective system, provide readers and 
publish materials in large print as needed. 

8. Upon request the Manager can readily provide reasonable accommodations for those residents that 
have a need. These adaptations include but are not limited to: grab bars and assignment of parking 
space. 

A. The Manager will accept requests from residents/applicants for reasonable accommodations 
in rules, policies, practices, or services when such accommodations may be necessary to 
afford the disabled person equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling unit, including 



public and common areas. 

B. The Manager will make these reasonable housing adjustments and alterations at an Owner’s 
own expense as long as the accommodation does not result in the fundamental alternation in 
the nature of the property or program or result in undue financial and administrative burdens. 
If the modification would result in undue financial or administrative burden, the Manager 
may suggest that the individual may wish to make the modification at his or her own 
expense. 

9. Prospective residents will be given a tour of the property to familiarize them with the property. An 
apartment inspection report will be used to record apartment conditions prior to a new resident’s 
occupancy and again at move out. Copies of the apartment inspection report will be given to the 
resident and also be placed in the resident’s file. At the time of the lease signing, the provisions of 
the lease will be carefully explained to the resident. The Manager will also review the Resident 
Handbook and the proper procedure for cleaning and maintaining the equipment and facilities of the 
units. Printed property information will be given to the resident in regard to the above- mentioned 
items. 

 

ELIGIBILITY AND TENANT INCOME CERTIFICATIONS: 

1. Applications and any other records relevant are kept in individual files. These records are maintained 
for the compliance period if applicable, and for as long as the owner requires, whichever is longer. 
The most recent four years are in the current files and other prior years records are placed in storage, 
physical or electronic. The Manager will be responsible for keeping all pertaining records. 

2. The Manager has developed a high level of knowledge, skills, and abilities in regard to application 
processing, eligibility, selection, unit assignment, certification, recertification, rent or occupancy 
charge and occupancy surcharge collection and recordkeeping. Manager staff is current with 
regulations related to above mentioned practice and administration. 

 

LEASING AND OCCUPANCY POLICY: 

1. The Rules of Occupancy will be provided to each resident as an addendum to their lease and will be 
posted on the property site bulletin board.  

2. Initial resident selection is the most important facet of the management function. The Manager will 
be aware of the importance of the screening process and will work closely with prospective residents 
in determining their eligibility and desirability for the property. This most important undertaking will 
be handled by a staff that understand people. They will be sensitive to the needs of the people 
involved yet be cognizant of the economics of the property; being realistic, practical and using good 
sound business judgment while maintaining an objective stance.  

3. Management Agent has high level of knowledge, skill, and ability in addressing lease provisions, 
lease prohibitions, occupancy standards, and admission policies. 

4. The original lease and occupancy paperwork will be printed in English and Spanish. If a person does 
apply who cannot read or speak English or Spanish, an interpreter will be made available. 

 

RENT AND OCCUPANCY CHARGE COLLECTION POLICES AND PROCEDURES: 

1. Rents will be payable on or before the fifth (5th) day of every month. If this time is not convenient for 
some residents, other times can be pre-arranged, such as bi-weekly payment schedules. Prepayments 
will be accepted and encouraged wherever possible. Special arrangements will be made for residents 
whose regular pay schedule does not correspond to the normal collection period. 

2. On the sixth (6
th

) day of the month, all residents who have not paid their rent will be assessed a $50 
late charge, and sent a 3-day notice by mail.  

3. Rents will be either deposited in a rent collection box at the site (accessible 24/7) or mailed in pre-



addressed envelopes to the Manager. Rent collection is the responsibility of the Manager. 

4. Rent payments will be collected by the Manager and an accurate record kept of the payments. All 
rents and other receipts shall be deposited in the project’s operating account in a bank whose deposits 
are insured by the F.D.I.C. Manager has a computer software system which includes an accounts 
receivable system of recording all rents received. 

 
5. A security deposit equivalent to one month’s rent is required. All funds collected as security deposits 

shall be kept in a security account in a bank whose deposits are insured by the F.D.I.C. Manager has a 
computer software system which includes an accounts receivable system of recording all security 
deposits received for the property. Security deposit collection is the responsibility of the Manager. 
Return of resident security deposits is handled in accordance with State Law. 

 
 

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE - KEEPING CLEAN, SAFE & SANITARY CONDITIONS:  

1. The property caretaker will be responsible for routine maintenance and responsive maintenance to the 
extent where a professional is required. Maintenance and service repair contracts will be made by the 
Manager for services on a scheduled basis for the property facilities to provide preventative 
maintenance. The Manager shall be responsible for the monitoring and implementation of the 
preventative maintenance plans. If funds are not available to conduct inspection, manager will notify 
Owner. Heating and hot water heating equipment will be serviced on an annual basis. The Manager 
will also be responsible for making requests for long term maintenance. A yearly inspection of the 
total property will be made for the purposes of the annual maintenance report. 

2. The property’s as-built plans and specifications will be located at the Manager’s office. When 
property modifications are made, it will be the responsibility of the Manager to update the plans. 

A. An inventory will be made of all appliances and mechanical equipment. All appliances will 
be checked for proper operation before initial occupancy. This will be the responsibility of 
the Manager. 

B. Smoke detectors and Carbon Monoxide detectors will be provided in each apartment as well as in 
common areas as required by state and city code. Fire extinguishers shall be provided and 
serviced as required by state and city code. Fire extinguishers are serviced on an annual basis 
by a vendor who specializes in this service. Ice removal will be addressed by the caretaker as 
soon as possible after ice occurs. Safety checks on outside lighting will be performed 
periodically. 

C. Prior to a move-out, an inspection will be made by the Manager of the rental apartment. All 
necessary repairs, decorating and clean-up work will be noted on the Unit Inspection Report. 
It is the responsibility of the current resident to shampoo the carpet prior to move-out and 
provide a receipt as proof of having done so. It is also the responsibility of the resident to 
wash down all walls, scrub the bathroom clean, clean the kitchen stove and refrigerator and 
scrub the floors. Prior to move-in, the apartment will be checked to verify completion of the 
necessary work. The unit will be painted by the Manager if it is deemed necessary. 

D. Exterior painting is anticipated to be scheduled for every 10-12 years (if applicable). Interior 
unit and common area painting is anticipated to be every 3–5 years. Carpet replacement is 
anticipated to be scheduled every 10-12 years. Exterior and interior painting and carpet 
replacement are completed by private vendors and competitive bids are requested. 

E.  Major repairs shall be coordinated with the Mono County Public Works Department to 
ensure compliance with Mono County Code and the Universal Public Procurement 
Certification Council, and other applicable local, state and/or federal laws.The property will 
receive local pick-up of garbage on a regular schedule and residents will be advised of the 
schedule. Each resident shall use the dumpsters provided. Wherever possible, the Manager 
will participate and encourage the participation of residents in the local recycle programs 
provided it is not cost prohibitive or excessively burdensome on property. 



F. Property sidewalks will be kept clear of snow and ice in the winter and swept as needed 
during the rest of the year. Sidewalk snow removal, when necessary, will be handled by the 
property caretaker. Heavy snow removal will be done on a contract basis. The property’s 
insurance will hold harmless any representative of Manager. 

3. Residents will be informed in the pre-occupancy conference of the need to report any maintenance 
problems within their units directly to the Manager who will record the complaint on the appropriate 
form. The Manager will coordinate repairs with Mono County Public Works. 

4. All maintenance purchase orders will be handled by the Manager. Invoices will be paid within two to 
three weeks depending on the timing of the receipt of the invoice. 

5. A long-term asset management plan will be developed for the property and asset inventory will be 
reviewed on an annual basis during budget preparation. Items of repair or replacement will be 
categorized for payment with operating or reserve funds. For any major repair or replacement item 
that would be subject to use of reserve funds, three bids would be solicited. The Manager would 
designate the vendor and bid that Manager feels is acceptable. 

 

ACCOUNTING, RECORDKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: 

1. Resident and operating accounts are to be prepared and maintained by the Manager. The Manager’s 
property management software tracks and keeps records of accounts payable, accounts receivable, 
resident records and financial statements. Bank accounts established for this property will be the 
general operating account, real estate tax and insurance escrow account, reserve account, and security 
deposit account. 

2. The Manager’s bookkeeping chart of accounts and bank accounts are set up to industry standard 
accounting practices. 

3. The Manager will be responsible for the preparation and submission of the quarterly and annual 
reports required by the Owner. 

4. Project audits will be conducted by an independent Certified Public Accountant who is not associated 
with the property. This will be certified on the engagement report. 

5. A separate file will be maintained for each resident. All relevant information pertaining to this 
resident will be included in the file. This information will be retained for a period of not less than 
four years while the resident is living in the unit and for Six years after the resident has vacated the 
unit. The Manager will be responsible for maintaining these records. 

6. Records subject to State Agency review regarding resident files and occupancy will be kept at the 
properties on site office 

 

ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES: 

1. The resident directly controls the conservation of energy in the following areas: timing of the use of 
hot water; regulation of thermostats; window infiltration, i.e. application of insulated shades or other 
window treatment; lighting needs in the individual units; and heat-loss caused by opening windows 
for ventilation. These conservation practices will affect the use of electricity and natural gas. 

A. To stimulate energy conservation, the Manager will provide a continuing program of 
education in energy use for the residents. This will be through group sessions and/or periodic 
flyers. 

B. Residents will be oriented to energy conservation measures upon moving into the property by 
means of an orientation session outlining ways they can reduce energy and thus reduce 
overall operating costs. 

 

MANGEMENT TRAINING PROGRAMS. 



1. The Manager is required to take continuing education classes and fair housing classes at a minimum 
on a bi-annual basis to keep up with the industry.  

 

TERMINATION OF LEASES OR OCCUPANCY AGREEMENTS AND EVICTIONS: 

1. The Manager is responsible for knowing and administering State, local laws and any other State or 
Federal requirements regarding termination of leases or occupancy agreements and evictions. 

2. The Manager is responsible for knowing and administering State, local laws and any other State or 
Federal requirements regarding the notification that must be given to a resident or member when 
termination of lease or occupancy agreement is proposed and subsequent eviction procedures through 
the State or local judicial process. 

 

INSURANCE 

1. The Manager is responsible for knowing and complying with the Owner’s or lender’s requirement 
for fidelity coverage and acquiring such coverage. 

2. The Manager is responsible for knowing and complying with the Owner’s or lender’s insurance 
coverage requirements and acquiring such coverage. 

 

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND COMPENSATION 

1. The Manager is responsible for a complete and signed Management Agreement. 

2. Management fee will be listed in the current approved budget with the Owner and Management 
Agent. 

 

VALIDITY OF THE MANAGEMENT PLAN: 

The Management Plan will be revised at any time a major change occurs such as the owner, 
Federal, State, or Local agencies requiring a modification to the plan, changes occurring in 
project operations, or if the property is transferred from one borrower to another. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal Parties (by their duly authorized officers) have executed 
this Management Plan on the date first above written. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page follows] 



 

OWNER: 
 
 
 
 

By:  
Its: General Partner 

 
 

By:  
Its:  

 
 
 

By:_ 
   
Name:  
Title:  

 
 
 
 

MANAGER: 
 
 
 

By: 

 
Name:  
Title: 



 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

CHAIR 
John Peters / District 4 

VICE CHAIR 
Lynda Salcido / District 5 
 

Jennifer Kreitz / District 1 
Rhonda Duggan / District 2 
Bob Gardner / District 3 
 
COUNTY DEPARTMENTS 

ASSESSOR 
Hon. Barry Beck 

DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
Hon. David Anderson 

SHERIFF / CORONER 
Hon. Ingrid Braun 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
Robin Roberts 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
Wendy Sugimura 

COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER 
Queenie Barnard 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
Chris Beck 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Liz Grans “Interim” 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES 
Bryan Bullock 

FINANCE 
Janet Dutcher, DPA, MPA, 
CGFM, CPA  

HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES 
Kathryn Peterson 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
Mike Martinez 

PROBATION 
Karin Humiston 

PUBLIC WORKS 
Paul Roten 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
COUNTY OF MONO 

Sandra Moberly, MPA, AICP 

ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
Christine Bouchard 

 
 

 
 

 To: Mono County Board of Supervisors 

From: Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing Opportunities Manager 

Date: October 1, 2024 

Re:  Management Plan for Bridgeport Junction Apartments 

Strategic Plan Focus Area(s) Met 

 A Thriving Economy     Safe and Healthy Communities    Mandated Function 

 Sustainable Public Lands      Workforce & Operational Excellence 

Discussion 

On October 15, 2024, Mono County is scheduled to complete the purchase of a property 
in Bridgeport that includes four apartments and a manager’s unit, previously known as 
the Bridgeport Junction Apartments.  The four apartments have been used as short-term 
rentals for several years, so this will provide additional long-term housing for the 
Bridgeport community.  The manager’s unit will become available as a rental unit 
sometime within the next two years. 

Attached for Board approval is the Management Plan for these apartments.  The plan 
includes the following provisions: 

 Two apartments will be reserved for County employees.  Rent shall not exceed 
30% of the employee's base salary or 95% of the Fair Market Rent1 (FMR) for the 
unit, whichever is less. 

o Ex. Employee paid $50,000 annually, maximum rent $1,250 minus a 
utility allowance for any utilities directly paid 

o Maximum based on FMR: $1,418 minus a utility allowance for any 
utilities directly paid by tenant 

 Three units will be made available to the general public who qualify at the 120% 
AMI level or below.  Rent shall be 30% of AMI for a family of three or 95% of 
Fair Market Rent for the unit, whichever is less. 

o Maximum based on FMR: $1,418 minus a utility allowance for any 
utilities directly paid by tenant 

o Currently 120% AMI is much higher than FMR 

 
1 Fair Market Rent will be reduced by the standard utility rate for any utilities paid by the tenant. 



Page 2 of 2 
October 1, 2024 

 Vacant units shall be advertised for a minimum of 10 days, using the Mammoth Times, the Sheet, 
County email blast (for County units), signs on local bulletin boards, social media, and contact with 
local employers (schools, forest service, Bridgeport Chamber). 

 Selection shall be made by lottery.  If at least two units are currently occupied by County employees, the 
lottery shall not include any County employees.  If the first three non-County applicants decline the unit, 
County employees shall be added to the lottery. 

 All documents shall be made available in English and Spanish. 
 Rent is due and payable on the 5th of the month.  A late charge of $50 will be assessed on the 6th, and the 

property manager shall issue a 3-day notice, as required by law. 
 A security deposit equivalent to one month’s rent shall be collected. 
 Pets will be allowed, and renters will be subject to a pet deposit.  

The management plan also outlines maintenance schedules for the units, in order to ensure proper upkeep of the 
property. 

Next Steps 

If the Board approves this management plan, staff will complete the following: 

 Create a list of interested employees and non-employees. 
 Finalize all documents noted in the management plan (Resident Handbook, Rules of Occupancy, 

etc.). 
 Upon close of escrow, staff will inspect the property to determine what, if any, repairs are needed. 

Staff will complete these repairs prior to renting to tenants. This may include minor maintenance like 
new carpet and paint.  

 Staff will work to complete the property maintenance and lease up process as soon as possible to 
ensure that the property is occupied before January 1.  



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Public Works
TIME REQUIRED 5 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Paul Roten, Public Works Director

SUBJECT Mono County Jail Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Update regarding the progress in constructing the Mono County Jail on Twin Lakes Road in Bridgeport.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
None, informational only.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Paul Roten

PHONE/EMAIL: 7607090427 / proten@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Jail Update

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/18/2024 1:45 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 1:38 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:42 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34251&ItemID=18999


M ono County Jail 

Update
O ctober 1, 2024



M ono County Jail Update

� Project Schedule 

� Site Preparation

� Hazardous M aterial Rem oval

� Utility relocations

� Hospital dem olition

� Utility com pany coordination (pole rem oval)

� Soil M itigation (m oved into m ain contract)

� Present w ork tasks

� Next steps



M ono County Jail Schedule



Design update –no changes

Facility Site Plan



Floor Plan

Design update



Design update

Public Front/Entry



Design update

Secure/C ontrolled Access



Site Preparation –O ld M ono Hospital Site

� Asbestos rem oval is com plete

� Through an operation that took three phases, the hazardous m aterials at the hospital w ere 

rem oved

� The m onitoring efforts have now  show n that the site m aterials are safe for norm al disposal 

processes

� Utility Relocation and Dem olition

� Provide utilities for new  Jail

� Prepare site for the com paction process

� Rem ove overhead pow er lines and poles that are in w ay of new  construction

� Soil Rem ediation (m oved to m ain contract)

� Preparation of Bid Docum ents

� Bid / Aw ard and Execute C onstruction of RIC  process



Process

State Agencies Involved in 

Process:

� Board of State and C om m unity 

C orrections (BSC C )

� State Departm ent of G eneral Services 

(DG S Real Estate Services Branch)

� Departm ent of Finance (DO F) and State 

Public W orks Board (SPW B)

� O ffice of the State Fire M arshal



State Departm ent of G eneral Services –

Real Estate Services Branch

� Departm ent of G eneral Services Lease 

Agreem ent under review  w ith the DG S and 

BSC C  as w ell as C ounty C ounsel

� Board action to approve above resolution 

once approved.



Departm ent of Finance (DO F)

� M atch fund assurances resolution under 

review  w ith C ounty C ounsel, Departm ent of 

Finance and BSC C  

� Board item  to accept above resolution



Bid Aw ard Process

� Finalize Bid Package

� W orking w ith C ounty C ounsel and BSC C  on Aw ard 

Board Resolution language

� Board action requesting Authorization to bid 

� Bid Process

� Board action accepting the above Resolution for 

Authorization to Aw ard w ith Signatory authority

� BSC C  and DO F Authorization to AW ARD (typically 

90 days)

� Issuance of Notice to Proceed

� C onstruction begins… .



Q uestions?



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: County Administrative Office
TIME REQUIRED 10 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Sandra Moberly, County
Administrative OfficerSUBJECT 2024 - 25 Mono County Board of

Supervisors Governance Handbook
Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

On June 11-12, 2024, the Board conducted a governance workshop to discuss general governance issues and to review
and update the Mono County Governance Handbook. Staff has updated the Governance Handbook based on the
comments received during the workshop and has provided the Handbook to the Board for adoption consideration. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends that the Board review the updated Governance Handbook and adopt the Handbook as provided or with
changes as needed.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None. 

CONTACT NAME: Sandra Moberly

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5415 / smoberly@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Governance Session Memo

 2024-25 Governance Handbook

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34242&ItemID=18987

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34291&ItemID=18987

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34243&ItemID=18987


 9/23/2024 11:43 AM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:39 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 2:05 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

CHAIR 
John Peters / District 4 

VICE CHAIR 
Lynda Salcido / District 5 
 

Jennifer Kreitz / District 1 
Rhonda Duggan / District 2 
Bob Gardner / District 3 
 
COUNTY DEPARTMENTS 

ASSESSOR 
Hon. Barry Beck 

DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
Hon. David Anderson 

SHERIFF / CORONER 
Hon. Ingrid Braun 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
Robin Roberts 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
Wendy Sugimura 

COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER 
Queenie Barnard 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
Chris Beck 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Liz Grans “Interim” 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES 
Bryan Bullock 

FINANCE 
Janet Dutcher, DPA, MPA, 
CGFM, CPA  

HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES 
Kathryn Peterson 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
Mike Martinez 

PROBATION 
Karin Humiston 

PUBLIC WORKS 

Paul Roten 

 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

COUNTY OF MONO 
Sandra Moberly, MPA, AICP 

ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

Christine Bouchard 
 

 

 
 

 To: Board of Supervisors 

From: Sandra Moberly, CAO 

Date: October 1, 2024 

Re:  2024-25 Governance Handbook 

Strategic Plan Focus Area(s) Met 

 A Thriving Economy     Safe and Healthy Communities    Mandated Function 

 Sustainable Public Lands      Workforce & Operational Excellence 

Discussion 

On June 11-12, 2024 the Mono County Board of Supervisors, County Administrative 
Officer, County Counsel, and Department Heads participated in a two-day workshop 
focusing on the characteristics of high performing Boards and to discuss governance 
practices and review, develop and reconfirm their governance principles, norms, and 
operating protocols. Babs Kavanaugh, and Davis Campbell, Governance Consultants, 
facilitated these sessions. 

The governance workshop objectives were to create a shared understanding of high-
performance governance and to establish consensus on updates to the Mono County 
Governance Handbook. This agenda item would adopt and continue the Handbook for 
the 2024-25 Board term. 

 

Attachment: Revised Governance Handbook  



1 Mono County Effective Governance Workshop 

 

 

Babs Kavanaugh 

Organizational Development & Planning 

bkconsult@comcast.net 

DATE: June 27, 2024 

TO: Mono County Board of Supervisors:  John Peters, Lynda Salcido, Bob Gardner, Jennifer 

Kreitz, Rhonda Duggan   

Mono County Administrative Officer: Sandra Moberly 

Mono County Counsel: Christopher Beck 

FROM: Babs Kavanaugh, Governance Consultant 

(707) 696-3977 (mobile) 

bkconsult@comcast.net 

 

Mono County—Governance Workshop  

 

GOVERNANCE WORKSHOP OVERVIEW 
On June 11 and 12, 2024 the Mono County Board of Supervisors, County Administrative Officer 

and County Counsel participated in a two-day workshop on effective governance. The workshop 

provided an opportunity for the Supervisors and executive staff to discuss what it takes to be a 

high performing governance team and to reflect on their own governance infrastructure and 

processes. Babs Kavanaugh, and Davis Campbell, Governance Consultants, facilitated these 

sessions.     

 

The governance workshop objectives were to create a shared understanding of high-performance 

governance and to confirm consensus on the Mono County Governance Structure. This memo 

provides a summary of the discussions during the governance sessions.  Accompanying this 

memo are updates to the Mono County Governance Handbook.   

 

REFLECTIONS  
Each member provided answers to the questions below. The responses highlight the strengths 

and recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the governance team.    

 

Question 1. What do you think are the combined strengths of the present Board of 

Supervisors/Governance Team?  

• Our dedication and engagement.  We are five people who show up and do the work. 

• Our commitment to governance, ongoing learning and continuous improvement. 

• Effective communication.  Our weekly meetings with our County Administrative Officer.   

mailto:bkconsult@comcast.net


2 Mono County Effective Governance Workshop 

Question 1. What do you think are the combined strengths of the present Board of 

Supervisors/Governance Team?  

• The depth of connections to our Districts.  We are engaged with our constituents. We are 

accessible and we listen openly.   

• We have complimentary skill sets. Our perspectives, professional backgrounds and diversity of 

experience.  We invest the time into our areas of interest and expertise.   

• Overall compassion for our community members and our County. There is a strong sense of 

respect for staff and a desire to keep morale amongst staff high.  

• We care about the fiscal health of the County.  We recognize the strength and impact of the 

budget process.   

• Our commitment to housing. 

 

Question 2. What is an improvement you would suggest for strengthening the governance 

effectiveness of the Board of Supervisors/Governance Team? 

• A regular review of the Mono County Strategic Plan and ensuring that activities outside of 

the regular Board commitments are in line with those priorities. 

• Reexamine the timing on delivery of Board Meeting Packet – include ‘Upcoming 

Attractions’ in the packet. 

• Build trust among Supervisors, e.g., provide opportunities for the board to gather together  

• Be responsible to one another, we are here to help and not to judge  

• Assume best intentions, be aware of the impact of our actions on one another and staff  

• Enhance collaboration – we are in this together  

• Get more regular updates from County department heads 

• More workshops on policy (study sessions)  

• Remember to celebrate successes.   

 

NEXT STEPS  

• Highlight the Mono County Board of Supervisors commitment to Good Governance  

o Increase the visibility of the Mono County Governance Principles - Post the 

Governance Principles in the Board room.   

• Refresh the Mono County Strategic Plan.   Develop a consistent process for monitoring 

the proposed outcomes in the strategic plan 

• Prepare the annual Board meeting calendar each December with the following additions 

o Schedule Governance Discussion meetings bi-annually and as needed  

o Increase Department Updates  

o Increase the number of workshops/study sessions on policy  

o Schedule opportunities for supervisors to meet informally  

• Strengthen the orientation process for newly elected supervisors.  Ask seated supervisors 

what they wished they knew. Ensure that new supervisors meet with the department 

heads and visit each of the Districts. 

 



3 Mono County Effective Governance Workshop 

GOVERNANCE SESSIONS WRAP UP  

The Governance Team reflected on the governance sessions, providing feedback below.  

 

What was effective 

• The relationship with our County Administrative Officer (CAO).  Our CAO’s openness and 

honesty.  

• The BOS completed the Mono County Governance Self-Assessment in advance of the 

sessions and devoted time to review and discuss the results.   

• The time to be together and engage in thoughtful discussions, talking about concerns and 

shared interests.  These two days underscored that we see the importance of these open and 

focused conversations.   

• Attendance of many Mono County Department Heads on the first day of the two day 

workshop.  

• The flexibility of our facilitators. Including Department Heads in the discussions.  

 

What to improve in future governance sessions 

• To increase attendance by Department Heads in future workshops focused on governance.  

• To continue to foster these frank discussions and include Department Heads when possible.  

• To have more time to review and confirm the Mono County governance principles and 

norms.   

• To ask the CAO, CoCo and Department Heads to participate in future effective governance 

assessment processes.     

 



 

Mono County Board of Supervisors 
Governance Handbook 2024-25 
Members of the Board of Supervisors 2024 

District I – Jennifer Kreitz 

District II – Rhonda Duggan 

District III – Bob Gardner 

District IV – John Peters 

District V – Lynda Salcido 

 

The Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook was developed in 2022 and updated 

in October 2024. This Handbook outlines practices that build and sustain positive Board relationships. 

It is a living document that is regularly reviewed, and as needed, revised by the Board. 

 

The Handbook is intended to assist Supervisors in carrying out their roles, as well as to provide useful 

information to prospective supervisors and other interested citizens. 

 

Updated October 1, 2024 



2 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Table of Contents 

Effective Governance in the County of Mono California .......................................................... 3 

Effective Boards ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Unity of Purpose ..................................................................................................................... 3 

Roles & Responsibilities ................................................................................................................ 4 

The primary responsibilities of the Mono County Board of Supervisors ............................... 5 

Board Governance Mindset .................................................................................................... 6 

Unity of Purpose for Mono County ............................................................................................. 7 

Mission, Vision ....................................................................................................................... 7 

Core Values ............................................................................................................................. 7 

Mono County Board Governance Principles .......................................................................... 7 

Norms for a Positive Governance Culture .................................................................................. 8 

Norms within which we agree to work ................................................................................... 8 

Verbal and non-verbal communication ................................................................................... 9 

Protocols to Facilitate Governance Leadership .......................................................................... 9 

Definition ................................................................................................................................ 9 

Protocols: Unity of Purpose-Setting Direction ............................................................................ 9 

1. Protocol: Strategic Planning - Role of the Board of Supervisors ...................................... 9 

2. Protocol: Use of Board Conversation/Discussion Meetings ........................................... 10 

Protocols: Roles and Responsibilities ........................................................................................ 11 

3. Protocol: Interactions with County Staff ......................................................................... 11 

4. Protocol: Evaluating the County Administrator .............................................................. 11 

Protocols: Board Operations ...................................................................................................... 12 

5. Protocol: Board Meeting Agenda Development ............................................................. 12 

6. Protocol: Public Comment in Board Meetings ............................................................... 12 

7. Protocol: Electronic Communication During Board Meetings ....................................... 13 

8. Protocol: Self-Monitoring of Board Effectiveness .......................................................... 14 

9. Protocol: New Supervisor Orientation ............................................................................ 14 

Protocols: Board in the Community .......................................................................................... 15 

10. Protocol: Handling Complaints from the Community .................................................... 15 

Signature Page…………………………………………………………………………………………..16 

Appendix I – Mono County Procedural Manual ...................................................................... 17 

Appendix II – Welcoming New County Supervisors ................................................................ 43 



3 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Effective Governance in Mono County 

Mono County is governed by the elected Board of Supervisors. Governance is a fundamental function 

of all public agencies. Governance is the act of transforming the needs and desires of the community 

into policies that direct the County. The people of Mono County place their faith and trust that the 

Board will carry out its governance responsibilities meeting the highest standards of quality, 

effectiveness, and transparency. Whether in Board Chambers, out in the community, or at home, 

Board members are always stewards of the County. 

Effective Boards 

High performing Boards have four essential characteristics that are the building blocks of effective 

governance: 

1. Governing with a shared Moral Imperative leading to a Unity of Purpose 

A moral imperative is system wide, strategic and represents a deep commitment of the Supervisors 

and the County Administrative Officer. It is a unifying force that leads to a Unity of Purpose, strategic 

goals and success indictors. 

 

2. Governing within the role as a Board 

Effective boards value and respect their essential roles, reach mutual agreement on the roles of the 

Board and the County Administrative Officer and strive to operate within them. 

 

3. Creating a positive governance culture 

Culture is the tone created by the way people in an organization treat each other. Teams have 

unwritten (implicit) or written (explicit) agreements about how they will behave. These behavioral 

ground rules (norms) enable teams to build and maintain a positive culture or shift a negative one. 

4. Structuring the work for effective governance 

Effective boards discuss and agree on the formal structure and processes used by the Board, the 

CAO, and County Department Heads in their functioning as a team; how they operate and do 

business. 

Unity of Purpose 

Unity of Purpose is the common focus, mission, values, and goals Supervisors share about the 

organization and the residents they serve. A unity of purpose is a clear and unambiguous sense of 

purpose, a moral imperative, that becomes the inspiration behind all board efforts and the lens through 

which those efforts are viewed. A unity of purpose helps members transcend their differences to fulfill 

a greater purpose. A unified board is collaborative, cohesive, committed, and consistent. 



4 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

In all relationships, dealings and transactions, Board member’s act with integrity, openness, respect and 

honesty. Through these values the board strives to earn and convey trust. The board retains public trust 

through efficient and cost-effective stewardship of resources. 

 

Roles & Responsibilities 

One of the most important characteristics of an effective Board is its understanding and agreement on 

Board roles and responsibilities. Generally, governance is about setting policy by defining the “what” 

of the organization, and administration is focused on the “how” policy gets implemented. If the 

discussion is focused on long-term outcomes, it tends to be strategic; if it is about short-term objectives 

or incremental steps, it tends to be administrative. Since the line between policy and administration can 

vary from topic to topic or issue to issue, it is essential that the CAO and the Board have a clear, 

mutually agreed upon understanding of how their roles and responsibilities will be defined. 

 

Setting Strategic Direction 

 
 
 

 
Board: Policy / Strategic 

 

Oversight 
and Accountability Respect, Communication, Trust 

 
County Staff: 

Administration / Tactical 

 
Policy Direction 
and Approval 

 
Community Leadership 

Throughout 
 
 
 

 
Stewardship and Support 



5 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

The primary responsibilities of the Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 

Set the strategic 

direction for the 

County 

• Ensure the long-term moral purpose and vision is established for 

the County. 

• Identify strategic priorities and goals. 

• Charge staff with tactical decisions to support strategic 

direction 

Establish the 

governance structure 

for the County 

• Hire the CAO and County Counsel and set policy for the hiring 

of other personnel. 

• Establish budget priorities and adopt the County Budget. 

• Adopt ordinances and policies. 

• Effectively utilize various committees, and commissions. 

Provide support to 

the County 

After establishing the structure, the Board – through its plans and 

actions – has a responsibility to support the CAO and department heads 

as they carry out the direction of the Board. 

This involves. 

• Provide clear and consistent direction. 

• Support and advocate for programs and policies adopted by the 

Board. 

• Provide policy direction that supports programs and aligns 

resources. 

• Support staff carrying out the BOS direction. 

• Hold the Board accountable for high quality governance and 

adherence to Board protocols and policies. 

Ensure 

accountability 

• Hold the CAO accountable for achieving the goals set by the 

Board of Supervisors. 

• Monitor and assess the effectiveness of policies and programs 

approved by the Board. 

• Monitor the fiscal health of the County. 

Demonstrate 

community 

leadership 

• Engage and involve county residents and other interested 

parties in appropriate and meaningful ways in setting the 

priorities, goals, objectives, and major programs of the county. 

• Communicate clear information about county policies, the 

fiscal condition and progress on goals. 

• Listen intuitively to and be informed by the needs and concerns 

of residents. 

• Be visible and accessible. 



6 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Governance Mindset 

In order to carry out these responsibilities board members understand the need to govern with a shared 

governance mindset and a central moral purpose. 

Board Governance Mindset 
 

System 

Thinking 

Governance is a 

systems job. 
Individual board members understand that they are elected to 

govern the entire County and that counties are extremely 

complex systems. A systems thinker has transitioned from 

single issue, narrowed thinking to a fundamental 

understanding of how all pieces in the organization connect. 

Strategic 

Focus 

Governance is a 

strategic job. 
Effective board members always maintain a strategic focus in 

their work. They understand that individual board members 

do not have the authority to intervene into the administration 

of the County. They understand that they are on the Board to 

govern the County. 

Board members approach all their responsibilities with a 

clear focus on serving all people of County and achieving the 

strategic outcomes they have set. 

Preparation Effective Board 

Members are 

always prepared. 

Members of the board are committed to doing the deep 

learning necessary to make decisions based upon high quality 

information, evidence, and data. 

Manner Effective Board 

Members model 

civic behavior. 

Effective board members understand that how they govern is 

often more important than what they say or do. Working 

toward a common goal with other independently elected 

board members in a collaborative setting requires patience, 

understanding, respect and most importantly, common 

courtesy. They are always respectful of other members’ 

opinions. 



7 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Unity of Purpose for Mono County 

 

Our Mission 
• To support all our communities by delivering superior services while 

protecting our unique rural environment 

Our Vision 
• Outstanding Community Services 

• Quality of Life Beyond Compare 

Our Values 
• Customer service 

• Excellence 

• Integrity 

• Results oriented 

 
Governance Principles 

In recognition of this critical role the Board has adopted the following Governance Principles: 
 

Governance The Board of Supervisors will: 

• Govern as a team, strategically focused and mission driven in a 

dignified and professional manner treating everyone with civility and 

respect. 

• Be accountable to each other for the highest standards of board 

performance and effectiveness. 

• Understand and demonstrate that authority rests with the board as a 

whole. 

Stewardship 

and Sustainability 

The Board of Supervisors will be stewards of the community’s trust and 

resources by aligning goals, resources, and results and adhering to fiscally 

sound and sustainable practices. 

Decision Making The Board of Supervisors is committed to high quality, informed and 

evidence based decision making, governing Mono County with a systems 

perspective, not favoring one part of the County over another. 

Clarity And 

Coherence 

The Board of Supervisors will ensure that an effective organizational 

structure is in place that is based upon a clear understanding of the county 

strategic plan, strategic goals, and roles and responsibilities of all participants. 

Collaboration 

and Engagement 

The Board of Supervisors will govern in an environment of trust and active 

collaboration with the Mono County community, the CAO, staff and one 

another. 

Accessibility And 

Transparency 

The Board commits to transparency and accessibility to the Mono County 

community in all its activities with a commitment to high ethical standards in 

all its work. 



8 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Accountability The Board of Supervisors will establish standards of accountability in all 

county operations and commit to ongoing, continuous improvement. 

Guided by these Governance Principles, the Board will embrace effective governance standards and 

strategies that encompass the basic characteristics and behaviors which enable governance team 

members to effectively create a climate for excellence. Working as a team, the board members and the 

CAO leverage the efforts of the professional staff by: 

• Setting direction for the organization reflective of the community’s priorities. 

• Creating a supportive framework for action in the County. 

• Holding the County accountable through mutually agreed upon mechanisms. 

• Providing support to staff through behaviors and actions; and 

• Demonstrating community leadership on behalf of residents. 

 

Norms for a Positive Governance Culture 
 

An excellent governance culture is characterized by a board that operates in an environment of trust, 

respect, and professional demeanor at all times. The board sets the tone for the entire County in how it 

carries out its governance responsibilities. 

Norms within which we agree to work 

• Commit to effective governance. Success depends on participation – share ideas, ask questions, 

draw others out. 

• Create an atmosphere of respect and civility where elected officials, County staff, and the public 

are free to express their ideas. Address each other, staff, and community members with mutual 

respect. 

• Commit to a culture of collaboration. Respect each other’s thinking, value individual 

contributions, and give fair consideration to diverse and opposing viewpoints. 

• Assume positive intentions, of supervisor colleagues, staff, and community members. Work to 

understand others’ perspectives. Listen with attention, carefully and intuitively. 

• Refrain from lengthy discussion on topics related to previous board decisions. 

• Accept constructive disagreement as necessary to yield the best decisions. Critique ideas not 

people. 

• Be willing to challenge your own beliefs and ideas; stay open to new ways of doing things. 

Listen with an open mind to all information, including dissenting points of view, regarding 

issues presented to the Board. 

• Check for understanding as well as agreement; Ask questions when in doubt. 

• Celebrate successes together. 



9 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Communication is the currency of effective board members; it is both verbal and 

non-verbal 

 

 

Protocols to Facilitate Governance Leadership 

Definition 

Effective boards operate with formally adopted protocols that provide an operational framework for 

how board members will work together. Protocols are descriptions of the “way we do things here” and 

are important as guides for what is an acceptable and unacceptable process and behavior. Protocols 

exist whether they are specifically identified or not. When they are not overtly stated, they become the 

habits by which groups perpetuate behaviors, some of which can become detrimental to the effective 

operation of the board of supervisors. 

Unity of Purpose-Setting Direction 
 

1. Strategic Planning - Role of the Board of Supervisors 

Rationale • Governance is a strategic function. A component of a highly developed 

governance system is reaching agreement on the strategic direction and 

building coherence throughout the system. 

• Critical to success is proactively establishing a multi-year plan that presents a 

meaningful vision of the future and long-term strategic goals indicating where 

resources are to be concentrated to accomplish strategic outcomes. 

The strategic plan 

• Supports good decision making; Drives alignment of all processes; Aligns 

resources with priorities; Communicates our vision and our priorities. 

Protocol • The Mono County Board of Supervisors is committed to exercising 

professional and purposeful leadership in ensuring achievement of Mono 

County’s long-term goals and objectives. Following the Board adoption of the 

Strategic Plan, the Board will support the adopted Plan and ensure that 

decisions and directions by the Board are consistent and reinforcing of the Plan. 

Body Movements, 
Face, Arms 

55% 

Voice, Tone, 
Modulation, 
Pauses 
38% 

Words… 



10 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

1. Strategic Planning - Role of the Board of Supervisors 

 Similarly, the County’s Strategic Plan is shared with advisory bodies to 

facilitate alignment of their focus and efforts. 

• The Board will commit time and energy in board meetings to conduct ongoing 

strategic discussions regarding implementation and impact of County efforts 

and programs to accomplish Board adopted strategic goals. 

• Any requests made by Board members requiring County resources will be 

brought to the Board for review and approval. 

• The Board will calendar bi-annual check in reports and an annual review, in 

alignment with the budget planning process. 

 

2. Use of Board Conversation/ Discussion Meetings 

Rationale • It is the Board’s responsibility to establish a philosophical framework - 

grounded in the County’s core beliefs and mission - that will serve as the 

foundation for staff developed plans of action. 

• The Board wishes to create an environment where open and candid discussion 

of governance and core beliefs are encouraged and can lead to an enhancement 

of Board decision-making. The purpose is to uncover areas of agreement and 

concern and to promote a shared and deep understanding of topics and issues 

that the governance team will address. Board conversation sessions (or 

workshops) allow Board members the time for candid dialogue and discussions 

to develop the shared understanding that leads to the Board’s ownership of the 

County’s priorities. 

Protocol • Conversation sessions (or workshops) are public meetings subject to the 

provisions of the Brown Act.  Conversation sessions/workshops are 

intended to provide opportunities for open discussion about governance 

and other relationship issues and often no formal action is taken. The 

Board will schedule conversation sessions bi-annually or as needed to 

provide opportunities to explore governance issues in more depth. 

Conversation sessions are designed for several purposes: 

• To reflect on and strengthen the governance infrastructure, e.g., governance 

principals, norms, and protocols. 

• To develop the criteria for problem-solving, action-planning, and 

decision-making. 

• To provide an opportunity for the Board members and the CAO to discuss 

progress on goals, programs, and issues from the big picture, philosophical 

perspective. 



11 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Roles and Responsibilities 
 

3. Interactions with County Staff 

Rationale • Governance of the County relies on the cooperative efforts of elected 

Supervisors who set the direction and County staff who implement the Board 

policies and direction. Successful achievement of the Mono County strategic 

goals and County priorities in large part depends upon the nature of the 

relationship between the Board of Supervisors and the Mono County staff. 

• Critical to Board members’ ability to make informed and wise decisions is 

timely and equal access to information. With five independently elected 

supervisors, it is essential that there be a well-defined, clear process of 

communication. 

Protocol • Open and clear communication among the CAO, County Counsel, Department 

Heads and the Board is very important. However, any direction to County staff 

may only come by majority vote of the full Board. Great care will be taken to 

assure that suggestions or comments by individual Supervisors are not 

interpreted as direction to staff. 

• Board members are dependent upon the quality of information provided and 

encourage the CAO, County Counsel, County Department Heads and staff to 

keep them informed about successes and challenges facing them. 

• Board member referrals that are anticipated to involve significant staff time or 

other resource commitment and/or are a departure from established county or 

departmental policy require Board approval prior to staff starting work. Board 

members are encouraged to discuss referrals which may require significant 

resources with the Chair, County Counsel and CAO. Board approval shall be 

obtained through majority action of the Board, on an agenda item in which the 

scope and resource needs of the referral are identified. 

 

4. Evaluating the County Administrator and County Counsel 

Rationale • The CAO and County Counsel evaluations are important leadership tools to 

focus and align all County efforts. The evaluation process must be clear and 

fair. It should be goals based, data driven, collaborative and ongoing. 

Protocol • The CAO and County Counsel evaluations must be a collaborative process that 

ensure ongoing feedback and no surprises. 

• The evaluation process will include a mid-year check on progress on County 

priorities. The Board will conduct a formal evaluation of the CAO and County 

Counsel, annually on the anniversary hire date, using an agreed upon 

evaluation process. The process shall include opportunities for each Board 

member to participate. The Board Chair will compile the results ensuring that 

the evaluation represents the consensus of the Board. 



12 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Board Operations 
 

5.  Board Meeting Agenda Development 

Rationale • The major objective of the agenda development process is to allow for open 

deliberation by the Board of Supervisors on all county matters not to be 

considered in Closed Session. 

• Critical to effective discussion and deliberation is clarification of the agenda 

placement process, appropriate placement of items on the Board agenda and 

sufficient time for gathering information on issues so that the Board of 

Supervisors can make informed decisions. 

Protocol • An annual calendar of meetings shall be adopted by the Board. The 

calendar will include Governance conversation meetings and budget 

meetings.  Inclusion of conversation meetings in the formal calendar shall 

not preclude convening conversation meetings as needed.  

• Board agendas will be organized around the County priorities and strategic 

goals. Administrative or County business will be presented, whenever possible, 

with discussion of potential impact on strategic priorities and goals. 

• Department reports to the Board will be presented with reference to 

County strategic priorities and goals. 

• The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors prepares an agenda for each meeting in 

collaboration with the Board Chair, County Administrative Officer, and 

County Counsel. The Board of Supervisors’ meeting agenda is prepared 

weekly according to the Board of Supervisors’ meeting calendar. 

• At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Clerk of the Board shall post an 

agenda. The agenda shall include a brief description of each item to be heard, 

discussed or considered by the Board. 

• Supervisors are encouraged to contact the County Administrative Officer’s 

office, or appropriate staff with any technical or detailed questions regarding the 

agenda prior to the board meeting to ensure adequate information is available if 

necessary. 

 

6.  Public Comment in Board Meetings 

Rationale • Board of Supervisors meetings are business meetings of the Board held in 

public to conduct the County’s business. The Board of Supervisors welcomes 

and encourages public engagement and participation at Board meetings. 

• The Board is committed to transparency in all of its governance activities. 

However, it is essential that the Board operate in a consistent and professional 

manner in order to accomplish the business of Mono County as well as be 

respectful of staff time. Consistent with the Ralph M. Brown Act and in order 



13 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

6.  Public Comment in Board Meetings 

 to provide equal treatment to all, the Board may adopt rules and regulations 

regarding public input. 

Protocol • Board members want to ensure that multiple voices of the community are 

heard and that the process for community input is clearly defined and that 

community members feel welcomed and are encouraged to participate. 

• Members of the public have the right to address the Board on any item within 

the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Time for public input will be 

provided at every Board of Supervisors meeting. 

• Members of the public shall direct their comments to the Chair. Time 

limitations are at the discretion of the Chair and may be reduced or extended. 

• Individual Board members may ask clarifying questions but will not 

engage in substantive dialogue with persons providing input to the Board. 

• Public comments on items on the agenda will be called prior to the board 

taking action on the item. 

 

7.  (Electronic) Communication During Board Meetings 

Rationale • A meeting of the Board of Supervisors is a meeting to conduct County 

business in public. Use of electronic mail (email), notes, and all digital 

communications shall conform to the same standards of judgment, propriety, 

and ethics as other forms of County related communication. 

Protocol • During Board meetings, Board members will not access electronic 

messaging systems other than the relevant agenda and corresponding 

documents. Accessing such communication could be construed as receiving 

public comment without the transparency associated with having the 

comment shared publicly. Any such communication is subject to the 

California Public Records Act.   

• Other uses of electronic devices during meetings should be limited to 

instances where a family or business situation makes the communication 

necessary, at the discretion of the Board member. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.  Self-Monitoring of Board Effectiveness 

Rationale • Conducting a governance self-assessment process demonstrates accountability 

to the community and the intention of the governance team to strengthen and 

improve governance practices. 

• Governance self-assessment sessions are an opportunity to reflect on Board 

effectiveness and measure adherence to adopted governance principles, norms, 

and protocols. 



14 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Protocol • The Board of Supervisors supports continuous improvement through 

ongoing evaluation of governance effectiveness. 

• The Board will participate in at least one workshop annually to review 

governance team agreements and processes and to participate in a self- 

evaluation process. The assessment process will align with assessment 

of progress on the County’s strategic priorities. During the assessment 

process, the Board may consider any amendments to processes or 

protocols and schedule consideration of any new policies/protocols 

resulting from the self-assessment. 

 

9.  New Supervisor Orientation – On Boarding 

Rationale • Members of the Board of Supervisors must be knowledgeable about the 

complexity of the organization they are governing, and the full range of 

services, facilities and programs provided by the County. 

• The most important way a Board can sustain its positive governance culture, 

and remain a cohesive, unified, vibrant decision-making team is through the 

purposeful on-boarding of new board members. 

Protocol • The Board recognizes the importance of welcoming and helping transition 

newly elected Board members into the public experience. 

• The Board encourages all newly elected supervisors to attend the CA State 

Association of Counties (CSAC), new County Supervisors Institute as soon 

after election as possible.   

• The County Administrative Officer and County Counsel will prepare 

orientation materials, including legal briefings for new Board members and 

schedule an initial meeting to both establish early and direct communication 

and provide information necessary to understand the complex organization of 

the County. 

• Department Heads, or their designees, will offer orientation to newly 

elected Board members regarding the departments’ key responsibilities 

and functions. 

• The Board will schedule a governance conversation meeting to provide an 

opportunity to share personal aspirations and to review, discuss and re-

confirm the adopted governance principles, norms and protocols as 

documented in the Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance 

Handbook.   

 
  



15 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Board in the Community 
 

10. Handling Complaints from the Community 

Rationale • The Board strives to be consistent and fair in dealing with complaints 

and concerns expressed by the community. 

• It is important that the Board have a clear and consistent process when 

considering and responding to constituent concerns. 

• No one Board member has the authority or capability to fix individual 

problems or concerns. 

Protocol • The Board of Supervisors is accessible and responsive to community 

concerns and issues. 

• The Board values open communication and timely resolution of issues. 

When approached with concerns or complaints, Board members will: 

o Listen respectfully and openly. 

o Remain neutral, understanding that only one side of the issue is being 

heard. 
o Encourage the issue to be addressed by the person who can most directly 

help them with their concern. 

• Board members will notify the CAO of the issue or concern, as appropriate. 

 

  



16 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

 
GOVERNANCE AGREEMENTS SIGNATURE PAGE  
 
We have reviewed and agree to follow the Governance Team principles, norms and protocols in order to support a 
positive and productive working relationship among the Mono County Board of Supervisors, County Administrative 
Officer, County Counsel, Department Heads and staff. We shall renew this agreement annually.  
 
 

Affirmed on this 1st day of October 2024.  
 
  
_______________________________________ 

  
 
 
___________________________________ 

John Peters, Chair, District 4, Chair   
 
_______________________________________ 

Date  
 
___________________________________ 

Lynda Salcido, District 5, Vice Chair  
 
_______________________________________ 

Date  
 
___________________________________ 

Jennifer Kreitz, District 1, Chair Pro Tempore  
 
______________________________________
_ 

Date  
 
___________________________________ 

Rhonda Duggan, District 2  
 
_______________________________________ 

Date  
 
___________________________________ 

Bob Gardner, District 3  
 
_______________________________________ 

Date  
 
___________________________________ 

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative 
Officer  
_____________________________________ 

Date  
 
____________________________________ 

Christoper Beck, County Counsel  
 
 

Date  

 

 

 

 

 

 



17 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Appendix I – Mono County Procedural Manual 
 
 
 
 

 

Mono County Board of Supervisors 

Procedural Manual 



18 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Table of Contents  

I. Purpose .......................................................................................................................... 4 

II. General 

Rule 1. Applicability of Rules ........................................................................................ 4 

Rule 2. Definitions .......................................................................................................... 4 

III. Meetings 

Rule 3. Regular Meetings and Annual Calendar ............................................................ 5 

Rule 4. Special Meetings, Budget Hearings, Workshops and Planning Meetings ......... 5 

Rule 5. Emergency Meetings .......................................................................................... 5 

Rule 6. Closed Sessions .................................................................................................. 6 

IV. Elections, Powers, and Duties of the Chair, Vice-Chair, and Chair Pro-Tempore 

Rule 7. Annual Selection of Chair, Vice Chair and Chair Pro-Tempore ........................ 6 

Rule 8. Powers of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Chair Pro-Tempore ...................................... 6 

V. Agendas and Agenda Materials ................................................................................... 6 

Rule 9. Meeting Agenda ................................................................................................. 6 

Rule 10. Addendums/Supplemental Agenda Items ........................................................ 6 

Rule 11. Use of Novus Agenda Software ....................................................................... 7 

Rule 12. Department/Agency Agenda Responsibilities .................................................. 7 

Rule 13. Review and Filing of Agenda Items ................................................................. 7 

Rule 14. Board Correspondence ..................................................................................... 7 

Rule 15. Request to Place Item on Board’s Agenda ....................................................... 7 

Rule 16. Supplemental Correspondence and Information .............................................. 8 

VI. Conduct of business 

Rule 17. Order of Business ............................................................................................. 8 

Rule 18. Board Member; Notification of Absence ......................................................... 8 

Rule 19. Quorum and Action .......................................................................................... 8 

Rule 20. Matters Not on the Agenda/Emergency Items ................................................. 9 

Rule 21. Consent/Regular Calendar Items ...................................................................... 9 

Rule 22. Public Hearings ................................................................................................ 9 

VII. Procedure and Voting 

Rule 23. Order and Decorum .......................................................................................... 10 

Rule 24. Commitment to Civility ................................................................................... 10 

Rule 25. Use of Electronic Devices and Documents ...................................................... 11 

Rule 26. Motions – General ............................................................................................ 11 

Rule 27. Voting ............................................................................................................... 11 



19 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Rule 28. Roll Call Votes ................................................................................................. 11 

Rule 29. Conflicts of Interest .......................................................................................... 11 

Rule 30. Motion to Reconsider ....................................................................................... 12 

Rule 31. Substitute Motion ............................................................................................. 12 

Rule 32. Ordinances ........................................................................................................ 12 

Rule 33. Planning Matters – Request for Continuance ................................................... 13 

Rule 34. Planning Matters – Original Jurisdiction .......................................................... 13 

VIII. Duties of County Staff During Board Meetings 

Rule 35. County Administrator ....................................................................................... 13 

Rule 36. County Counsel ................................................................................................ 12 

Rule 37. Clerk of the Board ............................................................................................ 14 

Rule 38. Sheriff ............................................................................................................... 14 

Rule 39. Department and Agency Directors ................................................................... 14 

IX. Committees 

Rule 40. Board Committees/Assignments and Reporting Requirements ....................... 14 

Rule 41. Board of Supervisors Standing Subcommittees ............................................... 15 

Rule 42. Board of Supervisors’ Ad-Hoc Subcommittees ............................................... 15 

X. Other 

Rule 43. Board Member Referrals to Staff ..................................................................... 15 

Rule 44. Action Summaries and Recordings of Meetings .............................................. 15 

XI. Participation of the public 

Rule 45. Public Comment / Time Limits ........................................................................ 16 

Rule 46. Orderly Conduct ............................................................................................... 16 

Rule 47. Security and Prohibition of Banners/Signs or other Hazardous Objects .......... 16 

XII. APPENDIX A. Order of Agenda .................................................................................... 17 

XIII. APPENDIX B. 4/5ths and Unanimous Vote Requirements ............................................. 18 

XIV. APPENDIX C. Request to Place Item on Board’s Agenda .............................................. 23 



20 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Effective Governance in Mono County  

Mono County is governed by the elected Board of Supervisors. Governance is a fundamental function 

of all public agencies. Governance is the act of transforming the needs and desires of the community 

into policies that direct the County. The people of Mono place their faith and trust that the Board will 

carry out its governance responsibilities meeting the highest standards of quality, effectiveness, and 

transparency. Whether in Board Chambers, out in the community or at home, Board members are 

always stewards of the County. 

Effective Boards 

High performing Boards have four essential characteristics that are the building blocks of effective 

governance: 

 

Rules Of Procedure of The Board of Supervisors Mono County, 

California 

 
I. Purpose  

The purpose of these Rules of Procedure (“Rules”) is to foster understanding and respect for the 

democratic process, facilitate compliance with applicable laws, encourage public participation, provide 

guidance on decorum, and enhance effective and efficient management of Board meetings. 

 

II.  General  

Rule 1. Applicability of Rules 

These Rules are adopted pursuant to Government Code §25003. The Rules shall apply to the Board of 

Supervisors of the County of Mono whether sitting as the Board of Supervisors of the County or as the 

governing board of any other commission, authority or board. 

These Rules are intended to expedite the transaction of business of the Board in an orderly fashion, and 

are deemed to be procedural only. The failure to strictly observe application of the Rules shall not 

affect the jurisdiction of the Board or invalidate any action taken at a meeting that is otherwise held in 

conformity with the law. Except as otherwise provided by law, these Rules, or any one of them, may be 

suspended by a majority of the Board. 

These Rules supersede and replace all rules of procedure previously adopted by the Board. 

 

Rule 2. Definitions 

In interpreting these Rules: 

 

a. “Board” refers to the Board of Supervisors of Mono County, whether sitting as the Board of 



21 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Supervisors of the County or as the governing body of any other authority or board 

b. “Board member” or “member” refers to a member of the Board 

c. “Chair”, “Vice-Chair” and “Chair Pro-Tempore” refers to the Board members 

elected to those respective offices 

d. “Clerk” refers to the Clerk of the Board of Mono County 

e. “County Administrator” refers to the County Administrative Officer of Mono County 

 

 

III.  MEETINGS  

Rule 3. Regular Meetings and Annual Calendar 

Regular meetings generally shall be held on the first three Tuesdays of every month. Any meeting may 

be cancelled upon the order of the Chair, or by a majority of the members of the Board. 

Regular meetings shall commence at 9:00 a.m. The first two regular meetings of the month shall be 

held at the Board of Supervisors Chambers, 2nd Floor, County Courthouse, 278 Main Street, 

Bridgeport, California; the third regular meeting of the month shall be held in the Mono Lake Room in 

the Mono County Civic Center at 1290 Tavern Road or such other location in Mammoth Lakes as may 

be designated by Board resolution. Videoconferencing will be available each week between Bridgeport 

and Mammoth Lakes, unless technically infeasible. Business shall normally be conducted between 9:00 

a.m. and 5:00 p.m., but may continue past 5:00 p.m., provided a majority of the Board members present 

do not object. 

An annual calendar of meetings shall be adopted by the Board and should include all known regular 

meetings. All regularly scheduled meetings shall also be streamed live over the internet unless 

technologically infeasible, and shall be archived and available for later online viewing. Videos shall be 

available on the county website. 

Rule 4. Special Meetings and Budget Hearings 

Special meetings may be called at any time by the Chair, or by a majority of the Board members. Upon 

the call of a special meeting, the Clerk will prepare and distribute, at least 24 hours before the time of 

the special meeting, written notice to each member and to any local newspaper of general circulation 

that has requested such notices. The notice shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and 

the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at these meetings 

(Government Code §54956). 

Budget Hearings, Workshops, Study Sessions and Planning Meetings may be called by the Chair or by 

a majority of the Board at times and locations in accordance with the law and specified notice 

provisions. 

 

  



22 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Rule 5. Emergency Meetings 

Emergency meetings may be called by the Chair or by a majority of the Board, in the case of an emergency 

situation involving matters upon which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened 

disruption of public facilities. Upon the call of an emergency meeting, the Clerk shall give notice of the 

meeting, and comply with posting requirements (Government Code §54956.5). 

Rule 6. Closed Sessions 

Prior to holding any closed session, the Chair shall announce the session in an open meeting, and shall 

provide an opportunity for public comment on items on the closed session agenda. The listing of such 

items on the agenda shall constitute such announcement, at the discretion of the Chair. During the 

closed session, the Board may discuss or consider only those items on the agenda. At the conclusion of 

the closed session the Board shall orally report action taken, in an open meeting, where required by law 

(Government Code §54957.1). 

 

IV. ELECTIONS, POWERS, AND DUTIES OF THE CHAIR, VICE-CHAIR, AND 
CHAIR PRO-TEMPORE 

Rule 7. Annual Selection of Chair, Vice Chair and Chair Pro-Tempore 

At its first regular meeting, after January 1ST of each year, the Board shall nominate and elect from its 

membership a Chair, Vice-Chair, and a Chair Pro-Tempore. The Chair shall call the meeting to order, 

and the first order of business shall be the election of officers for the ensuing calendar year. The Chair, 

Vice-Chair, and Chair Pro-Tempore shall serve until the election of their successors. It is intended (but 

not mandated) that the Supervisor elected as Vice-Chair will succeed the Chair in the following year 

and that the Chair Pro-Tempore shall similarly succeed the Vice-Chair. 

Rule 8. Powers of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Chair Pro-Tempore 

The Chair shall serve as presiding officer of the Board, rule on questions of procedure and execute 

official Board records and documents presented by the County Administrator/Clerk. In the absence or 

unavailability of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall call the meeting to order and serve as presiding officer. 

The Vice-Chair shall have and exercise all powers and duties of the Chair for meetings over which he 

or she is called to preside and at ceremonial and official functions which the Chair cannot attend. 

If both the Chair and the Vice-Chair are absent or unable to participate, the Chair Pro-Tempore shall 

call the meeting to order, serve as the presiding officer, and shall have and exercise all power and 

duties of the Chair for the meeting over which he or she is called to preside and at ceremonial and 

official functions which neither the Chair nor Vice-Chair can attend. 

  



23 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

 

 

V.  AGENDAS AND AGENDA MATERIALS  

Rule 9. Meeting Agenda 

At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Clerk shall post an agenda. The agenda shall consist of a 

brief statement of each item to be considered by the Board (Government Code §54950). The agenda shall 

indicate the time and location of the meeting and shall be posted as required by law. 

Rule 10. Addendums/Supplemental Agenda Items 

At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Clerk shall prepare, post, and distribute all 

addendums/supplemental agendas when there has been an item added, continued, deleted, and/or 

modified since the distribution of the initial meeting agenda. 

Rule 11. Use of Agenda Software 

All Departments/Agencies shall use Agenda Software provided by the County to prepare agenda items 

and submit supporting documents. Departments will work directly with the Clerk of the Board if they 

require assistance in creating an agenda item. 

Rule 12. Department/Agency Agenda Responsibilities 

When submitting an item for consideration by the Board, it is the responsibility of the originating 

Department or Agency to provide all required information, and to meet all established deadlines. 

Exceptions to deadlines will be considered if items are deemed to be time sensitive or of special 

importance to a Board member. The Clerk of the Board will work directly with departments to add 

agenda items after the deadline, but shall require departments to obtain approval of the CAO prior to 

adding late items. Board members may work with the CAO, Clerk of the Board, or pertinent 

department head when needing to add items to an agenda. 

Outside agencies and citizens will work with the Clerk of the Board when requesting an agenda item 

for Board consideration, and will follow established guidelines found in Appendix C (Request to place 

an Item on the Board’s Agenda by the Public or Non-County Entity). 

Rule 13. Review and Filing of Agenda Items 

After preparing agenda items in the County’s Agenda system, all items shall be reviewed by the 

County Administrator, County Counsel, and Finance Director, or their designee. Any one of these three 

reviewers may ask for additional information, clarification, and may determine not to place any item on 

the agenda that is not complete or is not submitted in accordance with instructions. Without amendment 

to these Rules, agenda submittal instructions may be amended or additional requirements imposed to 

ensure appropriate review and Brown Act compliance. 

  



24 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Rule 14. Board Correspondence 

Correspondence addressed to the Board of Supervisors will be forwarded by the Clerk of the Board to 

all Board Members. Upon request of one or more Board Member, the Clerk shall additionally place a 

particular piece of correspondence on the agenda as correspondence. Correspondence items that require 

prolonged discussion will be agendized for a future meeting. 

Rule 15. Request to Place Item on Board’s Agenda by the Public or Non-County Entities or 

Individuals 

The public or any non-county entity (e.g., other governments, businesses, non-profits groups or other 

interest groups) should contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (760-932-5533 or 760- 932-5538) for 

the date of the next available agenda. This information online at: http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos; click on 

Meetings link. 

a. A non-county individual or group seeking placement of an item on the Board of Supervisors’ 

Agenda must have one of the Supervisors sponsor the item along with concurrence from the 

Board Chair. The name of Board Member sponsor shall be provided to the Clerk of the Board. 

See Appendix C for procedural guidelines. 

Rule 16. Supplemental Correspondence and Information Prior to Board Meeting and During 

Board Meeting 

a. After Initial Agenda Distribution and Prior to Meeting - Agenda materials distributed via 

mail, email, or hand delivery to a majority of the Board must be forwarded to the Clerk and 

made available for public review. 

b. At a Meeting - Documents, including PowerPoint handouts, distributed to Board members by 

County employees or Board members themselves at the meeting, shall be kept to a minimum. 

When necessary to distribute materials at a meeting, an electronic copy shall be provided to 

the Clerk of the Board and posted by the Clerk to the meeting web page. Additionally, paper 

copies shall be provided to the Clerk for distribution to: Board members, the County 

Administrator, County Counsel, and the Clerk, with remaining copies available for 

distribution to the general public. If large numbers of the public are anticipated to attend the 

Board Meeting on a matter and new information will be distributed to the Board members, 

then the number of copies should be increased to anticipate the number needed for the public. 

Any supplemental correspondence or written information related to an agenda item which is 

provided to three or more Board members shall be concurrently filed with the Clerk and made a 

part of the official record. 

This Rule shall not apply to attorney-client privileged communications, documents containing 

information protected from disclosure by the attorney work product doctrine, or information which 

may not be publicly disclosed under the other applicable law. 

Sufficient copies of supplemental correspondence and information should be delivered to the Clerk 

and the Clerk shall make the appropriate distribution to the Board, CAO and County Counsel. 

http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos%3B


25 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

 

VI.  CONDUCT OF BUSINESS  

Rule 17. Order of Business 

The Board shall conduct business in the order specified in the posted agenda or as modified at the 

discretion of the Chair with the concurrence of the Board. The Board may modify or amend the Order 

of Business for Regular meetings without amending these Rules by attaching the amendment to these 

Rules as Appendix A. 

Rule 18. Board Member; Notification of Absence 

If any Board member is unable to attend a meeting of the Board, all reasonable efforts shall be made to 

notify the Chair, County Administrator, and the Clerk, in writing (electronic mail or regular mail) and 

as soon as possible to ensure there are sufficient members present to consider all agenda items. 

Rule 19. Quorum and Action 

Three members of the Board shall constitute a quorum sufficient to transact business. In the absence of 

a quorum, the remaining members or the Clerk may adjourn the meeting to another date and time in 

accordance with Government Code §54944 and shall post a Notice of Adjournment. 

Rule 20. Matters Not on the Agenda/Emergency Items 

No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on a posted agenda except: 

 

a. Upon a determination by a four-fifths (4/5) vote of the Board, or if less than four-fifths (4/5) 

of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present, that 1) there is a 

need to take immediate action prior to the next regularly-scheduled meeting, and 2) the need 

for action came to the County’s attention subsequent to the agenda being posted pursuant to 

Government Code section 54954.2(b). 

Any request to hear a matter not on the agenda or emergency item shall be communicated to the Chair, 

County Administrator, County Counsel and Clerk as soon as the need becomes known. 

Rule 21. Consent/Regular Calendar Items 

Agenda items on the Consent Calendar are routine in nature, consistent with adopted Board policy, and 

do not require individual consideration. The Consent Calendar will be enacted by one motion for 

approval of the recommended actions. There will be no separate discussion of these items prior to the 

time the Board votes on the motion unless any member of the Board requests removal of a specific item 

from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and action. Any Board member may ask the Clerk to 

record a “no” or “abstention” vote on any Consent Calendar item. 

Agenda items on the Regular Calendar require separate discussion and/or action and may include, but 

are not limited to changes in policy, items that require the Board to consider options and provide 

direction, requests for new or unbudgeted positions, introductions of a proposed Ordinance, Public 

Hearings, and other matters as required by law. 



26 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Rule 22. Public Hearings 

Upon receipt of a request by a Department/Agency or Board member for a public hearing, the County 

Administrator or Clerk may set the hearing without action of the Board unless the Board is required by law 

to schedule the hearing. In that event, the matter shall be placed on the Consent Calendar to set the hearing. 

Subject to the Chair’s right to maintain order, any person wishing to speak at a public hearing shall be 

heard. Except for rebuttal allowed an applicant, or the appellant in the case of an appeal, each speaker 

shall speak only once unless otherwise authorized by the Chair. 

Each speaker’s presentation at a public hearing shall be as brief as possible; visual and other materials 

may be used as appropriate. The Chair may establish a time limit for presentations. When speakers use 

or submit to the Board visual or other materials, such materials shall become part of the file and 

identified and maintained as such. When thumb drives, USB memory sticks, or other portable 

electronic media (e-media) are submitted to the Board, at least one hard-copy of the information stored 

on the e-media must be provided to the Clerk. Speakers with lengthy presentations are encouraged to 

submit them in writing. 

The closing of a public hearing signifies the point after which the Board will no longer accept or 

consider any additional communication on the matter that was the subject of the hearing. As used in 

this Rule, “communication” includes oral communication; written communication such as documents, 

letters, and photographs; and any type of electronic communication, including e-mails, e-mail 

attachments, graphic images, spread sheets, text messages, and social media messages. 

Should the Board close a public hearing and continue its deliberations to a subsequent meeting, or 

announce a tentative decision, by motion or other proceedings, and defer its action on a final decision 

to a subsequent meeting to allow preparation of appropriate findings and/or conditions of approval, any 

written or electronic communication received by a Board member or the Clerk after the close of the 

hearing on the matter that was the subject of the hearing shall be placed in a separate file kept by the 

Clerk and labeled to indicate it was received after the close of the hearing. Late written and electronic 

communication shall not be given to Board members, nor should Board members retain copies. 

Should County staff determine that communication received after the close of a public hearing should 

be considered by the Board prior to its rendering a final decision on the matter that was the subject of 

the hearing, County staff shall recommend to the Board that the hearing be reopened. If the Board 

concurs, the Board shall reopen the hearing, following appropriate notice, for the limited purpose of 

receiving testimony and evidence on the new information. 

  



27 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

 

VII. PROCEDURE AND VOTING  

Rule 23. Order and Decorum 

The Chair shall preserve order and decorum and shall decide all questions of order and procedure subject to 

an appeal to the Board. The nature of any appeal shall be briefly stated, and the Chair shall have the right to 

state the reason for his or her decision. 

A Board member wishing to speak shall refrain until he or she has been recognized by the Chair. While 

a Board member is speaking, other Board members shall be respectful and shall not engage in or 

entertain private discussions. 

Consistent with the purpose of the Rules, members are encouraged to use a formal style, including 

appropriate titles, in addressing the public, staff and each other. All members shall refrain from the use 

of profanity, emotional outbursts, personal attacks or any speech or conduct which tends to bring the 

organization into disrepute. 

Rule 24. Commitment to Civility 

To assure civility in its public meetings, staff and the public are also encouraged to engage in respectful 

dialog that supports freedom of speech and values diversity of opinion. Please refer to the Mono 

County Governance Handbook for additional guidance. 

Rule 25. Use of Electronic Devices and Documents 

The use of electronic documents, via iPads or other electronic means, is encouraged as a means of 

reducing the production and distribution of paper documents, and thereby decreasing costs. 

Any member of the public may view the same electronic documents online at: 

http://monocounty.ca.gov/meetings_sub/bos, or may view the documents in paper form in the Clerk’s 

Office. 

The Board shall refrain from emailing, texting, using social media, or otherwise engaging in electronic 

communications in the Board Chambers on matters that are listed on the Board agenda 

Rule 26. Motions – General 

Any motion for action shall require a second before being acknowledged by the Chair. The Clerk shall 

enter into the minutes the motion and the names of the moving and seconding members. After a motion 

is stated by the Chair, it shall be open for debate but may be withdrawn by the maker at any time before 

a decision is made or an amendment adopted. A motion may be amended with the consent of the 

moving and seconding members at any time before a decision is made or an amendment adopted unless 

another motion is pending. The Clerk shall enter into the minutes the vote of each member on each 

motion. 

http://monocounty.ca.gov/meetings_sub/bos


28 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Rule 27. Voting 

It shall take at least three affirmative votes of the Board to pass any motion (Govt. Code §25005), 

except where supermajority four-fifths (4/5) votes or unanimous votes are required by law. Appendix B 

contains a list of common items that require a four-fifths (4/5) vote. Appendix B may be updated 

without amending these Rules. An abstention shall count as neither an “aye” nor a “no” vote. 

A supervisor who is absent from all or a part of: (1) a public hearing, (2) an item that requires findings, 

or (3) an item that is quasi-judicial in nature, may subsequently vote on the matter if the supervisor has 

reviewed all evidence received during his/her absence, listened to the Clerk’s recording or read a true 

and complete transcript of the proceedings, and so states on the record 

Rule 28. Roll Call Votes 

The roll need not be called in voting upon a motion except where specifically required by law or 

requested by a Board member or the Chair. Each roll call vote shall be made in an order determined by 

the Clerk or directed by the Chair but generally shall first include: the maker of the motion; the member 

who seconded the motion; the balance of the members present, with the Chair called last, unless the 

Chair made, or seconded, the motion. 

Rule 29. Conflicts of Interest 

Any Board member with a disqualifying conflict of interest must, in compliance with the Political 

Reform Act: 

a. Publicly state the nature of the conflict in sufficient detail to be understood by the public; 

b. Recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on item; and 

c. Leave the room until after the discussion, vote, and other disposition of the matter is 

concluded, unless the matter has been placed on the Consent Calendar. 

The member may be allowed to address the Board as a member of the public, but only in the limited 

circumstances allowed by the Political Reform Act. Disclosure of a conflict shall be noted in the official 

Board minutes. The member must also comply with all other applicable conflict of interest laws. 

Members may not have a financial interest in a contract approved or considered by the Board. In these 

cases, disclosure and recusal does not remove the conflict and such a contract is considered void 

(Government Code 

§1090), unless a specific exemption applies. The Board member is encouraged to discuss possible 

conflicts with County Counsel and/or to request advice from the Fair Political Practices Commission 

prior to the meeting. 

Rule 30. Motion to Reconsider 

Any Board member who votes in the majority on a question, as well as any Board member who was 

absent, is eligible to make a motion to reconsider. A motion to reconsider shall be in order during the 

meeting at which the action to be reconsidered took place provided members of the public in 



29 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

attendance during the original action are still present in the Board chamber. In all other cases, motions 

for reconsideration must be placed on a future agenda for action. A motion to reconsider shall require 

a majority vote. A motion to reconsider, if lost, shall not be renewed nor shall any subject be 

reconsidered a second time within twelve (12) months except by a four-fifths (4/5) vote of the Board. 

This rule may be suspended by a majority of the Board. Any board member may make a motion to 

suspend. A motion to reconsider is not in order if action has been taken which cannot be changed. 

Rule 31. Substitute Motion 

A substitute motion is an amendment where an entire resolution or section, or one or more paragraphs 

is stricken and another is inserted in its place. The motion to substitute, if adopted by majority vote, 

completely supersedes. The vote shall then be taken only on the motion that was substituted. A 

substitute motion is appropriate if amendments become involved or a paragraph requires considerable 

changes. A substitute motion may not be made when an amendment is pending. 

Rule 32. Ordinances 

Ordinances are introduced at one meeting (first reading), then generally placed on the agenda for 

adoption at a subsequent meeting. 

a. The first reading will become the primary meeting at which: (1) the title of the ordinance will 

be read; 

b. (2) the Board will typically consider a motion to waive the reading of the text of the ordinance 

and to introduce the ordinance by title only; (3) members of the public shall have an 

opportunity to address the ordinance; (4) the ordinance shall be introduced by a motion and 

majority vote of the Board. 

c. At the second reading: (1) the ordinance may be placed on the Consent Calendar for adoption; 

(2) if pulled from the Consent Calendar for separate action, the title of the ordinance may be 

read; (3) a motion to adopt the ordinance may be made; (4) a majority vote will adopt the 

ordinance unless a 4/5ths vote is required for a particular matter. 

d. Pursuant to Government Code §25123, ordinances shall generally become effective 30 days 

from the date of final passage. 

Other ordinance hearing procedures may be used as required by law. 

 

Rule 33. Planning Matters – Request for Continuance 

Any Board member may request that a Planning matter within his/her District be continued to the next 

available regular meeting that will allow for compliance with any applicable legal noticing 

requirements, due to that Board member’s unavailability at the meeting for which the item is scheduled 

or for any other reason. Upon concurrence of a majority of the Board, such continuance shall be 

granted. 

Rule 34. Planning Matters – Original Jurisdiction 

Any member may request the Board to exercise original jurisdiction over a use permit or other planning 

application, as authorized under the County Code, except in cases where state law requires a 



30 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

recommendation of the Planning Commission prior to action by the Board on the matter. A request to 

exercise original jurisdiction shall be filed in writing with the Clerk, or made orally at a Board meeting, 

prior to any decision by a lower level decision maker approving or denying the subject application. A 

request to exercise original jurisdiction need not state the reasons for the request but shall be brought as a 

noticed agenda item to the full Board for majority approval. 

 

VIII. DUTIES OF COUNTY STAFF DURING BOARD MEETINGS 
 

Rule 35. County Administrative Officer 

The County Administrative Officer shall be present during Board meetings and shall provide such 

information as necessary to assist the Board members in their deliberation and decision making. The 

County Administrator may delegate this responsibility to the Assistant County Administrator, County 

Finance Director, Human Resources Director, or County Counsel should extraordinary circumstances 

prevent the discharge of this responsibility. 

Rule 36. County Counsel 

County Counsel shall be present during Board meetings, and shall serve as advisor to the Board on 

appropriate rules to comply with legal requirements. All questions of law shall be referred to County 

Counsel for his or her opinion. County Counsel may delegate this responsibility to the Assistant 

County Counsel or a Deputy County Counsel. 

Rule 37. Clerk of the Board 

The Clerk or a Deputy Clerk shall be present during all Board meetings for the purpose of taking and 

maintaining the minutes of the meeting; presenting and receiving correspondence, records, documents, 

claims, reports, or petitions; preserving all records; marking or attesting all resolutions and ordinances; 

imparting information on Board documents of public record; and otherwise fulfilling all duties imposed 

by law or required by the Board. 

The Clerk shall record all regular meetings of the Board. All meetings shall be recorded by audio 

means. All regularly scheduled meetings, and whenever possible, meetings shall also be recorded by 

video means. Video recordings shall be available online for later review as soon as practical on the 

county website at http://monocounty.ca.gov/meetings. 

Rule 38. Sheriff 

The Sheriff, or a representative of the Sheriff’s Office, shall at the discretion of the Chair or a majority 

of Board members, be in attendance at the meeting of the Board, for the purpose of maintaining order 

and upholding the law. 

Rule 39. Department and Agency Directors 

Department and Agency Directors, or a designee, having any matter on the agenda for consideration by 

the Board, whether consent or regular, shall be available for the purpose of providing information to the 

http://monocounty.ca.gov/meetings


31 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Board and shall also attend any Board meeting when requested to do so by a Board member or the 

County Administrator. Department and Agency Directors may be present in person or by 

telecommunication as the item warrants. Given Mono County’s seasons and efforts to contain costs, 

Department and Agency Heads are asked to keep these factors in mind when scheduling meeting 

attendance. 

 

IX.  COMMITTEES  

Rule 40. Board Committees/Assignments and Reporting Requirements 

The Clerk shall maintain a list of Board Committees and Assignments. Annually, the incoming Chair 

shall review the list of Committees and Assignments. The list of appointments shall be adopted by the 

Board at its first meeting in January. 

All members who are assigned to special projects, committees, and separate boards or commissions 

shall provide regular reports to the full Board regarding their activity in connection with the special 

projects, committees, and separate boards or commissions. (Government Code §53234, et. seq.) 

Committee members shall call committee meetings as needed provided they are held in conformance 

with the law. The County Administrator’s Office and County Counsel may serve as support staff to all 

Board created committees. Other department heads and/or staff may also support as requested by the 

committee. 

Rule 41. Board of Supervisors Standing Subcommittees 

Standing subcommittees are those subcommittees of the Board of Supervisors which have continuing 

jurisdiction over a particular subject matter or whose meeting schedule is fixed by resolution or action 

of the Board. Even if comprised of less than a quorum of the Board, a standing subcommittee is subject 

to the Brown Act. 

The Chair shall recommend, with Board concurrence, members to each standing subcommittee. 

Generally, appointments shall occur at the Board’s first regular meeting in January. All standing 

subcommittees shall be appointed for the calendar year, and the members shall continue as committee 

members until their successors have been appointed. 

Rule 42. Board of Supervisors’ Ad-Hoc Subcommittees 

Ad-Hoc subcommittees of the Board of Supervisors are not subject to the Brown Act. They may be 

formed by Board action, shall be solely composed of members of the Board, shall consist of less than a 

quorum of the Board, shall serve a limited or single purpose, for a limited time, and shall be dissolved 

once the specific task assigned is completed. 

Ad-Hoc Subcommittees are encouraged to conclude their business at the end of each calendar year. The 

Clerk will maintain a current index of Ad-Hoc Subcommittees and their purpose. 

  



32 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

 

X.  OTHER  

Rule 43. Board Member Referrals to Staff 

Board member referrals that are anticipated to involve significant staff time or other resource 

commitment and/or are a departure from established county or departmental policy require Board 

approval prior to staff starting work. Board members are encouraged to discuss referrals which may 

require significant resources with the Chair and CAO. 

Board approval shall be obtained through majority action of the Board, on an agenda item in which the 

scope and resource needs of the referral are identified. 

Rule 44. Action Summaries and Recordings of Meetings 

The Clerk shall prepare and distribute Action Summaries (“minutes”) of Board meetings. The minutes 

shall consist of the brief statement of each item posted on the agenda and supplemental agenda plus all 

motions, resolutions and ordinance numbers related thereto, all votes recorded thereon, and the final 

action taken by the Board. The minutes shall be made available internally and to the public and shall be 

placed on the Internet. 

The Clerk shall maintain the official audio record of each Board meeting for as required by the Mono 

County Records Retention Policy and will make these recordings available for listening by the public at 

no charge. Video recordings of meetings shall be archived and available on the internet and shall be 

available for viewing at no charge on the county website at http://monocounty.ca.gov/meetings. 

 

XI.  PARTICIPATION OF THE PUBLIC  

Rule 45. Public Comment / Time Limits 

Members of the public have the right to address the Board on any item within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the Board (Government Code §54954.3). Members of the public may state their name 

but are not required to do so. Members of the public shall direct their comments to the Chair who may, 

at his or her discretion, request a brief response from staff or, with the concurrence of a majority of the 

Board, direct that the item be placed on a future agenda for discussion and/or action. Time limitations 

are at the discretion of the Chair, and may be reduced or extended. 

Public comments on items on the agenda will be called prior to the Board taking action on the item. 

Under the Public Comment portion of the meeting, members of the public will be allowed to address 

the Board regarding any item not on the agenda. No action may be taken on items not on the agenda 

unless authorized by law. 

Rule 46. Orderly Conduct 

The Chair may determine when orderly conduct of a Board meeting is not feasible due to disruptive 

behavior by person(s) in attendance. The Chair may request that person(s) disrupting the meeting leave 

the chambers/meeting room. If order cannot be restored, the Chair may order the chambers/meeting 

room cleared and continue in session. Members of the news media, except those participating in the 

http://monocounty.ca.gov/meetings


33 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

disturbance, shall be allowed to remain. The Chair may re-admit any person(s) provided their re-

admission will not disrupt the continued orderly conduct of business. The Chair may also call a recess 

and reconvene when order has been restored. (Government Code section 54957.9.) 

Rule 47. Security and Prohibition of Hazardous Objects 

The Board has the power to implement security measures in the chambers/meeting room. Any 

hazardous object which could impair the safety of individuals in the event of an emergency are 

prohibited in the chambers/meeting room. Any large object/container that may be deemed a hazardous 

object which could impair the safety of individuals in the event of an emergency may be prohibited in 

the chambers/meeting room. 

  



34 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

APPENDIX A. Order of Agenda 

Generally, business at Regular meetings shall be transacted in the following order. Business may be 

reordered by the Chair or by a majority of members. The Chair may modify the Agenda Order for the 

Board’s or public’s convenience at a particular meeting, provided that no matter noticed for public 

hearing may be heard prior to the published time. The Board may modify or amend the Agenda Order 

without amending these Rules. 

I. Call to Order (9:00 a.m.) 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Public Comment on matters not on the agenda, but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 

Board 

IV. Recognitions 

V. County Administrative Officer Report 

VI. Department/Commission Reports 

VII. Consent Calendar 

VIII. Correspondence Received 

IX. Regular Morning Calendar 

X. Public Comment on matters not on the agenda, but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 

Board. 

XI. Closed Session 

XII. Reconvene and Report from Closed Session (1:00 p.m. unless adjusted by the Chair as needed) 

XIII. Public Comment on matters not on the agenda, but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 

Board 

XIV. Regular Afternoon Calendar 

XV. Board Member Reports on assigned Boards, Councils, Commissions or other meetings attended 

Adjournment – Meeting may be Adjourned in the Memory of/Moment of Silence/Reading of Names 



35 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

APPENDIX B. 4/5ths and Unanimous Vote Requirements 
 

Subject Vote Code Description 

Off Agenda 

Action 

Unanimous Gov. Code 

§54954.2 

(b)(2) 

To consider an item not on the Agenda, the Board must 

make findings that the need to take action arose after the 

agenda was posted. The vote requires at least four votes 

of the Board if two-thirds of the members are present. If 

less than two-thirds are present, it requires a unanimous 

vote. 

Airport 4/5 Gov. Code 

§26021 

Property acquisition for airport purchases by purchase, 

condemnation or lease; resolution for County aid. 

Airport 4/5 Gov. Code 

§26026 

Contribute money to the United States for the acquisition 

or improvement by the United States or any of its 

authorized agencies of airports in the county. 

Bonds  Gov. Code 

§§26880, 

26885, 

26946, 

29917, 

53595.20, 

53345.8; Sts. 

& 

Hwys Code 

§§9132, 

5227, 

10355, 

9534.5; Ed. 

Code 

§15145; 

Pub. Util. 

Code 

§§99100, 

99102, 

99118, 

99119 

There are many special voting requirements and other 

processes required for bonds. Please check with County 

Counsel. 

Bridges 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

§20405(c) 

Modify the plans, specifications and working details of 

bridge construction contracts. 



36 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Subject Vote Code Description 

Budget 4/5 Gov. Code 

§29088 

Changes to proposed budget after budget hearing but prior 

to final budget 

Budget 4/5 Gov. Code 

§29125 

The following transfers and revisions to the adopted 

appropriations require a 4/5 vote: (1) transfers between 

funds; or (2) transfers from appropriation for 

contingencies. 

Budget 4/5 Gov. Code 

§29127 

Adopt resolution necessary to appropriate and expend 

funds necessary to meet specific emergencies. 

Budget 4/5 Gov. Code 

§29130 

Make available for appropriation any of the following 

fund balances: 

a. Restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned 

fund balances, excluding the general reserves and 

nonspendable fund balance; 

b. Amounts that are either in excess of anticipated 

amounts or not specifically set forth in the budget 

derived from any actual or anticipated increases in 

financing sources. 

Collections 4/5 Gov. Code 

§26220(a) 

and (b) 

a. Assign for the purpose of collection any or all 

delinquent bills, claims and accounts, and any or 

all money judgments taken in the name of the 

County. 

b. Assign for the purpose of collection any or all 

c. delinquent or unsecured taxes. 

Condemnati 

on/Eminent 

Domain 

4/5 Code of Civ. 

Pro. 

§1245.240 

Adopt a resolution of necessity prior to commencing an 

eminent domain proceeding. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code 

§20128 

Modify terms of a construction contract. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code § 

20135 

Alter or change in any manner the plans and 

specifications previously adopted by the Board for the 

erection, alteration, construction, or repair of any public 



37 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Subject Vote Code Description 

   building or structure, where such alteration or change 

increases cost. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code 

§20136 

Adopt an order to alter or change a contract that is for the 

erection, construction, alteration or repair of any public 

building or other structure. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code § 

20137 

Contracts for the erection, construction, alteration, or 

repair of any public building or other structure: the Board 

may authorize a change if it does not exceed 10% 

of the original contract price. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code § 

20150.10 

Adopt a resolution declaring that a project can be 

performed more economically by county personnel, or 

that in the Board’s opinion a contract to perform the 

project can be negotiated with the original bidders at a 

lower price than that in any of the bids, or the materials or 

supplies furnished at a lower price in the open market. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code § 

22038(a)(2) 

After rejection of bids, adopt a resolution that declares that 

a project can be performed more economically by the 

employees of the agency. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code 

§22050(a)(1) 

In the case of an emergency, repair or replace a public 

facility, take any directly related and immediate action 

required by that emergency, and procure the necessary 

equipment, services and supplies for those purposes, 

without giving notice for bids to let contracts. (See also 

Pub. Contract Code §22035.) 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Code 

§22050(b)(1 

) 

Adopt a resolution or ordinance that delegates to the 

appropriate county administrative officer, chief engineer 

or other nonelected agency officer, the authority to order 

any action pursuant to the emergency powers described in 

(a)(1) above. 

Contracts 4/5 Pub. 

Contract 

Use of specific brand/trade name (without “or equal”) in 

the invitation of bids or requests for proposals in order to 



38 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Subject Vote Code Description 

  Code 

§3400(c)(4) 

respond to an emergency declared by a local agency by a 

four-fifths vote. 

Counsel 4/5 Gov. Code § 

25203 

Employ counsel to assist the district attorney, county 

counsel or other counsel for the county or public entity for 

which the Board is the governing body. 

Flood 

Control, 

Maintenance 

and 

Sanitation 

District 

4/5 Gov. Code § 

23014 

Adopt a resolution appropriating any of its available 

moneys to a revolving fund (not to exceed $500,000) to 

be used by any county sanitation district, county flood 

control district, or county district maintenance district 

located wholly within the county for certain purposes. 

Legislation 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25123(d); 

Elec. Code 

§9141(a)(4) 

Adopt ordinances that are for the immediate preservation 

of the public peace, health or safety, which contain a 

declaration of the facts constituting the urgency, in which 

case the ordinance shall take effect immediately. 

Parks Unanimous Gov. Code 

§25583 

Adopt a resolution of intention to abandon a park or a 

portion of a park and fix a time when it will meet to take 

final action. 

Parks 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25553 

Find that the enlargement or improvement of the public 

park, beach, golf course or recreation ground is of general 

county interest or that the cost of maintenance is 

increased by reason of use by residents of the county 

outside of the city, such that the Board may determine to 

extend aid to city parks. 

Planning 4/5 Gov. Code 

§65858 

Adopt as an urgency measure, an interim ordinance 

prohibiting any uses that may conflict with a 

contemplated general plan, specific plan, or zoning 

proposal. Any extension of time on the interim ordinance 

also requires a 4/5 vote. 

Planning 4/5 Pub. Util. 

Code §§ 

21676, 

21676.5 

Overrule an airport land use commission’s determination. 



39 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Subject Vote Code Description 

Property Unanimous Gov. Code 

§25363 

Cash sale or lease of any property not required for public 

use at a noticed public auction (4/5ths vote); sale or lease 

at an unadvertised, private sale can be authorized by 

simple majority, but only after the Board unanimously 

finds that the value of the property does not exceed $500, 

monthly rental value is less than $75 or it is a product of a 

County farm. 

Property Unanimous Gov. Code 

§25550 & 

§25550.5 

Conveyance of county property to city for public park 

purposes. 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25365(a) 

Convey to another governmental agency within the 

county any real or personal property. 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25365(b) 

Exchange real property with any person, firm or 

corporation for the purpose of removing defects in the 

title or where the real property is not required for county 

use and the real property to be acquired is required for 

county use. 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25515.2(c) 

Action to approve any sale, lease, lease with option to 

purchase, development or contract agreement for public 

property after a request for proposals. 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25536(a) 

Enter leases, concession or managerial contracts 

involving leasing or subleasing county-owned, leased or 

managed property devoted to or held for certain purposes. 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25536(c) 

Sell or lease county-owned property without complying 

with Article 8 “Sale or Lease of Real Property” if the 

county repurchases or leases back the property as part of 

the same transaction. Pledge specific revenues as security 

for the payment of obligations incurred in the repurchase 

or leaseback of the property. 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25536.5 

Approve an agreement to amend a lease, sublease, 

concession or managerial contract entered to permit a 

permanent improvement or alteration of property at the 

expense of the lessee or concessionaire and to permit a 

credit on rentals or other reimbursement. 



40 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Subject Vote Code Description 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§25526 

Adopt a resolution declaring intent to sell or lease 

property. 

Property 4/5 Gov. Code 

§53867 

Determines that property cannot be sold for a sum at least 

equal to the total of the amount paid, all accrued penalties 

and delinquencies, and necessary expenses incurred, and 

local agency may sell the property or lien for less than 

such total but not less than the fair market value of the 

property or lien. 

Roads Unanimous Sts. & Hwy 

Code 

§1026(c) 

County aid to road districts: order the expense of material 

for highway construction to be paid out of the county 

general fund. 

Special 

Assessment 

Districts 

4/5 Sts. & Hy. 

Code §§ 

2808.5, 

2808.6, 

2808.7 

There are several statutory special vote requirements 

related to special assessment districts. Please consult with 

County Counsel. 

Special 

Purpose 

District 

Unanimous Gov. Code § 

26909, subd. 

(b) 

Approve a unanimous request made by the governing 

board of a special district to replace an annual audit with 

another specified audit. 

Streets and 

Highway 

4/5 Sts. & Hwy. 

Code 

§942 

Let County rent county equipment used in the 

maintenance and construction of county roads, when such 

equipment is not in use upon the roads under the 

jurisdiction of the Board, and arrange the rate of rental 

compensation, in keeping with the general conditions 

prevailing in the county in which the transaction is made. 

Streets and 

Highway 

4/5 Sts. & Hwy. 

Code 

§ 969.5 

Adopt a resolution that determines that the general county 

interest demands the improvement or repair of a privately- 

owned road. 

Streets and 

Highway 

4/5 Sts. & Hwy. 

Code 

§ 1070 

Determine that the public convenience and necessity 

demand the acquisition or construction of a new county 

highway or improvement, repair or maintenance of any 

existing county highway, and the expense of such new 

highway or the expense of improving, repairing, or 

maintaining such existing highway is too great to pay out 



41 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Subject Vote Code Description 

   of the road fund of the district (such that the Board may 

adopt a resolution to make such acquisition or do such 

work and charge the expense to the county general fund, 

the road fund of the county, or the district fund of any 

district benefited). 

Streets and 

Highway 

4/5 Sts. & Hwy. 

Code 

§ 1627 

Adopt a resolution that establishes a “county highway 

right of way acquisition revolving fund” for acquiring 

rights of way for county highway purposes through 

purchase or condemnation. 

Streets and 

Highway 

4/5 Sts. & Hwy. 

Code 

§§ 1680, 

1686 

Adopt a resolution that determines that certain activities 

are of general county interest and that county aid may be 

extended to cities for city streets. 

Streets and 

Highway 

4/5 Sts. & Hwy. 

Code 

§ 1700 

Adopt a resolution that declares any highway located in 

whole or in part within a city to be a county highway for 

one or more of the following purposes: acquisition of 

rights-of-way, construction, maintenance, improvement, 

or repair. 

Tax 4/5 Gov. Code § 

53724 

Approve an ordinance or resolution that proposes a tax 

that is subject to approval by the voters pursuant to 

Government Code section 53722. 

Tax 4/5 Rev. & Tax. 

Code § 7285 

Approve ordinance proposing a transactions and use tax 

for general purposes. 

Tax 4/5 Rev. & Tax. 

Code § 

7285.5 

Adopt ordinance regarding a transactions and use tax for 

specific purposes. 



42 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

APPENDIX C. Request to Place Item on Board’s Agenda by the Public or Non-County 

Entities 

a. The public or any non-county entity (e.g., other governments, businesses, non-profits groups 

or other interest groups) are requested to contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (760- 

932-5533 or 760- 932-5538) for the date of the next available agenda. This information 

online at: http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos; click on Meetings link. 

b. A non-county individual or group seeking placement of an item on the Board of 

Supervisors’ Agenda must have one of the Supervisors sponsor the item and concurrence 

from the Board Chair. The name of Board Member sponsor shall be provided to the Clerk of 

the Board and listed on the agenda. 

c. The following information is required via email to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

before the item will be added to the agenda: 

• A brief description of the item to be discussed. 

• Is there a requested Board action, or is this item informational? 

• Is there a fiscal impact to the County? 

• Name of the person(s) who will be appearing before the Board to make the presentation. 

• Amount of time requested, including discussion and questions from the Board. 

• Preferred time of presentation, morning or afternoon. 

• Morning is between 9:30-12:00 p.m.; afternoon is after 1:00 p.m. 

 

NOTE: An afternoon time may not be possible if the meeting will be finished before Noon. 

• If the request is from an organization, please provide via email a cover memo on the 

organization’s letterhead addressed to the Mono County Board of Supervisors describing in 

detail the request, expected Board action, and fiscal impact. 

• If handouts are to be provided at the Board meeting, provide copies via email to the Clerk 

of the Board of Supervisors, and bring at least 10 paper copies for public distribution 

• If a PowerPoint presentation will be presented, please email it to the Clerk prior to the 

agenda deadline so it can be included in the Board’s packet. 

d. Upon request, the Clerk of the Board will provide a copy of a sample cover memo. 

http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos%3B


43 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

Appendix II - Welcoming New County Supervisors 

Mono County 

Welcoming New County Supervisors 

Perhaps the most important way a board can sustain its positive governance culture and remain a 

unified, vibrant decision-making team is through the purposeful on-boarding of new supervisors. 

Change on boards is inevitable. There is a saying in governance circles that one new Board member 

creates an entirely new Board. Mono County is committed to taking a well thought out approach to 

managing the onboarding process of new Supervisors, and to viewing change as an opportunity to 

refuel and refresh the governance system. The key is managing the onboarding process from start to 

finish, providing the new Supervisor(s) with a welcoming environment, listening carefully and 

empathetically, and seeing change as positive. Positive governance culture is sustained and built upon 

by passing on the unity of purpose, governance principles, and the norms to new generations of 

Supervisors. 

There are four key steps that Mono County will take to help new Supervisors feel welcome and a part 

of the Board. 

First: A meeting will be scheduled with the County Administrative Officer (CAO), County Counsel 

(COCO) and Board chair either after the new Supervisor is elected or after they are sworn in, as 

appropriate. This informal orientation session will serve two purposes. One is to find out about the 

goals and priorities of the new Supervisor. Second is to provide the new Supervisor with the 

information necessary to understand the complex organization of the county system. The CAO, County 

Counsel and Board chair should be prepared to answer any and all questions with candor and 

authenticity. However, it is important for the Board chair, CAO, and COCO not to appear to be 

lecturing the new Supervisor or inferring a “our way or the highway” message. This is an opportunity 

to communicate the governance culture of the county and provide a systems and strategic overview. 

Second: Reaching out. This is a time for individual members of the Board to extend a personal 

welcome to the new Supervisor. A personal note, email, or phone call is a very welcoming gesture and 

signals an openness and receptivity on the part of the Board. This is particularly important if a 

contested election created tension or outright hostility between individuals. It is here that incumbent 

Supervisors should suspend assumptions and preconceived notions regarding the new Supervisor(s). 

Third: As soon as feasible, site visits should be arranged which will allow the CAO to introduce the 

new Supervisor to the staff at the county department level where the services are provided. It can be 

very invigorating for Supervisors to learn more directly about the work of staff at the services level. 



44 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

For many this is the beginning of an entirely new perspective. This is also an opportunity for 

department heads and staff to meet and interact with the new Supervisor on a more informal manner 

than formal Board meetings. 

Fourth: As soon as possible, the board should agendize an in-depth discussion meeting for the new 

Supervisor at a regular or special meeting with the full Board where all aspects of governance in the 

county can be explored. At this meeting, the new Supervisor should be given the opportunity to discuss 

and provide input into the shared core beliefs and values of the Board, the moral imperative, and the 

strategic goals. Most importantly this is when and where the members of the Board can actively listen 

to the new supervisor. Listening respectfully and empathetically may be the most important step the 

Board can take to bring a new supervisor into the positive governance culture of the board. 

Just as in the case of the Board chair, CAO, and COCO’s initial meeting, it is important that the Board 

not use this time to “lecture” the new Supervisor or in any way attempt to pressure him or her into 

“falling in line”. This is where the Mono County Governance Handbook is so helpful. The Governance 

Handbook should be used as a guide for the discussion and time spent with the full Board and the new 

Supervisor discussing the Mono County governance principles, norms, protocols, and the role and 

responsibilities the Board. The value of this discussion is not just for the new Supervisors; it is also an 

opportunity for current Supervisors to revisit these same topics and recommit their support and for the 

public and other county staff to be reminded of county structures and protocols. At this time the CAO 

can review major issues that the board is currently addressing and challenges in the future. 

It is also an opportunity to emphasize the importance of coherence and a unified governing Board. It 

should be made clear to new Supervisors that a unified Board with a shared moral imperative is not a 

lockstep, uniform Board. Divergent opinions and points of view are welcomed and encouraged. New 

Supervisors should understand that they are part of an important team and that their point of view will 

be woven into the fabric of the county’s governance culture. 

There are three additional points that new Supervisors need to keep in mind: (1) the necessity of 

compliance with applicable legal requirements such as the Public Records Act and the Brown Act; (2) 

the value of taking advantage of time, everything does not need to be done in the Supervisor’s first 

year; and (3) the importance of identifying and avoiding conflicts of interest. An early lesson for new 

supervisors is realizing that they can never take off their board hat as long as they are on the Board. In 

everyone’s mind, a Supervisor will always be a Supervisor and as such be privy to special information 

and have the ability to exercise power in the county. 

 

Perhaps one of the most difficult challenges for new Supervisors is the realization that they do not, as 

individuals, have the authority to implement changes or “fixes” by themselves to the issues and challenge 

that motivated them to join the Board in the first place. They quickly realize that even though they were 



45 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook 
 

 

elected as an individual they do not have legal authority to act alone but they must govern as a member of 

the Board and only the Board of Supervisors acting in a public meeting with a Board majority has the 

authority to take action. Therefore, their success as a Supervisor is completely dependent upon the success 

of the Mono County Board of Supervisors in carrying out its governance responsibilities. 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

Departments: Human Resources
TIME REQUIRED 10 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Christine Bouchard, Assistant County
Administrative OfficerSUBJECT Amendment to Allocation List,

Underfilling one Management Analyst
with an Office Manager, Adding one
At-Will Staff Services Manager,
Deleting one Supervising Staff
Services Analyst and Moving one
Senior Services Supervisor to Range
72, and Adding one Program
Manager - MCPE

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed resolutions approving updates to the allocation list, reclassification of employees, and creation of new At-Will job
classification. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Announce Fiscal Impact. Adopt the proposed resolutions, approving updates to the allocation list, reclassification of
employees and creation of new At-Will job classification. Authorize the Board Chair to execute contracts on behalf of the
County.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The changes have been included in the 2024/2025 Budget. The total cost for the Office Manager is $123,536, of which
$83,888 is salary and $39,647 is benefits. The cost for the remainder of the year is $92,060, of which $62,514 is salary and
$29,546 is benefits. The position is funded by the General Fund.  The total cost for the Staff Services Manager is $162,290,
of which $118,039 is salary and $44,251 is benefits. The cost for the remainder of the year is $120,940, of which $87,963 is
salary and $32,977 is benefits. This position is not funded by the General Fund. The total cost of the Senior Services
Supervisor at range 72, step A is $112,466, of which $74,134 is salary and $38,332 is benefits. The cost for the remainder
of the year is $83,811, of which $55,245 is salary and $28,566 is benefits. This position is not funded by the General
Fund. The total cost of the Program Manager is $136,029, of which $94,898 is salary and $41,131 is benefits. The cost for
the remainder of the year is $101,370, of which $70,719 is salary and $30,651 is benefits. 

CONTACT NAME: Christine Bouchard

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325414 / cbouchard@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

Christine Bouchard

 

javascript:history.go(0);


HR

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Resolution

 Staff Services Manager Job Description

 Allison Shaw Resolution

 Allison Shaw Employment Agreement

 Cathy Young Resolution

 Cathy Young Employment Agreement

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/25/2024 3:40 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/25/2024 3:49 PM Finance Yes

 9/26/2024 11:58 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 


                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34286&ItemID=18919

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34287&ItemID=18919

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34288&ItemID=18919

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34305&ItemID=18919

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34306&ItemID=18919

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34307&ItemID=18919

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=34308&ItemID=18919


BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

CHAIR 
John Peters / District 4 

VICE CHAIR 
Lynda Salcido / District 5 
 

Jennifer Kreitz / District 1 
Rhonda Duggan / District 2 
Bob Gardner / District 3 
 

COUNTY DEPARTMENTS 

ASSESSOR 
Hon. Barry Beck 

DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
Hon. David Anderson 

SHERIFF / CORONER 
Hon. Ingrid Braun 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
Robin Roberts 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
Wendy Sugimura 

COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER 
Queenie Barnard 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
Christopher Beck 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Liz Grans “Interim” 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES 
Bryan Bullock 

FINANCE 
Janet Dutcher, DPA, MPA, 
CGFM, CPA  

HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES 

Kathryn Peterson 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
Mike Martinez 

PROBATION 
Karin Humiston 

PUBLIC WORKS 

Paul Roten 

 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

COUNTY OF MONO 
Sandra Moberly, MPA, AICP 

ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

Christine Bouchard 
 

 

 
 

 To: Board of Supervisors 

From: Christine Bouchard, Assistant County Administrative Officer 

Date: October 1, 2024 

Re:    Amendment to Allocation List, underfilling one Management Analyst with an Office 
Manager, adding one At-Will Staff Services Manager, deleting one Supervising Staff 
Services Analyst and moving one Senior Services Supervisor to Range 72, and adding 
one Program Manager - MCPE. 

Strategic Plan Focus Area(s) Met 

 A Thriving Economy     Safe and Healthy Communities    Mandated 
Function 

 Sustainable Public Lands      Workforce & Operational Excellence 

Discussion  

The Mono County Human Resources Division is proposing amendments to the 
allocation list and other departmental changes as outlined below: 

1. CAO's Office : Underfilling the Management Analyst position with an 
Office Manager position at Range 110, and appointing Allison Shaw to this role. 
Allison is currently an Administrative Services Specialist in the MCPE Bargaining 
Unit and will transition to an At-Will position. 

2. Health and Human Services Agency : Creating a new Staff Services 
Manager position, eliminating one Supervising Staff Services Analyst position, 
and promoting Cathy Young to the new role. Cathy, currently in the MCPE 
Bargaining Unit, will move into the newly created At-Will position. A desk audit 
conducted by Human Resources staff confirmed this is the appropriate position 
based on her current duties. 

3. Health and Human Services Agency : Deleting one Supervising Staff 
Services Analyst position and reclassifying one Senior Services Supervisor 
position to Range 72, Step A (previously in Range 63). Human Resources 
conducted an audit of the job responsibilities and determined that this 
reclassification is better aligned with the job duties. 

4. Behavioral Health Department : Adding an MCPE Program Manager 
position and assigning Lauren Plum to this new role. A desk audit conducted by 
Human Resources staff determined this position is appropriate for Ms. Plum. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 1 - 

 
 

R24-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE 

OFFICER TO AMEND THE COUNTY OF MONO LIST OF ALLOCATED POSITIONS 
IN THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Mono maintains a list of County job classifications, the pay 
ranges or rates for those job classifications, and the number of positions allocated by the Board 
of Supervisors for each of those job classifications on its List of Allocated Positions (or 
“Allocation List”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Allocation List identifies approved vacancies for recruitment and 
selection by Human Resources and implements collective bargaining agreements related to job 
classifications and pay rates; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County seeks to provide public services in the most efficient and 
economical manner possible, which at times requires the modification of the job classifications 
on the Allocation List; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is currently necessary to amend the Allocation List as part of maintaining 

proper accounting for hiring employees to perform public services; 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

MONO RESOLVES that the County Administrative Officer is authorized to amend the County 
of Mono List of Allocated Positions to reflect the following changes all within the Department of 
Human Resources: 

 
Eliminate the allocation of one full-time permanent Supervising Staff Services Analyst 

salary range AT-Will 122 (new total: Zero), 
 
 Add the allocation of one full-time permanent Staff Services Manager salary range AT-
Will 117 (new total: One), 
 
 Add the allocation of one full-time permanent Senior Services Supervisor salary range 72 
MCPE (new total: One),  
 
 Eliminate the allocation of one full-time permanent Senior Services Supervisor salary 
range 63 MCPE (new total: Zero),  
 
 Add the allocation of one full-time Program Manager, Behavioral Health salary range 
MCPE 82,  



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 2 - 

 
  
 
// 
 
// 
 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2024, 

by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 

 
       ______________________________ 
       John Peters, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 



Staff Services Manager 

 

 

 

 

Revision: 05/2024  Page 1 of 5 

 

                          Staff Services Manager 
 

 

FLSA: 

Exempt 

Bargaining Unit/Contract: 

AT-Will 

Reports to: 

Department Head 

Location: 

Bridgeport/Mammoth Lakes 

Salary/Level: 

117 

Position Type: 

Full-Time 

EEO Category: 

1 

BOS approval Date: 

TBD 

Last Revision: 

05/2024 

 

About the role  

Under general direc.on, the Staff Services Manager, manages, supervises and administers one or more 

department-wide staff services func.ons; plans, organizes, directs, and controls func.onal ac.vi.es 

pertaining to general, fiscal, and/or personnel services; performs highly advanced and complex analy.cal 

du.es in support of the assigned func.on(s); and performs related du.es as assigned.  

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

Incumbents are responsible for managing and administering several staff services func.ons. The posi.on 

supervises subordinate clerical, technical, and/or professional staff. This posi.on is characterized by its 

func.onal management responsibili.es over an administra.ve area and providing subject-ma;er 

exper.se based upon a highly specialized knowledge, skills and abili.es. 

CLASSIFICATIONS SUPERVISED:  
Responsibili.es include direct supervision over assigned staff. 

 

EESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONISBILITIES 

o The following du.es are typical for this classifica.on. Incumbents may be required to perform 

addi.onal or different du.es from those set forth below to address business needs and changing 

business prac.ces. 

o Plans, directs, and manages the ac.vi.es of a staff services func.onal area with department-

wide scope and impact 

o Provides guidance and technical direc.on to management, supervisors, and subordinate staff; 

serves as a highly skilled subject ma;er expert in areas of assignment 

o Plans, directs, and manages the collec.on and analysis of data; makes recommenda.ons on the 

formula.on of policy and procedures, as well as staffing and organiza.onal changes 

o Plans, directs, and manages the implementa.on of surveys; directs and/or performs research 

and sta.s.cal analysis on complex administra.ve, fiscal, personnel, and/or programma.c 

ma;ers 

o Plans, directs, and manages the design, analysis, development, and implementa.on of new and 

revised programs, systems, so>ware, procedures, methods of opera.on, and forms 

o Plans, directs, and manages the prepara.on of budgets, reports, manuals, and/or publica.ons 



Staff Services Manager 

 

 

 

 

Revision: 05/2024  Page 2 of 5 

 

o Supervises the work of clerical, technical, and/or professional analyst staff; assigns work, 

establishes work priori.es and performance standards, and provides feedback to subordinates 

o Conducts a variety of analy.cal and opera.onal studies regarding departmental ac.vi.es; 

evaluates alterna.ves, makes recommenda.ons for improvement; and assists with the 

implementa.on of procedural, administra.ve, and/or opera.onal changes a>er approval 

o Prepares narra.ve and sta.s.cal reports, correspondence, spreadsheets, and graphics 

o Assists in the management of the department by evalua.ng exis.ng and proposed organiza.on, 

policies and procedures; consul.ng with and advising department personnel; making 

recommenda.ons and direc.ng, reviewing, and evalua.ng the implementa.on of changes 

o Directs the maintenance of complete and accurate fiscal, personnel, payroll and related records, 

and ensures .mely comple.on 

o Par.cipates in the establishment of strategic short-term and long-range program planning 

o Coordinates, monitors, and directs the acquisi.on, alloca.on, and use of equipment, supplies, 

telecommunica.on systems, and forms, conducts research and develops procedures to improve 

efficiency and cost effec.veness, and monitors expenditures 

o Conducts studies, evaluates, and prepares reports on departmental and assigned division 

opera.ons including procedures, systems, space requirements, organiza.onal structure, 

expenditure of funds and types and effec.veness of equipment 

o Dra>s, reviews, and analyzes exis.ng and proposed policies, rules, regula.ons, legisla.on, and 

ordinances affec.ng unit area, recommends and implements changes as needed 

o Plans, directs, and manages ac.vi.es to meet department-wide training and development needs 

o Plans, directs, and manages the development and/or coordina.on of resources for department-

wide training and staff development including workshops, college coursework, training 

programs, and on-the-job training sessions 

o Evaluates department training needs, designs, and delivers in-service training, evaluates 

effec.veness Coordinates department par.cipa.on in countywide training program 

o Ensures effec.ve coordina.on of assigned ac.vi.es with other departments, divisions, units, and 

outside agencies; represents the department head in commi;ee mee.ngs; responds to the 

more sensi.ve and difficult complaints and requests for informa.on 

o Interviews, selects, and makes hiring recommenda.ons of assigned staff 

o Serves as the department personnel officer with department-wide responsibility for 

administering personnel and payroll func.ons 

o Par.cipates in appropriate recruitment and selec.on programs 

o Performs a variety of recruitment efforts in coordina.on with County Human Resources and 

advises departmental managers and supervisors on selec.on and placement of employees 

o Prepares forecasts of departmental staff needs and provides advice, direc.on, and informa.on 

to department managers and supervisors on a variety of human resource related ma;ers 

o Supervises the maintenance of department personnel records, including hires, termina.ons, 

promo.ons, and other personnel data 

o May direct the work of assigned professional and support staff on a project or day-to-day basis 

o Perform related du.es as required 

 

 

 

 



Staff Services Manager 

 

 

 

 

Revision: 05/2024  Page 3 of 5 

 

DESIREABLE QUALIFICATIONS 

 
o Principles and prac.ces of management in a public agency departmental se@ng 

o Principles and prac.ces of employee supervision, including selec.on, work planning, 

organiza.on, 

o performance review and evalua.on, and employee training and discipline 

o Principles of management analysis and organiza.onal design necessary to formulate 

administra.ve policies and procedures 

o Basic county government rules and responsibili.es and func.ons, terminology and prac.ces of 

the department to which assigned 

o Principles of organiza.on, administra.ve, and fiscal management 

o Principles of program planning and evalua.on 

o Principles, problems, and methods of public and business administra.on, including organiza.on, 

personnel, fiscal, management, and budgetary control 

o Computer applica.ons related to the work, including spreadsheets and basic methods of graphic 

o presenta.on, word processing, and electronic mail 

o Techniques and methods of organizing and mo.va.ng groups 

o Principles and methods of strategic planning 

o Governmental func.ons and organiza.on 

o Effec.ve leadership and team building principles 

o Effec.ve communica.on, facilita.on methods, and aids used for training programs and 

presenta.ons 

o Personnel management principles and techniques, including interviewing, selec.on, training, 

supervision, evalua.on, mo.va.on, discipline, and staff development 

o Principles and methods for inves.ga.ng and resolving grievances and complaints 

o Principles and prac.ces of public sector labor rela.ons administra.on including interpreta.on 

and applica.on of nego.ated agreements, collec.ve bargaining, employer-employee rela.ons 

prac.ces, meet and confer obliga.ons, and progressive discipline. 

o Principles and prac.ces of public administra.on and human resources as applied to  

 departmental administra.on, including payroll and personnel processing and basic labor 

rela.ons  

 concepts 

 

Ability to: 

 

o Plan, organize, direct, control, and review the work of staff and ac.vi.es of a department-wide 

staff services func.on 

o Administer and perform highly complex ac.vi.es associated with department-wide personnel, 

general analysis, and other administra.ve areas 

o Analyze data and present ideas and informa.on effec.vely 

o Iden.fy problems and central issues and develop workable solu.ons 

o Consult with and advise execu.ve staff, managers, and supervisors on a wide variety of ma;ers 

o Par.cipate in strategic planning ac.vi.es to recommend and implement organiza.onal changes 

and improvements 



Staff Services Manager 

 

 

 

 

Revision: 05/2024  Page 4 of 5 

 

o Analyze complex organiza.onal problems, evaluate and select alterna.ves, iden.fy poten.al 

consequences of proposed ac.ons, and implement recommenda.ons in support of 

departmental objec.ves 

o Analyze system requirements, design solu.ons and implement processes and communicate with 

users who have no technical data processing background 

o Analyze situa.ons accurately and ini.ate appropriate ac.on 

o Supervise subordinate staff, including planning, organizing, coordina.ng, and reviewing all work 

o Select, train, evaluate, and manage the performance of subordinate staff 

o Consult with and coordinate the administra.ve requirements of different department staff 

members 

o Effec.vely counsel employees on work errors or deficiencies and take appropriate disciplinary 

ac.ons as necessary 

o Prepare clear, concise, accurate, and effec.ve correspondence, presenta.ons; sta.s.cal, and 

narra.ve reports; policies, procedures, and other wri;en materials 

o Speak effec.vely and convey ideas clearly while facilita.ng group discussions and training 

sessions 

o Understand, interpret, apply, and explain complex laws, rules, and regula.ons as they relate to 

assigned areas of responsibility 

o Assess the customer's immediate needs and ensure customer's receipt of needed services 

through personal service or making appropriate referral 

o Effec.vely represent the department to other departments and agencies and before public 

bodies, and secure willing coopera.on of opera.ng officials  

o Establish and maintain effec.ve working rela.onships with a variety of department staff 

o Exercise judgment, tact, and diplomacy with a variety of poli.cal, social, economic groups in a 

variety of situa.ons rela.ve to a variety of issues 

o Work independently in iden.fying the need for and developing proposed changes to opera.ng 

prac.ces, programs, and policies 

 

 

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 

Any combina.on of training and experience which would likely provide the required knowledge 

and abili.es is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required knowledge and abili.es would be: 

 

Any combina.on of educa.on and experience that would likely provide the required knowledge, skills, 

and abili.es is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledge, skills, and abili.es would be: 

One (1) year of full-.me experience as a Supervising Staff Services Analyst; Two (2) years of full-.me 
experience as a Staff Services Analyst III; Three (3) years of full-.me experience as a Staff Services 
Analyst II; Gradua.on from an accredited college or university with a bachelor's degree; and four (4) 
years of full-.me professional experience performing general administra.on, personnel, and/or fiscal 
work. 

 

Progressively responsible professional experience performing analy.cal du.es (which require 

considerable independence performing, compiling, organizing and evalua.ng informa.on and 

prepared reports) is desirable. 

 



Staff Services Manager 

 

 

 

 

Revision: 05/2024  Page 5 of 5 

 

Educa1on: 

A bachelor’s degree in public policy, public administra.on, or business administra.on is desirable.  

 

 

TYPICAL PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 
Must possess mobility to work in a standard office se@ng and use standard office equipment, including a 

computer; vision to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to 

communicate in person, before groups, and over the telephone.  This is primarily a sedentary office 

classifica.on although standing and walking between work areas may be required.  Finger dexterity is 

needed to access, enter, and retrieve data using a computer keyboard, or calculator and to operate 

standard office equipment.  Posi.ons in this classifica.on occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, 

and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and file informa.on.  Employees must possess the ability to 

li>, carry, push, and pull materials and objects up to 25 pounds.  Reasonable accommoda.on will be 

made for individuals on a case-by-case basis. 

 

TYPICAL WORKING CONDITIONS 

Work is performed in office environment; frequent driving to different loca.ons throughout the County; 

con.nuous contact with other staff and the public. 

 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 

Possession of a valid California driver's license. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Rob 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors has the authority under Section 25300 of 
the Government Code to prescribe the compensation, appointment, and conditions of employment of 
County employees; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mono County Board of Supervisors, 
that the Agreement Regarding Terms and Conditions of Employment of Allison Shaw, a copy of which 
is attached hereto as an exhibit and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth, is 
hereby approved and the compensation, appointment, and other terms and conditions of employment 
set forth in that Agreement are hereby prescribed and shall govern the employment of Allison Shaw.  
The Chair of the Board of Supervisors shall execute said Agreement on behalf of the County. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of October 2024, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
ATTEST:  ______________________  __________________________ 
  Clerk of the Board   John Peters, Chair 
       Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________ 
COUNTY COUNSEL 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R24- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVING AN  

AGREEMENT PRESCRIBING THE COMPENSATION, APPOINTMENT, 
AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT OF ALLISON SHAW 

 



 

V2024.02.08 – A. Shaw Page 1 of 4 

AGREEMENT REGARDING TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
EMPLOYMENT OF ALLISON SHAW, 

AS OFFICE MANAGER FOR MONO COUNTY 
 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Allison Shaw and the County of Mono 
(hereinafter “County”).  
 
I. RECITALS 
 
Allison Shaw (hereinafter “Ms. Shaw”) is currently employed by County as its Administrative 
Services Specialist to the County Administrative Officer’s (“CAO”) office.  The County now 
wishes to employ Ms. Shaw in the at-will position of Office Manager for the CAO’s office in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  Ms. Shaw wishes to 
accept employment with the County on said terms and conditions.   
 
II. AGREEMENT 
 

1. This Agreement shall commence October 1, 2024 (“Effective Date”), and shall remain in 
effect unless or until terminated by either party in accordance with this Agreement.     

 
2. As of the Effective Date, Ms. Shaw shall be employed by Mono County as its Office 

Manager for the CAO’s office, serving at the will and pleasure of the CAO.  Ms. Shaw 
accepts such employment.  The CAO shall be deemed the “appointing authority” for all 
purposes with respect to Ms. Shaw’s employment.  The CAO and Ms. Shaw will work 
together to establish specific, measurable, achievable and realistic performance goals for 
Ms. Shaw’s work.  Ms. Shaw’s job performance and progress towards achieving the 
agreed-upon goals shall be evaluated by the CAO in accordance with the “Policy 
Regarding the Compensation of At-Will and Elected Management Level Officers and 
Employees” most recently adopted by the Mono County Board of Supervisors on April 2, 
2024, and as the same may be amended or updated from time to time and unilaterally 
implemented by the County (hereinafter the “Management Compensation Policy”). 

 
3. Ms. Shaw’s salary shall be Range 110, Step A as set forth in the “Resolution of the Mono 

County Board of Supervisors Adopting a Salary Matrix and Position Assignment 
Schedule for At-Will Employees and Elected Department Heads” most recently adopted 
on April 2, 2024, and as same may be amended or updated from time to time and 
unilaterally implemented by the County (hereinafter the “Salary Matrix”) and shall be 
modified as provided in the then-applicable Management Compensation Policy and the 
Salary Matrix. 

  
4. Ms. Shaw understands that she is responsible for paying the employee’s share of any 

retirement contributions owed to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) with 
respect to her employment for the County as determined by the County’s contract with 
PERS and/or County policy, and also any employee share of the “normal cost” of her 
retirement benefits that may be mandated by the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 



 

V2024.02.08 – A. Shaw Page 2 of 4 

of 2013 (PEPRA).  
 

5. Ms. Shaw shall continue to earn and accrue vacation and sick leave in accordance with 
the “Policy Regarding Benefits of At-Will and Elected Management-Level Officers and 
Employees” updated most recently by the Mono County Board of Supervisors on April 2, 
2024, and as the same may be further amended from time to time and unilaterally 
implemented by the County (hereinafter the “Management Benefits Policy”) and in 
accordance with any applicable County Code provisions not in conflict with said Policy.  
Also, pursuant to said Policy, in recognition of the fact that her employment will be 
exempt from the payment of overtime or compensatory time-off under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, she shall be entitled to 80 hours of merit leave (aka administrative leave) 
during each calendar year of service under this Agreement, prorated for 2024 to reflect 
Ms. Shaw’s October 1, 2024 start date.  Ms. Shaw understands that said merit leave does 
not accrue from one calendar year to the next; rather, it must be used by December 31st of 
each calendar year in which it is provided, or it is lost. Consistent with Ms. Shaw’s 
uninterrupted employment status, this Agreement shall have no effect on any sick leave 
or vacation time that Ms. Shaw may have accrued as of the effective date of this 
Agreement nor on her original date of hire or total years of service as a County employee, 
to the extent the same may be relevant in determining such accruals or Ms. Shaw’s date 
of eligibility for or vesting of any non-salary benefits or for any other purpose. 
 

6. The County shall pay the professional dues, subscriptions, and other educational 
expenses necessary for Ms. Shaw’s full participation in applicable professional 
associations, for her continued professional growth and for the good of the County, as 
determined to be appropriate, and as approved by the CAO.   
 

7. To the extent not inconsistent with the foregoing or any other provision of this 
Agreement, Ms. Shaw shall be entitled to the same general benefits provided by the 
County to other management-level employees, as described more fully in the 
Management Benefits Policy.  Such benefits include but are not limited to CalPERS 
retirement benefits at the tier applicable to Ms. Shaw’s employment, CalPERS medical 
insurance, County dental and vision coverage, and life insurance.   

 
8. Ms. Shaw understands and agrees that her receipt of compensation or benefits of any kind 

under this Agreement or under any applicable County Code provision or policy – 
including but not limited to salary, insurance coverage, and paid holidays or leaves – is 
expressly contingent on her actual and regular rendering of full-time personal services to 
the County or, in the event of any absence, upon her proper use of any accrued leave.  
Should Ms. Shaw cease rendering such services during this Agreement and be absent 
from work without any accrued leave to cover said absence, then she shall cease earning 
or receiving any additional compensation or benefits until such time as she returns to 
work and resumes rendering personal services; provided, however, that the County shall 
provide any compensation or benefits mandated by state or federal law.  Furthermore, 
should Ms. Shaw’s regular schedule ever be reduced to less than full-time employment, 
on a temporary or permanent basis, then all compensation and benefits provided by this 



 

V2024.02.08 – A. Shaw Page 3 of 4 

Agreement or any applicable County policies shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis, except 
for those benefits that the County does not generally pro-rate for its other part-time 
employees. 

 
9. Consistent with the “at will” nature of Ms. Shaw’s employment, the CAO may terminate 

Ms. Shaw’s employment at any time during this Agreement, without cause.  In such 
event, this Agreement shall automatically terminate concurrently with the effective date 
of the termination.  Ms. Shaw understands and acknowledges that as an “at will” 
employee, she will not have permanent status nor will her employment be governed by 
the County Personnel System (Mono County Personnel Rules) except to the extent that 
System is ever modified to apply expressly to at-will employees.  Among other things, 
she will have no property interest in her employment, no right to be terminated or 
disciplined only for just cause, and no right to appeal, challenge, or otherwise be heard 
regarding any such termination or other disciplinary action the County Administrative 
Officer may, in his or her discretion, take during Ms. Shaw’s employment.   

 
10. In the event of a termination without cause under paragraph 9 occurring after the first 

twelve (12) months of Ms. Shaw’s employment under this Agreement, Ms. Shaw shall 
receive as severance pay a lump sum equal to two (2) months’ salary.  For purposes of 
severance pay, “salary” refers only to base compensation.  Ms. Shaw shall not be entitled 
to any severance pay in the event that the CAO has grounds to discipline her on or about 
the time he or she gives notice of termination.  For purposes of this provision, grounds for 
discipline include but are not limited to those specified in section 520 of the Mono 
County Personnel Rules, as the same may be amended from time to time.  Ms. Shaw shall 
also not be entitled to any severance pay in the event that she becomes unable to perform 
the essential functions of her position (with or without reasonable accommodations) and 
her employment is duly terminated for such non-disciplinary reasons. 

 
11. Ms. Shaw may resign her employment with the County at any time.  Her resignation shall 

be deemed effective when tendered, and this agreement shall automatically terminate on 
that same date, unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing by the parties.  Ms. Shaw 
shall not be entitled to any severance pay or to earn or accrue additional compensation of 
any kind after the effective date of such resignation. 

 
12. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 

employment of Ms. Shaw, and shall supersede and replace any and all prior agreements 
or understandings regarding Ms. Shaw’s employment.   
 

13. The parties agree that the Board of Supervisors’ approval of this Agreement on behalf of 
the County is a legislative act and that through this agreement, the Board of Supervisors 
is carrying out its responsibility and authority under Section 25300 of the Government 
Code to set the terms and conditions of County employment.  It is not the parties’ intent 
to alter in any way the fundamental statutory (non-contractual) nature of Ms. Shaw’s 
employment with the County nor to give rise to any future contractual remedies for 
breach of this Agreement or of an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  



 

V2024.02.08 – A. Shaw Page 4 of 4 

Rather, the parties intend that Ms. Shaw’s sole remedy in response to any failure by the 
County to comply with this Agreement shall be traditional mandamus. Pursuant to 
Government Code sections 53243 et seq., Ms. Shaw shall reimburse the County for any 
paid leave pending an investigation, legal criminal defense, or cash settlement related to 
termination by the County if Ms. Shaw is convicted of a crime involving abuse of office 
or position. 

 
14. Ms. Shaw acknowledges that this Agreement is executed voluntarily by her, without 

duress or undue influence on the part or on behalf of the County.  Ms. Shaw further 
acknowledges that she has participated in the negotiation and preparation of this 
Agreement and has had the opportunity to be represented by counsel with respect to such 
negotiation and preparation or does hereby knowingly waive her right to do so, and that 
she is fully aware of the contents of this Agreement and of its legal effect.  Thus, any 
ambiguities in this Agreement shall not be resolved in favor of or against either party. 

 
15. For purposes of this Agreement, a photocopy, facsimile, .pdf, or electronically scanned 

signatures, including but not limited to Docusign or similar service, shall be deemed as 
valid and as enforceable as an original.    

 
III. EXECUTION: 
 
 This Agreement is executed by the parties this 1st day of October, 2024. 
 
EMPLOYEE  THE COUNTY OF MONO 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Allison Shaw      John Peters, Chair 
       Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
COUNTY COUNSEL 
 



 

Page 1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Rob 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors has the authority under Section 25300 of 
the Government Code to prescribe the compensation, appointment, and conditions of employment of 
County employees; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mono County Board of Supervisors, 
that the Agreement Regarding Terms and Conditions of Employment of Cathleen Young, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as an exhibit and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set 
forth, is hereby approved and the compensation, appointment, and other terms and conditions of 
employment set forth in that Agreement are hereby prescribed and shall govern the employment of 
Cathleen Young.  The Chair of the Board of Supervisors shall execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
County. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of October 2024, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
ATTEST:  ______________________  __________________________ 
  Clerk of the Board   John Peters, Chair 
       Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________ 
COUNTY COUNSEL 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R24- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVING AN  

AGREEMENT PRESCRIBING THE COMPENSATION, APPOINTMENT, 
AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT OF CATHLEEN YOUNG 

 



 

V2024.02.08 – C. Young Page 1 of 4 

AGREEMENT REGARDING TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
EMPLOYMENT OF CATHLEEN YOUNG 

AS STAFF SERVICES MANAGER FOR MONO COUNTY 
 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Cathleen Young and the County of Mono 
(hereinafter “County”).  
 
I. RECITALS 
 
Cathleen Young (hereinafter “Ms. Young”) is currently employed by County as its Supervising 
Staff Services Analyst for the Health and Human Services (“HHS”) department.  The County 
now wishes to employ Ms. Young in the at-will position of Staff Services Manager for HHS in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  Ms. Young wishes to 
accept employment with the County on said terms and conditions.   
 
II. AGREEMENT 
 

1. This Agreement shall commence October 1, 2024 (“Effective Date”), and shall remain in 
effect unless or until terminated by either party in accordance with this Agreement.     

 
2. As of the Effective Date, Ms. Young shall be employed by Mono County as its Staff 

Services Manager for HHS, serving at the will and pleasure of the Director of HHS.  Ms. 
Young accepts such employment.  The Director of HHS shall be deemed the “appointing 
authority” for all purposes with respect to Ms. Young’s employment.  The Director of 
HHS and Ms. Young will work together to establish specific, measurable, achievable and 
realistic performance goals for Ms. Young’s work.  Ms. Young’s job performance and 
progress towards achieving the agreed-upon goals shall be evaluated by the Director of 
HHS in accordance with the “Policy Regarding the Compensation of At-Will and Elected 
Management Level Officers and Employees” most recently adopted by the Mono County 
Board of Supervisors on April 2, 2024, and as the same may be amended or updated from 
time to time and unilaterally implemented by the County (hereinafter the “Management 
Compensation Policy”). 

 
3. Ms. Young’s salary shall be Range 117, Step A as set forth in the “Resolution of the 

Mono County Board of Supervisors Adopting a Salary Matrix and Position Assignment 
Schedule for At-Will Employees and Elected Department Heads” most recently adopted 
on April 2, 2024, and as same may be amended or updated from time to time and 
unilaterally implemented by the County (hereinafter the “Salary Matrix”) and shall be 
modified as provided in the then-applicable Management Compensation Policy and the 
Salary Matrix. 

  
4. Ms. Young understands that she is responsible for paying the employee’s share of any 

retirement contributions owed to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) with 
respect to her employment for the County as determined by the County’s contract with 
PERS and/or County policy, and also any employee share of the “normal cost” of her 



 

V2024.02.08 – C. Young Page 2 of 4 

retirement benefits that may be mandated by the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
of 2013 (PEPRA).  
 

5. Ms. Young shall continue to earn and accrue vacation and sick leave in accordance with 
the “Policy Regarding Benefits of At-Will and Elected Management-Level Officers and 
Employees” updated most recently by the Mono County Board of Supervisors on April 2, 
2024, and as the same may be further amended from time to time and unilaterally 
implemented by the County (hereinafter the “Management Benefits Policy”) and in 
accordance with any applicable County Code provisions not in conflict with said Policy.  
Also, pursuant to said Policy, in recognition of the fact that her employment will be 
exempt from the payment of overtime or compensatory time-off under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, she shall be entitled to 80 hours of merit leave (aka administrative leave) 
during each calendar year of service under this Agreement, prorated for 2024 to reflect 
Ms. Young’s October 1, 2024 start date.  Ms. Young understands that said merit leave 
does not accrue from one calendar year to the next; rather, it must be used by December 
31st of each calendar year in which it is provided, or it is lost. Consistent with Ms. 
Young’s uninterrupted employment status, this Agreement shall have no effect on any 
sick leave or vacation time that Ms. Young may have accrued as of the effective date of 
this Agreement nor on her original date of hire or total years of service as a County 
employee, to the extent the same may be relevant in determining such accruals or Ms. 
Young’s date of eligibility for or vesting of any non-salary benefits or for any other 
purpose. 
 

6. The County shall pay the professional dues, subscriptions, and other educational 
expenses necessary for Ms. Young’s full participation in applicable professional 
associations, for her continued professional growth and for the good of the County, as 
determined to be appropriate, and as approved by the Director of HHS.   
 

7. To the extent not inconsistent with the foregoing or any other provision of this 
Agreement, Ms. Young shall be entitled to the same general benefits provided by the 
County to other management-level employees, as described more fully in the 
Management Benefits Policy.  Such benefits include but are not limited to CalPERS 
retirement benefits at the tier applicable to Ms. Young’s employment, CalPERS medical 
insurance, County dental and vision coverage, and life insurance.   

 
8. Ms. Young understands and agrees that her receipt of compensation or benefits of any 

kind under this Agreement or under any applicable County Code provision or policy – 
including but not limited to salary, insurance coverage, and paid holidays or leaves – is 
expressly contingent on her actual and regular rendering of full-time personal services to 
the County or, in the event of any absence, upon her proper use of any accrued leave.  
Should Ms. Young cease rendering such services during this Agreement and be absent 
from work without any accrued leave to cover said absence, then she shall cease earning 
or receiving any additional compensation or benefits until such time as she returns to 
work and resumes rendering personal services; provided, however, that the County shall 
provide any compensation or benefits mandated by state or federal law.  Furthermore, 



 

V2024.02.08 – C. Young Page 3 of 4 

should Ms. Young’s regular schedule ever be reduced to less than full-time employment, 
on a temporary or permanent basis, then all compensation and benefits provided by this 
Agreement or any applicable County policies shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis, except 
for those benefits that the County does not generally pro-rate for its other part-time 
employees. 

 
9. Consistent with the “at will” nature of Ms. Young’s employment, the Director of HHS 

may terminate Ms. Young’s employment at any time during this Agreement, without 
cause.  In such event, this Agreement shall automatically terminate concurrently with the 
effective date of the termination.  Ms. Young understands and acknowledges that as an 
“at will” employee, she will not have permanent status nor will her employment be 
governed by the County Personnel System (Mono County Personnel Rules) except to the 
extent that System is ever modified to apply expressly to at-will employees.  Among 
other things, she will have no property interest in her employment, no right to be 
terminated or disciplined only for just cause, and no right to appeal, challenge, or 
otherwise be heard regarding any such termination or other disciplinary action the County 
Administrative Officer may, in his or her discretion, take during Ms. Young’s 
employment.   

 
10. In the event of a termination without cause under paragraph 9 occurring after the first 

twelve (12) months of Ms. Young’s employment under this Agreement, Ms. Young shall 
receive as severance pay a lump sum equal to two (2) months’ salary.  For purposes of 
severance pay, “salary” refers only to base compensation.  Ms. Young shall not be 
entitled to any severance pay in the event that the Director of HHS has grounds to 
discipline her on or about the time he or she gives notice of termination.  For purposes of 
this provision, grounds for discipline include but are not limited to those specified in 
section 520 of the Mono County Personnel Rules, as the same may be amended from 
time to time.  Ms. Young shall also not be entitled to any severance pay in the event that 
she becomes unable to perform the essential functions of her position (with or without 
reasonable accommodations) and her employment is duly terminated for such non-
disciplinary reasons. 

 
11. Ms. Young may resign her employment with the County at any time.  Her resignation 

shall be deemed effective when tendered, and this agreement shall automatically 
terminate on that same date, unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing by the parties.  
Ms. Young shall not be entitled to any severance pay or to earn or accrue additional 
compensation of any kind after the effective date of such resignation. 

 
12. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 

employment of Ms. Young, and shall supersede and replace any and all prior agreements 
or understandings regarding Ms. Young’s employment.   
 

13. The parties agree that the Board of Supervisors’ approval of this Agreement on behalf of 
the County is a legislative act and that through this agreement, the Board of Supervisors 
is carrying out its responsibility and authority under Section 25300 of the Government 



 

V2024.02.08 – C. Young Page 4 of 4 

Code to set the terms and conditions of County employment.  It is not the parties’ intent 
to alter in any way the fundamental statutory (non-contractual) nature of Ms. Young’s 
employment with the County nor to give rise to any future contractual remedies for 
breach of this Agreement or of an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  
Rather, the parties intend that Ms. Young’s sole remedy in response to any failure by the 
County to comply with this Agreement shall be traditional mandamus. Pursuant to 
Government Code sections 53243 et seq., Ms. Young shall reimburse the County for any 
paid leave pending an investigation, legal criminal defense, or cash settlement related to 
termination by the County if Ms. Young is convicted of a crime involving abuse of office 
or position. 

 
14. Ms. Young acknowledges that this Agreement is executed voluntarily by her, without 

duress or undue influence on the part or on behalf of the County.  Ms. Young further 
acknowledges that she has participated in the negotiation and preparation of this 
Agreement and has had the opportunity to be represented by counsel with respect to such 
negotiation and preparation or does hereby knowingly waive her right to do so, and that 
she is fully aware of the contents of this Agreement and of its legal effect.  Thus, any 
ambiguities in this Agreement shall not be resolved in favor of or against either party. 

 
15. For purposes of this Agreement, a photocopy, facsimile, .pdf, or electronically scanned 

signatures, including but not limited to Docusign or similar service, shall be deemed as 
valid and as enforceable as an original.    

 
III. EXECUTION: 
 
 This Agreement is executed by the parties this 1st day of October, 2024. 
 
EMPLOYEE  THE COUNTY OF MONO 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Cathleen Young     John Peters, Chair 
       Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
COUNTY COUNSEL 
 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session: Real Property
Negotiations

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS. Government Code section 54956.8. Property: 56 Kirkwood,
Bridgeport, CA. Agency negotiator: Sandra Moberly. Negotiating parties: Mono County. Under negotiation: Price, terms

conditions.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/10/2024 11:14 AM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:39 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:39 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Exposure to
Litigation

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION. Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to
paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: One.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/17/2024 2:27 PM County Counsel Yes

 9/24/2024 12:40 PM Finance Yes

 9/24/2024 3:38 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section 54957.6. Agency designated representative(s):
Sandra Moberly, Oliver Yee, Christopher Beck, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee Organization(s): Mono

County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County
Public Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County Paramedic Rescue Association

(PARA), Mono County Correctional Deputy Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/10/2024 11:13 AM County Counsel Yes

 9/4/2024 2:21 PM Finance Yes

 9/16/2024 8:46 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE October 1, 2024

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Public Employee
Evaluation

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 9/10/2024 11:14 AM County Counsel Yes

 3/27/2024 9:48 AM Finance Yes

 9/16/2024 8:46 AM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);

	Meeting Agenda
	#5a - Board Minutes
	#5b - Summary Vacation of Portions of Glacier Drive and Beaver Run in Virginia Lakes, California
	#5c - California Reportable Disease Information Exchange (CalREDIE) and California Connected (CalCONNECT) Data Use and Disclosure Agreements
	#5d - Grant Funding for Water Refilling Stations
	#5e - Authorization for Purchase of Two Sheriff Search and Rescue Trucks
	#5f - Contract with North American Mental Health Services for Tele-Psychiatry Services
	#5g - Budget Adjustment for Sheriff's Office to Implement Alcoholic Beverage Control Grant
	#5h - Amended Madera County Sheriff - Coroner - Autopsy Services
	#5i - Authorization for Purchase of Road Division 10-Wheeler
	#5j - Ordinance Amending Chapter 7.92 of the Mono County Code to Prohibit Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing
	#5k - Update to Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) Joint Powers Agreement (JPA)
	#5l - Ratify and Approve Submission of The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) State and Local Cybersecurity Grant
	#6a - Letter of Support for Digital Equity Grant Application for Golden State Connect Authority Member Counties
	#7a - Community Corrections Partnership Update
	#7b - Election Education Series Part 2
	#7c - Yosemite National Park Visitor Access Management Plan
	#7d - Housing Management Plan for the Bridgeport Apartments
	#7e - Mono County Jail Update
	#7f - 2024 - 25 Mono County Board of Supervisors Governance Handbook Update
	#7g - Amendment to Allocation List, Underfilling one Management Analyst with an Office Manager, Adding one At-Will Staff Services Manager, Deleting one Supervising Staff Services Analyst and Moving one Senior Services Supervisor to Range 72, and Adding one Program Manager - MCPE
	#8a - Closed Session: Real Property Negotiations
	#8b - Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation
	#8c - Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	#8d - Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation



